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BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS’ MANAGEMENT
OF THE $2 BILLION INDIAN TRUST FUND

MONDAY, MAY 20, 1991

Houske oF REPRESENTATIVES,
ENVIRONMENT, ENERGY,
AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE
OF THE COMMITTEE ON (GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:32 a.m., in room
2247, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Mike Synar (chairman
of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representative Mike Synar.

Also present: Representative Collin C. Peterson.

Subcommittee staff present: Sandra Harris, staff director; Steve
Richardson, professional staff member; Elisabeth Campbell, clerk;
and Kirk Esherick, minority professional staff, Committee on Gov-
ernment Operations.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN SYNAR

Mr. SYNAR. Today, the Subcommittee on Environment, Energy,
and Natural Resources will continue its review of the Bureau of
%{:Jdign Affairs’ management and supervigion of the Indian Trust

nd.

The BIA is responsible for managing almost $2 billion held in
trust for about 300,000 individual Native Americans and several
hundred tribes. Scores of reports over the years by the Interior De-
partment’s inspector general, the U.S. General Accounting Office,
the Office of Management and Budget, and others have document-
ed significant problems in BIA’s ability to accurately and fully ac-
count for trust fund moneys, to properly discharge its fiduciary re-
sponsibilities, and to prudently manage the trust funds.

During our last hearing on September 25, 1990, subcommittee
members expressed both disappointment and serious concern over
the Bureau’s intolerable slowness in resolving the chronic manage-
ment deficiencies that have plagued the trust fund program. Now,
almost 8 months later, our continuing review suggests that only mar-
ginal p has been made.

The subcommittee has been icularly troubled by BIA’s ef-
forts, undertaken only grudgingly, to implement repeated congres-
sional directives designed to provide a full accounting of the indi-
vidual and tribal account funds. Since our last hearing, some
progress on this effort has been made, but BIA is still moving at a
snail’s pace.

(D
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Now, the subcommittee intends to look at the status of the Bu-
reau’s various management improvement efforts and to explore
why more substantive progress has not been made despite the pas-
sage of so much time. It would add insult to injury to spend mil-
lions of taxpayers’ dollars finally reconciling the Indian Trust Fund
accounts only to have the BIA just slide back into its old, slipshod
management habits.

Sadly, there is no assurance that BIA has made any advance-
ment toward correcting the basic financial management failures
brought to their attention. Despite a decade of “initiatives,” BIA's
headquarters leadership and accountability continue to be woefully
inadequate. Although many significant problems continue to be
cited by the inspector general, by GAO, by OMB, by independent
accounting firms and by this subcommittee, the BIA remains quick
to promise, but slow to perform.

This is the subcommittee’s fourth hearing on these serious prob-
lems. I must say, it is beginning to border on the ridiculous that
this subcommittee should have to devote such significant resources
to reviewing one program in one agency, without seeing the kind of
progress that should have resulted long ago.

The subcommittee is about to embark on the drafting of a report
on the Bureau's management of the Indian trust funds and on its
responses to the many serious problems plaguing this program.
Our report will accurately reflect that progress has been made by
the Bureau since we began our oversight efforts in 1989, However,
I can assure you that, on the whole, it will not reflect a positive
picture of headquarters’ concern over the management of this pro-
gram,

Our continuing oversight hearings appear to be about the only
reason the Bureau has made any progress in this area. I can only
hope that our committee’s report and recommendations will have
an even greater effect on the Government's management of the
Indian Trust Funds.

Mr. SyNaAR. I would like to insert into the record at this point
Mr. Clinger’s statement.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Clinger follows:]
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Thank you, Mr., chajrman.

Today’s hearing represents the fourth, and hopefully last,
hearing undertaken by this Subcomaittee examining the nismanagement
of tribal and Indian trust fund accounts. Our previcus hearings have
documented egregious problems with tha operaticn and manageament of
tribal and Indian trust funde. I am disappointed to ses that at
today'e hearing we will hear more of the same. At our last hearing,
the Bureau of Indian Affairs testified that accounts would begin to
be reconcliled and audited by this time. Yar, it was not until just
laat week that BIA contracted with Arthur Andersen & Co. to commence
with the reconciliation and audit work. No comprehensive plan has
been developed. Continued delay is unacceptable to me and mpust be
unbearably frustrating to tribal and individual Native American
account holders,

I understand that the Bureau’s trust fund accounting and manage-
nent troublas have grabbed the attention of the Cffice of Management
and Sudget. I am hopeful that OMB‘e active intereset, combined with
the interest of the Department of the Interlior, the Appropriations
Subcommittae on Interior, and this Subcommittes, will result in the
rapid resolution to the Bureau of Indian Affairs’ trust fund
wanagement woes,

Apparently, the Bureau has already begun to take some notice. I
understand that the Assistant Secratary for Indian Affairs is
reviewing three candidates for the Director position at tha Office
Trust Funde Management. 1 am hopaful that with the filling of the
Director vacancy, we will see the expaditious development of a
comprehansive long-term management plan. Coupled with the
commencement of Phase I of the reconciliation and sudit task, these
activities will represant real, tangible progress.

This Subcommittee acknowledges that there pay be achedule
slippagea. And, as I said at the cutset of my statemsnt, hopefully
this will bas ths last hearing we conduct. However, if systemic
problens are not adequataly Addrassed inh a timely manhper, I will be
among the first to push for our re-entering the hearing room and
getting those problems resoclved.

As I have said in the past, Nativa Araricans deserve better than
what the Bureau of Indian Affairs has delivered. For their sakas, I
hope I never fesl compelled to may that agbin,

Thank you, Kr. Chairwan.

Thel STATIOMIAY SANTED OH FAAER MADE OF RICYCLED Ll L)
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Mr. SyNaRr. Joining us from the full committee is Mr. Collin Pe-
terson. He is from Minnesota and represents the Red Lake Band of
Chippewa. [ would recognize him for any opening statement he
might have.

Mr. PerersoN. Thank you. I just am pleased you let me join you
today and appreciate you looking into this. I have a considerable
amount of information that is pretty troubling about what has hap-
pened to the Red Lake Band, and they are small potatoes compared
to the rest of the problems out there.

We have a situation in that band where they have a determined
amount of money they put in the trust fund, and the Bureau arbi-
trarily reduced it. There are some serious questions. I hope they
can get to the bottom of it somehow.

Mr. SyNARr. Thank you for being with us.

Our first panel is Mr. Jeffrey Steinhoff, Director of Civil Audits,
Accounting and Financial Management Division in the U.S. Gener-
al Accounting Office. Today, he is accompanied by Ms. Gayle
Condon, Mr. Robin Wagner, and Mr. Tom Armstrong.

We also have the Honorable James R. Richards, inspector gener-
al of the U.S. Department of the Interior.

It is the policy of the subcommittee, in order not to prejudice
past or future witnesses, that we swear in all of our witnesses in.
Anybody have an objection to being sworn in? Anybody who has
the potential of testifying please stand and raise your right hand at
this time.

(Witnesses sworn.]

Mr. Synar. Mr. Steinhoff, let’s start with you. Welcome back
again. As you know, your entire testimony will be made a part o
the record. At this time, we would ask you to summarize. -

STATEMENT OF JEFFREY C. STEINHOFF, DIRECTOR, CIVIL
AUDITS, ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT DIVI-
SION, U.8, GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, ACCOMPANIED BY
GAYLE CONDON, ROBIN WAGNER, AND TOM ARMSTRONG

Mr. SteiNHOFF. I am pleased to be here today to discuss efforts
by the Bureau to reconcile and audit the Indian trust funds ac-
counts. BIA faces serious financial management problems that go
back decades. There is no shortage of audit reports and manﬁe-
ment studies which detail a litany of horror stories with BIA’s
overall financial systems and operations, and in particular, its
trust fund accounting.

For years, BIA has acknowledged these problems. What has been
lacking is meaningful action to remedy the situation, action that

ets to the root cause of what is wrong. As a result and. most un-
erstandably, BIA has totally lost credibility with its trust fund ac-
goll;?t holders. It simply has not carried out its fiduciary responsi-
ility.
B]'.‘;\ 18 making some progress and finally beginning an effort to
attempt to reconcile the Indian Trust Fund accounts. After 4 years
in the making, it awarded a reconciliation contract in early May.
The magnitude of this undertaking is tremendous.

Up front, everyone must understand the potential limitations of

any reconciliation where records weren’t retained or are incom-
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plete, and that stretches back over many years. Think of trying to
determine the correct balance of a personal bank account that has
been active for more than 50 years and is replete with accounting
errors which were not reconciled and corrected along the way.

Think about trying to determine the correct balance when many
of the supporting records cannot be located, and then multiply this
times 300,000 accounts. Given the circumstances, I don’t believe it
is realistic to expect a full reconciliation of all accounts back to
their inception.

What should be expected is a good-faith effort to the extent prac-
ticable. BIA must closely manage this effort to assure it is carried
out properly and cost effectively. It should involve the Indian ac-
count holders so there is agreement at the end that BIA has made
a reasonable effort to provide a proper accounting.

This is not a turnkey operation where you award a contract and
hope for the best. Also, I want to emphasize that the reconciliation,
while certainly important and long overdue, is not the ultimate so-
lution. Questionable account balances are only a symptom of a
much larger problem. BIA must get to the root cause if it is ever to
develop confidence in the stewardship of these moneys. Once recon-
ciled, an account will have to be kept in balance.

BIA is not alone in its need to make financial management im-
provements. In passing the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990,
the Congress recognized that across the board, the Federal Govern-
ment needs to upgrade financial management.

This act is the most comprehensive financial reform package in
40 years. The CFQO Act calls for the establishment of a Chief Finan-
cial Officer structure and a cadre of trained accounting profession-
als in each department, the development of a comprehensive 5-year
plan to guide the implementation of modern financial systems and
the building of first-rate financial management operations, and the
preparation and audit of financial statements that include all trust
funds and the issuance of an annual management report which
tells the story of where an agency stands financially.

Successful implementation of the CFO Act is the key to solving
BIA’s financial management problems. This will require strong
leadership and fundamental changes in the way financial manage-
ment is viewed. There must be strong commitment at the top or
next year, we will again be talking about what is wrong without
seeing meaningful improvement.

Interior and BIA will need the full support of this committee as
they move to implement the act. Money invested wisely to build
new financiai systems that work, to recruit and train professional
accountants, and to prepare and audit financial statements will
pay off manyfold in the long run.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my summary remarks. I would be
pleased to respond to any questions you or Mr. Peterson have at
this time.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Steinhoff follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittea:

We are pleased to be here today to discuss the status of the
Bureau of Indian Affairs' (BIA) efforts to implement the
congressionally mandated trust fund reconciliation and audit
project and the steps being taken to improve Indian Trust Funds
financial management. Our testimony will focus on tha prograss
BIA has made in preparing for the reconciliation and audit
project and factors that may directly affect BIA's efforts to

resolve its trust fund financial management problems.

BIA has a fiduciary responsibility to ensure that proper control
and accountability is waintained over each trust account. In
line with BIA's fiduciary responsibility, it is critical that the
tribal and Indian trust accounts be reconciled and audited.

After accounts are reconciled, the balances of each of these
accounts will be certified as correct by auditors independent of
both BIA and the account holders and will provide a baseline for
subsequent confirmations of the tribal and individual Indian
monies account balances. The reconciliation will also facilitate
future audits of the trust funds' financial statements. Another
advantage of the reconciliation and audit project is that it
gives BIA a chance to improve its image regarding its ability to

manage and oversee the trust fund accounts.



As requested by the Subcommittae, I will discuas (1) a
chronology of the reconciliation project‘s planning and
developuent, (2) the difficulty of completing the reconciliation
project, (3) the need for a strategic plan for trust fund for
financial management improvement, (4) how BIA can use the chief
Financial Officers (CFQ) Act of 1990 to help build a strong
financial managemant structure, and (5) potential options for

managing BIA's trust fund program.

Bafore I discuss these issues, I would like to provide some
perspective on the size of the trust funds, their growth over the
last 10 years, BIA's long-standing financial management problems,

and the magnitude of the reconciliation and audit project.

The Secretary of the Interior is authorized by law to manage
Tribal and Individual Indian Monies Trust Funds. These funds are
collectively referred to as Indian Trust Funds. The Indian Trust
Funds ars comprised of payments of claims against the government;
0il, gas, and minerals foyalties; income from land use

agreements; investment income; and income from other sources.

During the 19808, higher royalty payments primarily from higher
0il and gas prices and proceeds from a number of water and land
claims settlements significantly increased the balances in these
accounts, The accounts grew from about 51,1 billion in 1980 to

over 52 billion in 1990, By the end of fiscal year 1990, there



wWere approximately 2,000 tribal and 300,000 individual Indian
monaey accounts in the Indian Trust Funds with balances of $1.5

billion and $500 million, respectively.

Blh HAS REEN PLAGUED BY LONG-STANDING

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT PROBLEMS

BIA has serious financial management problems permeating almost
evely ¢ne of its principal accounting systemsg., Tribes and
individual Indians have long beéen concerned about the accuracy of
BIA's accounting for trust receipts and disbursements and the
effectiveness of BIA's investment practices. BIA has often baen
criticized for errcnecus allocations of receipts, erronecus
payments to account helders, failure to consistently invest trust

fund balances, and failure to pay interest.

Almost $§ years ago, we reportedl that BIA's appropriaticn and
trust fund accounting systems needed major improvements. At that
time, we found that the information produced by BIA's accounting
systems was unreliable, that trust accounts had not been
reconciled with the general ledger to ensure correct balances,
and that controls over cash receipts and disbursements were

inadeguate.

3
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Since 1982, numerous audits have been performed by the Interior
Department's Inspector General and public accounting firms hired
by BIA. These audits have continued to point out serious
accounting and financial management prcblems and weak internal
controls throughout BIA. Furthermore, since its first report
under the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act in 1983, each
year the Department of the Interior has continued to report on

serious long-standing financial managemant problems in BIA.

Since 1983, two different public accounting firms have reportead
serious internal control problems in BIA's trust accounting
operations. One recent report, covering Arthur Andersen & Co.'s
fiscal year 1988 and 1989 financial audits of the trust funds,
expressed a qualified opinlon on BIA's trust fund financial
statements due to an inability to confirm cash balances, major
inadequacies in accounting records and related systems, and
accounting errors. In addition, it reported that BIA's
financial systems 2id not provide accurate and timely reports to
Indiaﬁ and tribal account holders. These problems were similar

to those discussed in our 1982 report.

BIA's TRUST FUND RECONCILIATION PROJECT

In 1987, to meet the demands of Indian account holders for
accurate account balances, the Congress mandated that BIA

reconcile and audit all trust fund accounts. Since then, the
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congress has called for the trust accounts reconciliation and
audit three more times in BIA's 198%, 1990, and 1591
appropriations acts. Because it could not develop an acceptable
approach for conducting the work, BIA has taken 4 Years to reach
the point where it can begin the trust account reconciliation and

audit project.

In May 1590, BIA developed a regquest for propoesal (RFP} to
reconcile, audit, and certify the tribal and individual Indian
monies trust fund accounts. At that time, Mr. Chairman, you
asked for GAQ's assgessment of the proposal. We advised you, as
did tribal representatives, that the reconciliation work should
be done independently from the audit and certification of the
accounts. As a result, BIA canceled this RFP and began to
daevelop separate RFPs for reconciliation of the trust fund
accounts and for audit and certificatioﬂ of the reconciled

balances.

During the summer of 19550, after the May RFP was canceled, BIA
submitted a plan to the Congress for carrying ocut the
reconciliation and audit project.. BIA has divided this project
into two phases, each of which includes the same two processes:
{1) reconciliation, which may require reconstruction of trust
accounts from the earliest date practical, given the availability
of supporting documentation, and (2) independent audit and

certification of tha reconciled balances.
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Phase I will cover over 500 tribal accounts balonging to 37 of
the 254 tribes. BIA selected these accounts for Phase I because
they maka up over 87 percent of the tribal trust funds balance
and they represent the majority of the tribal accounts. 1In
addition, Phase I will cover 17,000 individual Indian money
accounts that make up over 17 percent of the Individual Indian
Monies Trust Funds balance. BIA selected individual Indian money
accounts which are maintained at three of its agency offices—-
Uintah and Ouray, Fort Peck, and Olympic Peninsula--because
reconciliations have been completad on these accounts for most of
the last 3 years, and the results would serve as a useful
starting point. The Phase I contract will also require the
contractor to submit a plan for Phase II for BIA's

consideration, Phase II will cover the remaining 1,500 tribal

and approximately 283,000 individual Indian money accounts.

status of Phage I

buring the fall of 1990, a series of meetings was held with BIA
trust fund officials and the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory
Committee to reach consensus on what should be included in the
RFPs for Phase I account reconciliation and audit/certification.
Other participants at those meetings included a member of your
staff, a staff member from the House Appropriations Subcommittee

on Interior and Related Agencies, and GAO staff. During these
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meetings, a decision was made to delay work on the
audit/certification RFP until the reconciliation work was
underwvay and projections could be made for a reaschable
completion date for the reconciliation work. BIA issued an RFP
for Phase I reconciliation work on December 28, 1990, BIA
intends to develop a separate RFP to contract for Phase I audit

and certification work after the accounts are raeconciled.

On April 11, 1991, we testified? before the House Appropriations
Subcommittee on Interior and Related Agencies on the status of
BIA's efforts to prepare for reconciliation and awdit of the
Indian trust fund accounts. At that time, we pointed out that
Phase I of the reconciliation project was still in the
contracting phase, that work on the project would probably not
start until late spring 1991, and that the Bureau's plans for

managing and overseeing the project had not been finalized.

Since our April testimony, BIA has continued to make progress
toward awarding a contract for the Phase I reconciliation work.
BIA reviewed contractor proposals from six firms and reguested
"bast and final .offers" from four firms, The winning bidder,
Arthur Andersen & Co., was selected and notified on May 10, 1991,
BIA estimates that Phase I reconciliation work will be completed

sometime in the late spring of 1992, Audit and certification

2 '

Bureay of Indian Affairs' Efforts to Reconcgile and Audit
the Indian Trust Fundg (GAO/T-AFMD-91-2, Apr., 11, 1991).
7
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work could begin before then, if enough accounts are reconciled.
We caution that, while BIA has made progress since last fall in
getting the reconciliation project started, thaere are no results
yet. In addition, BIA still nesds to take action to ensure
effactive project management and reporting of reconciliation

regults.

Phase I Contract Management Plan

BIA's Phase [ reconciliation management plan still has not been
finalized. Given the importance, scope, and complexity of the
reconciliation work, BIA needs to finalize this plan gquickly.

In our April testimony, we pointed ocut that BIA's management plan
needed to address several key issues such as contract oversight,
BIA project support and staffing, the role of the designatad
tribal representatives, contractor reporting, plans for audit

and certification of the reconciled accounts, and how the

accounts will be kept accurate once they are reconcilad.

Of most immediate concern is BIA's staff support for this
project. According to the project director, BIA field staff waere
designated to provide project support in January 1990. Howaver,
some of these ataff no longer hold these positions and others are
inexperienced, according to the reconciliation project manager.
In addition, some of thesae staff will not be devoting all of

their time to this project because they have other duties.

8
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Because of the importance of this project, we are contimuing to
epphasize to BIA officials the need to ensure that experienced
staff are dedicated to it. The project manager recently advised
us that, in early May 19%1, full time trust fund accountants were

assigned to work on this project at 5 of the 12 area offices.

In the contractor reporting area, BIA needs to finalize the
format the contractor will use to report trust account balances
to account holders and to the congressional committees monitoring

this project.

After the reconciliation project management plan is completed,
BIA needs to develop the Phase I audit and certification RFP and
a timetable for completing the audit and certification work.
These tasks should be completed as soon as possible so that work
proceeads smoothly throughout Phase I and into Phase II. BIA also
needs to determine how the accounts will be kept accurate once
they are reconciled. 1In this regard, BIA needs to ensure that
it has consistent writteh policies and procedures for trust fund
accounting, investment activity, and financial reporting.
Finally, BIA needs to ensure that it has reliable financial
systems for accounting for trust fund receipts, disbursements,
and investments, and for generating pericdic statements to

account holders on the status of their accounts.
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RECONCILING THE ACCOUNTS
WILL BE DIFFICULT

The raconciliation and audit work will not be easy and
expectations must be realistic because the reconciliation work
may involve reconstructing accounts from source documents.
However, all records to support the transactions in these
accounts may not be available. This issue was raised in an
october 1989 lettaer to this Subcommittee from Arthur Andersen &
Co., the accounting firm that performed BIA's fiscal year 1988
and 1989 financial statement audits. The letter stated that a
complete audit and reconciliation of all account activity back to
inception might not be possible, or practicable, due to the lack

of available records at certain locatjons.

Many accounts are between 50 and 100 years old and will have to
be reconstructed before an accurate balance can be determined.
The magnitude of this undertaking is tremendous. Think about
trying to determine the correct balance of a personal checking
account that was active for over 50 years but was never
reconciled periodically. Then, think about attempting to
determine the correct balance of the account when many of the
supporting records were not retained. This situvation iz similar
to what a contractor will face as it begins to perform the trust
fund reconciliation work for BIA. However, the contractor will
ultimately be trying to determine the balance for over 300,000

accounts, not just one.

10
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Tha reconciliation RFP attempts to address soma of the concerns
about the potential records availabjility problems by specifying
that accounts will be reconciled as accurately as possible back
to the earliest date practicable. The intent of this language is
to openly acknowledge that all records pertaining to these
accounts may not be available. This language was agreed to by
BIA, the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committea, and

congressional staff at the meetings held during the fall of 1990.

Any attempt to reconstruct accounts, if the records are not
readily available, would be futile and costs for such an effort
would be excessive. Therefore, everyone's expactations of what
can be reasonably achieved by this project have to be realistic.
In recognition of this, the RFP also contains a cost containment
measure. This measure requires the firm performing the
reconciliation to provide, after the initial 2 to 4 weeks of work
at aach location, an assessmant of the level of effort and cost
required for the Phase I reconciliation work. We will advise you

of these estimates when they become available.

BIA officials realize that a complete set of trust fund records
is important and they are aware of the problems that incomplete
account records will cause. Therefore, since last summer, BIA
employees have been gathering, and centrally locating, trust

records to facilitate the Phase I reconcliliation work. At this

11
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point, BIA feels it has gatherad most of the available records
needed to support Phase I of the project and that records of
account activity should be available for the last 10 years for
most BIA Area Offices. As indicated earlier, this iz the periocd
when the s8ize of the trust funds grew very rapidly--from about
$1.1 billion in 1980 to over $2 billion in 1990. However, there
is =still no guarantee that 3l]l of the necessary records for

raconciling these accounts have actually been located.

Potential outcomes of Phase I

Despite the significant potential for incomplete records and the
problemg this will cause, BIA and the account holders believe the
reconciliation work will disclose account overpayments,
underpayments, and instances where BIA did not always
consistently invest the trust monies, which resulted in lost

interest to many account holders,

Therefore, after Phase I is completed, BIA and the Congress
might be facing some difficult issues. Mr. Chairman, you
recently introduced legislation that would require BIA to pay
interést on individual Indian money accounts. Other issues also
need to be addressed. For example, due to incomplete records,
the balances of some accounts may still be unknown. Or, where
reconciliation is possible, the account holders may not agree

with the balances. The work might show that certain tribes

12
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and/or individual Indians owe money to BIA due to overpayments.
This could be a contentious issue because errors may gdo back many
years. On the other hand, BIA may owe money to account holders

due to unpaid interest or underpayments of interest.

Both BIA and the Congress need to be prepared to address these
issues. Lagislation may be needed to provide appropriations for
monies owed o account holders, or relief may be needed for

unrecoverable overpayments.

STRATEGIC PLANNING IS NEEDED

While an accurate snapshot of account balances today is
important, completion of the reconciliation and audit project
should not be viewed as the ultimate goal. After the accounts
are balanced, BIA must keep them in balance. Therefore,
completion of the reconciliation and audit project should really
be viewed as a first step in BIA's efforts to improve trust fund

management.

As noted in our April testimony, BIA's trust fund financial
manhagement problems are lohg-standing, and BIA does not have an
adequate, comprehensive strategy for addressing them. BIA
ofticials are aware of the need for corrective action, and they
have identified a number of initiatives to improve their current

operations. However, these actions are identified in a number of

13
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differaent documents. For example, we obtained four diffarent BIA
documents that collectively identified 24 separate trust fund
financial management initiatives. Mr. Chairman, on March 26,
1991, BIA provided you with a list containing 41 separate
initiatives, many of which are included in the four documents we
ware provided earlier. After reviewing these documents, we are
concarned about the lack of a comprehensive approach that would
tie these projects together. For example, reconciliation and
audit of the trust fund accounts is not tied to an initiative
that adequately addresses how these accounts will be kept
accurate after they are reconciled. Moreover, we noted that 10
of the 41 financial management improvement initiatives, including
the more significant and more difficult initiatives, are assigned
to one individual who has had only one staff member assigned to
him. For example, this individual is responsible for managing
the reconciljation and audit/certification project--a full-time

job in itself.

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) has also been critical
of BIA's plans for correcting these long-standing problems. Last
summer, under its high risk menitoring program, OMB reviewed
BIA's progress in correcting a number of financial management
weaknesses. OMB noted that many weaknesses remained partly, or
completely, uncorrected and that BIA's action plan was inadeguate
because it did not fully address all necessary corrective

actions.

14
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If BIA is to make significant prograess in addressing itas trust
fund financial management problems, it needs to develop an
overall strategic plan and provide the necessary rescurces to
implement the plan. BIA officials acknowledge the need for a
strategic financial management plan. Howaver, they explained
that developing such a plan was postponed based on a declision to
wait until the position of Office of Trust Fund Managament (OTFM)
Director has been filled. This position has not been filled on a
permanent basis since OTFM was established a year ago. BIA's
latest vacancy announcement closed on April 26, 1991, and a

sslaction is expected soon.

A very critical element to the success of BIA's financial
management improvement efforts iz the need to seek the
participation of key external groups. 1In the past, BlA has taken
action to correct problems without properly consulting the client
groups that have an interest in the outcome cof these projects.

In two instances projects were abandoned after complaints that
BIA did not consult with the tribal and individual Indian account
holders. 1In 1985, BIA was pursuing the use of a third-party
contractor to carry out certain basic trust fund accounting and
investment activities, but it did so without consulting with the
account holders. The account holders appealed to the Congreas to
cancel the projeﬁt. In 1990, another contract was also canceled,

partly because BIA again failed to consult with account holders

15
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prior to entering into the contract. To avoid these problens,

BIA, trust fund account holders, tribal and Indian leaders, OMB,
and the Congress need to be included in the strategic management
process. Without the support of these key groups, any attempts
to plan and executes a trust fund management improvement program

could be unsuccessful.

JMPLEMENTATION OF THE CFO ACT:

A KEY 70 LASTING IMPROVEMENT

BIA's need to solve its overall trust fund problems is part of
the larger set of problems of governmentwide financial

management that the Chief Financial Officers (CFO) Act of 15950
(P.L. 101-576) is intended to address. This law, enacted at the
cloae of the last Congress, represents the most comprehensive
tinancial management reform package in the last 40 years. The
CFO Act provides a framework that BIA can use to help address its

financial management problems.

In implementing the act, the overall objective for both Interior
and BIA should be to ensure that they have (1) an adeguate
financial management organizational structure, (2) a cadre of
qualified and trained accounting professionals that has the
capacity to carry out the broad authorities envisioned by the
act, (3} modern, integrated accounting, budget, and financial
systems, (4) strong internal controls, (5) audited financial

statenents which can pass the test of relevance and usefulness

16
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established in the act, (6) financial information on costs and
parformance measurement which tie into financial reports, as well
as program operations, and (7) annual reports preparad by the CFO

that present the results of BIA's financial operations.

The trust fund reconciliation project is clearly a step forward.
However, the unreconciled accounts are really only a symptom, and
not a cause of BIA'a trust fund financial management problems.

In the long-term, BIA has to deal with the root cause of its
problems or it will revisit the issue of unreconciled accounts
over and over. The CFO Act requires agencies to develop
comprehensive 5-year financial management plans, including a
strategic pl#n for financial management improvements, a financial
systems plan, and useful reports on performance and costs.

Within the S-year plan, BIA should rank its financial management
improvement projects and initiatives and develop realistic
milestones within the framework of the Department's comprehensive
plan. 1In this regard, BIA should consider the appropriateness of
using both in-house and contractor expertise. These initiatives
should be under the direction and control of the Interior

Department's Chief Financial Officer.

i7
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The CFO Act is directed at substantive change, and subsatantive
change is what BIA needs in order to go beyond the symptoms of
its problems to find the cure. It needs to seize the opportunity
this important legislation provides in order to establish
cradibility over its trust fund and other financial operations
and to develop & modern financial management system and

operation.

POTENTIAL QPTIONS FOR
TRUST FUND MANAGEMENT

As BIA begins to think about key program objectives and how to
achiave them, it needs to consider various options for managing
and ovarseeing the trust fund program. For example, BIA could
continue to collect, account for, invest, and disburse trust fund
monies. To do this successfully, however, BIA will need to
ensure that it has adeguate financial management processes and
systems in place to accurately maintain trust fund accounts once
they are reconciled. Otherwise, we will continue to revisit
these problems. Given BIA's past track record, however, there is
no assurance that BIA can correct these problems by the time the

Phase I accounts are reconciled in the spring of 1992.

Other options for handling trust fund financial management could
include BIA (1) contracting with a third party for certain
account maintenance services, (2) leasing an accounting system

that BIA would operate itself, or (3) entering into a cross-

18
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sarvicing arrangement with another federal agancy. Ancther
option, which would involve an alternative to BIA's continued
handling of trust fund accounting and investment activities,
would be to tranafer trust fund account management to ancther

tederal agency. This option may require legislation.

As BIA and tﬁa Congress begin to assess these, or other optiocna,
they need to consider that basic trust funhd account data must
still come from BIA and other Interior components such as the
Minerals Managemant Service (MMS). For exampla, MMS ccllects
oil, gas, and mineral royalties and processes these payments to
BIA. BIA then distributes this income to multiple benetficiaries
using allocation tables., Therefore, these components mudt ensure
that this data, which has been questicned in the past, is

reliable.

CONCLUSIONS

There are no easy sOlutions to the BIA's trust fund financial
management problems. These problems did not happen covernight,
and they cannot be resolved overnight, Whatever opticn is
selected for trust fund management, 2 strateqip trust fund
financial management plan needs to be developed and staffed with
talentaed, committed people, who will faithfully exacute trust

fund management improvement initiatives.

19
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Mr. Chairman, this concludes my remarks. I would be happy to
answer any questions that you or members of the Subcommittee may

have at this time.

20



Mr. SyNAR. Thank you.
Mr. Richards.

STATEMENT OF JAMES R. RICHARDS, INSPECTOR GENERAL, US.
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Mr. RicHARDs. Thank you.

I have testified at the subcommittee’s first hearing on this
matter shortly after we had issued an audit report on the BIA’s ad-
ministration of its trust funds. Mr. Steinhoff has gone into some
detail in his statement.

I am sure that I don’t need to repeat any of that except to say
that little progress has been made in BIA’s administration of the
trust fund. However, the BIA has been taking steps, particularly
on their general accounting system.

With your permission, I will concentrate on talking about what
has recently come to pass as to the sufficiency of the general ac-
counting system of the BIA.

In March 1991 we issued a report entitled, “The Status of the Fi-
nancial Accounting System of the Bureau of Indian Affairs.” It
doesn't paint a very pretty picture.

The audit concluded the Bureau's accounting systems did not
adequately and accurately account for appropriated funds. Weak-
nesses in the system were so pervasive that reported information
was totally unreliable.

We found, first, that accounting data was entered at approxi-
mately 250 remote field locations, without adequate system edits or
central office review to ensure the propriety and integrity of the
entries. As a matter of fact, at those entry places, the instructions
on how to use the machine were taped to the machine, along with
the password, which means that literally there was no security and
virtually anybody could make entries into those systems.

As a result, the Bureau’s general ledger showed substantial and
continual imbalances. Yearend statements to the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget and the U.S. Treasury were often inaccurate.

The Office of Management and Budget had reported a $35 mil-
lion discrepancy as a resuit of the preliminary resolution of fiscal
year 1390 accounts. This lack of control created ample opportunity
for potential fraudulent transactions to be entered virtually any-
where in the system. :

Second, we found the Bureau did not establish edits in its ac-
counting system to prevent inappropriate entries into the system.
As a result, the other affected accounts were plugged by the
ll:?!;nlreau with corresponding amounts to force the general ledger to

ance.

In other words, if accounts didn’t balance at any given time, they
would simply plug in an amount which would make it balance.

The audit found the Bureau’s consolidated general ledger con-
tained numerous gross imbalances in accounts, accounts that any-
body with any accounting experience know should have credit bal-
ances, have negative balances and vice versa. The audit reported
Bureau personnel lacked a general knowledge and understanding
of the accounting principles and balances.
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Consequently, errors or inconsistencies were not analyzed or dis-
closed until periodic financial reports were prepared as noted by
the $95 million discrepancy in the report that the Bureau submit-
ted to the OMB. We found there may have been a potential viola-
tion of the Anti-Deficiency Act, but the accounts were in such sad
shape that we can’t tell.

We recommended a comprehensive review and analysis of the
Bureau’s consolidated general ledger in order to reconstruct accu-
rate account balances to determine over-obligated appropriation
balances, the establishment of internal controls and system edits to
ensure the accuracy and a development of a plan to obtain the
needed expertise to execute the accounting responsibilities.

There was great interest at high levels in the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget, even while we were doing field work on this
review. In response to this report, even before it was final, the
Bureau, in conjunction with the Department and OMB, toock imme-
diate action to start the process of revising current accounting
practices, purifying inaccurate records and implementing the fi-
nancial management improvement project.

In this connection, a task force consisting of accounting person-
nel from the Department, the Bureau of Indian Affairs and other
bureaus and offices of the Department has been appointed to ad-
dress the many deficiencies and problems of the bureau accounting
system. While these are significant first steps, they are only the be-
ginning of a very long process.

In the past the Bureau has agreed with many of our audit recom-
mendations on a variety of issues, and stated that corrective ac-
tions would be initiated. However, in many instances the Bureau
has failed to achieve these corrective actions.

One reason for this nonaccomplishment has been the Bureau’s
failure to establish a system of accountability for Bureau officials
responsible for correcting these problems.

Another reason the reported accounting deficiencies are not
bgfing corrected is because of two long-term issues the Bureau must
address.

One is the development of an experienced and permanent ac-
counting systems staff and, second, the implementation of an ac-
ceptable accounting system. The Bureau’s successful conversion to
the Federal financial system is imperative.

The Bureau was to have converted to the system by October 1,
1990. However, the date was postponed until October 1991,

The Federal financial system is the Department’s integrated core
financial system, which will replace 13 different accounting sys-
tems from all the bureaus.

The task force that I mentioned has developed a plan, denomi-
nated the financial man ent improvements project which has
an 18-member multidisciplinary team working to correct problems.
These people are experienced accountants and auditors and other
management officials.

Given the commitment of the task force to correct the problems
and the high-level support of both the Secretary, OMB officials and
the task force, we are optimistic that the financial system will be
converted to the Federal financial system on time.
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The Bureau has made a beginning. However, as my testimony in-
dicates, the corrective actions are mostly not complete and many of
the deficiencies may still exist or may reoccur if the actions are
not fully implemented.

The Bureau has a long, long road to travel before an acceptable
system is in place.

That concludes my summary.

I will be pleased to respond to questions.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Richards follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, I am pleased to appear
before you today to discuss the results of ocur audit efforts

regarding various Bureau of Indian Affairs accounting functions.

Historically, our reports have shown that Bureau programs and the
Native Americans have suffered from the Bureau's inadeguate
financial management. Since 1967, we have issued over 150 reports
dealing with accounting and financial management deficiencies at
both the Bureau and the tribal levels. Over 30 of these reports
dealt with problems in trust fund accounting. Some of the
significant and often repeated deficiencies which the reports cited
were:

- Inadequate reconciliation of accounting records,

- Incomplete and inaccurate financial reports,

- Improperly or inadequately documented program costs,

-~ Inadequately controlled receipts, and

- Ineffective management and maintenance of Individuyal Indian

Money accounts.

The deficiencies cited in these reports are also reflected in the
Department's ¥Federal Financial Managers' Financial Integrity Act
precess. Each annual report since the Act was passed has rendered
a negative opinion on the Bureau's accounting system. The
Secretary's 1990 report to the President identified the existence
of significant financial weaknesses within the Bureau as one of the

most critical problems facing the Department. The report stated
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that the Pureau's accounting system did not conform with either the
Comptroller General principles, standards, and related requirements
or with the Core Financial System Requirements promulgated by the
Joint Financial Management Improvement Program. The report
identified six functional categories of nonconformance: the
standard general ledger, primary accounting, effective interface,

cost accounting, documentation andfor audit trails, and data

gquality.

The Bureau has delegated key accounting responsibilities to two
divisions: the Division of Trust Funds Accounting and the Division
of Accounting Management. The Division of Trust Funds Accounting,
which is organizationally located within the Office of Trust Funds
Management, is responsible for implementing, operating, and
controlling accounting systems which record and report on all funds
collected, disbursed, invested and held in trust for individual
Indians and Indian tribes, The Division of Accounting Management,
which is organizationally located within the Office of Management
and Administration, is responsible for implementing, operating,
maintaining, and controlling the administrative accounting
operations of the Bureau, These split responsibilities have been
part of the cause of the Bureau's many financial management

problenms.

In the last two years, we have issued two reports which covered

this subject area eXtensively. We found that the deficiencies
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previously identified in the Bureau's accounting and internal
control systems still existed. These deficiencies resulted in
totally unreliable financial reports and the inability of the
Bureau to accurately account for almost $1.7 billien of trust funds
belonging to individual Indians and Indian tribes. Also, the
Rureau could not accurately account for approximately $1.4 billion

of appropriated funds designated for the operation of needed Indian

programs.

In September 1989, we issued the first report dealing with the
Bureau's accounting system, entitled *®Selected Aspects of Indian
Trust Fund Activities, Bureau of Indian Affairs.” The cbjective of
this audit was to determine whether Indian trust fund investments
of $1.7 billion as of June 30, 1988, shown in the Bureau's officlal

accounting records and reported to the U.5. Treasury, Were valid.

Our audit guestioned the credibility of the Bureau's accounting for
the $1.7 billion invested by the Bureau on behalf of Indian tribes
and individual Indians, The audit highlighted four areas of

deficient accountability.

Flrst, the Bureau's official general 1ledger and subsidiary
accounting records of trust fund investments were not considered
reliable enough to accurately account for the trust funds. BAs of
June 36, 1988, the Bureau's general ledger account balance was $17

million more than the subsidiary accounts. The %17 million
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shortage consisted of $3.1 million of certificates of deposit and
$13.% million of other investmeénts in Government instruments. The
primary cause for this unreliable accounting system was that the
Bureau did not perform adeguate reconciliations of subsidiary
records of actual investments with the official general ledger
accounting records. Alsco, the Bureau did not implement effective
internal centrols or correct long-standing unresclved differences

in individual accounts.

Second, the Bureau had neither recognized investment losses in its
official accounting records nor reimbursed tribal accounts, when
appropriate, for losses of invested trust fupds. At the time of
cur audit, identified and recognized investment losses and
accumulated interest totaled approximately $12 million. The Bureau
did not properly account for known losses because it had no formal
policy and related procedures for recognizing the loss of invested
trust funds. The Bureau's practice was to not discliose the losses
but rather to wait for the account holders to become aware of the
losses, if they ever did, and to file a claim or sue the Government

for recovery of the funds

Third, the Bureau did not adequately control Indian trust funds
invested by it in Government-guaranteed lecans. In 1983, the Bureau
transferred about half of its guaranteed loans to a fiscal agent
without documenting the actual number and deollar value transferred.

As a result, the Bureau lost accountability for about $23 million
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of guaranteed loans involved in this transfer. The Bureau was
unable to provide evidence supporting the payoff of loans totaling
$3.5 mililion maintained by the agent or $1.%5 million of loans it

maintained.

Fourth, tribal trust fund accounts for over 200 tribes were not
credited with the correct interest for overnight deposits with the
.5. Treasury for the pericd July 198% through December 1986. The
Bureau did not earn sufficient interest to reimburse the accounts
because it underreported the amount of daily deposits. Unearned
and undistributed interest for the period amounted to $2.4 million
(including interest) that would have beean earned through April 30,

1989.

We recommended greater centralized management control and authority
over all aspects of trust fund operations, including cyclical
reviews and periodic reconciliations of trust fund account
balances and the establishment of policies and procedures that
definitize when the Bureau is liable for losses and how Indian

accounts will be reimbursed.

As you know, I testified at this Subcommittee's hearing on October

26, 1989, about the findings of that report.

The Bureau agreed with the report's recommendations and initiated

actions to implement them. They have made proper adjustments and
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reconciliations between the general! ledger ond subsidiary records,
but we have not verified these. Alsc, the Bureau has prepared
findings of fact for the seven uninsured investment losses cited in
the audit, and the Solicitor has responded on two of the seven
setting out the Bureau's options. For the remaining five losses,
the Solicitor is pursuing the matter of insurance coverage for them
with the Federal Depcosit Insurance Corporations and the National
Credit Union Administration. Further, the Bureau reimbursed the

affected tribal accounts for the unearned overnight interest in

January 1990.

However, in several instances the actions are incomplete. For
example, the Bureau established the Office of Trust Funds
Management, which is respoensible for all aspects of trust fund
operations, but so far a permanent director has not been selected.
It alsc proposed an Office of Audit and Evaluation to make cyclical
reviews of area and agency operations of Individual Indian Money
accounts, However, this office has not been formally established
or staffed. Also, within the last week, the Bureau finally
selected the contractor to reconcile the 37 top dollar value tribal
judgment award accounts and the Individual Indian Money accounts
for 3 agencies. And, as of this date, the Bureau has yet to issue
its policy regarding the reimbursement of losses on investments
made on behalf ¢f the tribes and has not reimbursed the tribal

accounts for the losges identified in the audit report.
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In March 1991, we issued the second report dealing with the
Bureau's accounting system, entitled "“Selected Aspects of the
Bureau of Indian Affairs Accounting System." The objective of our
audit was to evaluate the accuracy of selected account balances in
the Bureau's accounting system and the potential for and the extent
of any viclations of antideficiency statutes. We initiated this
review because Departmental and Office of Management and Budget
officials informed wus that they were concerned about the
reliahility of Bureau accounting data and reports to the 1.S.

Treasury and the Office of Management and Budget.

This audit concluded that the Bureau's accounting and control
svstems did not adequately and accurately account for appropriated
funds., Weaknesses in the system were so pervasive that reported

information was totally unreliable.

First, we found that the Bureau had not provided sufficient
management oversight and control of its accounting
responsibilities. For example, accounting data was entered at
approximately 250 remote field locations without adequate system
edits or central office review to ensure the propriety and
integrity of the entries. At these 250 locations, costs were
transferred and adjusted within and between appropriation accounts,
and daily transactions were entered directly into the Bureau's
general ledger. However, Bureau personnel did not routinely

perform fundamental account analyses or reconciliations of the
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accounts affected by the adjustments to identify and correct errors
or irregularities. As a result, the Bureau's general ledger showed
substantial and continual imbalances, and yesar-end statements to
the Office of Management and Budget and the U.3. Treasury were
often inaccurate. The Office of Management and Budget had reported
a $95 millioh discrepancy as a result of the preliminary resclution
of fiscal year 1990 accounts. Thig lack of contrel created ample
opportunity for potentially fraudulent transactions to be entered

virtually anywhere in the system.

Second, Bureau management did not establish sufficient internal
edits in its accounting system to prevent inappropriate entries
into the system. For example, although the road construction
appropriation for fiscal year 1990 was merged with the
appropriation for other construction, edits were apparently not
programmed into the system to prevent charges against the old
account. AsS a result, charges were made to the old account,
resulting in a $21 miilion negative balance at year end. We also
noted that the Bureau's accounting system had accepted and posted
"one-gided" transactions instead of the standard double-entry
transactions. A "one-sided" entry occurs when a dollar amount is
posted to ohe account but not to the other affected account. As a
result, the other affected accounts were "“plugged" by Bureau
personnel with corresponding amounts to force the general ledger to

balance.
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The audit also found that the Bureau's Consovlidated General Ledger
contained numerous gross imbalances in its accounts. Specifically,
accounts that should have had dekit balanceg, such as cash,
receivables, or other asset accounts, often had credit balances.
Conversely, accounts which should have had credit balances, such as
payables and other liability accounts, were often found to have
debit balances. For fiscal year 1990, we found that 21 percent of
the debit accounts had credit balances and 30 percent of the credit
accounts had debit balances., Bureau personnel, however, did not
research these obvious imbalances to determine the cause and

magnitude of the errors made.

The audit reported that Bureau personnel lacked essential knowledge
and understanding of accounting principles and standards. Bureau
officials noted that its accounting staff tended to perforn
procedures without a full understanding of the impact of their
actions on the total accounts, Since Bureau personnel did not
routinely perform account analyses and reconciliations and since
adjustments were made directly to the General Ledger, transactions
were often made without proper validation. Conseguently, errors or
inconsistencies generally were not analyzed or discloged until
periodic financial reports were prepared, as evidenced by the $55
miilion discrepancy noted in the reports that the Bureau submitted

to the Office of Management and Budget.
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We also found what may have been a potential violation of the Anti-
Deficiency Act in that 4 of the 10 Operation of Indian Programs
appropriations reviewed for fiscal years 1989 and 1390 exceeded
their appropriations by akout $44.4 million. We were not able to
confirm these potential violatjons because of the poor condition of
existing financial records and the excessive amount of time
required to reconstruct these records. However it is incumbent
upon the Bureau to perform the necessary research to determine
whether an antideficiency viclation does exist and, if so, to

report it accordingly.

We recommended a comprehensive review and analysis of the Bureau's
Consolidated General Ledger in order to reconstruct accurate
account balances to determine overobligated appropriation balances,
the establishment of internal controls and system edits to ensure
the accuracy of data entry, and the development of a plan to obtain

the needed expertise to execute the accounting responsibilities.

There was great interest at high levels in the Office of Management
and Budget (OMB), even while we were doing field work on this
review, and in response to this report, even before it was final,
the Bureau in c¢onjunction with the Department and OMB, took
immediate action to start the process of revising current
account ing practices, purifying inaccurate records, and
implementing the Financial Management Improvement Project. In this

connection a task force consisting of accounting personnel from the

10
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Department, the Bureau of Indian Affairs, and cther bureaus and
offices of the Department has been appointed to address the many
deficiencies and problems of the Bureau accounting system. The
goals of this task force are to:

- implement immedjate controls in the administrative
accounting process to ensure integrity in current fund acgcounting,

- achieve reconciliation of currently active appropriation
account balances,

- accurately report appropriation account balances as of
September 30, 1991

- develop a regular mechanism for financial management
interaction with area offices, and

- succgessfully convert to the Federal Financial System, the
Department's standard appropriated fund accounting system, on

Gctober 1, 1991,

While these are significant first steps, they are only the
beginning of a very long process. In the past, the Bureau has
agreed with many of our audit recommendations on a variety of
issues and stated that corrective actions would be initiated.
However, in many instances the Bureau has failed to achieve these
corrective actions. One reason for this nonaccomplishment has been
the Bureau's failure to establish a system of accountability for

Bureau officials responsible for correcting These problems,

11



42

Another reason the reported accounting deficiencies are not being
corrected is because of two long-term issues the Bureau must
address: the development of an experienced permanent accounting

staff and the implementation of an acceptable accounting system,

First the Bureau needs to recruit, train, and retain individuals
who possess the required accounting expertise to execute the
Bureau's accounting and administrative responsibilities.
Currently, the Bureau and the Department are emphasizing audit

experience in the individuals it recruits,

Second, the Bureau's successful conversion to the Federal Financial
System, ig imperative. The Bureau was to have converted to the
system by October 1, 1990. However, the date was postponed until
October 1991. As part of the Bureau's commitment to a successful
conversion, it must ensure that accounting data entered into the
system is verified as being accurate, that the staff responsible
for maintaining the system receives sufficient training to operate
the system, and that Bureau officials are held accountable for the
system's successful conversicon. The task force has developed a
plan denominated the Financial Management Improvement Project, and
has an eighteen member multidisciplinary team working to correct
problems. Given the commitment of the task force and the high
level support of both Departmental and OMB officials, we are
optimistic that the financial system will be converted to the

Federal Financial System on time,
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The Bureau has made a beginning, However, as my testimony
indicates, the corrective actions are mostly not complete and many
of the deficiencies may still exist or may recur if the actions are
not fully implemented. The Bureau has a long, long road to travel

before an acceptable system is in place.

This concludes my opening statement. I would be pleased to respond

to any fuestions the Committee may have concerning these audits.

13
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Mr. SyNAr. Thank you very much, Mr. Richards.

The Chair recognizes himself for 5 minutes.

Mr. Steinhoff, as you know, we have had previous hearings on
these matters. We have had problems reported by the inspector
general, by the GAQ and by independent public accounting firms
and by this subcommittee.

Can you tell the subcommittee whether the BIA’s internal
system for accounting for and reporting the trust fund balances are
adequate?

Mr. SteinHOFF. They are not. These problems go back many
years.

I was involved with the study that we did back in 1982. What
you see today is really the same song, a different verse. So the
problems remain.

Mr. Synar. Those responsibilities of reporting and accounting for
those trust funds are critical to their fiduciary responsibilities?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes.

Mr. SYNar. Does the BIA have a plan to correct that fundamen-
tal deficiency?

Mr. STEINHOFF. It needs today to put together a strategic plan. It
hiis a series of initiatives, but it does not have a clear-cut strategic
plan.

Mr. SYNaAR. Can you tell us how that happened that they don’t
even have a plan?

Mr. SteiNHOFF. In thinking about this and looking back over
many years, if you look at the key things you have to have—you
have to have strong leadership, you have to have accountability,
you have to have adequately trained professionals, an adequate fi-
nancial system, and good management reporting. If you look back
over many, many years, the Bureau has had not these things.

I thought back a little bit the other day to the 1982 study we did.
I was involved in that study and I recall having meetings at that
tli]me with the officials at BIA and hearing things were going to
change.

They had high hopes and plans, but they never really got done.
There was no real result at the end.

I think it is because those main components weren’t in place.
The hope is that the current team is able to pull this off and is
really able to make meaningful change, which is needed here.

Mr. SyNnar. Mr. Richards, do you agree with that assessment?

Mr. RicHARDs. Yes, [ think that is a fair assessment. I won’t add
anything to it.

- 1 think probably the accountability and the trained personnel are
two of the key factors, but those other factors that Mr. Steinhoff
mentioned are equally important.

Mr. Synar. OK.

Mr. Steinhoff, let’s try to delve in this a little bit deeper. How
abog:?BIA’s controls over receipts and disbursements, are they ade-
quate?

Mr. StEiNHOFF. No. This has been chronicled over and over
again. It has been shown by Mr. Richards in his studies, it has
been shown by GAQ, it has been shown by independent CPA firms.

Mr. Synar. That again is a task of the trustee, is it not?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes, it is.
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Mr. Synar. How long has BIA known that GAO and others be-
lieve controls over these receipts and disbursements are inad-
equate?

Mr. SteiNnHoFF. I think this goes back 10, 20, 30 years. So we are
talking about long periods of time. This isn’t a new story.

Mr. Synar. In all that time, has BIA made any significant
progress in correcting that deficiency?

Mr. StTeinHOFF. Not really, no.

Mr. Synar. Do the‘;r have an adequate plan for undertaking the
necessary corrections?

Mr. STeINHOFF. Not at this time. We have stressed the need for
an overall strategic plan that ties it all together. They do have a
list of initiatives.

I guess you could say they have a framework from which they
can put together a strategic plan. But I think that is what is lack-
ing now.

Mr. Synar. Mr. Richards, do you agree with that assessment?

Mr. RicuarpS. Yes. As far as the trust fund accounting is con-
cerned, I have not seen and am not aware that they have a strate-
gic plan. I do wish to volunteer to you, though, that with regard to
the general accounting system, the one that I just mentioned in my
testimony, this appears to be the most comprehensive plan that has
been developed with regard to anything involving the Bureau of
Indian Affairs.

It is staffed by competent accountants and other management of-
ficials, and it i8 out on the ground working, actually fixing the
system. But, it is just the general accounting system. It is not the
trust fund system, which is as you know, different.

Mr. SyNARr. Does the BIA conduct periodic or timely reconcili-
ations, Mr. Steinhoff, for the 300,000 Indian Trust Fund accounts to
assure they are accurate?

Mr. STeINHOFF. No. This is really one of the fundamental prob-
lems they have. You have got accounts that go back 50, 60, 70 or
more years that have never been reconciled.

Mr. SyNar. What about cash balances? Does BIA have the ability
to determine the accurate cash balances of accounts under their
charge?

Mr. SteiNdHoFF. In 1989 and 1988, one of the major CPA firms
went in, attempted a financial audit and could not provide an opin-
ion on BIA's cash balance. Not only is there great uncertainty as to
the total cash balance, but when you get down to the individual ac-
counts, there is a great deal of uncertainty as to what is reported
as being there, whether those amounts are in the right accounts.

You have got uncertainty in total as well as at the account level.
No one really knows.

Mr. SYNAR. OK. Does the BIA have a meaningful plan to correct
that deficiency?

Mr. SteiNHOFF. As I mentioned before, I think that there is a
need for a strategic plan that ties together all the actions BIA
needs to take, ties together exactly what they are going to do to
put a system in place. Now they are going out, they are starting
this effort to reconcile the accounts.

Once they finish that, you will have a picture or a snapshot at
that point in time as to what the balances are. What they need
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now is a clear plan as to what they are going to do, once they have
those balances, to maintain the balances, how they are going to get
a cadre of trained accounting professionals in place, how they are
going to improve the system.

Mr. SyNARr. Do they have any of this that you are going through?

Mr. STEiNHOFF. No.

Mr. SyNaR. Let’s turn to investments. Has BIA consistently and
prq)dently invested trust funds and paid interest to account hold-
ers’

Mr. StEinHOFF. No. Again, this is something that has been re-
ported on many times.

Mr. Synar. That is, again, one of the fundamental obligations of
the fiduciary responsibility; is that not correct?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes, it is.

A fiduciary is held to a standard even higher than managing
your own money. It is one thing to waste your own money and an-
other thing to lose control of another party’s money.

It is a very high level, and they have not met that level.

Mr. Synar. The Bureau asked the Comptroller General for an
opinion regarding BIA’s obligations to reimburse lost interest to
holders of individual Indian trust funds. After analyzing the cur-
rent law and the history of the court rulings in that regard, the
Comptroller General found that while BIA was required to reim-
burse such interest losses to tribal accounts, it was not required to
do so for individual accounts. :

As you know, I recently introduced legislation to change the ex-
isting law to bring the Bureau’s obligations concerning lost interest
on individual accounts into conformance with its obligations for in-
terest on tribal accounts. Explain the difference between the fail-
ure to inveat, a failure to distribute interest income and the recent
Comptroller General’s opinion concerning imputed interest.

Mr. SteiNnnorr. Basically, what the court has held for many
years and what the law states is that for tribal accounts, BIA is
required to invest the funds. Therefore, even if they fail to do so,
interest would still be due to the account holder.

With respect to the individual Indian moneys, the 300,000 ITM
accounts, what the law says is that BIA is authorized, but not re-
quired, to deposit the money, and that the accounts may earn in-
terest. That is the turning point here.

Mr. SyNaR. Is the BIA able to prepare and supply account hold-
ers meaningful periodic statements on their account balances?

Mr. SremnHoOFF, No.

Mr. SyNar. Why not?

Mr. SteEINHOFF. It gets back, I think, to the myriad of systems
and accounting problems we have seen for many years, the fact
that accounts have not been reconciled.

There is great uncertainty when a major accounting firm goes in
and says they are not putting their name at the bottom and they
are not going to attest to these numbers. It is very, very serious.

So, no one really knows what the account balances are, whether
the‘?' are off bﬁ b percent, 20 percent or if they are valid.

ou might have many that are, in fact, correct.

Mr. SYynaAR. Basically, this trust fund is a bank that doesn’t know

how much money it has?
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Mr. STEINHOFF. It is not sure of the total trust fund balance, plus
there is great concern as to the veracity of individual accounts.

Mr. SyNaAr. Does BIA have consistent or written policies or pro-
cedures for its management of accounting?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Something we have found in the past is BIA has
not had good, solid written policies or procedures that cover all of
its trust fund accounting practices.

Mr. SyNar. Why not?

er. SteinHOFF. That is a hard thing to say. It is fairly fundamen-
tal

It is very important, especially in the case of having lots of
people entering data, and the fact that it has been recognized for
many years that they have not had trained professional account-
ants.

So, I think it is a matter that was not given sufficient priority.

Mr. SyNar. Tell me about BIA’s staffing, its supervision and
training in general. Are these functions adequate?

Mr. StEiNHOFF. Sftudies that have been done in the past have
pointed to the fact that BIA does not have a cadre of trained ac-
counting professionals. The work done by the IG has shown that.

Work done by major consulting firms over many years has
shown a lot of the staff are untrained. You need to have a cadre of
trained accountants, not bookkeepers; accountants, people that un-
derstand what this means.

Mr. SyNaR. Mr. Peterson, any questions?

Mr. PerersoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just understand the
problem. Does somebody have some responsibility to audit or have
oversight over the BIA at the national level, wherever this account-
Ing was supposed to be taking place?

You know, the tribes have to go through an audit every year. If
they were doing something like this, they would be put out of busi-
ness in a big hurry.

There would be a big change. Who is supposed to be watching at
the national level? How come they weren’t watching?

Mr. StEiINHOFF. Basically, until the passage of the CFO Act at
the end of the last Congress, there was no legal requirement to
have a financial audit. So, we are talking about trust accounts
where we had a clear fiduciary responsibility which had been in
being for 150 years and had never undergone the type of financial
audit that you are accustomed to.

Basically, in the future the ultimate responsibility for this under
the CFQ Act will rest with the Interior Department to assure that
BIA has in place the capacity to perform. You know people don’t
like to do a bad job.

I am sure it is very uncomfortable for the BIA folks to come up
here year-and-year again. But to a certain degree you have to have
the capacity to perform and the management infrastructure and
systems in place to manage. That is what has been lacking in the
past. And what has been lacking is, I think, clear accountability to
who is, in an ultimate sense, responsible for this; whether it be at
the Interior level or at the BIA level.

Mr. PeTERrsON. There was a CPA firm that looked at this? They
kind of threw up their hands?
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Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes, Arthur Andersen tried to do a financial
audit for 1988 and 1989, and they qualified their opinion, really,
based on the cash balances, bagsed on the myriad of weak controls
anddweak systems. That was the first time a financial audit was
tried.

Mr. PeTeErRsON. Do you have any confidence at all that—first of
all, the proposal has {;een accepted that Arthur Andersen will try
to establish those balances?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes.

Mr. PETERSON. Do you think they will get that done by the date
required?

Mr. STeiNHOFF. One of the things they are going to have to do,
and I think you are going to have to watch this contract as it
moves through, but people are going to have to develop realistic ex-
pectations as they go through all of this.

You have got a large number of accounts here, many of which
are 30, 40, 50 or more years old. As I said before, the records aren’t
always there.

The contract itself calls for, I think, once you are into the thing 2
to 4 weeks, for the contractor to come back with a clear plan, with
a _(l:{el?é' strategy. I think it remains to be seen how successful they
wi .

I do think that they have got the capability, though, to make the
best effort they can. I think it is very incumbent on BIA to have
the tribes fully involved in all this so that at the end people accept
that a good-faith attempt was made, and that we accept a certain
set of numbers at a certain point in time.

Otherwise, I am afraid we will be spending the next 10 years or
s0 discussing that initial set of numbers.

Mr. PetersON. My tribe, one of my tribes did these audits in
1984, and spent a bunch of money to establish what it is, and then
they ignored it and actually transferred it out of their accounts. I
think you are exactly right,

I guess the final thing, if they could actually get this done. and it
may drag out a lot longer than people think, I have a real question
as to whether the BIA is going to come up with a strategic plan, or
whatever they do, they are going to be able to accomplish this.

Has there been any consideration given to turning this over to
the tribes? Some of t}‘;ese tribes have pretty sophisticated account-
m% systems and do an excellent job.

am personally familiar with some of their accounting systems.
It seems to me that maybe the easiest way out of this would be to
turn this function over to them.

They are audited once a year. I think we have got a lot better
chance of keeping control of things that way than relying on the
Bureau to somehow or another miraculously have a conversion.

Mr. SteivHOFF. I think in really developing the strategic plan,
that it becomes very important that BIA consider every option that
is there. That would certainly be one that they should be looking
at, where you have tribes that have the ability.

I think you may have to change some laws on some of that, but I
think all options should be considered. The reconciliation of the ac-
counts now, on which I share your view, it is a herculean effort,
they are trying to address.
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You are talking about years of neglect. The current management
team is being told they have to try to establish a balance. It may or
may not work.

Once that is completed, that is just the first small step. You are
going to have to keep those accounts current.

You certainly aren’t going to do it with the current systems. It
takes some time to put systems in place that work and it takes
some time to develop a cadre of trained professionals.

So I think that all alternatives need to be explored.

Mr. PeTERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Synar. Thank you.

Mr. Steinhoff, in light of the long-term mismanagement that we
have found over and over again, the persistent management fail-
ures and deficiencies, the Office of Management and Budget desig-
nated BIA as a high-risk agency requiring priority attention in Oc-
tober of 1989.

At that time, OMB asked the BIA to prepare a strategic plan for
corrective action of these problems. Now, tell us about the status of
that strategic plan and the status of corrective actions on the trust
fund financial management weaknesses.

Mr. SteiNHOFF. OMB has acknowledged that BIA does not have a
strategic plan to deal with the trust fund accounting problems.

Mr. Synar. That would be only prudent if we were going to have
any kind of improvement; is that correct?

Mr. STeINHOFF. That is correct.

Mr. SyNaRr. I would like to ask unanimous consent to enter into
the record 2xhibit 1 for the record. This is an exhibit that is com-
posed of two letters.

The first is the subcommittee’s May 9, 1991, letter to OMB Direc-
tor Richard Darman, requesting information about the BIA strate-
gic plan for correcting longstanding financial management prob-
lems in BIA’s administration, the Indian Trust Fund, a strategic
plan requested by OMB some time ago.

The second is OMB’s response to the information dated May 17,
1991. This exhibit states BIA has not provided OMB with a strate-
gic plan. Moreover, OMB notes its ‘‘reservations about the adegua-
cy of progress and plans, ‘for improving the trust fund manage-
ment.

All that OMB or BIA have been able to provide this subcommit-
tee, Mr, Steinhoff, is what OMB’s May 17, 1991 letter described as,
“several inventories of various actions taken, “to improve BIA’s
management of Indian Trust Funds.

Mr. Steinhoff is this ”inventory of actions taken' an adequate
substitute for a strategic plan?

[The information follows:]



Congress of the Anited States
Roust of Repeestatarioes

COMMITTEE ON GOVERMNMENT OPERATIONS
RAYBUAN HOUSE QFFCE PUALDING. SO0 017 1-8-C

WASHNGTOM, DC 20519

May 9, 1991

Tbe Honorable Richard G. Darman
Director

Office of Management and Budget
Executive Office Building
Washingtoe, D.C. 20503

Dear Mr. Darman;

Pursvant te its authority under Rules X and XTI of the House of Representatives,
the Subcomunittee on Environmeat, Energy and Natural Resources is cootinuing its review
of the Bureau of Indian Affairy’ management of the $2 billion Indian Trust Fund, I
this regard, the Subcommitice will hold its fourth oversight hearing on Mondsy, May
20, 1991 st 1030 a.m. in room 2247 of the Rayburn House Office Building,

As you Imow, our previous hearings have addressed numerous, longstanding BLA
financial management deficiencies. These problems continue to be reported by the
Inspector General of the Department of the loterior, by the General Accounting office,
and by independent public accounting firms auditing BIA's management of Indian Trust
Funds. BIA's longstanding problems include:

. Inadequate systems for accounting for and reporting tust fund
© bsalances;

. Inadequate controls over receipts and disbursements;

. Absence of periodic, timely reconciliations t0 assure soourscy of
BCCOUDS;

. Inability to determine accurate cash balances;

» Failure t0 consistently and prudently invest trust fands and/or
interest t0 accoum holders; d

» Inability to prepare and supply account holders with mesningful
puioditzmmmdthdrmmbﬂm



51

Honorable Richard Darman
May 9, 1991

. Absence of consistent, written policies and procedures for (st fund
management and accounting;, and

. Inadequate staffing, supervision and training.

In light of the longterm aature of BLA's mismanagemcnt of the Indian Trust
Fund and BIA's other penisient management failures and deficiendes, the Office of
Management and Budget (OME) designated BLA as » high risk agency requiring priority
attention in October 1989. At that time, OMB asked the BLA to prepare s sirategic plan
for corrective action on these problems,

1o preparation for its May 20, 1991 oversight hearing, #t is important for the
Subcommittes to review BIA's straiegic plan and the status of corrective actions on trust
fund financial management weaknesses to dale,  Accordingly, we ask that you provide
the following information to the Subcomsnittes no later than by dose of business,
Thursday, May 16, 1931:

t.)  BIA's strategic action plan for achieving reliable, timely trust Anancial
management and reporting.

1) A list of spedfic initiatives, within the strategie plan, for comectia;
identified weaknesses; a list of the managers responsible for implementing
these initiatives; staff commitments (by grade level, job scries, and fuli or
part-time¢ commitment); and milestone dates for completing the corrective
actions.

3}  An indication of any staff resources required to accomplish these initiatives
beyond BLA's existing staff jevels.

4) A summary of OMB's actions to assure BLA implementation of its sirategic
action plan and correction of the identified weaknesses

Your timely response to this request for information will be most belpfui to the
Subcommitiee. We want to give full and (air consideration to BLA's efiorts 10 improve
trust fund management improvement plans and actions to date, In this respect, OMB's
cooperation should prove most usefol.

if you have any questions tegarding this request, please have yowr staff contact
Steve Richardson of the Subcommitice staff at 225-6427. Thank you in advance for
your cooperation in this matter,
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R, EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
" S OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUOGET
Hi:QfG“ WASHINGTOMN D.C 20803

YRR R

Honocrapble Mike eynar

chajirman, Subcommittee on Enviromsent,
Inergy and Natural Rascurces

Committse on Govarnment Operations

U.8. House of Represantatives

Wwashington, D.C. 20818

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Thahk you for your réecant latter to Director Darsan reguesting
information on efforts to laprova the Indlan trust funds managed by
the Pureau of Indjian Affalrs (BIA), Department of the Interior,

We agrea that management ot the Indian trust funda must be
improved. 1In October 1989, OMB cited BIA maNagement and finakncial
dericlencies as an sarea of high riek to ths Govermment. In 1§90,

PO1I submitied to OME two progress reports (see Rnclosures I and II)
on actions taken to corrsct thase deficlencies. Dyring the ensuing
review of the area, BIA provided OMB with several inventories of
various actions being taken to corract problems in trust funds
systems and management, as well xs the sams quartarly rapert

provided to you and your staff. OMB was nNever provided & wtrategic
plan., OMB's assessment of progress, as delinested in the President’s
FY 1392 Budget, concluded that we had reservations about the adequacy
of progress and plans for this area.

To support improved BIA saAnagament and acoountablility of
prograns serving Indian tripbes and individual Indians, ths
President's PY 1992 Budget provides approximately $26 million
{($12 million over 1991). Of this amount, 34.7 million is
requested to reconcila and audit tribal and individual Indian
trust fund accounts. We understand that a plan to raconcile
and audit all trust fund accounts has already been provided to
you by DOI.

As part of the Adsinistration's effort to addreas M1
management problens, OMB and DOI satablished the Management
Improvensnt Oversight Committee (MIOC). The NIOC's charter ias
to ensurs aignificant sanagement improvement efforts in ‘inancial
oversight, procurement and property, credit, personnel, and
information reasurocss.
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The MIOC's first project hag been tha corrsution of serious
acoounting fallures in the appropristed fund accounts. That proiect
is now wall underway snd we expect that BIA will convert to a nav
sccounting syotem baginning ln October 1991, At the April 1€, 1991,
masting of the MIOC, the cvozmittes had an initial diacussion about
the Indisn trust funde and possible approaches to correcting the
systeamic problens. %e wvill keep you apprised of the MIOC's progreas
in developing and ipplexanting a couprehensive improvesent project
for the Indian trust funds.

i hope the Information we have provided will be useful as the
Subcommittee reviews etforts to improve the managesment of Indian
truet funde. Tf we can he of further assistance, pleass do not
neeitats to contact me.

Enclosures

-—
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sourc!: Depesztmant of the Interior
July ., 1990, Depattment of the
Interier‘s High Risk Areaes Progresse
Reaport.

Enclosure I

™ DOIAN TRET FICS XUSGDEIT

OATE OF NIFECRTY July 1990
PERICD QOVERED: Cctober 1, 1999 to Jaw 30, 1990

PRDCIPAL SDNT QINRCT+ €. L. Meracn
1T2E: Deputy Director, Office of Administration

AGENCY: BIA
TELEPMONE NUMEEN: 3208-4174
BUREAL/APPROFVIATIONY  Opmxwtien of Indian Programe

GG RISK _AREM

The zanagemt Of BIA's $1.9 Blllion Indian Trust Pad lecks sffective
intarnal canuwols, reliable systame, uﬂmmu
information., Tribel and Individual Dedian acoounts ty and
have not bean consistantly mudmxrthinxy tTust
fund. The ombiratian ¢f unraliable marsgwmant and systam contzols and
lack of conaistant rwooncilistion activity by the BIA cresatse en
avirorant that {s nighly vulnarable £0T etvowous soeamnting entries o
runain undetsctad in the tIust scoounts.

Zanan
BIA set trust fund MANAQWIENt A & priority at the agency + BIA Ls
mtmwmttmlmpmtumudm wlt

that will have casplete resporsihility and authoris mdlw
of trust fund oparations. o

QAITICAL MIZETONGS
A COOLETER ACTIONS/EVENS

Detablished the Office of Trust Aund in Decambelr 1409 ae
Secxretarial Order Wo. 3137, {8 currentl: dtl-h-a
r.tm&-n!:t— e

required by

proceadiny with the. ascanLlsmmnt of o rbw o

proceading with of tha new Office.
Established Director, ‘Trure Punds Manegemmnt on 12/31/09.

Marnal 1/30/90 fox
de?ml wdnm-cn Secxwdarial

;:;ci\;;ummmuummtmmwmcun1mm
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Reviowed the acxarting and reportisg reguiressts for Tribml Trust
hrds an 1/28/%0.

Arranged for tribe)l acomes to: (1) lnvesteent deta from the EDi‘e

WHNETMAX mwmmuumm
from Wismer & Asgociztas, and (2) tha scoounting ﬂt;ﬁ_dm
tha KIA’'s BSUReted Flarcs Systam. The firet Tribe t ; thds

Gotained (COMSTE, & somll hpliress fimm, to prepare tha sywtam
icatione avd dasign for asn 4 of sywtam

dats atry of irvestosnt sl XN (Indi mnr:m?mq-
part of & shert term StIabegy o provide wore efficient entxy.
Sumittsd coples of the BIA shcxt ard long term strategic plan to the
Agropristion Coemictess on 6/19/90.

Stmitted COMBIS8 @alt rwport fox irkagration of irvestment ayetes
data antry to BWIA on 6/29/90.

EARED MTIOHE/EVENDS (SHUNT TEREM)
staff all positioe and wnity that will repott to the
Director for Truwt Purdis by 12/31/90.

Decide whethet to sxtand or caoel comtowot with Seourity Pecitio
¥ational Parik.

Integrats the data entry fixr fimancisl txwnsaction activity irto the
irvestct med IIM eystans by 10/1/90.

Idencify and cowider othar high priority inltistives incluyding a
proposal by the Directar, Minarwl )ansgmesrt Sarvios conoezrdng systam
develcpmant ard operation.

APPROVALS

Develop Tribal ard ITM Dwooncilistion ard sudit stretegy with
muw.wmmwm&n

Dasignets Mdit Marngur t¢ Goocrdinats all recaonoil Leticn it
activity for Trikal and I accounts over nevt several .

Schadiiled meting aon 7/34+25/90, vith the Managmmnt Group| conprised
awuwozmmmmm. on, meltht
mmwdtmth.mitﬂmlmm. and other
shext and long tarm goals of the KA relating to tha furd
Entanank. progren.

SOIBACT MANNGENMRT
Draft RFP's for reconcilistion &t swiit cantracts by 7/3Y/90.
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Covens meeting vith 3¢ top dollax Trides to discus tha mdit and
reponciitation stretegy in darly Auguet 19490,

Hold pre-bid confetwncs vi bidderw on the reconciiistion
contyact and the ssparste £ cantrect by 8/31/90.

Amrd both cantrects by 9/30/90.
Initiats flald work by 10/1/90.
EBE-RENCILIATICN/MINT TAGKS
Arthorise tesgexary positicne to aseist statfs in
t activicy. &m;

mm:ﬂw reconoilistion/mall
thass positions ame ﬂnﬁesm-uvpm,
other 49 loaations balng £illed by nid-dugust 1990).

IN scoagts at 3 Apmoies sslected for initial
reconci) lation andt axdit woxk by 8/3/90.

Provide Tribes & rwpart of reconcilistion dowe st an eodt gonference
pchaduled vith esch indivifal Tribs.

Reuast QG to omrtify ihwt the reconcilistion to be
sdacqats to oaply vith the irtent of the Appropristions ttmms by
no latar than 12/31/90.

Racuest: 015 to oxtify that the axdit oapliw with iptent of the
Agropriations Comittess by ro later than 7/15/91.

Initiste monthly TIM statamants Puresr-wids no lates than 17/31/90.

b oy A e gl Ay i 1y
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Frovids truining snd softage for Garwit KIA staff to recorpile TIN
ard Tribal firsncial activity Rorw-ids by o Later cvhan Optaber
1990,

Seczre an irvestymrk analyels esazvice by no latar then 12/31/90,

¢, ELANGD MUIDS/SVENTS (10ME TR0
Eatablish & contrectusl with NITHE ¢o wosk witly the FDA
ad CONEIS o develop a mummm-ﬂa—t
w-ﬂudqut'lw

Facreilisticss of alwoe of TIM e Trikal acoowrta will ke
oapletad no letar then 9/30/94.

Mtdmmusmwmmwhwm
latar than 12/31/9%.

Dnplewmnt & naw ust fund rmgeeet. sywtes for Tridel, Lo
muwm,wwwwmwmm YN,

Adit of acoounts for 36 tip dollar Tribes to be completed ho later
than 7/1/92.

Axlit of balance of Tribal scoouma dw €O be completed ro 'later than
4730796,

Oartification by 0IG of wark completed by cantzectors to be oomplebed
no lxtay than 9/30/46.

EESILI: REICKICRE
3. Kliairetion of miltiple deta entry into:

A, MNEARX, Finaroe, m,mmmm e
mwm acnounting repireserts,

B. TRG-TIN and IS50A Cenaral Lader Bystam for TIM ecoomfe activity.
2. Mabar of accounks recanailed. |
3. Nmbar of acoxnts sxiitad.
4. Mrhly Reccrciliation of acoowts,
5. Mitistion Of new Trust Aund Mot Systen.
6. Mmber of EIA Acoounts bhing reconclled on & cuyent basip.

mmmamumum}:ﬂm mm'
mmmmw::hm
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Dec., 1990, redera} Hanagers'
Finsncial Integrity act Raport

Enclosura If

Bureay: Buresu of Indian Affairs

Rroazam/Orqanizational Ceegonantt Trust Funds Managesent
MWMI Operation of Indian Programs/
X01-51/0/3400/7436)

Heaknesg: IMADEQUATE NARAGENINT OF TRUST FUNDS

The Bureau’a msnagemant of Individual Indign Nonies (1IM)’ and
Tribal trust funds i inedsquate to ;repcrlf maintain and
agdminister the $1.7 billion fund for which it has responsldilicy.
The BIA's -anag-u.nt of ths Tribal and Ingividual Indian [ 1
runds lacks effective ssnagement/internal controls, reliablse
aystems, and management information. Tribal and individup) Indian
accounts lack credibility and have never baen reconciled in the
entire history ©f the trust fupd.

Fungtionsl Cateqorw 4p Sratissical Sumpary' Program Exegution
Eritical Milesrones in Corrsciiva Actionss

A._Compieted RCLioNS/OVents !

Established organizational unit that has complete

authority and responsibility over all components of trust
tund operations. (Decembar 1989)

Established Senior Executive Service position of Dirkctor,
Trust Funds Management. (December 1989)

Prepared Departmental Kanua)l changes for l-c:otarxaﬁ
spproval and included new organization in FY 9] and PY 92

budget. (Jsnuary 19%0)

Prepared request for proposal for indepsndent avdit of 26
tribal judgment accounts with highest monstary balances
{740 of total). (February 1990)

Buspendsd contract with Security FPacifiic Rationsl Bpnk
halting furcher payments of $30,000/month until
reconciliation is complete. (March 1990)

Contracted with smal) business firm (COMSIE) as g:ﬂt of
ahort-term strategy to shhance reconclliation ef .

(Kay 1990)
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Completed and submitted etrategic short snd long term!plan
for Trust Funds mlnlgomtnt te the Appropristion
Committaas. ({Juyne 19509

Auvthorized and staffed temporary positions to assist
Area/Agency personnel complle records sequired for
reconclliatlon/audit activity. (September 19%0)

B._Flenned agtiopg/evenis (next 12 yonthy)d

Conplete gutomatsd systen enhancements and staffing
actions including: (1} intcgrutln! the systes enhancpment
developed by COMSIS into Bureau’s lnvestment and IIM
systems; (2} designating an Audit Manager to cocrdinste
all reconcilistion and audit activity for Tribal and 1IK
accounts; (3} staffing the managerial positions and
organizational unlts for Trust Punds Mahagement; and

(4} devaloping a custodisl position or obtalning cu-ubdlnl
services for physical securities and Collection of
investment income. (Dwcember 1990

Establish an Investment Oversight Advisory Committes that
includes Tribal account ownar repressntetior.. (Decenbsr

1990,
Reguest OJIG to certify that reconcilistion procedures are

suffjcient to comply with Appropriation Committese’
requirementi. {December 19%0)

Collect all records and reconfcile al) 1IM accounts &t
three aseleacted Ageéncy Offices. (April 1991}

Request QOIG to certify thet audit plan mssts the ;
requirements of the Appropriation Committews. (July 1991)

Reconcile all accounts of 36 Tribea with highast scne¢tary
balances. (July 1991} '

C._Planned actions/ovente llonaer tarml: i

The BIA ls awaiting a 8-:;:;3:1&1 decision on a new
fund management system, lamentation of the new s

is projected to be completed by Deceamber 199).

Raconciliations of IIN and Tribal .cco;nt- will be opgoing
and should be completed by Seprtembar 1994. Auditing of

rust
stean



60

I11¥ and Tribal accounts will begin in July 1992 and oﬁould
be complated by April 1996,

Yalidation Procaaa ho be Used:
The role of the 0IG will be to Certify the adeguacy o{ the
Bureau’'s cOrrective actlong to the Appropriations

Committees. After implemsatation of the corrsctive
actions, the DIG will conduct a review to ansure that all

problem aréas are resclved.

Q b A

C1G Audit Report Mo, 89 117, A.I.Eﬂs.l. :.mu.g ) 4
ivit i ﬁﬁiffﬁii, dated Feprember 2 ” §.g

Activivies - Buresy of

Jeor identified:r TFY 1983
Original/Current Tarqeted Corrpetion Dgte: Ociober 1904 /December
199%

Jargeted Correction Date :n LEB% Yaor g Reppiy: Decombers 1§95

Rees 1 Change in pPaxgsr N/a
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Mr. SreiNnuoFF. No.

Mr. Synar. Tell us more about BIA’s list to specific initiatives
and correcting identified weaknesses. These do exist; don’t they?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes. A few months ago we were provided a list of
24 initiatives. Following that we were provided a second list, I be-
lieve, that BIA provided to your staff that showed 41. These don’t
always totally tie together.

But what BIA really needs to do is to pull the wide range of
thoughts it now has, pull those initiatives together. Also, I think it
needs to explore the options for dealing with the trust fund ac-
counts once they have been reconciled.

It needs to deal with very specific terms, with what it is going to
do to go out and get the kind of trained professional accountants it
needs, and what it is going to do in very clear terms to train those
folks. It would not be enough, for example, to say we are going to
train our staff.

You would have to lay out in very clear terms how you are going
to achieve these things, who is accountable for this work, what the
cost is going to be, and have a very comprehensive plan. That, in
part, is what the Chief Financial Officers Act expects when it calls
for each department to have a 5-year comprehensive plan. That is
what they need at this point in time.

Mr. Synar. Those 41 initiatives, or 40 initiatives that you said we
got, we got those on March 26, when Mr. Richards and I toured the
Albuquerque office.

I can tell you that we were surprised by the initiatives. They
were even warm from the Xerox machine when they were handed
to us.

Let’s talk abhout the list of managers responsible for handling
these initiatives. Is there a list?

Mr. StEINHOFF. Yes. There were names attached to each of the
initiatives that we had. One concern that we raised, though, was
that it appeared like people were being spread very thin.

Ten of the most important initiatives were assigned to one
person. That person was also assigned the responsibility for over-
seeing the ongoing reconciliation, which is probably a big enough
job just alone.

Mr. SynarR. What about BIA’s milestone dates for completing cor-
rective actions?

Mr. StEiNHOFF. There were dates shown. I think until you have a
very clear game plan, until you have that strategic plan about
which I spoke, you have to, to a certain degree, not consider the
dates as perhaps being set in stone. I mean they are going to have
to sort through what they are going to do.

Also, they are going to have to get a better sense as to how diffi-
cult the reconciliation will be.

Mr. SynaR. Let me ask you this. What happens to initiatives and
these corrective-action milestones when an agency doesn’t put
them in a strategic plan?

Mr. STEINHOFF. I think they are changed a lot. I think even when
they put them in a plan, you run the risk of them never being met.

Mr. SyNAR. Because of the leadership?

51-769 - 92 - 3
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Mr. StemnHOFF. Yes. I think the key is to have milestones and
achievements that make sense, that people accept, that people un-
derstand and that people can achieve.

The person assigned the task of putting a new system in or rec-
onciling accounts, whatever it might be, has to have the capacity to
do that job.

It has to be very clear what they are expected to do, and they
have to have the staffing resources and top management support to
do the job.

Also, I feel strongly that oversight, such as this hearing today, is
very key, and that the Department, not just the Bureau, the entire
Department of the Interior, which itself has a myriad of problems,
willi) have to have the support of the Congress as it tries to deal
with these matters.

I think all too often in dealing with financial management, we
are ‘‘penny wise and pound foolish” and that across the board in
government, we often times have not invested enough in the right
kinds of people and the right kinds of systems.

Mr. SyNaR. Mr. Peterson.

Mr. PerersoN. No questions.

Mr. Synar. Mr. Richards, what are your overall conclusions re-
gardiglg the problems that you have identified in BIA’s manage-
ment:

Mr. RicuarDps. Well, let me start with the optimism. The opti-
mism is that we are optimistic that the approach that has been
taken to in effect, reconcile and fix the overall accounting system,
leaving the trust fund aside for the moment, is probably the most
credible and significant action that we have seen in 25 years of re-
viewing BIA programs, both in the Office of the Inspector General
since 1978 and going back to 1967.

If such an effort were made and sustained, and I emphasize ‘“‘sus-
tained,” on the BIA trust accounting, it would be another cause for
optimism. The assessment Mr. Steinhoff has given here in response
to your questions and those of Mr. Peterson’s are probably right on
the mark.

Unless there is some methodical, high level, sustained effort, this
one will slip back into the morass, as they have over the last 25
years, according to our memory.

Mr. Synar. Has any significant progress been made in correcting
the problems Mr. Steinhoff has identified?

Mr. Ricuarps. Well, there have been some steps.

Mr. Synar. But no significant progress?

Mr. RicHarps. There have been some reconciliations, for in-
stance, that we have not verified. You recall the ledger and the
subsidiary records of the trust fund were out of balance.

The accounting firm that they had on retainer has told us that
they have reconciled that down to a small amount, which we have
not yet verified. They have advertised for and they have organized
an office of trust management.

They are recruiting for a director, but it has not yet been filled.

Mr. SyNar. Let’s get into some specifics. I think that would be
helpful. Your September 29, 1989, audit report stated $17 million of
the Indian Trust Fund investments could not be accounted for in
the official investment accounting fund records, that these missing
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fund% may never be accounted for. Has the Bureau resolved that
issue?

Mr. RicHARrDS. The Bureau has informed us and Arthur Ander-
sen has informed us they have reconciled that amount down to
$1,000—31,239. We have not verified that.

Mr. SYynAR. Have the underlying deficiencies that caused that
problem been corrected?

Mr. RicHAarDs. We don't think so.

Mr. Synagr. What did that $17 million represent?

Mr. RicHARDS. It represented an unknown as to whether the gen-
eral ledger was correct or subsidiary records were correct. They did
not balance.

Mr. SYNAR. It represented the difference between total funds in-
vested as shown by the Bureau’s official ledger accounting and the
amount the individual investments in the Bureau’s subsidiary re-
ports; right?

Mr. RicHArDS. That is basically it.

Mr. SyNAR. I think our records show $3.1 million of certificates
of deposit, and $13.9 million of Government agency investment
issues; is that correct?

Mr, RicHARDS, Yes.

Mr. SyNAR. Shouldn’t the Bureau employees have been doing
periodic reconciliations over the years as a matter of course?

Mr. RicHARDS. Absolutely.

Mr, SYnAR. Have you been doing the Bureau’s work for them?

Mr. RicHArDs. Yes, I don’t think this would have been done if
Arthur Andersen hadn't done it, .

Mr. SyNAR. Is it possible to be more specific as to the amount of
loss suffered by these individuals in the tribes?

Mr, RicHArpS. Not given the current state of affairs. To their
credit, they have written up the seven instances of losses. They
have given those matters to the Solicitor.

The Solicitor has replied to them on two of those matters and is
pursuing FDIC insurance and National Credit Union insurance on
the other five matters.

Mr. SYnNAR. That is essential; right?

Mr. RicHARDS. Yes, it is,

Mr. SYNAR. On page 13 of your September 29, 1989, audit report
reads, “We believe that the primary reason why Indian account
holders were not reimbursed for losses they sustained is because
the Bureau did not have a formal policy to reimburse account hold-
ers for losses, From our review we determine that the Bureau's
practice regarding known losses of trust funds has not been to dis-
close the losses and to wait for the account holders to become
aware of the losses if they ever do, and file a claim or sue the gov-
ernment for recovery of the funds.”

It is the Bureau that has no policy for identifying the losses.

How can they find them?

Mr. RicaArDs. We found them for them, and found the instances
of where there were potential losses, But the Bureau still has not
devised such policy.

Mr. SynNAR. You have made recommendations in that report; is
that correct?

Mr. RicHARDS. Yes.
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Mr. SYNAR. What were they?

Mr. RicHARDS. We made i&sically four recommendations. One
was on accuracy of financial records.

Mr. SYNAR. That is fine. We have them in the record. I wanted to
make sure that you did make some recommendations.

The corrective action included a Solicitor’s opinion regarding the
Bureau's liability for losses. It also establishetr written procedures
and policies that recognized losses plus interest where appropriate,
within a reasonable period of time after sustaining the losses; is
that correct.

Mr. RicHARDS. Yes.

Mr. SyNAR. Has BIA implemented that recommendation?

Mr. RicHarDps. They have implemented the first part of it. They
did prepare a factual analyses of the seven identified losses, sub-
mitted them to the Solicitor and asked for the Solicitor's opinion as
to liability of those seven losses.

The Solicitor responded to them on two of the losses and they are
pursuing insurance on the other five.

On the second part of developing a policy to take care of losses,
nothing that we are aware of has happened with regard to that.

Mr. SyNaR. Have they established written procedures and poli-
cies that recognize losses plus interest where appropriate and at a
reasonable time?

Mr. RicHarDs. No.

Mr. SYyNAR. Why are they resisting that recommendation?

Mr. RicHarps. The feedback we get is the Solicitor told them
that they have this trust responsibility. The Solicitor has told them
what the standard of care is for the trust responsibility.

It has also told them the same thing that GAO said about wheth-
er there has to be reimbursement for interest on IIM accounts and
reimbursement for interest on tribal accounts.

But they think that is the policy and they will agk the Solicitor
next time a loss comes along, and he can tell them whether they
are liable or not. It is rather confusing, but they don’t get down to
the point of saying what they will do when they have a loss—you
remember those guaranteed loan funds that they put out to a pri-
vate agent and then lost the records and didn't know how much
they had put out to the agent and the agent’s figures then didn’t
jibe with their figures?

They should have a policy to take care of that, to say if we screw
up—

Mr. SyNaR. They agree with your recommendations? They just
don't implement them?

Mr. RicHARDs. We say when they foul up, they should have an
obligation to notify the people whose records and accounts they
have fouled up.

Mr. SyNAR. Have they notified anybody?

_Mr. RicHarps. Probably the tribes know, because of all the pub-
hciiz that has come from this report and series of hearings.

. SYNAR. In 1989, you stated the act of June 24, 1938, 16 US.C.
162(A), authorized the funds of any Indian or tribe held in funds in
the United States to be invested only in public debt obligations of
the United States, and in bonds, notes, or other obligations uncon-
ditionally guaranteed as to both principle and interest invested by



65

the United States. Inherent in that act i8 the responsibility to prop-
erly account for those trust funds.

Do you believe the BIA can fulfill the obligations?

Mr. RicHARDs. | think the reports show they weren't.

Mr. SyNar. Do you hold the view stated in the 1989 report that
says, ‘‘We believe this loss of trust funds is inconsistent with the
fiduciary and trust responsibility the Bureau has over Indian re-
sources and with the restrictive investment operating parameters
whi:i:: Congress instituted to ensure the safety of Indian trust
funds.”

Mr. RicHARDs. Absolutely. The Solicitor quite agrees.

Mr. Synar. I would like to ask unanimous consent to enter into
the record, exhibit 2, for the record.

This exhibit includes the contents of a telefax from the BIA re-
ceived in the subcommittee office on last Saturday, May 18, 1991.

There are three parts to the exhibit. The first is an undated
memorandum from the Interior Department Solicitor concerning
recovery of the Indian trust funds invested by BIA and failed insti-
tutions.

The second part is a list of potential overpayments of trust funds
due to tribes and individual account holdings. The final part is a
list of potential losses of the trust funds to tribes and individual
tribe holders.

Does this exhibit appear to fulfill the inspector general’s recom-
mendations concerning the loss of the individual trust funds?

[The information follows:]
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United States Department of the Interlor

OFFICK OF THE 50LICITUR
Waahingren, O C 20240

Nemorandum
Tos Joe WNaeller
From: special Assistant to the Assoclate Scllcitor, DBivislon

ef Indian Affalrs

Subfect: Trust Funde Invested in Failed Credit Unlons and
Savings and Icans.

piTHTH .
Recovely or trust finds jinveeted by BIA in falled financial
institutions.

Baskground:

Central Place Savings Credit Unlon was declared insclvent and
takan over by the National Credit Unlon Adminlstration (NQuUA) en
Jult &, 1988. BIA has reccvered approximstely $21,372,898 of its
ini tai 87,000,000 Inveatment, leaving & loss of principal of
appro¥isately §827,706.20,

rinancial 8srvices Cradit Union was placed in liquidation in
October 31, 19804. Invaatad in the institution was approximately
01,560,000 of IIM funds and $440,000 of tribal funde. BIA has
managed to recovar the antirs grincipal of the tribal funds. As
tor the IIM funds, roughly $1,838,270 has been receversd leaving
a loas of prinoipal of #21,7)0.

Sionic Federal Credit Union was placed in liquidation on Juns 6,
1904, BIA has recovered all of the principal of the approximate
5,501,724 in tribal fundm invested in the inatitution. Of the
5,006,282 in IIM funds fnvested, BIA has succeaded in recovering
: ::; :atoiy 2,040,497, leaving s loss of principal of roughly

Fi ) ..b

Kainland Savings snd Loan wan placed in regeivership on or about
April 4, 1996 and Lt insured assets transferTed to Allan Park
Federal Savings and loan. Of the $94,000 of Indian irrigetion
system funds and 37,000 of Indian pover system funds invested in
Mainland only & totsl of $#100,000 was trsnafarred, leaving a loss
of principal and interest of approximately 897,572,204,

sun Savings and lLoan wae placed in receivership on July 1§, 1986,
and its insured assetas transferrad to Flagship Savings and Loan,

Investsd in Suh Savings and Loan was $184,000 in tribal funde and
$184,000 £n Indian irrigation and powsr ayatem funds. The tribal
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funds ware i{nsursd in thair entirety snd transferred to Flageni
Savings end . loan. Of the I.rrtruon and power system fundse, only
$100,000 was trenaferrsd, lesving a lcss of principal end
interest of approximately $8$7,0128.

NCUA'® ADd POXC'Q Position.

The IIM funds and the irrigation and power eystes funds esach
represent single accounts and thus ars 8ligibls only for the
wnaxinal insuranoces eveilabls for a single accounts [i.s.,
$100,000}. Any additional antunts to be recoeversd are dependant
upon the liguidation procsss.

Dapartmanta (BIA'a} Posikcion.

. The IIN funds are coaprieed of monies belonging vo individual
Indians and sach individual is sntitled to Inwursncs up to
§100,000. Likevige, the lrrigation and povar system funds are
two separate legal entities and thus sech fund is sntitled te be
insur to the extent of $100,000.

PITOT R

The Department (#OL/DIA) has patitionsd the NCQUA and FDIC te
roviaw the mattsre and requestad conourrsncs in {te position.
The NCUA wné TDIC are presently raviewing the patitions and esch
agency anticipates resching ite dwtermination within a month.

-
David Moran
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DUREAD OF INDIAN AFFAINS
QFFICE OF TRUST FUNDE NANAGENENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FUNDS OVERPAYNENTS TO TRIBES AND INDIVIDUALS
A3 OF MAY 1991

Ascount
Area Fund Owmner Amount Description
Abardasn IIn | 1] i
»
Tribal L
Ansdarke IIN Q
Tribal 0
Mllings 1IN 9
Tribal 9
Juneau 1IM Mary S8anford 100,000.00 oOverpaymant of Alaska Native
. Escrow funds due to incorxrect
! ownership data retained by BN
for a gravel pit they sanaged.
Solicitors Office reports as
posaibls claim.
Tribal 9
Ninneapolis IIM [
Tribal L
Nuskoges I ¢
Tribal 0
Phoanix I -]
Tribal [}
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WYREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
OrriCE Or TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FUNDS OVERPAYMENTE TO TRIBES AND INDIVIDUALS
AS OF HAY 1991

Account
Area *und owner Amount Pescription
Sacramento  IIM 0
Tribal 0
Alpyquerque IIM o
Tribal Jicarilla 359,590.73  Over disbursement of funds to
Tribe. The Tribs's accounte are
included in Phase 1 of the
Auwdit & Reconciliation Project.
Proper dispositicn of this
overpaynentwill be determined
upen conclusien of Phass 1
work.
Tribal Jewez Pueblo 442,158.00 Over dishbursement Tte Tribe.
Claizms Collection Litigation
report filed with Field
Solicitor 10719/90.
Tribal Tacs Pusblo 250,3%50.00 Per Caplita dlstribution
overpayment in 1964 and 1%89.
Tribe has requested
ovarpayssnt be restored.
rield Bolioltor opinion
requested 7/25/90.
Haveia IIM 0
Tribal ]
grtllﬂl 1IN L]
r Tribal 0
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BURERAG OF INDIAN APFAIRS
OFFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FUNDE OVERPAYMENTS TO TRIBES AND INDIVIDUALS
AS OF MAY 1951

Account

Ares Fund ownar Amount Dascription
Zastern IIx /]
Tribal 0

All Locations IIN 3,680,922.14 COverdraltts of IIN accounts.
Account owners pald funda not
dus thes because of
saministrative srror. WwWill
be processed in accordance
wvith ¢G Declsion B-219235,

GRAND TOTAL

$4,832,920.87

Reports from each area office, the Office of Trust Funds

Source of Data:
Management, Albuguerque, NX, and the DOI Ofrice of the Solicitor.

T oat.i4 S/18/91
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BUREAU OF INDLAN APFAIRS
OFFICE OF TRUST FUNDE MANAGEMENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FUNDS LOSSES DUE TRIBES AND INDIVIPUALS
AS OF MAY 1991

Account
Araa runda Ownar Amount Description
Aberdeen I $0
Tribal 0
Anadarko Im Q
Tribal 0
Billinge I Ardia Robinaon  24,500.00 cClais filod with tha Interilor
Scard of Indian Appsals for
funds restrictad by
Superintandent, rort Peck
Agsncy, Poplar, Mt.
Tribal 0
Junaau IIN Q
Tribal 0
Minneapolis IIM 0
Tribal Rad Laka 687,000.00 Claim no. J89-82L,
nlsmanagamant of funds. Cass
in tinal stage of ssttlgment.
Huskoges 1M Jossphine

Boseh Estate 1,523.15 FRoyalty paysants disbursed
after account owners death.
Cheacks cashed by Miecs.
Solicitor assisting BIA In
collecting from Miecs.

Tribal 0
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BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
QFricE Or TRUST FUNDS MANAGENENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST PUNDS LOSSES DUE TRIBES AND INDIVIDUALS
A8 OF MAY 1991

Account
Area Fund Owner Amcunt Desoription
Phoenix IIM 0
Tribal Hopl Tribe I5,018.21 Lost interest on $124,939.60

tfor pariod 7/16/88 through
11/30/90, Caused by eccount
~ing srror. Collection
daposited teo appropriation
account rather than

tribes account,. DOTY Solieitor
revieving case.

Tribal Colo River § 40,798.70 Loss of sarnings on uninsured
d.fosltl in closed S&L.
Principal and interest
recoveared betwean date of

cloeing on 1/14/83 and 7/28/89.

Asount is loss of sarninge
while funds being recovered.
Calculated through 9/30/90.

Tribal T&o 40,798,.70 Same As Colo River abova.

Sscramsnto IIM Larry N. Qlinger 36,602.06 Reimburssment for legal
sxpensas withdrawn Iros IINM.
Cl. Ct. No. 776-87. Discovery
in procees.

Tribal Hoopa=-Yurck 560.38 Same as Colo River and ¥ & ©
above.
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BUREAT OF INDIAN AFFALIRS
QFFICK OF TRUST FUNDE WANAGEMENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FUNDS LOSEERS DUE TRIBES AND INDIVIDUALS
A8 OF MAY 1991

Account
Area rund Ownar Amount Dascription

Albuquerque IIN 0

Tribal Uts Mtn Ute %,341.78 Estimated lost interest on
recaipta not g:ouptly
posted to Tribe,s
Treasury account. DOI
Solicitor raviewing the case.

Trival Ute Mtn Ute 343.10 Estimatad loat interest on
receipt not promptly
posted to Tribe's
Tr account., bDOI
Bolicitor reviewing case.

Tribal Ute Mtn Ute 8,036,397 Estimated lcet interest for
pariod 10/7/88 te 11/30/90 on
an incorrsct disbursament
charged to Tribe's trust
fund. DOI Soliciter reviewing
case.,

Tribal Zuni 486.75 Estimated lost intersst on
$60,607.20 due to
srronscus disbursessnt
transactions. DOt Soliciter
ceviewing cass.

Tribal Jicarilla $ 346.%6 Estimated lost interast on
$148,301.47 daeposit
that wap post:
incorreoctly to Tribes trust
acoount. DOL Solicicop
caviewing cass.

Tribal MNesonlesro 0 NHegative trust fund balancs.
Claared 11/89,
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ODUREAU OF INDIAN AFTAIRS
OFFICE OF TRUBT FUNDS MAMAGENENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FUNDE LOSSES DUE TRIBES AND INDIVIDUALS
AS OF MAY 1991

Account
Arsa rund owner Amount Deacription

Albuqguerqus Tribal Ute Nt & 16,%09.00 Lost interest on tribal funde
8¢ Ute dus to Credit Union
classitying invsstment as
share rathsr than ters. DOI
golicitor reviewing.

Navajo IIK Crownpoint $00,000.00 Disbursemants that say

Embassilemant axceed $300,000 from IIM

of ipdividual's accounts hot received by

accounts account owners. Undar
investigation by OIG. Also
ie receiving a complete audit
by AA&Co. $221,900 confirmed
enbetslanant to dats. US
Attornsy processi cane.
About $13%0,000 still under
review by Solicitor’s office
and sudit firs.

Tribal ]

Portland Im 0

Tribal Dmatilla 2,217.1% Lost interest dus to
sCcounting/ investeent srrors
DOI Solicitors office reviewing
Cage.

Tribal Grand Ronds  § 9,2195.11 Lost intereat due to account-
arror, DOI Solicitore office

revieving case.

Tribal 12 tribes No estimate Lost investment intsrest.
Addit ional data being gathored
to detersine detalls.
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BURERAU OF IADIAN AFFAIRS
OPFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

POTENTIAL
TRUST FPUNDS LOSERS OUE TRIBES AND IMNDIVIDUALS
AF OF MAY 1991

AcCounht
Axrea Ffund WnAT Amount Description
Fortland Tribal Wars Springs 150,000.00 Lost investment intarest.
Datail balng gathared to
detarnine circusstances.
Eastern IIM o
Tribal Sfanvhacot $570,000.00 Clain filed with US Clains
Sation court for loes of principal

and interest from the permanent
pottion of the Maine Indian
Claims Settlement Act.

As.. Locatlons IIM $1,000,000.00 Traasury Departmant taking
of the procesds of
outs ing Trsasury checks
issuad on or bafore 3/30/89
3 U.8.C. 3334. GAD

ivion pending.
All Locations Tribest 3,096,653.47 Clossd Instltutions, lost
1INM, : interest om funds 1dle arfter

closure and befors TRcOVery-

InvestBant logses Jus tO
falled financiei
institutions, insarance

tions and fraud $,946,915.60 See sttached details,
GRAND TOTAL $12,15),146.80

iource of Date: Waports from each area offiocs, the Office of Prust Punds
» AlbuQuergue, MK, and The DOX Offioe of tha Solicitor
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Mr. RicHarps. I don’t know. I would have to examine it. This is
the first time | have seen it.

Mr. SyNar. Would you do that and put it in the record?

Mr. RicHarDs. | shall, Mr. Chairman. I would rather do that
than do it spontaneously.

[The information follows:]
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United States Department of the Interior 4]

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL o <
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240 JiN ¢

JN 8 |99

Honorable Mike Synar

Chairman

Subcomaitres on Enviromsantc, Energy,
and Natural Resources

Comitrtes on Government Operations

House of Representacives

Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chalrman:

As requeated and agreed to during my testimony before your Subcommittee on
Hay 20, 1991, we have reviewed Exhibir 2. This conalsted of (1) an
undared memorandum from the Office of the Solicitor regarding trust funds
tnvested In falled credit unlons and savings and loans and (2} = Buresau of
Indfan Affalrs-prepared listing of potential rrust fund overpaymentsz and
losses as of May 1991. Our comments on this exhibit are provided For the
record.

The Office of the Solicltor wemorandum provides an updated status of the
funds invested, lost, and recovered in the five failed financial
institutions discussed on page 12 of our September 1989 audit report
entitled "Selected Aspects of Indian Trust Fund Activities, Bureau of
Indisn Affairs." We have not verlfied the completeness and accuracy of
the amounts discusaed In the Solicitor’s memarandum, and wore lmportancly,
we have not determined whether the accounts have been properly reimbursed
for the recoverad funds.

Qur September 1989 report indicated that since 1975 the Bureau had
invested trust funds in et least 50 financlal Instirutions which
subsequeantly fafled. During the audit, the Bureau initiated a review of
21l failed financial lnstitutions, the objective of which vas to Lldsatify
all trust funds thet had been lost and to compute relacted interest on
these funds. Congequently, we did not make a recommendation in our
September 1989 report in regard to determining total losses from all
failed banks. MNelther the Solicitor's meworandum nor the Puresu-prepared
listing of potential trust fund losses provides the status of this effort
except for the five banks included in our September 1989 report.

Ve can offer no sasuranca that the Burasu's listings of potential rrust
fund overpayent and lossas is complete and accurate. As noted In both
our Saptamber 1989 report and the Arthur Anderaen reports for fiscal year
1988 and 1989, the totsl amount of porenrial claims 1s not daterminable by
elther tha Buresu or the Office of the Soliciror because of the volume of
Indian rrust fund accounts. This problem ls compounded by the fact thac
a claim can be filed at any level within the Bureau and does not have to
be in writing.
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Because of the significance of the potentlial llabilfity, we have scheduled,
for the coming year, an audlit of Indian trust fund clalms. The objective
of the audit will be to review the Depatrtment’'s efforts to effectively and
efffelently resolve clains Trelated to the Indian trust funds.
Specifically, we will determine (1} the dollar amecunts of outstanding
clalas, (2} the amount of time required to process clalms, (1) the fiapact
processlng delays have on claimants, and (4) the additional costs the
Departwent incurs because of delays. The audic will also deternine
whether a reaerve fund should be established in order to satlsfy current,
ag well as future, clafm liabillties.

If you have any queations or require additlonal informarion, please have
your ataff contact Ms. Joyce N. Fleischman, Deputy Inspectotr Genetal, at
208-5745.

Sincerely,
¥} c/{/w“'""“"—“

James R. Richerds
Inspector General
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Mr. SyNAr. As you recall, at the subcommittee’s September 25—
let me ask you, Mr. Steinhoff, do you think it meets their obliga-
tions?

Mr. STEINHOFF. | would have to do the same thing.

Mr. SyNar. We will leave the record open for you, too.

[The information follows:}
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Unitedd States
General Acoountyng (Hlive
Washingten, [L0 200548

Secuatt o anad Fisancial
Mamigens il Tyiaen

B- 247216
January 13, 1992

The Honorable Mike Synar
Chairman, Subcommittee on
Environment, Energy, and Natural Resoufces
Committee on Government Operatlons
Housze of Repreasentatlves

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This letter responds to your reqgueat for GAO's views on the
Bureau of Indian Affairs' (BIA) efforts to improve lta
methods for detecting and handling losses of Indlan trust
fund monies. These etforts were discussed at your May 20,
1991, oversight hearlng on BIA'S management of the Indian
Trust Funds.

First, regarding recovery of trust funds whlch had been
deposited in financial institutions which later falled, we
belleve that BIA was remisgs in investing trust funds above
the insured limlts of $100,000. As a fiduclary, BIA s
liable for such loages.

We have been monitoring BlA's efforts teo recover funds
invested in failed inatltutions insured by the National
Credit Unlion Administration (NCUA} and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporaticn (FDIC). The Bureau'a Sollciters'
Dffice advised us that NCUA wlll not Cover losses 1ln excess
of the $140,000 insurance cejllng. The three largest
credit union iosses are as follows:

Loss amount in

Credit_unlon excess of §$10 Date of loss

Zlonic $3,037,766 03/22/84

Flnancial 249,173 10/31/84

Center Place 535,073 07/0B/85
Total $3.922,012

The Sclicitors' Offlce has teld us that in addjtion to
loases at these three large credit unicons, BIA has also

GAQ/AFMD-92-36R PIA Reconclliation Monitoring
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B-24721¢6

incurred losses on inveatmentsa at non-accredited, uninsured
credit unions ag a result of fraud and crlminal activity.

Regarding losaea at banks insured by FDIC, in aarly January
1992, FDIC advised the Interlor Sellcltors' Office that it
would not cover losses at falled banks in excess of insured
amounts. Losses in excess of the $100,000 Llpsurance limit
at FRIC-ingsured instltutjlone totaled $121,5%00. 1In lts next
budget submisslon, BIA plans to submit a request for
approprlations of approximately $4 mllilon to cover both
the credlt union and hank losses.

We have aiso revlewed BIA's "Pollcles Regardlng
Notification and Relmbursement to Indian Account Holders
for Losses Atctributable to Bureau Errors," which was
submitted to the Subcommlttee on October 31, 1991, While
it ia a good start, we think it needs to be strengthened In
three areas.

First, the pollcy does not address the need for systems and
procedures to prevent and detect losses, nor does It
instruct BIA staff on how to resolve them if they do occur.
The policy relies heavlly on account holders to bring
laases to the Bureau's attention. While BIA should addreas
guestions on losses ralsed by account holdera, 1t is BIA's
responsibility to prevent, detect, and resolve losses.
Second, the policy does not address what constitutes
sufficient documentaticon to establish the existence of a
loss., Finally, the policy's definition of losses does not
include interest that was earned but not credited to the
appropriate account. We advised your staff of these
concerns in November 1991,

1 appreciated the opportunity to teatify before tha
Subcommittee at the May 20, 1991, hearing. I would be glad
to discuss any questions you or your staff have pertaining
to thls information. I can be reached at (202) 275-9454.

Sincerely yours,

Steinho
Civil Audits

(901551)

2 GAOQ/AFMD-92-36R BIA Reconcillation Monltering
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Mr. SYNAR. At this subcommittee’s September 25, 1990, hearing,
the Assistant Secretary of the Interior Lou Gallegos appeared
before Secretary Lujan. He affirmed that the Department has not
complied with the OIG’s recommendations that it had not request-
ed a Solicitor’'s opinion or had not established a policy of notifying
account holders of Indian Trust Fund losses.

At the time we had the following exchange. Let me repeat it:

Mr. Sidon. You are aware that this is your third hearing to impress upon the
Department the sericusness of this subcommittee’s views on this matter. I want a
commitment out of you under oath right now that his notification and reimburse-
ment issue is going to be resolved soon. Do you have that commitment?

Mr. GaLiEGos. Yes, air, you do.

Mr. Richards, you have seen the evidence of this commitment.
Has it been fulfilled?

Mr. RicHARDS. To the best of my knowledge, unless somebody has
got something to present today, we have not been able to find any
such——

Mr. Synar. Mr. Richards, what is Congress to do?

Mr. RicHarps. I am not a Congressman and I am not a chairman
of the subcommittee, but I would be tearing my hair out, I think.

Mr. SYNAR. The subcommittee is holding its fourth hearing since
October 1989, on the Bureau’s mismanagement of the Indian Trust
Fund. I know you are well aware we have worked hard and long to
force the Bureau to clean up its act.

After all this time and inaction by BIA, are you convinced that
the Bureau is truly receptive to doing the things that must be done
to get this house in order?

Mr. RicHARDS. I think it is.

Let me tell you why I say that. The Bureau is a multifaceted
monster. It is an organizational nightmare.

Mr. SYNAR. That may be the understatement of the year.

Mr. RicHarps. I have been familiar with the Bureau of Indian
Affairs and Indian programs for at least the last 30 years, having
grown up in the West and worked for a western Senator and
worked with the Department of the Interior.

I think the Bureau of Indian Affairs will not change until there
is some political consensus that it must change. It is the favorite
t&_lr_gtet of everyone who is shocked by its ineptitude and its insensi-
tivity.

Yet, when we try to restructure it, either from a congressional
sense or from an executive branch sense, there are always the nay-
sahigrs and there never develops a political consensus for positive
change.

Mr. SYNAR. But there is political consensus that we have a basic
accounting for the tribes and individuals?

Mr. RicHARDS. No question about that.

Mr. SYNAR. You don’t need change to do that?

Mr. RicHarDS. No question about that. The BIA is a tinder box
simply waiting for a spark.

Mr. SYNAR. What you are saying is they need political pressure
to perform?

Mr. RicHARrDps. That is correct, and they need political consensus
to change.
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Mr. SYNaR. Let's review the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990,
Mr. Steinhoff. What is the Interior Department’s role?

Mr. SreiNHOFF. The Interior Department under that act has the
ultimate responsibility for financial management for the entire de-
partment. That includes the components such as BIA.

The act says we will have a chief financial officer for each de-
partment, and that person is the individual ultimately responsible,
ultimately accountable for making sure things are working well.
The act talks about having a management structure in place,
having trained professional accountants, having a 5-year plan to
improve systems and to putting needed controls in place, and it
talks about management reporting and the preparation and audit
of financial statements.

It provides a framework for meaningful change. I will echo what
l\zlilr. ichards said, however, that this act has pointed to substantive
c

e.
gﬂﬁstantive change is difficult to make. I think that is the chal-
lenge here.

r. SyNar. Well, I want to ask you, with this reorganization, the
BIA will be required to answer to the Interior CFO, correct?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes.

Mr. Synar. What about financial audits?

Mr. SreiNHOFF. The act calls for a financial audit each year of
each trust fund; so, it is saying here that we have a fiduciary re-
sponsibility. These are business-type banking funds. You must pre-
pare financial statements, they must undergo an audit, and you
must report each year the results of that work.

You also must prepare a management report which gives you a
bottom line of how your operation stands financially.

Mr. SynaAR. And they have to report to Congress, correct?

Mr. STEINHOFF. Yes, they do.

Mr. SyNAR. That is what our role is?

Mr. RicHarDps. I am afraid it is my responsibility to do those
audits, report those through the chief financial officer to Congress.

Mr. SyNar. Now, if we do all that, Mr. Steinhoff, will we succeed
in solving this longstanding financial mess?

Mr. STeINHOFF. | believe so, but it is a very big job, and there is
going to have to be lots of support from the Congress. Interior and
BIA are going to have to be held very closely accountable for what
they are doing.

At the same time, they have to receive the support. I said before
to a certain extent it is a matter of building a capacity to perform.
They don’t have that capacity today. They are going to have to
build that.

Getting back, I think, to the question you asked Mr. Richards
before, you know, whether or not I would be optimistic that this
would all work, I think it gets back to having that will. And I
think it gets back to the fact that to a certain extent, while ] am
encouraged by what folks are saying today, it is very similar to
what I think I was told back in 1982 when we did a similar study
and found really the same set of problems you see today.

Mr. Synagr. It has taken, as you say, BIA 4 years to finalize the
reconciliation project for request for proposals; is that not correct?

Mr. STEINHOFF. That is correct.
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Mr. Synar. Now, before BIA finally completed that RFP with the
participation of congressional staff, tribal representatives, and you
all at GAO, what improvements were necessary?

Mr. SteiNkoFF. I think they fell down in the four basic areas.
The first was the scope of work was much better defined. The
second, the contract, itself, calls for cost containment. Third, it
deals with what we do when we have to adjust an account, which
was Mr. Peterson’s concern before.

And finally, it says in very clear terms, that you must have in-
volvement from the tribes. This isn’t a one-way street. It is their
money.

Mr. SYNAR. Mr. Peterson, do you have any questions?

Mr. Pererson. I had some questions about the contract, but——

Mr. Synar. We will get into the next panel, and you can ask
those if you want, OK?

Let me just say to both of you, what also we have done in this
subcommittee on this area has been greatly aided by both the OIG
and GAQO. I want to thank you both and the immense amount of
work that goes into one of these projects.

I know Mr. Clinger will have some questions for the record so we
will leave the record open for that.

Let me again thank all of you for being here this morning.

{The information follows:]
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United ‘ot-lles o
{orneral Accounting UMce
Washington. 1.0, 20545

and Finaneial
Management Dhsjsion

B-243843.2
June S5, 1991

The Honmorable William F. Clinger

Ranking Republican Member

Subcommpittee on Environment, Energy
and Hatural Resources

Government Operations Committee

2158 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Clinger:

Thank you €or your letter of May 21, 1991. I am pleased o
enclose responses to your questions follawing the May 20,
1991, oversight hearing on the Bureau of Indian At€ajirs’
trust furd financial management,

The responses are submitted with the understanding that we
are still under dath. In responding to your questions, we
have, where appropriate, prdavided background information ta
add some perspective.

I trust that thi® ipformation is helpful., I would be glad
to discuss these or any additional gquestions you might
have,

Sincerely,

rey C. Steinhof
ectdr
Civil hodits

Enclosure
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ENCLOSURE ENCLOSURE

1.

Did GAC assist BIA in developing the terms of the
reconciliation RFP?

Yes. During the fall of 1990, at the reguests of Chairman
Yates and Chairman Synar, we participated in meetings with
BIA, the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee, and
congressional staff to assist BIA in finalizing the
reconciliation RFP, A number of changes were made to the RFP
to clarify the scope of work, cost containment, recording of
adjustments, and involvement of Indian representatives. For

example:

-- Language was changed to reflect that accounts would be
teconciled to the extent practicable based on available
documentation, rather than being reconciled to the date of
inception because the latter might not be possible.

~=- The c¢ost containment clause reguires the contractor to
provide an estimate of the level of effort and costs
involved after 2 to 4 weeks of work at each location.

-=- A8 the requested by the Ad Hoc¢ Indian/Tribal Advisory
Committee, language was added to the RFF to require the
contractor to footnote any instances of overpayments and
unaccrued and unpaid interest, Adjustments are not to be
posted in BIA's official accounting records until after
the accounts have been audited and certified and
appropriate policy decisions can be made.

Does the courrent contract with Arthar Andersen & Co. meet
your standards of a good conptract?

To our knowledge, & contract has not actually been signed, We
have not seen a contract and, therefore, cannot comment on its
quality. However, we believe that the RFP is sound and that
it forms the basic framework for a good contract. In this
regard, the contract should contain the language agreed to by
the Buresau, the Ad Hoc lndian/Tribal Advisory Committee,
congressional sctaff, and GAC staff last fall,

Rave you seen & draft of the BIA Phase I reconciliation
pProject msnagement plan or bave you spoken with BIA about
their reconciliation plan?

Yes, In February 1991, we were provided with a draft of
BIA'S project management plan. After reviewing the plan in
conjunction with members of the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory

2
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ENCLOSURE ENCLOSURE

1.

Did GAO assist BIA in developing the terms of the
reconciliation RFP?

Yes, During the fall of 1990, at the reguests of Chairman
Yates and Chairman Synar, we participated in meetings with
BIA, the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee, and
congressional staff to assist BIA in finalizing the
reconciliation RFP. A number of changes were made to the RFP
to clarify the scope of work, cost containment, recording of
adjustments, and involvement of Indian representatives, For
example:

-~ Language was changed to reflect that accounts would be
reconciled to the extent practicable based on available
documentation, rather than being reconciled to the date of
inception because the latter might not be possible.

-~ The cost containment clause regquires the contractor to
provide an estimate of the level of effort and costs
involved after 2 to 4 weeks of work at each location.

~- As the requested by the Ad Hoc Indian/Trikal Advisory
Committee, language was added to the RFP to require the
contractor to footnote any instances of overpayments and
unaccrued and unpaid interest. Adjustments are not to be
posted in BIA's official accounting records until after
the accounts have beén audited and certified and
appropriate policy decisions can be made.

Does the current contract with Arthur Andersen & Co. meet
your standards of a good contract?

To our kKnoWwledge, a contract has not actually been signed. We
have not seen a contract and, therefore, cannot comment on its
quality. However, we believe that the RFP is sound and that
it forms the basic framework for a good contract. 1In this
regard, the contract should contain the language agreed to by
the Bureau, the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee,
congressional staff, and GAO staff last fall.

Have you seen a draft of the BIA Phagse I reconciliation
project managesent plan or have you spoken with BIA about
their reconciljation plan?

Yes. In February 1991, we were provided with a draft of
BIA's project management plan. After reviewing the plan in
conjunction with members of the Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory

2
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Cormittee and congressional staff, we suggested that BIA make
a number of changes to address the (1} working relationships
between Bureau staff, the contractor, and tribal
representatives and (2) reporting of status information teo
tribes, GAQ, and congressional committees. BIA has not made
these changes. On June 4, 1991, Ad Hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory
Committee representatives met with Jim Parris, the new
Director of the Office of Trust Fund Management. At that
meeting, Mr. Parris told the Committee representatives that he
is willing to address these changes.

Ig the plan well-designed?

BIA's first draft was a good start but, like the earlier
version of the reconciliation RFP, it needed to be more
structured and include more detail. We feel that if BIA were
to make the changes suggested by both GAO and the Ad Hoc
Indian/Tribal! Advisory Committee, it would have a better togl
for managing the reconciliation project.

How large a part do staff and resources play in the chronic
problems with BIA's management of the Indian Trust Funds?

BIA's staffing problems are well-documented. For example, in
the area of routine trust fund accounting and investment
operatione, Arthur Anderson & Co. pointed out in its 1988 and
1989 trust fund financial audit report that (1) BIA lacked
Binimum standards for Key positions in the accounting process,
{(2) accounting supervisors were inexperienced, (3) accounting
positions were understaffed, and (4) training programs were
inadeguate.

In the fiscal year 1991 appropriations act, BIA was given
authority to hire an additional 30 staff members. This will
bring the total number of Office of Trust Fund Management
{OTFM) staff to about 50. BIA is in the process of filling
these pogitions; however, through May 1991, many of the new
positions remained unfilled. 1In filling these positions, BIA
needs to consider implementation of a strategic trust fung
financial management plan. In this regard, the Bureau needs
to ensure that it hires qualifjed staff to perform trust fund
accounting functions. Moreover, it is important that staffing
and organizational considerations do not preclude effective
implementation of a strategic trust fund financial management
plan.
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BIA also has a staffing problem in the area of the
reconciliation and audit project. To date, the
reconciliation project has been staffed by a manager and one
staff member who were also responsible for nine other trust
fund management improvement projects. A trust fund
accountant in each of the 12 BIA Area Offices was to be
designated to assist with the reconciliation project.
Currently, in 7 of the 12 Area Offices, the trust accountant
positions are vacant. In 3 of the 12 Offices, these positions
are held by new staff, one of whom is still in on-the-job
training status. In addition, the reconciliation project
diractor has just recently been named OTFM Director. As a
result, bon Gray, who has been serving as the Director of
Trust Fund Accounting, will be responsible for managing the
reconciliation project. Next week, BIA will be training
Arthur Andersen & Co. staff to familiarize them with BIA's
systems and records in preparatjon for beginning the
reconciliation work. It is not clear when BIA staff will be
assigned or trained to support the project.

The bulk of the Indian Trust Funds are in the Tribal
accounts--about three-~quarters of the $2 billion. Isn't that
correct?

Yes.

How sophisticated are the tribes in bhandling their trust fund
incomes?

There are different levels of sophistication in the tribal
community. While we have not studied this, we have been told
that some tribes are very sophisticated, and believe their
accounting systems are better than BIA'a. Other tribes are
less sophisticated. Therefore, some tribes may be very
capable of managing their own financial affairs; perhaps even
more capable than the performance we have seen at BIA. But,
others probably can not do the job at this time.

In your opinion, if tribes are financially competent, doesn't
it make sense to give the tribes the authority to handle their
own funds, and thus minimize BIA's fiduciary role?

Yes, I would agree that if a tribe is able and wants to
assume the responsibility for managing its own trust funds,
options should be available for it to do so.

'y



90

ENCLOSURE ENCLOSURE

5.

Are there any restrictions on full disbursement of funds to
ITM and tribal account holders of the money in their accounts?

Yes. BIA controls the disbursement of funds to certain
account holders. For example, BIA closely controls access to
"supervised® IIM accounts. BIA supervises these accounts to
protect the trust funds of minors and certain adults judged
incompetent. BIA felt that, as trustee, it needed to more
closely supervise the accounts of minors and incompetent
adults because these individuals were incapable managing their
own business affairs. In addition, certain tribal accounts,
such as judgment accounts, are more closely controlled than
others. BIA is reguired to disburse judgement award funds
based on a plan approved by the Congress. By law, funds from
income accounts can be withdrawn by tribes at their option.
The law could be changed to allow tribes to take greater
control of judgment accounts as well.

According to tribal representatives we have met with, BIA's
interpretation of legal restrictions on some accounts is not
consistent with tribal interpretations. We believe this area
needg to be reviewed in conjunction with options for tribal
management of trust funds.

What types of actions are required to be taken to pursue more
direct control of the monies held in trust?

Legislation is probably needed, in some instances, to allow
tribes to implement available options for managing their own
funds. We would be glad to work with the subcommittee to
draft specific language at the appropriate time.

Mr. Steinhoff, your legal counsel at GAO provided BIA with an
opinion that the federal govermnment is not required to
compensate IIM account holders for lost interest if the
interest was not accrued due to the mismanagement of the trust
funds by BIA. Yet, your counsel points out that the federal
governsent is reguired to compensate tribal trust

fund bholders for lost interest. What is the congressional
history behind this dichotomy?

The legislative histories of the laws governing tribal funds
and IIM accounts do not offer clear and sufficient evidence
from which one might explain (1) the rationale for the
different treatment of these two types of trust funds, or
(2) if, indeed, the difference resulted from considered
deliberation by the Congress. It appears that the law

5
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reguiring interest on tribal funds may simply have codified a
long-standing practice of the federal government, resulting
from cbligations under varjous treaties with tribes, to jinvest
funds held on behalf of tribes. The history of the law
governing IIM funds suggests that the Congress intentjionally
decided not to require that IIM funds earn interest; there is
no indication, however, whether the Congress recognized that
in this manner, individual funds would be treated differently
from tribal funds.

According to our research, no distinction was made between
tribal and individual funds until 1918. (See ., ¥White

ntajin ac ibe o V. ite . 20 Cl. Ct.
371, 378-80 (1990).) Prior to that time, Indian funds were
handled on a tribal basis. The Secretary of the Interior had
long had authority under treaties with individual tribes to
invest tribal funds, and did so routinely, The law reguiring
the United States to pay interest on tribal funds, 25 U.S.C. §
16la, has its antecedents in an 1880 law, the Act of April 1,
1880, c. 41, 21 Stat. 70. Responding to declining interest
rates and defaults on bonds in which the Secretary had
invested tribal funds, the Congress, in 1880, authorized an
alternative to such investment; it authorized the Secretary to
depesit tribal funds in the Treasury and required the paymenti
of interest on these deposits.

In 1918, the Congress directed the Secretary to segregate the
common funds of any Indian tribe, which were susceptible to
segregation, and to credit an equal share to each member of
the tribe. (Pub. L. No. 65-159, Sec. 28, 40 Stat. 55% (Act of
May 25, 1918), which was eventually codified at 25 U.S.C. §
162a.) This was the first recognition of individual Indian
monies. The Secretary was authorized to deposit the
segregated funds, or II¥ accounts, in banks. The law also
authorized investment in United States government bonds.

While the law instructed that no IIM account be deposited in a
bank until the bank agreed to pay interest at a reasonable
rate, it did not include any provision comparable to the 1880
law; that is, it included no provision requiring the United
States to pay interest on IIM funds held in the Treasury. The
Senate version of the 1918 legislation would have "authorized
and directed” the Secretary to deposit IIM funds in interest-
bearing bank accounts or to invest the funds in government
bonds; thus requiring the Secretary to hold them in a
productive manner and eliminating the option of retaining IIM
funds in the Treasury at no interest. (56 Cong. Rec. 3965
(1918}.) The word “directed” was removed in conference,
however, without explanation. (H.R. Rep. No. 494, 65th

Cong., 24 Sess. B=9 {1918).) Thus, the dichotomy was born:

6
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common funds of an Indian tribe not susceptible to
segregation, or tribal funds, would continue to earn interest
in accordance with the 1880 law and other authorities
addressing the investment of tribal funds; and segregated
funds, or IIM accounts, would earn interest only if the
Secretary chose to exercise his authority under the new law
and deposit the funds in interest-bearing accounts or invest
them in government bonds.

The Congress, in 1938, further limited the opportunities for
individual Indians to earn interest on their monies. At the
request of the Secretary, it repealed the 1918 law and
replaced it with authority to deposit IIM accounts in banks
regardless of whether the banks agreed to pay interest.

(Pub. L. No. 75-714, Sec. 1, 52 Stat, 1037 {Act of June 24,
1%38).) LlLetters from the Secretary to the President of the
Senate and the Speaker orf the House suggest that the Secretary
probably held IIM funds in interest-bearing bank accounts
until 1935. (S. Rep. No. 531, 75th Cong., 1lst Sess. 1-2
{1937); H.R. Rep. No. 1192, 75th Cong., lst Sess. 1-2 (1937).!
The Secretary, explaining his request that the Congress modify
the 1918 law, pointed out that in 1935 the banking laws were
amended to prohibit banks from paying interest on demand
deposits.l Describing IIM accounts as "Indian money checking
accounts," he noted the inconvenience to Indians and BIA
disbursing agents. Alsc, he argued that modifying the 1918
law "would permit the establishment in proper cases of
individual Indian money active checking accounts wWithout
interest.” Id.

lThe prohibition on the payment of interest and demand deposits was
effectively repealed in 1980 when the Depository Institutions
Deregulation and Monetary Control Act authorized hanks to permit
interest-bearing account owners to make transfers, by negotiable
instruments, from their accounts to third parties. Pub. L. No.
96-221, Sec. 303, 94th Stat. 146 (1980), godified at 12 U.S.C. 1832(=2

7
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Queetion 1. Please describe how the structure of BIA’s accounting system
hase led to probleas.

Answer 1. The Bureau‘s accounting systeax operates basically on a
decentralized basls. Approximately 250 of the Bureau’s field offices have
the ability to remocely access and enter obligations. receipte, payroll.
and adjusting entries Iinto the accounting system. With such a
decentralized system, it is lmportant to have adequate aystem edits and
strong central office review to ensure the propriety and integrity of the
accounting entries. However, we found that the Bureay did net have
sufficient internal edits in its accounting system and Bureau management
did not provide sufficient management oversight and contrel to ensure the
validiey and sccuracy of the transactions. As a result, the Bureau's
accounting system did not adequately and accurately account for funds, and
the accounting Information reported to the Office of Management and Budget
and the U,S. Treasury was unteliable.

Question 2. You state that as of June 30,1988, the BIA could not account
for 517 miliion. Since you last appeared before this Subcommittee on this
subject (October 26, 1989), has BIA been able to account for most of these
funds? What amount is still unaccounted for?

Anawver 2. The Bureau had Arthur Andersen & Co. perform a reconciliation
in connection with its 1989 audit of the trust funds. In a September i4,
1990, letter to the Bureau, Arthur Andersen reported that as s result of
its reconciliation of avallable accounting records, the unreconciled
difference was reduced toe §1,239, Arthur Andersen also provided the
Bureau a sumpary of adjustments to its accounting records. We have not
reviewed the adequacy or completeness of the reconciliation or the
proposed adjustments.

Queation 3. Do you have any ldea why BlA would not inform account holiders
of losses?

Answer 3. The Bureau provided no reason for not notifying account holders
of losses, and the only reason we found was that the Bureau did not have
a system to ldentlfy or track such iosses, Therefore, there were no
established procedures or Cime frames for notifying the account hoiders.

Except for the overnight interest problem, the losses identified by our
audit affected Individual Indian Money account funds. These funds are not
invested separately for each account holder. Instead, the funds are
invested cumulatively, with the interest distributed periodically co all
account holders. If the funds are lost, all accounts (approximately
300,000) would be affacted.

Question 4. You discuss at length in your wricten testimony that the BIA
has general ledger accounting problems, How 1Is this related to their
crust fund panagement woes, {s it just another general reflection of the
agency's lack of accounting sophistication?
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Answatr 4. The internal control Wweaknegses identified in our latest report
significently affect the Bureau’'s trust [und operations because the
general ledger represents the official accounting records of the Bureau.
The main cause of the inaccuracy of the trust fund financial records was
the Bureau's failure to reconcile the subsidiary records of actual
investments with the official general ledger accounting records.

Quesrion 5. You have raised concerns in your tegtimony about the Bla‘s
general ledger. How could fraudulent transactions have taken place? Are
you avare of any specific instances of fraud with regatd to the recently
cited problems with the general ledger? 1f you uncover fraudulent acts in
this area, please provide your findings for the record,

Answar 5. Our audits reported numercus accounting and internal control
weaknesses which would allov fraudulent transactions to take place without
being discovered, For example:

+  Accounting entries were prepared and posted without adequate
review, Accounting data were entered at 250 remote field locations
without adequate system edits or central office review to ensure the
propriety and integrity of the entries.

+ Duties wete not adequately segregated among personmel. At some
locations, the same employees transferred assets among accounts and opened
new accounts, resulting In the opportunity for iIntentional or
unintentlional misuse of rescurces.

+ Access Uo the system was not limited only to authorized personnel,
Individuals, including some non-Bureau enployees, could enter transactions
at any of the 250 locations with little or no control over the validity or
accuracy of those transactions.

We have several criminal investigations which have been completed and are
now pending prosecutive determinations by the United States Attormney's
Office in Albuquerque, New Mexico. Due to the status of Chese cases, we
are unable to provide specifics regarding the fraudulent wethods used teo
victimize the Bureau’'s general ledger; however, we will inform you of the
sutcome of those investigations at the eatliest opportunity.

Question 6. The BIA‘s general ledger ptoblems sound very serious. How
has the agency responded to your findings and recommendationa regarding
problems with the genetal ledger?

Answer 6§ The Bureau’s and the Department’s responses to the report have
been positive. There was great interest at high levels in the Office of
Management and Budget and the Department, even while we were doing
fieldwork on this review. Also, even before the repott was issued in
final form, the Bureau, in conjunction with the Department and the Offica
of Manhagement and Budget, took immediate action to start the process of
revising current accounting practicesa, purifying inaccurate records, and
implementing 1ts Financial Management TImprovement Project. In this
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connection, & task force consisting of sccounting perscrmel from the
Department, the Bureau of Indlan Affairs, and octher bureaus and offices of
the Department has been appointed to address the many deficlencles and
problems of the Bureau's accounting system. The goals of this task force
are to:

- ilmplement Iimmediate controls in the administrstive accounting
process to ensure Integricty in current fund accounting;

- achlieve reconciliation of currently active appropriacion account
balances;

- accurately report appropriatlion account balances as of September
30, 1991;

- develop & regular mechanlam for financial management Inceraction
with area offices; and

- successfully convert to the Federal Financlal System, the
Department’s standard appropriated fund accounting system, on October 1,
1991.

While these are significant first steps, they are only the beginning of a
long process. However, given the commlitment of the task force and the
high level of support of both Departmental and Office of Management and
Budget officlala, we are optimistic that improvements will be made In the
Bureau’'s financial management operation.

Question 7. Are the BIA's problems largely resource related, 1.e.,
insufficlent numbers of accounting staff and Insufficient craining?
Flease elaborate.

Angwer 7. The Bureau’s Ilnablility to recruit, train, and recain personnel
who possess the required erxpertise to execute the Buresu’'s accounting
responsibilicies Is a key reason for the reported deficlencles in tbe
Bureau’s accounting system. However, there were other deficiencies which
ve believe were more significant, For example;

- Bureau management did not provides adequate oversight or ensure
that fundamental account analyses and reconclliations were performed to
validate the accuracy of about 25 million accounting entries made {m
fiscal years 1989 and 1990.

- Access to the accounting system was virtually unchecked, and the
system lacked Iintermal control edits to {identify and prohibit the
processing of ioproper entries.

Quescion 8. You suggest that key to BIA getting a handle on lits
accounting probleas is conversion to a Fedsral Financial System, How is
the agency mestings its revised (October 1991) deadline for making the
conversion?
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Anaver 8. As stated above, one of the goals of the Bureau's Financial
Hanagenent Improvement Project is to successfully convert to the Federal
Financial System on October 1, 1991. The Bureau is committed to this
date., Our concern is that dats entered into the system is verified as
being accurate and that specific individuals are held responsible for
ensuring cthe successful conversion. The Bureau shares chese concerns and
has indicated that steps have been taken to purify the data and to make
fndividuals accountable.

Queation 9. I understard that your office way have a large stake in
assuring that the Indian Trust Funds have been properly reconciled and
audited. Does your office have sufficlent resources to conduct the
certification effore?

Anawver 9. Our stated position to both the House and Senate Commitcees on
Appropriations is that our office will review, on an informal basis, the
Bureau’s plan te reconclle, audit, and certify cribal and Individual
Indian Money accounts and to offer copments to the Bureau as appropriate.
We have met with Bureau representatives on numerous occasions and will
continue to do so In the future., We will alse perform an audit of the
process as 1t 1s ongoing and render an opinlon at that cime as to how the
system is working. The objectives and scope of this audit have not been
defined. However, the objectives will 1include the accuracy and
completeness of the Bureau's efforts to reconclle and audit the accounts
back to the earliest date possible. This audit is plamned for this year
and w11l be performed by our present staff.
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Mr. SYnaR. Our next panel is Elouise Cobell, Controller for the
Blackfeet Tribe, accompanied by Mary Ann Antone, Sue Lara, Mr.
Lonnie Points, Mr. D. Michael Petersen, Ms. Jo Lynn Gentry, and
Mr. Dan Press, and Ms. Tanya Parker of First Nations Financial
Project.

Let's get all of you all to come forward. Based on the importance
of this issue, we are going to leave the record open for the follow-
ing 10 days to allow any tribe or individual Indian to submit what-
ever testimony they want. This issue is of such vital importance
that it would be wrong not to keep that record open for them. I ask
unanimous consent to do that.

Now, as you all saw from our first panel, it is the policy of this
subcommittee in order not to prejudice past of future witnesses, to
swear all of our witnesses. Do any of you have any objections to
being sworn in?

If you would stand and raise your right hand.

[Witnesses sworn.]

We will submit both comments for the record in their entirety.

And at this time, we would ask you to summarize. And Ms.
Cobell, why don’t we let you go first.

STATEMENT OF ELOUISE COBELL, CONTROLLER, BLACKFEET
TRIBE, ACCOMPANIED BY MARY ANN ANTONE, SUE LARA,
LONNIE POINTS, D. MICHAEL PETERSEN, JO LYNN GENTRY,
AND DAN PRESS

Ms. CoBeLL. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, we are
pleased to appear before you today and have the opportunity to dis-
cuss our opinions and recommendations concerning the BIA’s man-
agement of Indian trust funds.

Before discussing our opinions and recommendations, we would
like to provide some background regarding the evolution of the ad
hoc Indian Tribal Advisory Committee. I would like to point out
that we are all members of the Indian Tribal Advisory Committee.

This Indian Tribal Advisory Committee was established by the
BIA to comply with the conditions outlined by Congress before ap-
proval was given to the BIA to proceed with the request for propos-
als for the reconciliation and audit strategy for Indian trust funds.

The 37 tribes having the largest balance in the trust funds were
selected to be part of the phase I of the reconciliation project. The
BIA informed these 37 tribes so that they would also serve as the
ad hoc Committee on Trust Funds until a formal advisory commit-
tee was established.

The BIA requested that the 37 tribes appoint a six-member inter-
im management work group. In the past months, this group has
worked with the General Accounting Office, congressional commit-
tee staff, and the BIA to develop an RFP for the reconciliation
proﬁiect that is acceptable to all the tribes.

y having our tribal committee input along with GAO and con-
gressional committee representatives, we were able to convince the
BIA of two key issues, that the tribes and the individual account
holders are the ultimate clients, since it is their money, and that
the reconciliation had to calculate the amount tribes lost through
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un- or underinvestments by the BIA, and Congress would have the
opportunity to resolve these problems through legislation.

The interim management group has been successful in reporting
to the 37-member ad hoc group and has had meetings with the rep-
resentatives of the affected tribes at their own expense to keep
them abreast of the developments and changes in the reconciliation
project.

It was at these meetings that the 37 tribes decided that tribal
input and oversight of the BIA’s management of Indian trust funds
must be accomplished by an entity selected by the affected tribes
consistent with the government-to-government relationship.

The majority of the tribes have approved resolutions that sup-
port a tribal membership organization funded by the BIA but se-
lects its own leadership and establishes its own agenda.

We have been told by Dr. Eddie Brown that he supports this ap-
proach and is prepa to fund it. With that explanation, we will
go into our opinions and recommendation.

It is the Indian people whose money is on deposit with the BIA.
It is not appropriated funds of the Federal Government, it is not
Federal financial assistance to tribes. It is their own money. It is
our opinion that the persistent vigilance of the assertive tribal gov-
ernments and its members over the years has been instrumental in
prodding BIA to improve its financial management systems and to
correct 1ts material weaknesses.

We also believe that the joint effort of GAQ, congressional com-
mittee staff, and the ad hoc Indian Tribal Advisory Committee in
monitoring the BIA’s development of the RFP for reconciliation in
audit services significantly improved upon the BIA’s initial RFP
for the reconciliation project.

BIA must include the Indian people as equal partners in the
design and implementation of the new Indian Trust Fund struc-
ture. An equal partnership would ensure direct tribal participation
in the decisionmaking process and allow continual tribal input
into future management of their funds.

This in no way diminishes BIA’s trust responsibility. The recon-
ciliation and audit of these funds to a specific point in time by a
contractor will correct the cumulative effects of the BIA's poor
management up to that date, but the accuracies of those account
balances from that point in time into the future is dependent upon
the BIA’s success in developing and implementing a comprehensive
management plan staffed by competent and experienced personnel.

QOur experience with the BIA during the past several months
leaves many doubts in our minds about the BIA’s current capabili-
ties to correct its material weaknesses and comprehensively devel-
op and implement an intefrated financial management system.
Their bandaid approach will not stop the hemorrhaging of Indian
trust funds.

The present BIA funding should be more than sufficient to ac-
complish the fiduciary responsibilities relating to the trust fund
management. However, BIA's spending of these funds haphazardly
on new positions and contracted services without first addressing
the CFO account requirements and developing a comprehensive fi-
nancial management plan will only isolate BIA from further con-
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gressional support and diminish any remaining credibility with the
Indian people.

Since it is the tribe’s money, it should be the tribe’s representa-
tives who should take the lead in totaily redesigning the system.
The BIA should provide resources, support and information.

In addition, the tribes should be authorized to establish an advi-
sory panel composed of persons with expertise in the relevant areas
to work with the tribes in overseeing the existing system and de-
signing the new one.

The participants should have expertise in the areas of develop-
ment banking, Indian law, accounting and financial management
to advise the tribal membership organization on both short-term
and long-term changes in the system.

We have some general recommendations on what the new
system should look like. The tribes should not be forced to keep
this money in the BIA system nor should the entire program be
dumped in a Mellon Bank or a Security National Bank.

The new system should provide tribes with a menu that, consist-
ent with the trust responsibility, offers them a range of options,
from keeping the money in the BIA to having it put in local banks
so the trust dollars will help to improve the way banks deal with
tribes and individual Indians, to the option of managing their
funds themselves.

New approaches of this kind will require new authorizing legisla-
tion. We encourage the relevant authorizing committees to make
this a priority issue. BIA must integrate the requirements of the
.f:}lief financial officer’s account of 1990 and its reorganization ef-
orts.

The CFO account provides a road map for meaningful reform to
the BIA’s longstanding financial management problems. One of the
greatest burdens in the trust fund program is the management of
the IIM accounts. These accounts are used to hold money earned
- from leasing, oil and gas development, and other sources for indi-
vidual Indians.

The Congress and the administration must face and correct one
of the main causes of the IIM’s situation, the fractionated interest
in which, for example, 160 acres of land may be owned by hundreds
of the original allotee’s heirs with each heir receiving an annual
check for a few dollars. Only after the fractionated interests are
eliminated can the burdens and problems in the trust fund pro-
gram entirely disappear.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes our testimony. We would be very
happy to answer any questions.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Cobell follows:]
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TEATINCNY
BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ENVIROMMENT,
ENERGY AND WATURAL RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

S8UBMITTED BY
AD HOC INDIAN TRIBAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
ON BIA TRUST FUND MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

We are pleased to appear before you today and have the
opportunity teo discuss our views and recommendations concerning
the Bureau of Indian Affairs' ("BIA"™) management of Indian Trust
Funds. Before discussing our opinions and recommendations, we
would like to provide some background regarding the evolution of
the ad heoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee on BIA Trust Fund
Management.

The Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee was established by the
BIA to comply with the terms and conditions outlined by Congress-—
man Sidney R. Yates, Chairman of the Subcommittee on Appropria-
tions for Interior and Related Agencies, in his letter to Interi-
or Secretary Manual Lujan, Jr., dated July 23, 1990. 1In its
letter dated September 11, 1990, BIA invited representatives of
the tribes that are to be the subjects of Phase I of the recon-
ciliation study to a meeting held in Albugquergue, New Mexico on
September 20, 193%0. They are composed of thirty-seven tribes
having the largest balances reflected in the BIA's accounting
system, together with the tribes whose Agency locations were
selected by the BIA for reconciliation of Individual Indian Money
("IIM") accounts. At this meeting, the representatives in
attendance were informed by the BIA that until a formal advisory
committee is established, the tribes and Agency locations inglud-
ed in Phage I of the reconciliation and audit of Indian Trust
Funds would function as an ad hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Commit-
tee to the BIA. At that time, BIA estimated that a formal
advisory committee would be appointed by the Secretary of Interi-
or early in 1991.

In early O¢tober 1990, several tribal representatives who
had attended the Albuguerque meeting discussed the nead for the
tribes to unite and work together as an effective ad hoc commit-
tee in order to have meaningful and affective participation and
congultation in the development stages of the reconciliation and
audit process, as 1t was anti¢ipated that the BIA's Request for
Proposal {"RFP"} for reconciliation and audit services would be
finalized and advertised, and a contract awarded before a formal
advisory committee was established. In mid-october, 1990, BIA
transmitted draft copies of the RFPs to the tribes included in
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Phase I, and asked for comments from the tribes no later than
October 24, 1990,

The tribal representatives who had begun discusSsions relat-
ing to the ad hoc committee decided that another meeting of the
affected tribes should be held in a central location to jointly
review the RFP drafts, and develop a colliective set of recommen-
dations from the ad hoc committee. Twelve tribal representatives
met in Denver, Colorado on October 22-23, 1990, at their own
expense, to review the RFP drafts, BIA representatives attended
the meeting on the second day and requested that the group in
attendance designate six members as an interim management group
of the ad hoc committee to facilitate the consultation process.

In November 1990 through January 1991, four neetings were
held with representatives of the General Accounting Office in
washington, D.C., to review and modify the BIA's proposal drafts,
In addition to BIA and interim management group representatives,
Steve Richardson of your Committee's staff and Kathy Johnson of
Congressman Yates' Committee staff were also in attendance. We
believe that the participation of tribal representatives in the
process was critical to the development of an RFP that is accept-
aple to the tribes. oOur participation (coupled with the authori-
ty brought by GAD and the Congressional staff) helped to persuade
the Bureau to acknowledge fully that it is the tribes who are the
real clients at-interest of the contractor conducting the recon-
ciliation and that therefore the tribes have the right to partic-
ipate fully in the reconciliation activities affecting their
tribe. The tribal representatives also helped persuade the BIA
that the reconciliation had to calculate the amount tribes lost
through un~ or under-investment by the BIA, even if the BIA
refuses to acknowledge it has a legal obligation to restore that
amount .

Wa believe that the RFP now reflects the needs and goals of
the tribes and we are hopeful that it will be a successful
beginning to the Trust Fund clean-up effort. Under the agree-
ments reached at the meetings, the Ad Hoc Committee will continue
to pbe involved during the reconciliation process to ensure the
process remains sensitive to tribal concerns., This experience
confirms that tribal representatives must be full participants in
all aspects of the effort to c¢lean up the trust fund program, and
must be given the resources to enable them to participate fully.
It also confirms that Congress and GAC must also remain involved;
the tribes need their wisdom and their clout to ensure the
success ©of our involvement.

Aftaer the terms of the RFP were agreed to, the interim
management group invited representatives of the affected tribes



103

to attend a meeting in Denver on January 24-25, 1991, to review
the developments and chanhges since the Albugquerque meeting in
September, 1990, and discuss the future direction of the ad hoc
committee. Eighteen tribal representatives, again at their own
expense, attended this meeting, together with two BIA representa-
tives, two GAO representatives and four representatives from
other tribal organizations.

The tribal representatives in attendance at this meeting
concluded that tribal input and oversight of the BIA's management
of Indian Trust Funds must be accomplished by an entity selected
by the affected tribes, consistent with the government-to-govern-
ment relationship with the United States Government, and not
subject to the direction and control of the organization for
which they have oversight responsibilities. They concluded that
rather than a BIA~created formal advisory committee, the best
mechanism was a tribal membership organization, that, while
funded by the BIA, selected its own leadership and controlled its
own agenda.

The interim management group transmitted a summary of the
discussions held during the January meeting, together with =
draft resolution supporting a tribal membership oversight organi-
zation, to the affected tribes for their information and consid-
eration. Tribes that officially adopted the resoclutionh were
asked to transmit a copy to BIA to document their support. A
majority of tribes have adopted the supporting resolution. Also,
we have been told by Dr. Eddie Brown that he supports this
approach and is prepared to provide funding to the proposed
organization as soon as he is comfortable that the new associa-
tion has the support of the tribes. (Presently, individual
tribes, such as Jicarilla Apache, Blackfeet and Red Lake Chippe-
was, have been bearing most of the costs of the Ad Hoc Commit~
tee's activities, including telephone, photocopying, telecopying,
postage and legal advice. The BIA has covered part of the travel
costs but tribes have also paid some of the travel.)

This afternocon, one representative from each of the thirty-
seven tribes and three IIM Agency locations has been invited to
attend a meeting with BIA, at its expense, to review the status
of the reconciliation and audit of Indian Trust Funds, to meet
the selected contractor and to discuss the Trust Fund issues with
Dr. Brown. Tomorrow, the tribal representatives will be meeting
to discuss the new organization, to share each tribe's ideas,
recommendations and expectations relating to the future manage~
ment of Indian Trust Funds, and to compare thaese tribal goals and
objectives with BIA's current and long range plans to restructure
and correct its material weaknesses in accounting and data
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processing systems, internal controls and overall financial
management of Indian Trust Funds.

Throughout the history of BIA's management of Indian Trust
Funds, tribal governments and individual tribal members have
committed vast amounts of their own time and resources attempting
to correct jidentified errors in Trust Fund balances. Since
September, . 0, tribal representatives have been working togeth-
er as part of the ad hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee and
providing input and oversight of BIA's efforts to reconcile and
audit Trust Fund balances. The following views and recommen-
dations of the interim management group are hased upoh our
individual past experiences with BIA, our reviews of previously
issued reports, studies and hearings relating to BIA, and most
recently, our involvement with GAO and Congressional committee
staff over the past seven months in monitoring BIA's activities
relating to its fiduciary responsibilities for Indian Trust
Funds.

INTERIM MANAGEMENT GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS

It is the Indian pegple whose money is on deposit with
BIA. It is not appropriated funds of the federal government. It
is not federal financial assistance to the tribhes. It is their
own money, generated by the resources they currently own or once
owned and were illegally taken from them.

It is our opinion that the persistent vigilance of the
assertive tribal governments and its members over the years has
been instrumental in prodding BIA to improve its financial
management systems and to correct its material weaknesses. We
also believe that the joint efforts of GAQO, Congressional commit-
tee staff and the ad hoc Indian/Tribal Advisory Committee in
monitoring BIA's development of the RFP for reconciliation and
audit services significantly improved upon BIA's initial RFP
advertised in February, 1990.

BIA must include the Indian pe¢ple as equal partners in
the restructuring ¢f the new Indian Trust Fund system. An egqual
partnership would ensure direct tribal participation in the
decision-making process, and allow continual tribal consultation
in the future management of their funds. This in ne way dimin-
ishes the BIA's trust responsibility. But until the tribes are
authorized to be partners and to take the lead in deciding how
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their money should be managed, the BIA system will never have
credibility in Indian country.

BIA has the opportunity this afterncon to manifest its
commitment to the Indian people for an equal partnership by
recognizing and funding the advisory committee structure outlined
in the supporting tribal resolutions previously transmitted to
AHIA.

2. The tribes mpust take the lead in designing a new
structure and svstem for management of Indian Trust FPunds.

Countless reports, studies and investigations have
disclosed BIA's falilure to properly manage Imndian Trust Funds,
The reconciliation and audit of these funds to a specific point
in time by a contractor will correct the cumulative effects of
BIA's poor management up to that date. The accuracy of the
account balances from that point in time into the future is
dependent upon BIA'S success in developing and implementing a
comprehensive management plan, directed by a disciplined control-
lership function and staffed by competent and experienced person-
nel.

Our experience with BIA during the past several months,
and our review of the limited information that BIA has shared
with us during this time, leaves many doubts in our minds about
BIA's current capabilities to correct its material weaknesses and
comprehensively develop and implement an integrated financial
management system. In our opinion, BIA continues to follow its
previous reactionary and diversicnary tactics in respeonding to
criticisms by blaming its failure on changes in personnel, lack
of training and shortage of funding, and then hastily applying
piecemeal, untested and ineffective measures which, at best, only
delays the cure of its financial management disease. -This band-
aid approach will not stop the hemorrhaging of Indian Trust
Funds. (For example, when check-forging problems arose in the
IIM disbursement system, the BIA's immediate response was to
propose to contract out the disbursement function, without giving
tribes a real opportunity to consider the idea and without
determining how this step might fit inte the larger issuves facing
the Trust Fund program.)

BIA has received additional funding from Congress for
the contracting of reconciliation and audit sexrvices, and the
reorganization of its Trust Fund Management Division. This
funding, when added to the funding BIA currently expends under
the category of trust funds management, should be more than
sufficient to accomplish the fiduciary responsibilities relating
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to trust funds management, with prudent direction and expertise.
However, BIA's spending of these funds haphazardly on new posi-
tions and contracted services, without first addressing the CFC
Act requirements and without first developing a comprehensive
financial management plan, will only isolate BIA from further
Congressional support. It will also diminish any remaining
credibility with the Indian people. We have found it very
difficult to provide meaningful tribal consultation to these
haphazard changes which emerge on the spur-of-the-moment and
which, leave us inadequate time to thoroughly study the proposal.
Also, without a comprehensive plan, there is no way to see how
any of these changes fit within the bigger picture.

While some minor emergency changes are needed in the
short-term, we believe that, in general, this haphazard "band-
aid" approach must be stopped. Instead, there is a need to step
back, review the options and then totally redesign the system.
Since it is the tribes money, it should be the tribes' represen=~
tatives who should take the lead in this effort. The BIA should
provide resources, support and information. In addition, the
tribes should be authorized to establish an advisory panel,
composed of persons with expertise in the relevant areas to work
with the tribes in overseeing the existing system and designing
the new one, The participants should have expertise in areas of
investment banking, Indian law and accounting and financial
management, to advise the tribal membership organization on both
short-term and long=-term changes in the system,

Reither Congress nor the Administration can be expected
to micro-manage Indian Trust Funds. However, without your
Committee's current involvement and genuine concern, together
with Congressman Yates' appropriation oversight, the Indian
people would have little, if any, hope for constructive changes.
Congress cannot be expected to continue this diligent effort for
an indeterminable amount of time into the future. The creation
of a tribal membership organization backed by the expert advisors
can develop and provide to Congress a detailed plan to clean-up
the system and thereby eliminate the need for the micro-manage-
ment.

3. F ra & ong_ for the Indi Trust Fund R

While the design of the new system must await the
activities of the tribal representatives and the panel of ex-
perts, we have some general thoughts on what the new system
should look like. It cannot be a monolithic system. The tribes
should not be forced to Keep their money in the BIA system. Nor
should the entire program be “dumped" in a2 Mellon Bank or a
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Security Pacific Bank. Instead the new system should provide
tribes with a "menu" that, consistent with the trust responsibil-
ity, offers them a range of cptions, from keeping the money in
the BIA, to having the BIA depesit it in a in leocal bank so the
trust dollars will help to improve the way banks deal with that
tribe and individual Indians, to permitting the tribes to manage
their funds themselves,

New approaches of this kind will require new authoriz-
ing legislation. We encourage the relevant authorizing commit-
tees to make this a priority issue. The tribal membership
organization is prepared to assist in this process in whatever
manner possible.

4. B must t a t af
Financial ficers Act of 1 n its rec tio F 4

The CFO Act provides a road map for meaningful reform
to BIA's longstanding financial management problems. BIA's
management of Indian Trust Funds has not monopolized its material
weaknesses in accounting and internal controls and peoor financial
management practices. As previously reported by the Office of
Management and Budget, BIA has similar material weaknesses in its
appropriated fund accounting and financial management systems.

The CFQ Act requires a modern, integrated financial
management structure staffed by competent and experienced person-
nel, which is governed by strong internal controls and written
policies. The Chief Financial Officer of the agency has the
ultimate authority and responsibility for all facets of financial
management activities, including annual financial statements,
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, which have been independently audited.

BIA's implementation of the CFO Act during itg reorga-
nization of Indian Trust Funds management would be a first step
in a consistent endeavor to correct its overall financial manage-
ment problems.

5. Co t .

One of the greatest burdens in the Trust Fund program
is the management of the IIM accounts. These accounts are used
to hold {(usually for a short time) money earned from land leas-
ing, oil and gas develcpment, etc., on land owhed by individual
Indians. There Is a question as to whether this appropriately
qualifies as a trust fund function. But wherever the function is
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placed, the basic point is that the Congress and Administration
must face and correct the underlying cause of the IIM situa-

tion ~- the fractionated interest problems in which 160 acres may
be owned by hundreds of heirs of the original allottee, with sach
heir receiving an annua) check of a few dollars. Only after the
fractionated interests are eliminated, can the burdens and
problems in the Trust Fund program entirely disappear.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes cur testimony. We would be
happy to answer any questions that you or other members of the
Committee may have, or provide any additional infoermation at this
time or at some later date, as reguested.
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Mr. Synar. Ms. Cobell, that was excellent testimony and those
recommendations surely will be considered by this subcommittee as
we begin our report. I think you have got some good ideas there.

Ms. Parker, welcome. Pull that microphone up so everybody can
hear you.

STATEMENT OF TANYA PARKER, FIRST NATIONS FINANCIAL
PROJECT

Ms. PARKER. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Peterson, on behalf of First Na-
tions Financial Project, thank you for this opportunity to present
testimony on the management of Indian trust funds.

First Nations Financial Project is a nonprofit Indian economic
development organization established to assist tribes achieve eco-
nomic self-sufficiency and to decrease the reliance on Federal pro-
grams. We provide technical assistance in the areas of finance,
business, marketing, and reservation development strategies.

In past testimony, we have emphasized the need for trust fund
management to address the needs of the beneficiaries, tribes, and
Indian individuals, and to ensure that tribes economies derive
direct benefit from their trust dollars. These are still our concerns.

However, today our testimony will focus on options that we be-
lieve can be used to reach these goals and the need to continue the
tribal participation process begun by the 37 tribes in phase I audit
and reconciliation project.

Specifically, the process we support for continuing to monitor the
BIA's responsibilities for tribal and individual Indian trust ac-
counts is to aliow the affected tribes to caucus, select their own
leadership group who will provide tribal input, and then report
back to the affected tribes.

The 37 tribes who organized and used this process for tribal par-
ticipation in the RFP process has begun to show what can be ac-
complished to correct serious, long-standing problems. Too often,
the BIA’s interpretation of tribal involvement is to inform tribes of
their decisions after they are made.

Many of these decisions fail or are not responsive to tribal needs.
Even information on major decisions and policies are slow to reach
tribes and Indian people. Prior to the first contract with Mellon
Bank, there was no tribal input and the contract failed. The BIA
again made the decision to contract with Security Pacific without
tribal input and again the contract failed.

In the development of the current request for proposal for audit-
ing and reconciling present fund accounts, there would still be
little or no tribal involvement if the 37 tribes had not organized to
form an ad hoc committee as mandated by Congress.

This congressional mandate began a process of tribal participa-
tion and decision making and policy setting for tribal trust fund
management. Our organization encourages tribes to take control of
their tribal trust funds, whether their decision is to take their
funds out of trust or to maintain the trust relationship.

We have developed three conceptual alternative models for the
management of tribally controlled trust funds. Each management
model may be adapted to various levels of financial sophistication,
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(fexpggience, and capability for control and management of trust
unds.

The three models are the in-trust model, similar to the current
system, but with an explicit trust document that defines the trust
relationship, clarifies the trustees’ responsibilities, and ensures the
rights of the beneficiaries are carried out.

The 638 model where the tribe contracts with the development
advisor to administer specific or all parts of the management of the
development portfolio, and the out-of-trust model where the tribal
trust funds are removed from Federal trust and the tribe has total
control over investing and managing their funds.

Our previous work with tribes such as the Saginaw-Chippewa
clearly shows how trust funds controlled and managed by the tribe
can be used to accomplish reservation, economic, and program
goals. Using the out-of-trust model developed by First Nations, the
Saginaw tribe developed and implemented a trust development
plan.

After gaining control of a $10 million land claimm settlement,
working with First Nations, Saginaw conducted research, involved
the community, and expanded the financial management capacity
of the tribal council and key tribal staff.

Their decision to invest locally led to financing and constructing
new housing on the reservation. This also solidified local banking
and investment management relationships. Where tribes choose
the option to maintain an in-trust status within the Federal Gov-
ernment, there is a need to ensure that the fiduciary responsibil-
ities are carried out by the trustee and that expert consultation is
made available to tribes for financial planning.

In summary, we strongly support the rights of tribes to make de-
cisions on policies and guidelines affecting the management of
their funds and the need for the BIA as trustee to carry out its re-
sponsibilities to provide communication, technical assistance, and
accurate and regular reports to the tribes.

Therefore, we request support for the tribal ad hoc committee to
continue the work they have begun. The process used by the 37
tribes to provide leadership and direction to the BIA could serve as
a model for future tribal participation and decisionmaking.

We also request Sulipon for the five recommendations made by
the ad hoc Committee Interim Management Group.

Thank you for this opportunity to present our testimony.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Parker follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF FIRST NATIONS FINANCIAL PROJECT
BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENT, ENERGY
AND NATURAL RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS

MAY 20, 1991

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

On behalf of First Nations Financial Project, {FNFP), thank
you for this opportunity to present testimony on the management
of Indian Trust funds.

FNFP is a non-profit American Indian economic development
organization established to assist tribes achieve economic self-
sufficiency and to decrease their reliance on federal programs,
We provide technical assistance in the areas of finance,
business, marketing, and reservation development strategies.

Some positive actions have occurred since the beginning of
this series of over sight hearings to review and monitor the
BIA’s management of the $1.9 billion Indian Trust Funds, but
there is still much to be accomplished.

In past testimony, we have emphasized the need for trust
fund management to 1) address the needs of the beneficiaries,
tribes and Indian individuals and 2) ensure that the tribes’
economy derives direct benefit from their trust dollars. These
are still our concerns. However, today our testimony will focus
on some of the options we believe c¢an be used to reach these
goals; and the need to continue the tribal participation process
bequn by the 37 tribes in the Phase I Audit and Reconciliation
project.

FNFP began asking the BIA for more tribal invoivement in
trust management as early as four years ago, and have continued
to support efforts such as those of the 40 member tribal Ad Hoc
Committee and six member work group.

Specifically, the process we support for continuing to
monitor the BIA’s responsibilities for tribal and individual
Indian trust fund accounts is to allow the affected tribes to
caucus and select their own leadership group who will provide
tribal input, and report back to the affected tribes.
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The 37 tribes who organized and used this process for
tribal participation in the management of their trust funds
showed what can be accomplished to correct serious long standing
problems in an ineffective trust management system.

Too often the BIA's interpretation of tribal involvement is
to inform tribes of their decisions after they are made. Many
of these decisions fail or are not responsive to tribal needs.
Even information of major decisions and policies are slow to
reach tribes and Indian people.

0 Prior to the first contract with Mellon Bank, there was
no tribal input - the contract failed.

¢ The BIA again made the decision to contract with Security
Pacific without tribal input and again the contract
failed.

¢ In the development of the current Request for Proposal

" for auditing and reconciling trust fund accounts, there
would still be little or n¢o tribal involvement had the
37 tribes not organized teo form an AD Hoc Committee as
mandated by the Congress.

This Congressional mandate began a process of tribal
participation in decision making and policy setting for tribal
trust fund management.

The Ad Hoc Committee’s six member work group often took a
strong leadership role in defining the RFP and contractor
requirements that would protect the rights of the tribes and
individual Indian beneficiaries. This team o¢f six brought
tribal expertise in finance, accounting, management and
leadership to assure that procedures and polices developed would
be responsive to the needs ¢f the tribes and individuals
involved.

In only six months after the tribal Ad Hoc committee began
to organize there has been more progress made to resolve key
issues than in the four years of cur requests to the BIA.

The Ad Hoc Committee continues to work on critical issues
such as how to deal with "lost interest™ and "overpayment of
interest”™. Their neXt objectives will focus on examining long
term changes needed in the trust fund management system. We
look forward to the implementation of changes that offer a
variety of options to tribes and individuals for managing and
investing their funds.
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Qur organization encourages tribes to take control of their
tribal trust funds, whether their decision is to take their
funds out of trust or to maintain the trust relationship.

We have developed three conceptual alternative models for
the management of tribally-controlled trust funds.

Each management model may be adapted to varying levels of
financial sophistication, experience, and capability for control
and management of trust funds.

1. The In Trust Model- similar to the current system, but
with an explicit trust document which defines the trust
relationship to clarify the trustee’s responsibilities
and ensure the rights of the beneficiary are carried out.

2. The P.L. 93-638 Model- where a tribe contracts with an
investment advisor to administer specific or all parts
of the management of the investment portfolio.

3. The Cut of Trust Model- where tribal trust funds are
removed from federal trust and the tribe has total
control over investing and managing their funds.

Qur previocus work with tribes such as the Saginaw Chippewa
Clearly shows how trust funds controlled and managed by a tribe
can be used to atcomplish resgervation economic and program
goals. Using the ™out of trust®™ model developed by First
Nations, the Saginaw Chippewa tribe developed and implemented an
investment plan after gaining control of a $10 million dollar
land claims settlement. Working with First Nations, Saginaw
conducted research, invelved the community, and expanded the
financial management capacity of the Tribal Council and key
tribal staff. Their decision to invest locally led to financing

and constructing new housing on the reservation. This also
solidified local banking and investment management
relationships.

The "P.L. 93-638" and the "out of trust® model gives the
tribal and Indian trust fund the advantages of the laws and
regulations that govern private trust management, such as the
1940 Investment Company Act and The Securities Act of 1933.
Fiduciary responsibilities for investment advisors are clearly
spelled out in these acts and have been tested by the courts.

For tribes who chose the option to maintain an "in trust®
status within the federal government, there is a need to 1)
ensure that the fiduciary responsibilities are carried out by
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the trustee and 2) that expert consultation is made available to
tribeg for financial planning.

Tribal trust funds should be wmanaged according to the
accepted reporting and consultation standards followed by
private sector investment managers. Tribes and individual
Indians, as beneficiaries of the trust, have the legal right to
substantial involvement in setting investment objectives for
their funds and alse to assure that updates are available at
daily or periodic intervals, With out a proper reporting system
and involvement in setting investment objectives, tribes have
little or no control over their trust funds.

The BIA should assist tribes with on site technical
assistance and financial consultation which could aid tribes in
developing management systems to make well informed investment
decisions, With this type of management in place a tribe would
then be able to develop an investment portfolio which would be
tied to the tribe’s short, medium, and long-terlm cash needs,.
Without such systems, a tribe is operating in the dark, and
canhot maximize investment opportunities.

In summary, we strongly support the right of tribes to make
decisions on policy and guidelines affecting the management of
their funds, and the need for the BIA, as trustee, to carry out
its responsibility to provide communication, technical
assistance, and accurate and regular reports to the tribes.

Therefore, we request support for the Tribal Ad Hoc
Committee to continue the work they have begun. The process
used by the 37 tribes to provide leadership and direction to the
BIA should serve as a model for future tribal participation and
decision making.

We also request support for the five recommendations made
by the Ad Hoc Committee Interim Management Group.

Again, thank you for this opportunity to present testimony.
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Mr. SYynar. Thank you, Ms. Parker. First of all, let me commend
you for the help you are giving the tribes. I think it is making a
difference.

As I told Ms. Cobell, your recommendation will obviously be
given serious consideration b]); this subcommittee. I think that all
of you are unsatisfied with the Bureau of Indian Affairs manage-
ment and supervision of the trust funds, that is pretty safe.

Ms. CoBELL. Yes.

Mr. Synar. I think it is probably safe to say that you think the
interests of the beneficiaries who you represent today have not
been really adequately represented in the process; is that correct?

Ms. CoBELL. That is correct.

Mr. PETERSON, Correct.

Mr. SyNar. Why don't you tell us briefly about the experiences
in helping the Bureau's efforts with respect to the request for pro-
posals on phase I of the audit and reconciliation project for the
Indian trust funds. Do you think your participation or the tribal
participation helped the process?

Ms. CosiLL. I think it helped it significantly. When we initially
started our meetings with the Bureau and the GAQO and congres-
sional staff, it was difficult to feel that the% felt we were credible.

I think that has been a problem with the Bureau in the past.
They think that tribal personnel are not credible people and that
we have also been excluded, so when we were involved in the meet-
ings, we were able to get some good input and I think I would like
to have Mike Petersen talk a little bit about some of our specific
involvement.

Mr. SyNar. What I am more interested in knowing, and I am
going to get to Mr. Petersen on some questions, is there a lesson to
be learned here from that, do you think, Ms. Cobell?

Ms. CosiLL. Oh, yes, I think there is a good lesson to be learned,
and that is that the Bureau cannot continue to ignore the tribes.
The tribes do have competent, experienced personnel, and that we
can no longer be ignored. I have heard throughout all of this testi-
mony that these trust funds are the Indian people’s money, and
thﬁv have to have the input of the tribal p&ople.

r. SYNAR. Mr. Petersen, GAOQ mentioned that all the changes to
the RFP that were necessary, do you agree with Mr. Steinhoff that
those changes would have failed had you all not participated?

Mr. PETERSEN. Yes, I firmly believe that without the tribal par-
tic?ation and persistence, and I guess expressing our frustrations
and them not listening to the tribal people, would have prohibited
the Bureau from making any further changes.

I am sure as gou recall, they initially were going to issue an RFP
in February 1990. In fact, they advertised it, to do an audit and rec-
onciliation and were told by tribal people that that could not be
done by a major CPA firm l‘;ecause they won’t have the independ-
ence to attest to their own work.

It took a GAO opinion in April, right before your hearing in
April 1990 to convince them of that. In September 1990, when the
tribes got together in Albuquerque, NM, we were informed that
this reconciliation would not include any calculation of imputed in-
terest for earnings that were not generated by the funds that were
on deposit.
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Five days later, your committee, as I recall, got the testimony of
Dr. Brown under oath that this would be included in the reconcilia-
tion process. The stop-gap measure for monitoring this time and
materials contract, when we raised that in November, in a meeting
with GAOQ, the initial reaction of the BIA was that they couldn’t
meet all the time, they would have to get going on this.

We were trying to assist them to recognize that it is going to
take some close supervision and management of this time and ma-
terials contract to ensure that money is not squandered by the con-
tractor, and they don’t flounder around when, in fact, there may be
answers readily available or some direction that is needed.

Yes, I think it has been imperative that the tribes be involved in
this and continue their involvement.

Mr. Synar. It is not like the private sector where if you don’t
like your investment advisor, you simply take your business else-
where. You don’t have that option, do you?

Mr. PETERSEN. We haven't so far.

Mr. Synar. OK. Is it fair to say, Ms. Cobell, that you believe Con-
gress must act to create additional options for management?

Ms. COBELL. Yes.

Mr. SyNAR. Ms. Parker, you too?

Ms. PARKER. Yes.

hMg. SYNAR. Those recommendations kind of follow those, don’t
they?

Ms. PARKER. Yes.

Mr. SynaR. We need to ask Ms.—is it Sue Lara? Is that you? You
are from the Jicarilla Apache. Will you answer a couple of ques-
tions for me?

Ms. Lara. Sure.

Mr. Synar. I understand that your tribe has established direc-
tion information linkage to the oil and gas producers doing busi-
ness only on tribal land. Could you explain that for us?

Ms. Lara. OK. The Jicarilla Tribe determined that there were
inadequate information filtering down to the tribe from not only
MMS, but their predecessor, the USGS, and in order to fill that
void, decided that at the tribal expense, they would create their
own gystem.

They informed all oil and gas producers on the reservation that
they needed to send information directly to the tribe in addition to
sending it to MMS. And through processing that and creating the
computer programs necessary to give us our own information anal-
ysis on those systems, we are able to now control through tribal
personnel——

Mr. Synar. So you get a complete set of statements on produc-
tion and royalties paid from each company on your land, correct?

Ms. LARA. Yes, we do.

Mr. SyNaR. Then you check those figures by statements you re-
ceive from MMS and BIA months later, correct?

Ms. Lara. Yes.

Mr. SyNaR. Now, when BIA and MMS report the production of
royalty numbers for that same period, do those numbers jibe with
the producer’s numbers?
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Ms. LarRA, One thing we found is they are consistently about 3-
months late, and then in addition to compensating for that factor,
there is also some——

Mr. SYNAR. Are they higher or lower?

Ms. LarA. There are generally some that we can’t find.

Mr. SYNAR. So you know if the numbers they are reporting to
you versus the ones that the companies are higher or lower?

Ms. LArA. Generally lower.

Mr. SYNAR. Generally lower. The time lag is about 3 months?

Ms. LARA. Yes.

Mr. SYNAR. Mr. Petersen, you represent the Red Lake Band of
Chhi&)pewa Indians, correct?

r. PETERSEN. Yes, I do.

Mr. SynaR. Could you tell me whether the Red Lake Band had
settled all its claims against the Indian Trust Fund and the BIA?

Mr. PeTERSEN. I was reading through the fax you received Satur-
day from the Bureau of Indian Affairs. I was surprised to see that
we are down to the final stage of that settlement and it is down to
$687,000.

1 was appreciative to learn that today, but I somewhat dispute
those figures and the closeness of the settlement.

Mr. SyNAR. When the subcommittee visited the BIA’s Albuquer-
que Office of Trust Fund Management on March 26 of this year, we
received a list of claims against the Indian Trust Fund as of that
date. That list did not include any claim by your tribe, the Red
Lake, so in as far as it applies to the Red Lake Band of Chippewa
Indians, is that list accurate?

Mr. PeTeERSEN. No. I believe you brought that up in September
1990 in your hearing, and you were reminded that Red Lake was
omitted from the list furnisl{ed you at that time as well.

Mr. SynaR. Mr. Peterson, the other Mr. Peterson.

You are not related, are you?

Mr. PETERSON. We used to work in the same accounting firm, be-
lieve it or not.

Mr. PETERSEN. But please don’t hold that against me.

Mr. PETERSON. I guess only—I was just curious on this contract
that was let, are you folks as optimigtic as the gentleman from the
inspector general is that this is going to actually get done and you
are going to have the final analysig given the contract that was let?

Mr. PETERSEN. As I understood it, Mr. Richards was referring to
the Bureau'’s efforts in correcting their appropriated fund account-
in% and converting to the Federal financial system by October 1,
1991. 1 also heard testimony to the fact that the accounting for
trust funds is at a higher level and should have a more—greater
sense of urgency, but 1 am seeing a lot of effort devoted to account-
ing for the Bureau’s funds.

e are still trying to get this ad hoc committee funded and orga-
nized and recognized by the Bureau. I think the reconciliation to
the extent practicable and what can be accomplished will get it to
a point in time for a certain account, but as you know, Mr. Peter-
son, there are some of those accounts we are going to have to go to
plan B, whatever that may be, because the records are missing, un-
available, and in such a state of disarray that I don’t want to mis-
lead anyone into thinking that each one of those 300,000 accounts
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or 2,000 tribal accounts that are owned by 254 tribes, I don’t want
to convey to anyone that we are going to correct every single bal-
ance.

I think it is the best shot we have, but of greater concern, as Red
Lake experienced, we had audit reports covering 16 years done
through March 1984, and the Bureau said in Federal district court
that he had to review them for accuracies, and today we are still
awaiting those adjustments.

We have to ensure that they are recognized by the BIA and ad-
justments are made and that no more erosion takes lp]ace by dump-
in%{it back into the same old system that can’t handle it.

r. PErERsON. I don’t know who can answer this, what is the
size and the length of the contract? How many people do they have
working on this phase I, do you know?

Mr. EN. The last we saw the RFP, it was for a major CPA
firm to devote, in the standard time and materials contract, the
Bureau had included an estimate of 54,600 hours per year for the
next 5 years by a major CPA firm to devote to phase I and develop
a strategy for hasel}][.

Mr. Synar. How much do you think that will cost, Mr. Petersen?

Mr. PerERSEN. I don’t know. That sounds like full equipment for
a bunch of people at national CPA rates. We don’t see too many of
those in northern Minnesota because we can’t afford them, but it
is going to cost millions of dollars.

d the thing that really concerns me is that in this reconcilia-
tion directed by the Bureau, which keeps being perceived as the
client, we have to ensure that we have adequate accounting princi-
ples for these Indian trust funds education guidance and control
over what they are reconstructing so that we don’t end up with
some more mumbo-jumbo that is disagreed to by the Indian people.

Mr. PeTtERsoN, Mr. Chairman, this contract lasts 5 years?

Mr. PETERSEN. As | understand it, it has a termination clause at
the expense of the Government, but they are looking at a 5-year
contract, as | understand it, the last time we saw it.

Mr. PETERSON. It just seems to me—I think maybe this is it, if
this is what they are ta.lk.l.nﬁ about, in spite of the fact that it is

ing to cost millions of dollars, there are probably not enough
olks here to get the job done, are there?

It doesn’t seem to me that——

Mr. PeTERSEN. | think no one really knows, Mr. Peterson, be-
cause of the magnitude of the errors, the time involved, I think it
is an attempt to get in and analyze the problems that are confront-
ing them in doing a reconciliation. The missing part of this is the
audit, which is going to have to follow shortly behind—the ac-
counts that can be reconciled, attested to by an independent third
party, that cost is not in here.

Mr. PetErsoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

Mr, SyNARr. Thank you, Mr. Peterson.

Ladies and gentlemen, let me thank f'ou for being here today. 1
guess perseverance and patience is all 1 can ask of you right now.
We are pursuing this as quickly and as hard as possible. We are
ﬁgmg to do our best to work with ﬁou on this, So may your num-

rs multiply and may you have the patience to work with us to
get this done.
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Thank you for being with us today.

Ms. CoeLL. Thank you.

Mr. SynNar. Qur final panel this morning is Dr. Eddie Brown, As-
sistant Secretary for Indian Affairs, U.S. Department of the Interi-
or, accompanied by Mr. Stan Speaks, Acting Commissioner of
Indian Affairs; Mr. George Gover, Acting Director, Office of Trust
Fund Management; and Mr. Jim Parris, Project Manager, Office of
Trust Fund Management.

Gentlemen, if you would come forward. Do any of you all have
objections to being sworn in?

If you would raise your right hand.

[Witnesses sworn.]

Mr. Synar. Dr. Brown, welcome back.

Dr. Brown. It is a pleasure to be here.

Mr, Synar. We will let your entire testimony be part of the
record. At this time we look forward to your comments.

STATEMENT OF DR. EDDIE F. BROWN, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF
INDIAN AFFAIRS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, ACCOM-
PANIED BY STAN SPEAKS, ACTING COMMISSIONER OF INDIAN
AFFAIRS; GEORGE GOVER, ACTING DIRECTOR, AND JIM
PARRIS, PROJECT MANAGER, OFFICE OF TRUST FUND MAN.
AGEMENT

Dr. BrRown. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the com-
mittee. I would like to just summarize briefly my testimony and
present an overview of where the Trust Funds Management Pro-
gram stands since our last hearing.

As you are well aware of, or should be at this time, there are
three major components to the trust fund’s management oper-
ations. That is daily operations, the audit and reconciliation, and
the new systems development.

In addition, there is management and oversight structure over
these activities that provide the leadership and accountability nec-
essary for success. Our efforts since the last hearing have focused
on both long and short-term measures that improve quality oper-
ations, the audit and reconciliation process, and the management
and oversight structure.

In the area of daily operations, among the most important ac-
tions we have taken is to complete all but one automated interface
that link the existing trust fund accounting, investment, and re-
porting systems. These interfaces will greatiy facilitate regular
monthly auditing and reconciliation of the accounts and reduce
substantially the amount of duplicate data entry that is the source
of many of our accounting errors.

In addition, we have taken actions to complete the consolidation
of the trust funds accounting and investment offices into the Office
of Trust Funds Management, hired new staff with all accounting
positions filled by people with full accounting degrees, provided
over 400 hours of training to 28 trust fund management staff mem-
bers, obtained the service of an investment management advisor,
implemented new disbursing procedures and initiated a new depos-
it and a centralized disbursement project.
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In the area of audit and reconciliation, we have awarded a con-
tract to Arthur Andersen & Co. for the audit and reconciliation of
trust funds accounts.

This is a major step and we expect field audits of accounts of the
37 tribal and IIM accounts at three agencies to begin in June. In
addition, we have formally requested that the inspector general’s
office certify the audits upon their completion.

In the area of management and oversight, we are in the selection
phase of the Director of Trust Funds Management position. This
position is the key for providing the daily, extensive leadership and
accountability that is required for developing a trust funds man-
agement program that satisfies the Federal financial management
requirements and meets the needs of account holders.

We plan to augment the resources for the Director through a
core management team, a group of key specialists in the area of
daily operations audit and reconciliation and new systems develop-
ment. In addition, in the President’s fiscal year 1992 budget pre-
sented in February is a request for $4 million for administrative
management improvements.

These funds will be used to provide immediate financial support
for major BIA administrative improvement projects as they arise
rather than having to wait for the next budget cycle or transfer
funding from other accounts.

The two major projects currently underway are financial man-
agement and trust funds management. Now, I am very pleased
with the contributions to the audit and reconciliation request for
proposals provided by the tribal ad hoc committee.

I have found tribal input equally critical to the BIA’s reorganiza-
tion task force as well. 1 look forward to expanding a close relation-
ship with the tribal and IIM account holders in regard to future
direct,lilon and the shape of the Trust Fund Management Program,
as well.

Mr. Chairman, this past year, while I agree that progress has
been frustratingly slow at times, I have seen a commitment of
human and financial resources to improving the administrative
performance of the BIA that I believe is unprecedented.

This commitment is reflected not only in terms of program areas
such as financial management, trust funds management, the future
property management and procurement, information resource
management, but also in terms of support from the Department
and from the Office of Management and Budget as well.

There is no doubt in my mind that the Bureau will emerge
stronger and far better able to meet its administrative responsibil-
ities in the future. Now this concludes my summary, Mr. Chair-
man.

I will be happy to answer any questions from you or other mem-
bers of the committee.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Brown follows:]
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Statement of
Dr. Eddie P. Brown
Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs
before the
House Environment, Energy and Natura) Resources
Subcommittee
of the
Committee on GovernNment Operations

May 20, 1991

3o00d morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee.
Accompanying me today are Mr. Stan Speaks, Acting Deputy
Commissioner of Indian Affairs, Mr. George Gover, the Acting
pirector of the Qffice of Trust Funds HManagement and key staff from
our Trust Funds Hanagement and Accounting Offices.

Today, I am pleased to discuss with you the progress that we have
made in the area of trust funds management sipnce our September 23,
1990 hearing before this Subcommittee. Our plan has been to proceed
oh two levels simultaneously. In the short term, we are designing
and implementing improvements to our daily operations. Por the
longer term we are putting in place a foundation for the more
comprehensive, large-scale activities that ultimately will result in
a trust funds management system that fully meets the financial
management concerns of both the Federal Government and the tribal
and Individual Indian Money {IIM) account holders. All of the
activities te date contribute toward strenthening leadership and
‘ccountability in the trust funds management program.

specific actions taken since the last hearing include:

OPERATING FPLAN

o The Bureau of Indian Affairs {(BIA) developed a general strategic
outline within which to accomplish its cobjectives. This ocutline
breaks the trust funds management program inte three main
areas: daily operations, audit and reconciliation and new
systems development. All three of these areas are brought
together under the pogition of the Director of Trust Funds
Management. In addition to the consolidated and augmented Trust
Funds Management staff to conduct daily business, the Director
will supervise a core managment team that provides expertise in
each of these areas and whose full-time task will be to design,
develop and implement improvements in each area.

ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW AND QPERATIONS

o The Department of Interior approved the organizational framework
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for the Cffice of Trust Funds Management in November of 1990,

At this time 31 of the 46 positions authorized for the Office
are filled by transfer or new hire. A move to new quarters with
the capacity for the consclidated office is pow complete. All
of the new accountants hired have full degrees in accounting.
The Director position has been advertised, applicarions have
been received, and a selection will be made Once selected, the
new Director’'s main objective will be to develop and implement a
scrategic action plan. The plan will be developed in
collaboration with the Department’'s newly established Management
Improvement Oversignt Committee. The plan will be a
comprehensive strategy designed to address all areas of Trust
Fund management including development of a new system.

s RAINING

In an effort to strengthen the management capabilities of the
new Office of Trust Funds Management staff, over 400 hours of
training have been provided for 28 individuals since the last
hearing. The training has focused on enhancing the capabjilities
of the staff in management, computer applications, and project
management., The Office of Trust Funds Management staff provided
training to all 12 Area Qffice trust funds operations staff in
the area of performing automated reconciliations for IIM
accounting tranactions., We anticipate this automated activity
will improve the accuracy and efficiency of the reconciliacrion
process.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ADVISOR

The Office of Trust Funds Management has obtained the services
of an investment management advisor from U.S5S. West through the
Private Sector Council, a non-profit organization established to
provide Government agencies a source from the private sector for
advice on enhancing efficiency. We will meet regularly with
this group over the coming year.

AUD RECON ATION

I am pleased to announce that Arthur Anderson and Company was
selected by the BIA on May 10, 1991, to perform the audit and
reconciliation contract for phase I of the overall project to
audit and reconcile all trust fund accounts. With this
salection, we are ready to commence the audit and reconciliation
process of accounts back to the earliest date practicable. The
contractor will meet first with the Ad Hoc Committee, and by
June 10, 1991, have reconciljiation teans reporting to
Albuquerque for training. We plan to have field work commence
June 24.
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TRIBAL AD-HOC COMMITTEE

Since the last hearing. the BIA has participated in $3iX sessions
#i1th the Tribal Ad-Hoc Commitree, which represents the 40 tribes
involved in the phase I audit and reconciliation process. These
se3zions. i1n which the General! Accounting Office and
Congreasional representatives were involved, were eXtremely
constructive in the development of the Reguest for Proposals
(RFP} for the phase I aydit and reconciliation cohtract award.
As 1 have found in working closely with tribal leaders in the
BIA Reorganization Task Force, tribal perspectives are
absolutely necessary for the development of a shared visior for
the program. BIA intends to work cliosely with all of the 2237
tribes with tribal and IIM accountholders in the future planning
and activities of the trust fund management program,

INVESTHMENT INTERFACE PROJECT

The Office of Trust Funds Management has developed a new system
for investment operations to automate data entry for the
accounting, investment portfolioc reporting and collateral
reporting systems. This enhancement is dramatically decreasing
the complexity of reconciliation associated with data entry to
the multiple systems and reduces substantially the duplicate
data entry that characterized the old system. All but the last
module of this system is in full operation at this time, Wwith
the final module. the interface with the accounting system, in
~he final tfesting stage.

MEW DISBJRSING PROCEDURE

The BIA. as a result of audit findings on cash management
weaknesses by the General Acgounting Office, the Office of the
Inspector General, and Arthur Anderson and Company, has
developed and implemented new procedures to be used by all
disbursing sites. The new procedures, issued May 7. 1991,
provide for greater separation of duties at the various Area and
Agency Offices disbursing the IIM funds. The new procedures
alsc upgrade security procedures for Treasury Department check
stock and the disbursing agent signature plates at all
disbursement sites.

NEW DEPOSIT PROJECTS

On October 1, 1990, the BIA initiated a new procedure requiring
all deposit sites to telefax coples of the depogit tickets for
trust funds to the Office of Trust Funds Management in
Albugquerque on a daily basis. This procedure enables the trust
funds to be invested and monitored on a current hasis, and will
increase the interest earning capacity of the trust funds
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deposgits.

CENTRALIZED DISBURSEMENT PROJECTS

o In February. 1991, we initisted the Centralized Disbursements
Project. The objectives of this project are {(l) to accrue the
interest float to the account owner upcon whose account the check
was drawn, {2} to include in each check payment envelope an
Explanation of Payments (ECP). {J) to enhance the accounting for
trust payments by providing a copy of the related check
register, and {4} to track outstanding trust fund checks. The
BIA conducted two meetings with representatives from all Area
Offices and the Tribal Ad-Hoc Committee in Albuquerque to define
the requirements for the RFP. After review by the BIA, tribal
ard General Acccunting Office officials., we plan to solicit
proposals in late June. The projected implementation date isg
December 1. 1991.

The actions taken since the last hearing reflect our commitment to
fundamentally change the way «we manage the trust fupnds program. We
have accomplished a number of short term gcals that strengthen daily
operations, internal c¢entrels., audit and reconcilation and cash
management. We have also completed a number of the foundation
actions necesssary for major lenger-term changes in the three basic
areas of the program. With the changes we have made to date, and
the changes we are making in the future, we are fundamentally
improving the PIA's management of trust funds.

Thig concludes may prepared statement. I will be pleased to respond
"o any questions you may have.
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Mr. SYNAR. Thank you, Dr. Brown.

Mr. Bettenberg, you came in late. Do you have any objection to
being sworn in?

Mr. BETTENBERG. | have none, no.

[Witness sworn.}

Mr. SyNaRr. Dr. Brown, as the subcommittee has discussed with
the BIA in our last three oversight hearings, there is a proviso that
was included in the fiscal year 1987 Supplemental Appropriations
Act and four subsequent Interior appropriations measures prohibit-
ing the transfer of trust funds under a management contract to
any private institution until the Indian Trust Fund accounts were
audited and reconciled.

Are you aware of that proviso?

Dr. BrowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. SYNAR. Dr. Brown, as of today, how many Indian Trust Fund
accounts have been audited, reconciled, and certified pursuant to
these provisions?

Dr. BRowN. None.

Mr. SYNAR. None in fiscal year 1987, none in fiscal year 1988,
and none in fiscal year 1989, and none in fiscal year 1990, now
none in fiscal year 1991. Is that correct?

Dr. BRowN. Yes.

Mr. SYNAR. Between our oversight hearing on April 24, 1990, and
our oversight hearing on September 25, 1990, between just those
two dates, what substantive actions if any, did the Bureau under-
take to comply with these directives?

Dr. BRown. We have taken a number of——

Mr. SYNAR. Between those two dates. Is it true that you sent a
proposed plan for audit and reconciliation to the appropriations
?g%r;xittee on June 13, 1990, but received no answer until July 23,

Dr. BROwN. That’s correct.

Mr. SyNaRr. Since that plan was approved, we have made some
progress, have we not?

Dr. BrowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. Synar. All right. on Friday, September 21, 1990, you held a
national meeting of the 37 largest tribes and representatives of the
IIM account holders for the three agencies, correct?

Dr. BRowN. Yes. :

Mr. SyNar. What actions have been undertaken to comply with
the congressional directives between our September 25, 1950, over-
sight hearing and today’s session? .

Dr. BROwN. Let me have Mr. George Gover talk specifically
about that.

Mr. GovER. In that time we did submit an action plan of short~
and long-term action items to be taken to comply with congression-
al directives. One item, as you know, that ca a lot of concern to
this committee was the contract with Security Pacific at that time.

Since that time we have terminated that contract, and there has
not been the fallout that everyone expected. It terminated on its
own terms. In addition, during that time period we have done an
RFP for the reconciliation of the trust fund accounts.

A selection has been made for a contractor, although the formal
contract has not been awarded at this time. We are currently be-

51-769 - 92 - §
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ginning our planning on when we would have the first meeting and
training session with the tribal representatives that are going to be
involved in this particular contract.

Mr. SYNAR. So it has really taken 5 years for you all to act posi-
tively on the directives from Con , and after 5 years BIA just
this month signed a contract for the actual work and only on phase
1 of that work.

Is that a pretty fair summary?

Mr. Gover. That would be—~that is a summary.

Mr. SyNarR. Thank you. Now, at our last oversight hearing, BIA
testified under oath that the first IIM account statements from the
trust fund audit and reconciliation project would be in the hands of
the account holders by May 1991.

Obviously, that date has slipped. What is your current estimate
of when IIM account holders will be getting their first reconcilia-
tion statements?

Mr. Gover. We are expecting our first statements to be issued in
the fall of this calendar year.

Mr. SyNar. All right,

Now, the completion date is still May 31, 1992, right?

Mr. Gover. Completion for all the——

Mr. SYNAR. Yes, phase 1.

Mr. Gover. Yes, phase 1, that is our estimate at this time.

Mr. SYNar. Now, do you think both phases of the trust account
and audit and reconciliation project will be completed? When do
you think they will be?

Mr. Gover. That was strictly a target date. It was based upon
our knowledge at the time, expecting to increase our knowledge as
we began the actual process.

At this time I would say that we will not meet that date, but I
think we will have gathered significant data with which to make
some informed decisions on how we are going to proceed.

Mr. Synar. Both phases are supposed to be completed, by your
estimates, by September 1996. Is that correct?

Mr. Gover. Yes, sir.

Mr. SYNaAR. So it will be fiscal year 1997 before the trust fund
audit and reconciliation project is completed; is that right?

Mr. Gover. That is an educated guess at this time.

Mr. SyNAR. That is fine.

Iglr ]‘?Bro“m, where does this effort rank in terms of the BIA’s pri-
orities?

Dr. BrowN. It ranks very high, sir, it's up there along with our
accounting, along with a number of other management issues
within the bureau.

Mr. Synar. If it is a high priority, like you just stated, do all
high priorities take 5 years to get to this point?

Dr. BRowN. No, sir, and I think it is important, though, to under-
stand what haﬁpened in those 5 years that clearly a direction was
set, and it is like putting in motion a large steam ship going out to
ocean.

We had to stop that. We had to get it stopped. We had to turn it
around, and now we are beginning to move it. I think that is im-
portant to understand the process that has taken place in that

regard.
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Mr. SYNAR. Mr. Peterson.

Mr. PerErsoN. If you get these—well, whenever you get these
balances determined, and it seems to me that this is going to
harpen over a period of time, I guess 1 am somewhat uncomfort-
able as to how you are going to keep them in balance. It seems to
me by the time you get to 1997 you will probagllf have another
whole problem with the accounts that were reconciled in 1992 that
will be all out of whack bly 1997, and it will take us another 3 years
to get those under control.

ou have some kind of plan on your accounting system so
that this doesn’t happen again once you do get them nailed down
as I;lc_:u go through this process or how is that going to work?
. BRowN. Mr. Gover.

Mr. Gover. Mr. Peterson, in order to meet short-term and long-
term objectives, we do have provisions where we will go into the
current accounting system and make the necessary changes to it to
sustain us until such time as a new trust fund accounting system
or management system is put into place.

Today there has been much talk and rhetoric about the strategic
plan that has been thrown about in this hearing room, and yet in
all the discussions from the IG and the GAQ and the OMB, this
committee and such, no one has really agreed to what direction we
should be goi.nﬁ,lcand the first item in any strategic plan is to have
a goal upon which one agrees and how we are going to get there.

In realizing that, we are taking actions to sustain the current en-
vironment 80 that we do not have a repeat of what has taken place
in the past. We have also put provisions into the reconciliation
process for using electronic imaging where we can capture those
records and once it is done that account balance will be established
here and forever more s0 we will always have that base line to
which we can return.

That is a significant improvement. We say the trust funds have
not been audited in the past, and I think GAO has testified to that
fact. We have gone back, and found that GAQO has audited trust
funds in the past. They have had a number of audits of which they
ap ntly were not aware.

e are going to go back and try to ascertain those records so we
can see how they went about auditing trust funds in the past.

Mr. PerErsoN. Mr. Chairman, just stpeci.ﬁcally, say that, for ex-
ample, Red Lake, you came to finally figure out that they had 1.2
million more than they say they do and they agree to that, say this
summer. What specifically are you doing in 1?l'our accounting
system to make sure that—it is fine to say you have a plan, but
what are you doing?

Have you got a new computer program? What specifically—from
what 1 have heard of your accounting system, 1 have no confidence
in—

. Mr. Gover. Mr. Peterson, let me answer it this way. The activity
In that accounting system is about $700 million that is collected
and about $600 million that is disbursed each year.

_Also, we are investing about $2 billion. There are some deficien-
cies, but the thing hasn’t totally collapsed. People are still getting
paid. Money is moving through that system.

Mr. PeTERSON. You can't tell anybody what their balance is?
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Mr. Gover. We can tell people what their balance is.

Mr. PeTERsSON. Not that they agree with it.

Mr. Gover. Not everyone disagrees, either, Mr. Peterson.

Mr. PeTERSON. I suppose you can find some, but—I guess—Mr.
chairman, the last—what is your position in terms of saying that
you can come to an agreement with different tribes or individuals
or tribes as to what their balances; what is your position about
turning the accounting over to them, allowing them to do the ac-
counting and allowing them to invest this money within certain pa-
rameters and then that would be audited through their regu
process.

Dr. BRowN. Let me respond to that. That is clearly, as we have
held, always been an option, and we still hold it out as an option as
we begin to look at new systems development, how that will oper-
ate, and so forth.

The idea that tribes operating, running their own trust funds is
clearly an option, and as we continue to put new systems together,
that will be looked at and involved with through tribal input.

Mr. PeTERSON. Mr. Chairman, you are not against that idea?

Dr. BrowN. No, sir.

Mr. ?PETERSON. You would be willing to consider that as a viable
option?

Dr. BrRown. Yes, that is still being looked at as an option. As I
said, as we continue to move along with the new gystems, we will
take that into account as well as tribal input as to how that might
best work to ensure that we have an effective system in place.

Mr. PETERSON. It would seem to me, Mr. Chairman, this might be
one of the best ogtions to get the kind of resources you need to get
control of this thing, you may not get that out of the Congress,
whereas you have got all these tribes that have this financial ex-

rtise that can do it, accomplish it, and it might actually work. So

would hope that we could look seriously at that.
BI%L SYNAR. Mr. Goggﬁ, t‘liae new stan ar‘;d of performance for the
is not “not everybody disagrees,” is it?

Mr. Gover. No, sir.

Mr. Synar. Thank you. Mr. Gover, is it the inspector general’s
and the GAQO’s business to do your audits and do your job?

Mr. Gover. No, sir.

Mr. SYNAR. So when you say that these have been audited, they
did it, didn’t they? You didn’t do it, did you?

Mr. Gover. I do not understand the question.

Mr. SYNaAR. Answering his question, you said these things have
been audited. Not by you. Not periodically audited—you are not pe-
r;)odigally auditing this. The OIG and the GAO are doing it, aren’t
they:

r. Gover. I didn’t understand Mr. Peterson’s question to say
that it has been audited.

Mr. Synar. Whether you understood the question or not, your re-
sponse was that you all have been auditing, and the facts are that
you are not,

Mr. Gover. We have also been audited by Arthur Andersen, our
financial statements for the past 3 years.

Mr. SYynaRr. OK, on October 26, 1989, Mr. Richards, who, as you
all know, testified earlier today, appeared before this subcommittee



129

also to report his findings concerning deficiencies in the Indian
Trust Fund management.

A month before that appearance, Mr. Richard’s office had issued
its 32d, I think, audit report in 7 years detailing serious manage-
ment failures in the BIA in the exercise of their fiduciary responsi-
bilities in the trust fund.

Among those findings, Dr. Brown, he reported at the time that
there were a series of investment losses on the Indian trust funds
that had not been reimbursed to the account holders.

Those included a $2.6 million attributed to the fraudulent acts,
$7 million in failed financial institutions, and $2.3 million in other
investment losses, including Farmers Home Administration loans
and nonpayment of interest by credit unions.

Now, Dr. Brown, the Indian trust funds, which are principally
the individual Indian money funds, have been lost, and the appro-
priate account holders were not reimbursed for their losses plus
the related interest income.

Isn’t it true, Dr. Brown, what this inspector general said, and let
me quote him again, “This loss is inconsistent with the fiduciary
and trust responsibility of the bureau.” Is that correct?

Dr. BRoOwN. Yes, sir.

Mr. SYNAR. Dr. Brown, the inspector general told this subcom-
mittee that the prim reason why Indian account holders were
not reimbursed for the losses they sustained as a result of BIA mis-
management is “because the Bureau does not have a formal policy
to reimburse account holders for losses.”

We discussed that at length at our previous hearings. Has the
Bureau yet established a formal procedure to reimburse Indian
Trust Fund losses on investments?

Dr. BrRownN. Yes, gir, a policy has been drafted. It is currently
within the Department and OMB for review. We are waiting to
hear from them.

Mr. SyNAR. It is in draft form, correct?

Dr. BRowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. SyNAR. When will it be final?

Dr. BRowN. We are waiting--that has been submitted to the De-
partment, and we are waiting to see——

Mr. SyNAR. When was it submitted? Was that last week? Could it
be last week? Could it be Saturday? Give us a minute here. When
was it submitted, do you know?

Dr. BRowN. My understanding is that it has been back and forth
a number of times. Originally it was first submitted back in Febru-
ary, and that has been going back and forth.

Mr. SYyNar. Last time it was submitted was last week, wasn’t it,
Dr. Brown?

Dr. BRowN. That is correct, that is what I understand.

Mr. SyNarR. Now, Dr. Brown, as you know, I have introduced
H.R. 1756, which is the Native American Trust Fund Equity Act of
1991, which would require the BIA to investment—the account
moneys require the BIA to pay imputed interest for its failure to
make such investments and to authorize the Secretary to post
claims of IIM imputed interest attributed to BIA’s mismanagement
on those investments.
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Now, when the subcommittee met last, Mr. Gallegos said that
the Department and the BIA had a moral responsibility to repay
losges attributable to BIA mismanagement.

Dr. Brown, are you going to support H.R. 1766 and allow your
moral and ethical obligations to become legal responsibilities?

Dr. BRowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. Synar. Dr. Brown, besides sending the subcommittee a tele-
fax on Saturday, May 18, 1991, what steps has the Bureau taken to
comply with the inspector general’s recommendations regarding in-
vestment losses.

Dr. BRowN. Mr. Gover.

Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, based on the recommendations of the
IG, one is that we have put in place a separate custodial function
within investments to begin to track those records to ensure that
we have received what in actuality we had purchased. Those
records would no longer have the opportunity o be lost as reported
back about 8 to 10 years ago.

That was an important correction to be made. In addition, we
have put in place within the Office of Trust Funds Management
the capability to begin a centralized place to track those losses
when losses are identified.

Previously, as you know, the trust fund management was scat-
tered throughout the Bureau in various locations. There was no
centralized location. We are now developing that capacity, as you
noted, on your trip to our offices. I think that is a very important
step that the Bureau has taken so they can adequately manage
trust funds.

Mr. SyNar. Dr. Brown, the inspector general has stated that the
Bureau and the De ent’s past responses to this problem have
been inadequate. Now, based on the evidence before this subcom-
mittee, what assurances do we have that your latest efforts are
anythblg;ék'?wre than just an attempt to get this subcommittee off
your

Dr. BRowN. 1 think there are a number of thi gir. Just for
- one, looking at the focus on BIA management and commitment
not only within the Bureau level. As you well know, bureaus can
have all good intentions unless supported by the Department and
the administration for the resources to draw upon not only mone-
tary but technical resources, et cetera, can be lacking, and can se-
verely limit.

One of my strong positive points, I believe, there is that we have
been able to mold together a very strong direction for the improve-
ment of the management of the Bureau of Indian Affairs that we
have developed not only in our 1992 budget to identify funds to
begin the internal management and focus on the Bureau that be-
comes more than just putting plans together, but the idea is that
we are now talking about bu and commitment of resources.

We have formed an oversight improvement committee, cochaired
by myself and a member of OMB which meets regularly. Mr. Hod-
soll from OMB and 1, as well as the Assistant Secretary, John
Schrote, as well as a number of other individuals serve on that
committee.

That committee will also be enlarged to include Treasury, GSA,
and a number of other departments to begin to take a look to
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ensure that not only are we agreeing with what the objectives are
at all levels, but also that we are putting together a kind of man-
agement team that is necessary and that we can draw upon the re-
sources necessary, and I mean departmentwide, not just within the
Bureau, but departmentwide to draw upon resources for technical
assistance, support or whatever is necessary. I think you can see
that is impressive.

Mr. SyNaR. That all is fine. That interagency was just done last
week, wasn't it?

Dr. BRowN. No, sir, it was not.

Mr. S¥NaRr. Formal organizing.

Dr. BRowN. It was done in January.

Mr. SYNAR. It was formally organized last week?

Dr. BRowN. No, we have met three or four times with that over-
sight committee.

Mr. SYNAR. The problem I am having after this period of time is
every time you come up here, you talk about steps, you talk about
promises, you talk about initiatives, you talk about oversight, you
talk about committees. I am talking about performance. That is
what I am interested in, results.

Dr. BrRowN. Well, we have outlined a number of results, I think,
today, in my testimony, of things we have accomplished. We have
indicated our plan to move forward on that as well.

Mr. SYNaR. Have you implemented a policy to reimburse victims
of the fraud and management bureau?

Dr. BRowN. No. A policy has been drafted.

Mr. SyNar. When specifically will you have that policy for those
losses? When will that draft become a reality?

Dr. BrowN. To give you a specific date other than we are work-
ing with the Department and OMB——

Mr. SYNar. Will you seek legislation to reimburse the victim for
their losses?

Dr. BrowN. We are looking at a number of options. As I talk
with the administration and OMB, it is impossible for me to indi-
cate what would be the full agreement.

Mr. SYNaR. In September 1989 the inspector general reported
that the Bureau’s policy was not to notify the account holders of
losses. What evidence can you provide today that such a policy has
been abandoned?

Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, we have been in contact with our
area offices and our agency offices.

Mr. SYNAR. Have you actually notified anyone?

Mr. Gover. Yes, gir, we have.

Mr. SYNaAR. How many?

Mr. Goves. I signed a couple of memos myself within the last 6
months. We have given instructions to agencies in areas to do the
same thing,

Mr. SYNar. Will you supply that for the record?

[The information follows:}
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UN. ED STATES GOVERNMENT
memorandum

Aeting Director, Cffice of Trust Funds Managemant

April 8, 1991

Notifieation of Loss of Intevest Earnings-Uinteah and Quray Tribs
{Triba ¢ &87}

Phoenix Araa Director
Deputy Complasiconsr-Indian Affairs

Thie i3 to¢ provide for the record informatioh regerding a lose of
interest sarnings to the above noted Triba.

The sctual investment was & deposit into the TLKU Fedsral C-edit
Union, San Francieco, California on March 22, 1984 in the amount of
$89000. Tha investment is racorded as 2 terwm deposit, 269 days to’
matura March 26, 1985, at an intarest rate of 11.50¢ on a 365-day
basis.

The BIA was notified by the ILWU Credit Unlon on maturity that tha
daposit was copeidered to be a ghare deposit and as euch was
eligible only for dividends based on profits. The Credit Unicn
said that profits were not wsufficient to declare a dividand for
that pericd seo nc sarnings ware included when the principel was
raturned to the BIA at maturity. The snount of aarnings which was
axpacted but not reacelved was 510, 347.16,

Tha BIA ovar tha lagt saveral years has made aTJuments to recsver
earnings to the Credit Union as wall as tha National credit Union
Adpinistration without euccsss. The situation was again recentiy
reviewed by the Intarior Sclicitor's Office to determine whether
sny hope remains that we might rCecover sarnings for all invoived
Tribes, and if not, what the opticns might be, Ne final
dat;rmination has baen mads, The impact teo the Triba le as
follows: .

Wi-vig

Criginal shortage of emrnings- $ 10,347
Compounded sarnings at an averags interest i? -
rate of §.344% through December 31, 1990~ 6,242 T E
- L Z
Total $ 16,583 E
This figure increases at approximatsly $3.65 per day, ® §
7]
The Phoanix Area Director ia heredy requastsd to plesse notifyédg
affacted tribe of this mitustion. We smphagize that the situs L2

if now under review, and optiohs ara to be developsd ragarding
recovery. If any further information is desired, pleawe contact me
at (FTS) 474-349%6,

B g 18
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UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

memorandum

m:- April 8, 1991 /%9
LY T

ArThon. Acting Director, Offlce of Trust Punds Management Zza

wusagT,

o

Correction to January 7, 1991 Memo Concerning Lose of Interast
Earnings.

hi-T1
Albuquerque Area Director

Deputy Copmissioner-Indian Affairs

The January 7, 1991, memorandum referenced above coptained
information about 1o8s of intarest earnings to two tribes.
unfortunately, the information relating to the Ute Mountain Ute
Triba was inceorrect. None of the Ute Mountain funds were involwved
in this sitvation. The Albuguergue Area Director is requested to
advise the Ute Mountalin Tribe, and convey our apologies for this
error. If there any questions about this, please call thig office.

The information relating to the Southern Ute Tribe (#750) atands as
presented in the January 7 memo.

§liaged PV T
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i -';:-,_1?4 ‘552.7;: _

jAnalysis-ciosure of vao |
[\mley Ficst Feosral 687 !
! I
iAmoum uninsured at date of 9€,843.45 |
1eIosure, an 14, 1883
! |
1
iaarnmgs i tungs invested ‘
o Sept 30, 1982 a1 12.88% 744777
iBaiance at Sept 30, 1983 104,291.22 |
Earnings It invested 1
during FY 1984 q! 10 .582% 11.013.24 i
1Balance a1 Seot 30, 1984 115,308.45 |
]If investes to Jan 31, 1985
a1 1£.,355% 3.990.90
{Batance &, Jan. 31, 1985 119,297,358
[FOIS pavment rageived Jan 31 25,328,909
|Baiance afar paymen! §3.9568.26
i invested 1c Sept 30, l
1585 21 10.355% &§472.27
Saiance s’ Sept 3¢, 1545 140,435.63
_lifimvesied 7Y 85 at 8.452% 8.498.86
| |Balance anSent 30,9986 1 il '108,834.48
i investad FY 87 41 7.404% 8,085,569
Balance:at:Sept'30;1987 i {-117,000.00
it invasted to Abg 2, 1988
al 7.700% 7522735
,{Batance’ mc!udmg’imeres:

against ctaims

Balance at August;z 1988

€3,048:39°

If invested to Juiy 28, 1989

at 5,503 3,467,20
B2lance At July 28, 1988 56.515,80 |
Additonal FOIC interest

oaymant rec’'c July 28, 1988 22.03C.13
Baiance sher july 28 payment - | .34 485.47
lit invested 1o Sept 30, 1585

la: 8.803% 3.035.78
tBaignce & Sept 30, 1989 - 37.521.22
{1 invested Y 90 a1 £.735% | 3.277.48
'Salance at Sept:30. 1990 - 40.798.70
Daily accumutation it

investad at 8.733% 2.76
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[Témes tor aCsempanying spreaoshesi-analysis of ciosure of
|valiay First Federal Savings and Loan, E! Centre, CA

Note 1. The analysis anempts 1o show what could have teen
earned It the uninsured fungs had been rsturned at time of
glosure.

Note 2. All interest rates used are the annual averages for
total funds in tne regular BlA investmant program. FY 1880
raies were ¢sed 1o caiculate amount of gaily incraase sincs
Sept. 30, 1990.

Note 3. All payments received were from the FDIC as g resuit
of liquication of the assets of the {ailed institution. AS
spreadsheet shows, and the attachad lstter confirms, the FDIC
liquidation receipts were enough to pay additional interast,

30 {otal amount recoversd was mora than the amount cliaimed,

Note 4. Shaded areas in the spreagsheet are labeied
rbalance”, and represent what the balance wouid have basn at
that point in time if the funds were available and had been
routinely invested by BlA, less actual FDIC payments against
the outstanding claims.

Note 5. As soon &s the funds waras identified as being
uninsured, a glaim was filsd tor the {otal amount.

Note &. This anaivsis in no way acknowiedges or a¢mits
liability for the potantial earnings not realized. The

question of fiatility and reimbursamaent is being addressed by
the intsrior Solicitor's Office. At the same time, the Qffice

of the Assisiant Secretary- indian Afairs is addressing the
general policy issue of reimbursement.
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FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LDAN INSURANCE CORPDRATION
AS RECENVER
WESTERN REGIONAL OPERATIONS
5273 Vet Sha Sreel Sule 440

r Lo Angeies, Cadomu 90014
_ ‘ (213) 8237085

July 10. 198%

R vu.iC 53 Meesaver for 7alioy L st Pedeiis 3aviags ang Losd
Deas Sir/Madape:

Cn Jaouary 14, 2983 the Faderal Sevings and Loan lnswrapce Corperation wea
appointed the Receiver for Valley TFirat Federal Savirga  and Loan
Assoclation. ("Valley") pursuagt to Federal Heme Loar Bank Bosrd Resolutico
Ne, B83-28, dated Jazyery 14, 1983,

Tbe DRecelver bes liquidated the majority of the mesets of Valley.

¥ & previously sbould bave recelved dividends totalling 100% of yeour
allowed unsecsred cleln apd/or ealnsured deposit. The Federsl Eome Loan
Bank Board has epproved o fourth liquidating 4dividend representing interest
thet cap be paid aftor the creditors of the ungectired statas Deve been paid
in full. The rate of ioterest 13 establisbad in the priority of creditors
set forth in Resolution No. 8328, deted January 14, 1983, The encloeed
chesk reproseants 70.8% of the total interest due et this polnt. The
distribution., bowever, is ectuelly acn sdditionsl 22.7386% of your olfigins)
slalm smouit,

Tie Reteiver antizipetes fioalizing the liquidstico of Velley by the end of
this year, rmd 4% thet tipe will make s fizal distribution of the essets.

Pleass <all »c if you have any questiomns et the above number, on extension
258, -

VYery truly yours,

PSLIL AS RECEIVER TOR
VALLEY FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION

LA

iera A. Craella
Distribution Coordinstor

Epclosure
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LGYED STATES GOVERNMENT

memorandum

warech L3, 1981
piragser, Cffice of Trust Tunds Managapent

Loss of Tarnings on lpnvescsd Trizal Funds f¢r the Cc.c:ad: 3:varL
vintab and Dursy, abd Fofpa-varox Funds. ; i s
ProenhlX hoep Directar | ; ot
Sacramnenté AXea Directolr
Daputy Zomnisslioner of Indian Afraircs -
This is to documant for the record a sitdaticn invc.v;ns _he Err :
fands noted above in which potential earnings wers affgcrted:= i

Tha funds Tapressnt yninsured depoxing at the Vallay First Fedaral
Savihbgs and Loan of El Centro, Celifernia. Duplicate deposits of
thess funds wers nmade in TRis ipstituticn Deacauss of a Xeypuncs

arrer which caused an incemplate data Bass in the sve*em Uged to
prevent duplicatien. Valley First Fadaral wvas closed by the FSLIZ
en sahuary 14, L983. After all insured deposics wara covared,
$$6,842.45 o1 Coclorado Rivar (tribe # £03), $96,B843.45 of U & o
ftriba # £87), and $1,281.27 of Hecpa-Yurok (tribs # 373) ware
identifimd as not being insured. Claims wera imntdiatnly 2iied for
resovery of <heae funds from liguidatiorn <2 the assezs o7 the
instizution.

A paymant rtapresanting 26.1650% of the claim wvas recaived By the
BIa on January 31, 198%. A purperted Iinal payment, Trepresenting
all ocutstanding principal and accrued interast to gate of cliosing
vas raceived on August 2. 1533. Tha area coffices wers verdally
notified and ware requasted to  mAEKA  apPropriate trival
notifications. No formal notification was issusd at that tima.
Subsegquently, an additional payment wvas Taceived on July 28, L1985,
which was slassified by the Fedaral Savings and Leoan Insuzance
Corporation &3 additional interest which was paid aftar all
unsecured cracditors were paid. A copy of tha ISLIC explanstzien

“latter is  attached. You " wiil note That a Further <Zimai

distribution was tO nava basd Zade, but the Dlvisisan of Trus< Funcs

Invastpents wks advised this weak by the TDIC that no furcher
paynents will be made.

Since all principal and accrusd interess <o date of closure wara
uyltinasaly racoverad, the impact ol this situstion has besn 4he
loss of potancial sarnings vwhils tha funds remained uvprscovared.
An analysia spreadsheet is aztached.

The Cidice sf Trust Funds Managemant is nov working with the 02fice
o <he Secliciter te detarmina lsgal peranmaters of tne losyes
siruation, and to devalop proceduTes £O0T recovery and Teinbursamenz
of losses, when limbility is Xnown. You will be netified of
furiher developmants. Fleasa eansura <That tThe tripas a-e
spacilically notified of tha contents >f this explanation.

/ oL FORW D 18
IMEY, 4B
GRATFeN IO QL
Mrheirg
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~MITED STATES GOVERNMENT

memorandum

Acting Director, Office of Truat. Fuads MHansgement

Japuary 7. 1991

Notification of Loss of Interest Earninga-Ute Mountain end Southern
Ute Tribea

Albuquerque Area Director
Deputy Cowmmi#sioner-Endian Affaircna

Thisg is to provide for the record information regarding a loss of
yoterest rarnings to the above noted Tribes.

The actual investments were deposits into the JLWU Federal Credt
Unioen. San Francisco, Californis on March 22, 1984 in the amounts
of $89000 for each tribe. The inveatments sre recorded as term
deposity, 369 davs to mature*March 26. 1985, at an interegt rate of
11.50% on a J65-day basis.

The B8IA wa9 notified by the ILWU Credit Union on maturity that the
deposits were considered to be ghare deposits and as such were
eligible only for dividends btased on profits. The Credit Union
s9id that profits were not Sufficient to declare a dividend for
that period sc no earniang® were included when the principal was
returned to the BIA at waturity. The swount of earnings which was
expected but not received was 310.337.16 for the Ute Mtn. Tribe.
and $10.347.t7 for the Soythern Ute Tribe,

The BIA over the las: several years ha® wmade arguments to recover
earnings to the Credit Union as well ap the National Credit Union
Administration without succesds. The gituation was #gein recently
reviewed by the Interior Solicitor’'s Office to determine whether
any hope remain® that we might recovery earnings for the Tribes, and
if not, whar the options wight be. No final determination haa been
made. The impact to the Tribes is as feollows:

Original ahortege of eerninga- $ 10,347
Compounded earpnings at an average intereat

rate of 8.544% through December 31, {990- 6,202
Total 3 16,589

This figure incressew st approximataly $3.65 per dsy.

The Albuquerque Area Director i3 hereby requested to please potify
the affected tribes of this asitustion. Ne emphasize that the
situation i3 pow under review, and options are to be developed
regarding recovery. If any further information is desired, please
coptact me at (FTS) 474-3496.

cci: Aasoc Sol for Indtan Affa
areni Duard Barnes
900-Reading File
$3C-Surname ’
JGWELLER:1/8/91

e PR NG 18
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June 6, 1991

Note regarding Sacramento Area,

Area Accounting Officer advises that when the advisory memo was
first received, it was decided to not ask the Superintendent at
Nerthern California Agency to advise the Hoopa and Yurok Tribes of
the memo because there was no actual loss of principal or interest,
and because of the insignificant amount.

It was pointed out that the OTFM memo had specifically reguested
that tribes be notified. Area will forward te Agency immediately.
Area redquested a fax copy of the memo.
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»wMTED ST’:TES GOVERNMENT
memordndum

Qffice of Trualt. Funda Hanasgement

Janvary 7, 1991

Acting Director,

Kotification of Loss of Intereat Earnines-Ute Mountain end Soulhern
Ute Tribes S

Albuquerque Ares Director
flepuly Comwissionwr-Indian Affnira

This is to provide {or the record informaltjon ragsrding 8 loss of
intereal earnings Lo the sbove notad Tribeg.

The sctual invealwents were deposits into the ILWU Federst Credil
Union, San Francipsco, Celifornis on March 22, 198« in the swounts
of $BY900Q for esch tribe. The jinvestwents sre recorded gs Lern
depoxitas, 369 dave Lo mature Karch 26. 1985, st an interest rate of
11.50% on & 365-day basie.

The BIA was nolified by Lhe I[LWNU Credil Union oo maturibty that Lhe
deposils wecre conwldered to be shsre depogllty and &g wuch were
eligible only {or dividends based on profits. The Credil Union
asid that proflits were pobl aufficient to dec!sre & dividend for
that period so no earnings were included when Lhe principal was
returned to the BIA st matuvrily. The amount of earnings which was
expected but not received was $10,347.16 for the Ute Min. Tribe,
and $10,347.17 for the Southera Ute Tribe.

The BIA Over Lhe lasl severasl years has made argumenta Lo recover
earning®s to the Credit Union a8 we}! 83 the National Credit Unioa
Adpinistration without success. The situstion wag egain recently
reviewed by the Interior Solicitor’s QOffice to delermine whether
sny hope remsins that we might recover esrnings {or the Tribea. and
if not, what Lhe options alght be. No final determination has been
mRada. The impact Lo the Tribes igs as follows:

Original shortage of earninge- $ 10.347
Comwpounded exrnings sl an average intereast

rate of B.5441 through December 31, 1990~ 6,242
Totsl $ 16,509

Thig figurs fncresses st sppronfwately $3.65 per dey.

The Albuquerque Ares Director ia hereby requested Lo pleewe notify
the sffected Ltribes of thisa situastion. We emphasize that Lhe
sityalion ia now ynder review. and options sre Lo be developed
regarding recovery, Ir any further informatiaon i9 desired. please

contacl wme a8t LFTS? w7a-3a986,

ces Asmoc Sol for Indian Affa
Aten: Dusrd Barnes
900-Reading File
930-Surnsms
JCWELLER: 1 /8/91

AL FOmA MO 18
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United States Department of the Interior  *° : =3

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
ALBUQUERQUE AREA OFFICE
PO. BOX 26367
mUQUuQUl, NEW MEXICO 071136367
IN NAFLY AEFEA TOI i{t—‘ '! lj\\!II:‘-D
220 - Branch of Administestive 91 FEB 11 1531
Accounting Services AR s
AT R

punts Ut STy
Wil _}; 'aio-l:.w“‘"”

Memcrandum

To. Superintendent, Ute Mountain e Agency
Superintendent, Scuthern Ute Agenoy

From: Ares Dirsctor

Subject! Notjflcation of Logs of Intorest Barnings -
Ute Mountain and Southern Ute Tribes

Pleane notify the tribes regarding the loss of interest sarnings that the
Bureau of Indinn Affairs 1s unable to recover for Lnvestments made in 1985, As
explained in the attached memorandum, the Bureau of Indian Af{airs has
attespted to recover the lost interest earnings in the past and ia still in the
procega of having the gltuatjion reviewed for possible recovery,

Further questions should be dirvected to Mr. George Gover, Office ol YTrust Funde
Maragement., Central Office Weat, at FTS 4T4-3496 or (505) T766-3496.

LY

AN 4 run Director

Attachment
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United States Department of the Interior

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
ALBUQUERQUE ARFA OFCE
PO, BOX 36367
ALBUGUERQUE, NEW MEXICO 971136367

e NEPLY ARFER TG

220 - Branch ol Admindstimtive
Accounting Services

APR 30 19
Memorandus
To: Suparintendent, Ute Hountain Uta Agency
From: Arsa Director
Subjeck: Correction to February T, 1991 Memorarcham Concerning Loss of [ntereat
Barnings

The above referenced memorandum had advised you to notify the Ute Mountain Ute
tribe of the loms of interesi satnings that the Buresu of Indian Affairs was
unable to reopver for lnvestsents sede in 1985, However, you are now requesled
to potify the tribe that the Uts Mountain Ute's tribal trust funde were not
involved in the loms of interest on investments described in the Janvary 7,
19%) wemorandue issuved by the Office of Trust Funds Munsgement. The attached
memcrandum explaing that it was & reporting error on the part of the Office of
Trust Funds Managment and that they do of fer their apologies,

Any questions coocerning this situation shouid be dicwcted to Remons Yope,
Branch of administrative Accounting Servicea, (505) 7G6-J164 or FTS5 474-3164.

- —
= iﬁ/ —
Ares Director

At tachments
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MAR 2 6 1951 T ———
A

Phoanix Arwa Diractor f———

Beeaah of Aceounting Honagemant

M- STRD, T

-

[YP—

Losz of Baralings on Ivvested Tribel Punas fos tre Uolurede Hives,
Ui=tan ol Sumiy, 1.0 Focha<Yarak Funds

Superintandary, {ndorulo River Lgoency
Guperiniendert, Ulntab sand Ourey Agancy

Trust Purndgse “anagewent 1in  Alpuquargue hes pPressmiad the Paseniz ares
Qif1ce with tie awttechad brief Jasaription of the progeecings that have
souurtwd 31nca tha closure of Valley Piret Federal Savings ant Lean of EL
ventro, Califernia,

Per OiTice of Vrurt Funds Masapapent peguest, 0lofue noLilyY the tridas of
tha ic?orgation contrinsd fn the gttacues sxplanet:or.

Wa w1ll awep you 3oresat of any addilienal inToerpatlonh, W5 't DeuQher
avaslpnle Lo us, ‘

Diwect any inquires you may nava regaruing this satter o
Datty S. CGarlarnd, Phosnix 4rea dgcounting Offlcer, &t FU8 261-07B0 or

commarcia) (602) 37¢-5780.
1) Lims J. Bewns Ir-

Attacoment

JLORD biSh

a
,a

L)
(7]

Lol T

Lat




144

APR 29 191

Phoenix Ares Ditector

Kotification of Loge o Interest Tarningm-lUintab and Duray Tribe
Supcrintendent, Uintab aml Onesy Agency

Atached is 8 mepurandus reccived from Lhe Office of Trust Funds Mapagesenl ip
Albuyuerque which expleing the circumstancee of an ydentifled lows of interest
carnings ob inveated trout fulkda of the Uintskh and Guray Tribe.

The O Ftee of Trast Fuivls Mansgement hsr sulmitted t)is matter to Lhe Inturior
Solicitor's affice for s determinatinn end will Leep ue informed of Aoy fuiure
developmente.

Please notily 1he Uiptah 2od Dyray Trike and provide thes with o copy al the
stluched weporandus,

Ir ron bave any gieet iond colcerning thie matter please contact Rutty Gerisnd,
Arew actouoting Gfficer at commercial 602-379-8780 or PTS 261-6780.

(SD) WILSON BAZSZR, TR

Attachment
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Tribal Operaticns
(602) €69-7114 MAY 21 199t

Mr. Danial! Eddy, Jr., Chairman
Colorado River indian Tribes
Route 1, Box 23~B

Parker, Arizona 85344

Dear Mr, Eddy:

Enclosed 1is a copy of a memorandum, with attachments,
from the Phosnix Area Office dated March 26, 1991,

A brief description isx given by the Bureau of Indian
Affairs, Office of Trust Punds ManageRent, on tha
investnent of trust funds for tha Colerado River Indian
Tribes in the pow defunct Vallay First Federal Savings

and Loan of E1 Centfo, Callifornia,

Although the principal amount was recoverad, we are
saeking to recover the potantial iaterest asount the
investment could have earned from January 14, 1963 to
Septamber 30, 1990, Pleasa note the last twe pages,
analysis narrative sxplanaticn and numerical analysis for

the Tribes.

If there are any Juestions, please ccatact Mr. Teyloffatg
the number listed above. ~ =
“w ¥
Sincerely, - =7
= xRH
2 ORY%
s/Ernest T. Moran = 2T
.
Superintendsrnt

en~lasuras
cer PAS Trikal Gove, 3srvicas
PAD Rccounting. Atts: Ms Betty Garland
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RECEIVED
JUNO'5 1991

BUREAY OF INDLS N ATFAIRS
Reservetion Programs  Apn 1 [ 199; DIV. TRUST FUND INVESTMENTS

Mr, Luke Dunﬁan, Chalrman

Uinsah and OQuray Trisal Businees Coamitise

Dear Mr. Duncant

Attached is & brief description of the proceedings that have
ocecurred tince the Ciosure of Velisy Firet Federsl Savings
angd Laan of El Centre, Callfornia, mhich was provided by the
Proenix Area Branch af Accounting Managemens. If yoyu have
any questions, pleess contect us,

Sincerely,

Superintendent

Attachmant

€2t DBusiness Commlittes reabers (&)
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RECEIVED
JUHOS 1991

~BUREAU CF HIDIAN ATFMRS
DY, TRUST FUND INVESTMENTS

Reservation Programe

MYREAL )

M. Luks Duncan, Chairman

Uintan ang Duray Tribsl Business Goanittew

Dear Mr. Dumcam

Attached are copies of memeramda fraa thw Acea Office and the
Office of Trust Funde Manageament in  Albuquerque, New Mexico,
giving netification orn lose of intarest earnings on !mvesteca
trust Tunde for the Ute Indian Tribe.

According to the Area Dirsctar's memorandum, the matter has
bewn referred 0 the Interiar Soliciter's Dffice for

determindtion, We will kear vouw informed on Tubura
developments,

If you hava any guestions, please contact us.

Sincerely.

Superintendwnt

Attachments

Miatchees: 05/03/9)
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1

pl 4L

Judy Knight-Frapk, Chairpereson
Ute Mountain Ute Tribe

General Delivery

Towacc, CO 81334

Desr Ma. Knight-Frank

In our February 22, 1991 memorandum We informed you of a loss Of interset
esarnings on & Tribal investment in the amount of $10,347.16. According
to ths snclosed copies of memorandur from the Area Director and the
Acting Director, Office of Trust Funds Management, the reported loes was
a reporting error oa the part of the 0ffice of Trust Punds Management.
The Ute Mountsin Ute's Tribal Trust Punds were not involved in the loss
of interest on investmants deacribed in the January 7, 199! memorandum
ifggued by the Office of Truat Funds Mansgament.

The Office of Trust Funda Managewent convey their apologies for the
arror. If you have any quesetions, please contact Ramona Yepa, Branch
of Admiuistrative Accounting Services, (505) 766 J164.

Sincarely,

78/ Arthur L Blazer

Hk:?rf Superintandent

Enclosures
CLLAMEMAN: 1c:05/14/91

File: Izvesthents
10102-T1

Docs Inveet
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dranch of Operatliona v%%?‘?'

Judy Knight Fronk, Chairparson
Ute Hountain Utn Tribe
General Talivery

Towaoe, Colorado B1334

Dear Ghalrperson Kanight Prank,

Enclosed for your information are coples of memorandum from the Acting
Area Director dnted February 11, 1991 end the Acting Director, Office
of Trust Funds Monngement repardiog a losn of iptarcat emrninge an
Trihal lnveatmant. Aczcording t0 rhe memorandum the amcunta of asrnings
vhich was axpected but not recolved vae $10,347.16 for the Ute Mountain

Utm Tribe,
I{ you need further information, plceme contact Mr. George Gaver,

0f{1ce of Trust Funda Monogement, Central Office Wost, et (505)
7663466,

faf Toby Touiagsen
. :MT"\'G Superintendent
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FE8 2.6 B9

Mr, Leonard C. Burch. ¢Chairman
Southern Ute Triba

P.O. Box 737

Ignacio, €O $1137

Daar Mr. Burch:
Inclosed 18 a copy of correspondence received from the Office of

Trust Management through the Area 0ffice regarding. "Notliflcatlon
of Loss of Interest EBarnings - Ute Mountain and Bouthern Ute
Tribes”, Any quastiona the tribe may have mey be directed to Mr,

George Gover, Office of Trust Punds Management, Central office

Wast, &t telaphona nO. (505)786~-3496.

dincately,
3 LonotiEny
Syperintandant
Bnclosure
102-T1 supt
Chrono

£3Candalaria:mb:02/26/91
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DureAU oF INDIAN AFFAIRS RECE,VE’)

SACRA
2800 Corppy W A OFFICE JUN 131591
Sacramento, CA 98828 BUREAY 0F wypr- “eag

DIV, TRUST Fymp INVESTMENTS

fYurok Treansition Teaw
519 3Ird Street, Sulte 2!
Eureks, Californis 95521

Dear Yurok Transition Teaw:

Enclosed is a memorendus, vith sttecheents, from the Director, Office of
Trust Funds Nansgement regarding closure of Vealiey Firet Federsl (1/83),
recovery of invested funds, and loss of potentis] sernings pending recovery
of thase funds.

The Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporstion (FSLIC) closed the
Yalley First Federsl Savings ard Loan in Jeanusry 1943, At this tiwe
Roopa/Yurok funds vere invested vith this institution. Although the total
invested furds plus intareat (91, 261.67) vas recoversd dy August 1938, snd
additionsl interest ($262.34) vas received in July 1989, there resains the
situation of the loss of potentisl esrnings during the recovery period.

The Office of Trust Funds Ransgesent is vorking vith the Office of the
Solicitor to determine legslity of the recovery of potential losses and
relsbursssent of thase losses. You will be notified aas this process
progressse.

Sincerely,

/8/ Michael R. Smith

wmws Area Director

Enclosures

cgt Chief, Division of Trust Funds Investments
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UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

memorandum

March 13, 1991 J‘
RREa =y £ ! I

Director, Office of Trust Funds Management ASsr 4 .,.'“‘i‘*——
ASET .. . TT———

Loss of Earnings on Invested Tribal Funds for the Colnrado RlVéTJh*i:
Uintah and Quray, and Hoopa-Yurok Funds.

s

rhoenix Area Directar . T
Sacramento Arga Diregtor: T
Deputy Commissioner of Tndlan Affairs T
E

- -
This is to document for the tecord a situation invelving the three
funds noted above in which poteéntial eatrnings were affected,

The funds represent yninsured deposjits at the Valley First Federal
savings and Loan of El Centro, California. ODuplicate deposits of
these funds were mpade in this institution because of 3 keypunch
errot which caused an incomplete data basa in the system used to
prevaent duplication. Valley First Federal was closed by the FSLIC
on January 14, 1681, After all insured deposits were covaered,
596,843.45 of Colorade River (tribe Ff 603), 596,843.4%5 of U & O
{tribe # 687), and 51,261.27 of Hoopa-Yurok (tribe # 575] were
identified as not being insured. Claims were immediately filed for
recovery of these funds from ligquidation of the assets of the
institution.

A payment representing 26.1650% of the claim was received by the
BIA on January 31, 1985. A purported final payment, representing
all cutstanding principal and accrued interest to date of closing
was received on August 2, 1988. The area offices were verbally
notified and were Treguested to make appropriate tribal
notifications. No formal notification was issued at that tine.
Subsequently, an additional payment was received on July 28, 1989,
which was classified by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation as additional interest which was paid after all
unsscured craditors were paid. A copy of the FSLIC explanation
latter is attached. ¥ou will note that a further final
distribution was to have been made, hut the Division of Trust Funds
Invastments was advised this week by the FDIC that no furthear
payments will be made.

Since all principal and acc¢rued interest to date of Clo=yrs were
ultimately recovered, the impact of this situation has been the
loss of potential earnings while the funds remained unrecaovered.
An analyslis spreadsheet is attached.

The Office of Truat Funds Managerment is now working with the office
¢f the Solicitor to determine legal parameters of the losses
situation, and t¢ develop procedures for recovery and reimbursement
of losses, when liability is known. You will be notified of
further developments. Please ensure that the tribses are
specifically notified of the contents of thls explanation.

QEFTHOMAL FOWM MO, 15
Y. 188}

QA PR G0 IR 10 S
14
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FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN INSURANCE CORPORATION
AS RECEIVER
WESTERN REGIONAL OPERATIONS
523 West Sixth Stwet, Suw 440

Los Angeles, Callfornia 0014
(213} 6237055

St v e e rapraars Cary

July 10, 1989

RE: FSLIC as Receiver for Yallay Fiist Pederal Savings and Loan
Dear Sir/Madame:

On January 14, 1983 the Federal Savingw and Loan Insurance Corporation was
appointed the Receiver for Valley First Pederal Savirgs and Loan
Associstion, {*Yalley“) pursuant to Federal Home Loan Bank Bogrd Resclution
No. A43-28, dated Jaouary 14, 1983,

The Receiver has liquidatad the wmajority of the assets of TValley.

fou previously should have received dJividends totalling 100% of your
allowed umsecured clsim andfor uninsured deposit. The Federal Home Loan
Bank Board has spproved a fourth liquidating dividend representing interest
that can be paid aftéer the creditors of the unsscured status have been paid
in fuil. The rate of interest is established iz the priority of creditors
set forth in Resclution No. 83-28, dated January 14, 1983, The enclosad
check represents 70.8% of the total interest due at this point. The
eistribution, however, is sctually an additional 22.7386% of your origiual
clsim apognt.

Tha Receiver anticipstes finalizing the liquidation of Talley by the end of
thie yoar, and at that time will make & fiosl distribution of the sssets.

Plense call me 1f you have any questions at the sbove pumber, on eéxtension
288,

Very truly yours,

PSLIC AS RFCEIVER FOR
VALLEY FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION

Y AL

Plera A. Casells
Distribution Coordinator

Enclosure
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Notes for accompanying spreadsheet-analysis of closure ot
Valley First Federal Savings and Loan, El Centro, CA

Note 1. The analysis attempts to Show what could have been
earned if the uninsured funds had been returned at time of
closure.

Note 2. Ali interest rates used are the annual averages for

total funds in the regular BIA investment program. FY 1990
rates were used to calculate amount of daily increase since
Sept. 30, 1990.

Note 3. AN payments received were from the FDIC as a result
of liquidation of the assets of the tailed institution. As
spreadsheet shows, and the attached letter confirms, the FOIC
liquidation receipts were enough to pay additional interest,

so total amount recovered was more than the amount claimed.

Note 4. Shaded areas in the spreadsheet are labeled
*balance”, and represent what the balance would have been at
that point in time if the funds were available and had been
routinely invested by BIA, less actual FDIC payments against
the outstanding claims.

Note 5. As soon as the funds were identified as being
uninsured, a ctaim was filed for the total amount.

Note 6. This analysis in no way acknowledges or admits
liability for the potential earnings not reafized. The

question of liability and reimbursement is being addressed by
the Interior Solicitor’s Office. At the same time, the Office

of the Assistant Secretary- Indian Affairs is addressing the
general policy issue of reimbursement.
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Analysis—~closure of Colo River vuaso Hoopa-Yurok
Valley First Federal 603 687 875
Amount uainsured at date of 96,843.45 96,843.45 1,.261.27
closure, Jan 14, 1983

Earnings if funds investad

to Sept 30, 1983 at 10.88% 7.447.77 7.447.77 97.00
Balance at Sept 30, 1983 104.291.22 | 104,291.22 1,358.27
Earnings if invested !

during FY 1984 at 10.562% 11,015.24 11,015.24 143.46
Balance at Sept 30, 1984 115,306.45 115.306.45 1,601.73
It invested to Jan 31, 1985 . i

at 10.355% 3,990.90 3.990.90 51.98
Balance at Jan 31, 1985 119,297,356 |  119,297.35 1,863,711
FDIC payment received Jan 31 25,339.09 25,339.09 330.01
Balance after payment : 93,958.26 $3,958.26 1,223.69
It invested to Sept 30,

1985 at 10.355% 6,477.37 6,477.37 84.36
Balance at Sept 30, 1985 100,435.63 | 100,435.63 | - 1,308.05
if invasted FY 86 at B.462% 8,438.86 8,498.86 110.69
Balance at Sept 30, 1986 ‘108,934.49 [ - 108,934.49 | - . 1,418.74
if investad FY 87 at 7.404% 8,065.51 8,065.51 105.04
Balance at Sept 30, 1987 - .. - 117,000.00 |- 117,000.00 |. .-.1,523.78
If invested to Aug 2, 1988

at 7.700% 7,652.75 7.562.75

Balance including interest -

at August 2, 1988

952

275

“Final® (100%) FDIC Payment
against claims

71,504.36

Balance at August 2, 1 288 .
after FDIC payment

It invasted to July 28, 1989

at 8.803% 3,467.20 3,467.20 45.16
Balance at July 28, 1989 < 55,515,860 56,515.60 22 736,08
Additional FDIC interast

ayment rec’d July 28, 1989 22,030.13 22,030.13 262.38
Balance after July 26 paymeant - .| 34,485.47 | 34,485.47 | "~ ~473.67
If invested to Sapt 30, 1989
at B.803% 3.035.76 3,035.76 41.70
Balance at Sept 30, 1989 ... | - 37,821.22 |+ = 37852122 - 515.36
if invested FY 90 at 8.735% 3,277.48 3,277.48 45.02
Balance at Sept 30, 1990 - - | . :40,798.70 40,798.70 i 560,38
Daity accumulation if
invested at 8.735% 9.76 9.76 Q.13
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Mr. SyNAR. At the subcommittee’s hearing on October 26, 1989,
and on April 24, 1990, and on September 25, 1990, I asked you, Dr.
Brown, whether the Bureau established a policy to notify account
holders for their losses. At those three hearings, the same answer
was uttered. The answer was ‘“no.”

In September 1990, Mr. Gallegos, representing Secretary Lujan,
affirmed the Department’s moral responsibilities in that area and
promised the Bureau was working on establishing a policy of noti-
fying account holders.

Today, tell me, Dr. Brown, when did the BIA begin work on ful-
filling Mr. Gallegos's promise? Did it begin in January, but actual-
ly start taking place last week?

Dr. BRown. No. I think it began after the last hearing here.

Mr. SyNarR. When did it actually start going? Last week?

Dr. BRowN. There was an original draft around January or Feb-
ruary—

MS; SyNar. When did it finally—resuits, performance? Last
week?

Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, since I was party to that, we had put
it into final, in January, it was getting ready to be released. The
GAO decision came out that knocked everything into a cocked hat.
We had to go back and begin that review again, because of the
GAO decision.

Mr. SynarR. The GAO decision was in March, Mr. Gover. How
could that knock it into the dirt in January and February? It
doesn’t derail because of something that happened in March.

Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, the Solicitor’s office has their own
timeframes and agenda. We do pursue that aggressively. Within
the Department, we have no control of how they do their day-to-
daﬁwork.

r. SYNAR. Mr. Brown, under your management, if the audit of
the accounts revealed the money was owed by an account holder to
the trust fund, isn’t it safe to assume the Department would notify
'l:h‘?? account holder and attempt to recover the money rather quick-
y?

Dr. BRown. Yes, sir.

Mr. SyNaR. Isn't that what happened on the Red Lake Band of
the Chippewa Indians, the BIA found a mistake in the Red Lake
Indian trust accounting, operations account, which the BIA decided
was an error in favor of the Federal Government? In response, the
BIA unilaterally acted to remove the money from the Red Lake’s
Indian trust operating account.

Recently, after this subcommittee’s third oversight hearing on
the Indian Trust Fund management during which you were ques-
tioned on the specifics of the Red Lake Band’s case again the BIA,
the $362,000 was transferred to the Red Lake Band. While that
payment does not settle the Red Lakes’ claim against the BIA, it
does return the principal sum at issue that the BIA had taken
away under its control.

Dr. Brown, I am going to ask you once again, can you give this
subcommittee any good reason why the same standard should not
apply in the reverse situation? In other words, why would the De-
Bartment of the Interior not notify account holders when you find

LA owes them money?
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Dr. BrownN. No, sir.

Mr. Synar. OK. I gather then the Bureau has still not made any
attempt to reimburse account holders for their losses, even though
it is not against your policy?

Dr. BrownN. At this point in time, no, we have not.

Mr. Synar. Dr. Brown, how many claims are currently pending
against the Department for trust fund losses attributed to errone-
ous accounting, lost investment interest, fraud or failed financial
institutions?

Dr. BrowN. I answered prematurely on the first question on re-
imbursement—what attempts have been made.

Mr. Parris.

Mr. Parris. The most significant event, where the Bureau did
take action to reimburse account owners of interest, for instance,
and not been funded was as a result of an effort in 1986, there
were some interest, $2 million worth of interest, that had not been
funded properly. We did get authorizing legislation from Congress
and did subsequently distribute those funds.

Mr. SyNArR. There has been one in February, correct, and no
others? Isn’t that correct, there was one in February 19887

Mr. Parris. That is it.

Mr. SyNar. Let's go to the other question, Dr. Brown. How many
claims are currently pending against the Department of trust fund
losses attributed to erroneous accounting, fraud, or failed financial
institutions?

Mr. Gover. We have a listing. It has not been filed. It is a work-
ing document composed of correspondence we had with the Solici-
tor’s offices, contacting all their locations.

In addition, we, on a periodic basis, contact our area and agency
offices to give us a listing where claims have been made.

Mr. SyNAR. Let’s go through that. You provide this subcommittee
with four conflicting lists on outstanding claims pending against
the Department. There are 24 pending claims on one of these lists,
but it does not itemize the losses of the failed financial institutions
because BIA apparently has failed to notify any account holders.

Not surprisingly, one of those lists includes the Red Lake Band
of Chippewa Indians, and it is excluded on the other two. Instead,
on the list, the BIA personally handed me on March 22 in your Al-
buquerque office, the Minneapolis area office is listed as having no
outstanding claims.

In a telefax of just last Saturday, the Bureau put Red Lake back
on its list of potential losses.

Now, remembering what you heard this morning, please tell the
subcommittee which list is correct, the two that included the
claims with the Red Lake Band or the other two, which acknowl-
edge no such claim.

Mr. Gover. The latest list is the correct list.

Mr. Synar. The Saturday list?

Mr. Gover. Yes, sir.

Mr. SyNaR. The simple fact is that after 18 months the BIA has
yet to supply this subcommittee with a full accounting of a current
nun;ber and description of current claims on the trust fund; have
you?

51-769 - 92 - 6
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Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, that—again, that is a working list or
a living list. All we are doing is identifying where there may be
potential claims. We are not validating these claims. These are
claims that have been brought to our attention. They move on and
off this list. We were trying to develop a comprehensive list to
begin to track those losses, so that we can provide accurate——

Mr. Synar. You realize one of the things we asked you for in the
previous hearings is how long each claim had been outstanding.
That is not in these lists, is it?

Mr. Goves. No, sir.

Mr. Synak. You did promise me that, didn’t you?

Mr. GovEer. Yes, sir.

Mr. SyNar. Dr. Brown, in all candor, I am very disappointed
once again. It has been more than a year since the inspector gener-
al reported those losses and made some very simple, prudent rec-
ommendations to reform this aspect of the Indian trust manage-
ment. It is incomprehensible to this subcommittee that the Depart-
ment and BIA have allowed this gross mismanagement to continue.
It is this kind of dereliction of duty that, if it occurred in any other
Federal program, would have long ago had civil and criminal
action filed against it.

Here we are in the fourth hearing to impress upon you the seri-
ousness of this matter, and I am not sure we are getting anywhere.

But we are finally getting somewhere, because in the 11th hour
it arrived in our office on Saturday, when all of us were here with
baited breath waiting. I want to assure you that we are going to
scrutinize every one of these until we get this down.

Dr. Brown, in our previous three oversight hearings, the subcom-
mittee expressed concern on the BIA's management of the Security
Pacific National Bank contract; is that not correct?

Dr. BRowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. Synag. For us, two of the most frustrating aspects of the Se-
curity Pacific fiasco were BIA’s inability to obtain timely perform-
ance from the contractor and the seemingly endless number of con-
tract modifications and extensions, which were requested by the
contractor and granted by you all at the BIA.

Dr. Brown, do you agree that these facets of the BIA manage-
ment of the Security Pacific were less than admirable?

Dr. BrRowN. From my review of the situation, I found there were
a lot of concerns and issues, but, yes, there were many that could
not be supported.

Mr. SyNar. [ want to ask unanimous consent to enter in the
record exhibit 3. This is a document which includes excerpts from
the request for proposals for the trust fund audit and reconciliation
project that resulted in a contract award of May 10, 1991. A rele-
vant part of this exhibit concerns the milestone dates for perform-
ance contained on page 3 of the exhibit.

[The information follows:]
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Management, vho vill make the final determination
as to the disposition of any contested sdijustaents.

TIME_CONSIDERATIONS & REQUIREMENTS

The following datea will spply unless waived in writing
by the Contracting Officer within 24 hours prier to the
date indicatasd:

Pre~Proposal Conferencs...........s+.:.,February 21, 1991
Propo“l Du. D.teooooo.-oo'lloao'olsl.ooasn ,L\rfh lj, !"91
CoﬂtrﬂctAvlt‘d..--..............--.............. Ha}', 19"1
Initiation of Reconciliations........... ..., .. Yay, 1991
Raconciliations Conmpleted~-Phase I ) . ......... Pay, 19%2

Projection of FPlan for Phase II . NLT February 28, 1992
Exit Conference in Washington, D.C. To Pe arrangsd by
c.0.

Availability of Funds

FY 1991 funds are available to bagin work on Phase 1.
which is planned as a tvwelve month effort to be
inorementally funded with FY 1993 funding. The
Government may sxeroise eoptione for contract
performance up to five yesars. :

Report Raview, Tiaing & Wumber of Copies

The firm will bs required to submit to the relevant
Agency (for I1IM) and Arsa {for Tribal) Office copies of
the reconstructed account statements for any individual
IIM account or Tribal summary statements that are the
rasult of adjustments prepared during tha reconciliation
process. Any accounts, regardless of whathar they are
restated due to errors in prior years, must be furnished
to the relevant Agancy/Area Office to be forwarded to the
account owner. The account statemants and corrasponding
Agency sumnmary statements for IIN accounts should be
finalized and furnished to the designated Agency/Area
office, who will forward the statemants witn any
attachments to the account owners.

19
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Mr. Synar. Dr. Brown, as you will note on that page 3 of the ex-
hibit, this RFP allows the contracting officer to waive any or all of
the contract's time considerations and requirements within 24
hours prior to the date listed for performance. With all due respect
to Arthur Andersen, Dr. Brown, what assurances can you give this
sub%ommittee that the milestones set in this agreement will be
met?

Let me go through it again. Page 3, the contracting officer may
waive any or all of the contract’s time considerations and require-
ments within 24 hours prior to the date listed for performance.
Given your history here, what kind of assurance can you give this
subcommittee that these milestones set out will be met?

Dr. Bkown. Can we have Mr. Parris respond?

Mr. Parris. There are a lot of factors that will impact this con-
tract. We knew when we wrote the final version of the require-
ments that they called for periodic reports by the contractor and
close monitoring by the Bureau of Indian Affairs. In the first 4 to 6
weeks, we expect the contractor to give us their best feeling about
what they are up against as far as the state that they are finding it
in the field offices where they are working and the conditions of
the records, the matter of assistance that they are going to be pro-
vided by the Bureau that they are experiencing.

We are going to have to——

Mr. SYNAR. This could be a 5-year contract, couldn’t it, Jim?

Mr. Parris. Well, that is what we are shooting for, to get it done
within that time period.

Mr. SYNAR. Let's go to paragraph 3—excuse me, the paragraph
on page 3 of the exhibit entitled “Availability of Funds.” It con-
tains very interesting language, too, ‘Fiscal year 1991 funds are
available to begin work on p one, which is planned as a 12-
month effort to be incrementaily funded with fiscal year 1992 fund-
ing. Government may exercise options for contract performance up
to five years.”

What does that last sentence mean, Dr. Brown? Does that mean
the Government retains the option of extending phase 1 of the
trust fund audit and reconciliation program from 1 to 5 years?

Dr. BrowN. No.

Mr. SYNAR. Mr. Gover.

Mr. Gover. That is a standard contract clause.

. Mr.‘? SyYNAR. It does give the extension from 1 to 5 years, does
1t not?

Mr. Gover. This contract has two parts to it—phase 1 and phase
2. So to complete the contract is saying that we need availability of
funds. We cannot spend funds unt:f Congress appropriates the
funds, especially on service contracts. You can only expend funds
for the year for which the service is being ‘>performed.

Mr. SYNAR. Mr, Peterson, any guestions?

Mr. PeTERSON. | just am curious, in 4 to 6 weeks, you are going
to have some kind of an idea of how big a mess this is?

Mr. PARriS. There are various checkpoints in this. There are
weekly written reports required of the contractor. There are going
to be monthly meetings with the partners. Within the 4 to 6 weeks
we are going to have a report, an initial feedback from the contrac-
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tor on their experience up to that point, where they think the pro-
cedures appear to be reasonable.

We also have built in at the end of phase 1 a report summarizing
their experience during that first phase, before we proceed with
the project in phase 2.

Mr. PerersoN. That could be 5 years from now.

When is this 4 to 6 weeks going to be? When is that going to be,
like in June or what?

Mr. Parris. The field work will begin June 24. The clock will
start at that time.

Mr. PerersoN. It will be in August probably before you get——

Mr. Parris, Probably.

Mr. PerErsoN. Mr. Chairman, who can have access to this infor-
mation, these weekly reports and this report that comes out? Is the
al;i 'lg?oc group going to have access to that? Can we have access to
that:

Mr. Gover. Mr. Peterson, also to answer the chairman’s question
earlier, one of the steps we are taking is to provide better contract
management, 80 we don’t end up in the same situation as we did
with Security Pacific; we have developed this working relationship
with the tribal ad hoc committee. Not that it is always a hand-in-
glt;re type of relationship, because at times we have different inter-
ests.

But there is an awareness, and we are working together. We
hope to work with them on an ongoing, day-to-day type basis, and
develop the data, so they can make their own interpretations of
that data and what their expected outcomes of that data will be. I
think that is very, very important.

In addition, we have developed a working relationship with the
GAO staff that has been assigned to us, again, as a result of these
hearings and also with the assistance of Chairman Yates of the Ap-
propriations Committee.

e also have staff being assigned to us from OMB. In addition,
the inspector general has assigned us staff to oversee this effort. As
op to what happened previously, where it was all done off in
one corner by a select group of people, a whole new management
stiaﬁ' will be put in place, a whole new organization has been put in
place.

Mr. Synar. Mr. Gover, to all—with all due respect, that is a good
summary of that. You take that and you are trying to tell us this is
one of your successes. We have forced these people on you because
you are not doing your job. I mean, the inspector general and the
GAO, that is not what we hired them to do. Assigning four over-
sight committee hearings is not what we do for alﬁ.vling. You hold
this out as a success; I think it is an example of constant failure
that it has taken this many different people to come together to get
you to do the basic job you were intended to do.

Don’t sit there and hold that you have a better management
team today because of the following things. The reason you have
any management at all is all these other agencies, which weren’t
squosed to be running your agency, are now running your agency.

am sorry, Mr. Peterson.

Mr. PerERSON. The only question I have, do you have an idea of
how much it is going to cost, his phase 1? :
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Mr. Gover. This initial 5-year contract is a little over $13 mil-
Iion.

Mr. PerersoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Synar. Dr. Brown, you heard the GAO testify this morning
that the BIA had serious training and staffing needs that were not
being met. At our last hearing on September 25, I asked Mr. Galle-
gos, representing the Secretary, whet‘li':er staffing and training were
priorities, and he said ‘‘yes.”

Will you tell this subcommittee that you have enough personnel?

Dr. BRowN. Personnel in regards to trust funds?

Mr. SYNAR. Yes.

Dr. BrRowN. Over the last year we have added to the number
with recruiting. Last year we did not have enough personnel. This
Kear we are moving to fill those positions and are in the process of

aving the majority of those filled. We will continue to do that.

Once those are staffed and carrying out the responsibilities, we
feel at that point we should have sufficient staffing. However, if we
get in and find that there are some other problems and concerns,
that is why we put in the 1992 budget those management improve-
ment dollars to allow us to quickly move and add any that might
be necessary to address the situation.

Mr. SYNAR. I have before me a BIA document concerning trust
accounts at the field level. A document was prepared for meetings
on May 7 and 8, 1991. It indicates that the trust account position at
Aberdeen is vacant and that Aberdeen is, “critically understaffed.”

Dr. Brown, Aberdeen plays a significant role in the Indian Trust
Fund. How can you manage the trust fund properly without ac-
countants at Aberdeen?

Dr. BRowN. You can'’t, sir.

Mr. SyNAR. In my hometown of Muskogee, OK, a trust account
position is vacant. In Navaho, the position has been vacant for a
month. In Phoenix and Sacramento, the position is vacant. Dr.
Brown, when are you going to really do something about this per-
sonnel and stop promising me that something is going to be done?
How can you do the job if they are not there?

Dr. BRowN. Let’s respond to the vacancy positions.

Mr. SynaRr. OK. Let’s go through them.

Aberdeen.

Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, these vacancies occurred because of
promotions of these individuals.

Mr. Synagr. The point is, you can’t do your job unless those posi-
tions are filled, can you?

Mr. Gover. That 18 correct. We need to go back and fill those po-
sitions and recruit competent people who were in before——

Mr. Synar. How long will it take to get one at Aberdeen?

Mr. Gover. It usually takes about 90 days.

Mr. SYNAR. Muskogee.

Mr. Gover. The same.

Mr. SYNAR. Ninety days.

Navaho.

Mr. Gover. The same.

Mr. SyNAR. Phoenix.

Mr. Gover. It would be the same. Phoenix has gone through
about two trust accountants in the last 6 months.
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Mr. SYNAR. That would be 180 days or 90 days?

Sacramento.

Mr. Gover. It would be the same.

Mr. Synar. OK.

Mr. GoveEr. Mr. Chairman, we are additionally looking at those
positions and hoping to retain qualified people. Based upon what
we are working on during this past year, an organizational analy-
sis, we are trying to put additional resources into those positions,
s0 we can retain these people.

Mr. SYNAR. Dr. Brown, since 1982 more than 30 audits have been
performed by the inspector general of the Department of Interior
and public accounting firms hired by the BIA. Each one of those
reports has noted serious accounting and financial management
problems and noted weak internal controls throughout the BIA.

Furthermore, with its first report under the Federal Managers
Financial Integrity Act of 1983, each year the Department of the
Interior has continued to report on serious, long-standing financial
management problems at the BIA. In its most recent report, the
Department of the Interior characterized the entire Bureau as
having a material internal control weakness.

In fact, Dr. Brown, the BIA’s accounting controls historically
have been so weak that Arthur Andersen & Co.’s fiscal years 1989
and 1988 audits were unable to confirm cash balances for individ-
ual Indian or tribal accounts. They highlighted major inadequacies
in accounting records and related systems, and found numerous ac-
counting errors.

Moreover, the report identified 16 material accounting system
and internal control weaknesses.

Finally, in 1989, reacting to the long-term nature of BIA’s mis-
management of the Indian Trust Fund and the BIA over persistent
management failures, you are aware that OMB designated BIA as
a high-risk agency, requiring priority attention. At that time OMB
asked BIA to prepare a strategic plan for corrective action on these
problems.

Dr. Brown, has the BIA prepared a strategic plan?

Dr. BrowN. For the trust funds? No, we do not have a strategic
plan based on the plan we are pursuing. What we have are projects
listed in long- and short-term goals. We do not see being able to
develop a strategic plan of how all of this comes together until we
are able to bring our director and the directors of each of the other
three components I talked about forming as a group. That then
would develop a strategic plan. A strategic plan in that sense has
not been developed.

What we have——

Mr. SynaRr. All you have is an outline?

Dr. BRowN. We have a general strategic outline, yes, sir.

Mr. SYNAR. An outline doesn’t feed the bulldog.

Dr. Brown. It gets us into places we have not even begun to do
preliminary thinking about, how you even begin to structure this
organization.

Mr. SyNaRr. Dr. Brown, not steps, not initiatives, not anything
but performance. That is what I am looking for, performance.
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Simply parroting back to Congress a laundry list of deficiencies
and then providing a noncoordinated plan for corrective action is
not a strategic plan that OMB and this subcommittee want, is it?

Dr. BRowN. No. Nor have we ever stated it as such.

Mr. SyNarR. What are you doing to ensure the balance of the
300,000 Indian Trust Fund accounts remain accurate once the ac-
counts are reconciled?

Mr. Gover. Mr. Chairman, we have put into place an automated
reconciliation program, so that our trust funds accountants at the
area offices can begin to reconcile on a monthly basis the inputs
from the IRM system into the general ledger.

In addition, we have put into place at this pcint an automated
system that ties the various systems together with an automated
interface into the general ledger accounting system,

We have made the trust fund management accounting positions
a high priority, making sure they are adequately staffed and ade-
quately funded so we can retain qualified people. We put an orga-
nization into place—we put a policy analysis group into place that
provides oversight for that, to make sure that those procedures
that we sent to the field are being adhered to.

Mr. Synar. OK.

Dr. Brown, when will the BIA start conducting periodic and
timely reconciliations of all Indian Trust Fund accounts to assure
accuracy of those accounts?

Dr. BRowN. Reconciliation is scheduled to begin on June 24.

Mr. SyNaR. Is that right?

Dr. BRowN. They are supposed to be meeting with the contrac-
tor, in early June for some training. They are actually supposed to
appear in the field on June 24, I believe.

Mr. SyNArR. When will you be able to determine the accurate
cash balances?

Mr. Parris. Well, the reconciliation effort is going to be reconcil-
ing all of the cash deposit disbursement investment activity on
these accounts. As mentioned earlier, there may be records that
are going to be unavailable at times. We can’t anticipate at this
time that we are going to have 100 percent reconciliation. Unless
you can do that and have audited financial statements, we are not
going to be in a position to be 100 percent sure that there are bal-
ances in all of these accounts.

Mr. SYNAR. When? When?

Mr. Parris. We will go into this reconciliation project within the
next 5 years. It is going to take going through these accounts.

Mr. Synagr. I want to see if I have got this right. Is the new
answer to that, when no one disagrees?

When will the BIA, Dr. Brown, be able to assure the account
holders and Congress it has consistently and prudently invested
trust funds and will be paying interest to the account holders?

Dr. BrowN. I think we have some of that capability to begin
right now. Clearly, until we institute a new system and get that all
laid out and to address all the concerns identified by the inspector
general and GAO, 1 think we are going to be working on that. We
can do a certain amount of that now.
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Mr. SYyNaRr. Isn’t it true that the last time the BIA distributed
interest earned on 0il and gas royalty collections to the allottees
and tribal accounts was 1985?

Dr. BrowN. Yes, I am told so.

Mr. SYyNAR. You don’t expect us to have another 6 year gap for
the interest payments, do you?

Mr. Parris. No. The interest related to the oil and gas royalties
is going to be distributed as a result of the petition.

Mr. SYNAR. When?

Mr. PaRRIs. We at this time are in the final——

Mr. SYyNAR. When? When?

Mr. Parris. By October.

Mr. SynaRr. Of this year?

Mr. Parris. Correct.

Mr. SyNaRr. Have you consulted the tribes on this matter?

Mr. Parris. This particular situation involves mainly allotees’
accounts.

Mr. SyNAR. When will the BIA be able to prepare and supply ac-
count holders with meaningful periodic statements of their account
balances?

Mr. PaRrris. We are sending monthly statements of oil and gas
income to the account holders now. It is the installation of pay-
ments, I believe, that you are referring to that would go actually
with the check. We are now in the process of-——

Mr. SYNAR. When?

Mr. Parris. We are looking at January 1992.

Mr. SyNaRr. 1992. All right. That means that the RFP was issued
in July and the contract was awarded, would be awarded in Decem-
ber 1991?

Mr. Pagrris. The RFP for the centralization of disbursements?

Mr. SYNAR. Yes.

q Mr. Parris. We are expecting to have that out within the next 60
ays.

Mr. SYNAR. Have you consulted the tribes?

Mr. Parris. We have met with some representatives.

N_Ir. SYNAR. They are shaking heads back there, Jim. They are
saying “no.”

Mr. Parnis. They attended meetings in Albuquerque.

Mr. Gover. If I may clarify that, we did put together a working
group in developing those requirements.

Mr. SyNaAR. Those tribes were involved in that working group?

Mr. Gover. Yes, they were. There were representatives from the
ad hoc committee. One of the provisions from that was, once that
RFP has been finalized, we would send it back to all the tribes for
their review and comment. That process has not taken place.

Mr. SYNAR. That is what I wanted to hear. It took three ques-
tions to get it, but I got it.

Mr. Gover. If I may add, that particular contract is also going to
resolve another problem we have. There has been much talk today
about not knowing our cash balances. The primary reason for that
is that we bank with the Treasury Department. The Treasury De-
partment will not give us, and cannot independently confirm, what
our cash balances are. We do not even get a monthly check state-
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ment back of what checks have been issued and what checks have
been cashed.

I think, if you visit in Albuquerque, you will see what a long and
cumbersome process it is to go back and research from the Treas-

ury.
ridr. SyNAR. The Treasury does it every month, within 14 days,
for every Social Security recipient. Why can't they do it for you?

Mr. Gover. For reasons of when 1 am not aware they would not
provide that service to us.

Mr. Synar. When will the BIA have a consistent written policy
and procedures for the trust fund management accounting, Dr.
Brown?

Mr. PARRis. It will be developed as a result of the new trust fund
management system.

Mr. SyNAR. When?

Mr. Parris. Within the next 2 to 3 years.

Mr. SyNar. Within the next 2 to 3 years? You want to get it
down even closer than that, Jim?

What about adequate staffing and supervision? When will the
BIA increase the number of full-time staff to perform the tasks
necessary to correct long-standing deficiencies?

Mr. BrRowN. We are in the process of filling those positions.

Mr. Govir. We should have people on board within 60 days.

Mr. Synar. All right.

Dr. Brown, will you supply this subcommittee with a draft of a
strategic plan for correcting the long-standing financial deficiencies
of the Indian Trust Fund?

Dr. BrRowN. Not within the next couple of months.

Mr. Synar. What is a couple of months? Is that 3 months? Four
months?

Dr. BRowN. We will have—as I said, based upon the hiring of a
Director, he will then serve in the organization that we have. It
will be based on his leadership and the——

Mr. Synar. Dr. Brown, I am going to ask you the most serious
question in this hearing. Listen very carefully, and 1 want every-
body to listen to it in your Department.

Will you provide a draft plan by no later than June 1 of this
year? | want a plan on my desk on June 1 of this year.

Dr. BRowN. Sir——

Mr. SyNaAR. We have been waiting 10 years, Dr. Brown. No exten-
sions, no excuses. June 1, will you provide it for this subcommittee?

Dr. BrowN. We will make every effort.

Mr. SyNaR. Dr. Brown——

Dr. BROWN. Let me say this however. I think it is only fair that 1
be able to respond if I am going to commit to a date.

Mr. SyNar. OK.

Dr. BRowN. We are talking, as was discussed here with the tribes
and tribal representatives, of tribal input and tribal involvement.
That takes time, if you work with the groups. We are prepared to
do thlat and committed to do that, and to putting together a strate-
gic plan.

To say we are going to go into a closet and do it immediately, 1
cannot———
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Mr. SyNAR. You bought yourself some grace with that amend-
ment, but not much.

On that same date, Dr. Brown, will you also supply this subcom-
mittee with a complete policy and procedures for notification and
compensation of losses for the Indian trust funds attributable to
BIA mismanagement?

Dr. BRowN. Could you repeat that?

Mr. SyNaR. On that same date, June 1, or at that point after you
have consulted with the tribes and maybe a little longer, will you
supply the subcommittee with complete policies and procedures for
notification and compensation for losses of the Indian trust funds
attributable to BIA mismanagement?
lDr. BrowN. Yes, at the time of the strategic plan, we will supply
that.

Mr. SyNar. Finally, on that date or a little bit longer—and I am
not talking about 3 months—will you provide this subcommittee
with a complete and accurate listing of all claims currently pend-
ing against the Indian Trust Fund? Again, we want to know how
much ie claimed, how long the claim has been pending, and when
that claim arose. So far, your responses to that very simple ques-
tion have been utterly unsatisfactory.

What we have now is more time to respond with greater preci-
sion. Will you provide that?

Dr. BrRowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. Synar. All right.

Mr. Peterson.

Mr. PETERSON. You are doing fine, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. SyNAR. Let me close with this. Dr. Brown, the simple miss-
ing ingredient correcting this long-standing mismanagement prob-
lem at BIA are two words: Leadership and accountability.

What I want to see from you is a concrete expression of how the
Department of the Interior and the BIA are going to take the lead
to make this job get done. I don’t want you to tell me that you are
going to shift the responsibility somewhere else—for example,
'lI_‘reasury. And I don’t want to hear from you that you have an out-
ine.

I want a strategic plan after the 10 years we have been waiting. I
don’t want to hear that you don’t know how many claims are pend-
ing against the trust funds or that you have no policy for reimburs-
ing people injured by your mismanagement.

Think of this exercise as an opportunity to exhibit your personal
leadership, an occasion to perform, an occasion and last chance to
be accountable. Even OMB recognizes there is a crisis at the Indian
Trust Fund. To solve that problem, someone—you, Dr. Brown—
have to be accountable to the individual Indians, to the tribes, to
the Congress, and most importantly, to the taxpayers.

You, Dr. Brown, are supposed to be that person; don’t you agree?

Dr. BrRowN. Yes, sir.

Mr. Synar. That concludes this hearing.

[Whereupon, at 1:10 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
vene subject to the call of the Chair.]
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RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS FROM THE HONORABLE WILLIAM F. CLINGER
REGARDING BIA'S TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

QUESTION 1:

pr. Brown, for the record when did BIA realize that multiple
transfers were not going to be accepted by congress?

Up until that point did you believe that multiple transfers
were an acceptable approach?

If there was ever a doubt, why didn't BIA approach the
Appropriations Committee?

RESPONSE:

The reconciliation plan submitted to the Appropriation's Committee
on June 13, 1990, recegnized that multiple transfers were not
acceptable te Congress., It was hoped that a compromise could be
worked out which would have allewed the implementation of the
Security Pacific Bank Contract, but there was never any doubt that
reconciling all accounts prior to any transfer of funds was
required before the contract could be implemented, Our communica-
tions with the Committee were in the form of proposed plans to
accomplish both the reconciliation and the contract award,

QUESTION 2:

In the past, Arthur Andersen & Co. reported that BIA's
problems stem from: out-of-date accounting policy and
procedural manuals, inadequate training programs, a lack of
experienced accounting supervisors, and understaffed
accounting operations.

What has BIA done to correct these problems?

1) out-of-date policy and procedural manuals?

2) inadequate training programs?

3) a lack of experienced accounting supervisors?
4) understaffed accounting operations?

RESPONSE!

Progress has been made in addressing the needs outlined by the
Arthur Andersen & Co. audit reports. Existing policies and
procedures have been reviewed, and clarifying directives have been
issued to the field. A complete update of manuals has been delayed
as BIA attempted to contract out a significant portion of the
handling of trust funds. It is now recognized that the FFS is not
capable of handling the subsidiary accounting for trust funds, and
it is necessary that the BIA develop or procure a system for the
handling of all aspects of the financial management of trust funds.
In the meantime, the Office of Trust Funds Management has initjiated
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some short term system enhancements such as an automated bid-award
process for the certificate of deposit investment activity, and an
automated interface which eliminates the need for multiple data
entry into the different systems ipvelved in the investment
processing. A task group has been formed to beginh to review the
regulations concerning IIM funds. It is too early to estimate when
this process will be completed.

Several training presentations have been made to field staff
handling trust funds. These have covered the basic accounting
procedures as well as changes to accounting procedures, in addition
to improved reconciliation processes and procedures. A hational
meeting of trust fund accounting staff from the Areas was held by
the Office of Trust Funds Management in May 1991, to discuss the
new directions and changes in procedures. Training has been
provided to each newly hired Area Trust Punds Accountant as he/she
comes on board. Training has also been provided to tribal and BIA
staff in the investment program operation in several of the areas.
This will continue throughout all areas. More formal training
programs will be developed in the near future.

New trust funds accountant positions have been established at each
of the 12 Areas to concentrate on the accounting for the collection
and handling of trust funds. Additional accounting positions have
been established within the Office of Trust Funds Management to
provide policy level oversight to field accounting operations.
Some positions previcusly filled by accounting technicians are now
being filled by professional accountants. These actions will have
a significant impact on BIA's ability to manage the trust funds.

QUESTIGN 3:

I understand you have contracted with Arthur Andersen & Co. to
conduct the reconciliation. What other parties assisted you
in developing the RFP for the reconciliation project and the
terms of the current contract?

How much is the Arthur Andersen & Co. contract?

How long is the contract with Arthur Andersen & Co.?

If the contract goes only partially into Phase II of the
reconciliation effort, could not BIA be "over a barrel® when
negotiating the final contract terms for the remainder of
Phase II of the reconciliation effort?

Please explain how the Federal Government's interest will be
protected in Arthur Andersen & Co.'s reconciliation contract.
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RESPONSE:

Arthur Andersen & Co. was selected on May 10, 1991, to be the
contractor for the initial reconciliation effort for the 37 largest
tribal accounts and the IIM accounts at three agencies. The RFP
was developed in consultation with the Tribal Ad Hoc Committee,
GAO, OMB and Congressional staff. A total of $1.1 million has been
made avajilable for obligation for the remainder of Fiscal Year
1991. It is anticipated that it will require about $2 million for
each additional fiscal year up to the end of the é0-month contract
period.

After Phase I is completed, the reconciliation success will be
assessed and a determination wade as to the practicability of
continuing as originally envisioned. Rather than hkeing "over a
barrel®, it is felt that both Arthur Andersen & Co. and the BIA
will be in a much better position to finalize the contract terms.
All prices have been competitively set as options for each of the
five years.

The BIA as contracting entity always has the responsibility to
protect the government's interest in administering contracts. A]ll
legal remedies are avajilable, up to and including contract
cancellation. BIA*s interest will be maintained through aggressive
contract monitoring and administration. A special project team has
been established and iz working full time to coordinate and wonitor
this contract.

QUESTION 4:

We have heard a lot about trust fund losses, whether they be
tribal or IIM accounts. Many individuals have argued that we
need to reimburse account holders for those losses. However,
there is another side to the mismanagement issue. What is the
BIA's policy regarding cases where the BIA has made
overpayments?

As a matter of equity to the American taxpayers, how will the
BIA address overpayments?

How much money are we roughly talking about for overpayments?
For underpayments, interest losses, and other losses?

RESPONSE:

We believe there would be great difficulty in getting funds back
from account owners who have been overpaid in the past. Aside from
the legal questions such as statute of limitations and making an
individual pay for administrative errors of a government agency,
the funds may not be in account owners possession and therefore
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available for repayment, We will address this issue on a case-by-
case bagis, but an attempt will be made to collect overpayments in
every case,

Major questions of liability need to be answered bafore a definite
total amount for all categories including underpayments, interest
losses, and other losses can be calculated, but the total amount
over a period of years could be substituted. The reconciliation
contract will tell us how much.

QUESTION 5:

Dr. Brown, what are your views and the Department of the
Interior's views regarding reimbureing for IIM account holders
for lost interest?

Would you please provide for the record when you and the
Department have developed an opinion?

RESPONSE:

The BIA has received a Comptroller General Decision dated April,
1991, vhich etates that the government has no requirement to invest
IIM funds, and sc has no liability to reimburse for interest
losses. Even if BIA were liable, there is no reserve fund with
which to make reimbursement.

QUESTION 6:

The General Accounting Office was critical of your failure not
to fill the Director of the Office of Trust Fund Management.
Why has it taken a year to fill the Director (of OTFM)
position?

RESPONSE:

Initially, an SES position had to be secured, the position
advertised, applications filed and evaluated, and a selection made.
While this took a considerable period of time, the conclusion was
that the applicants weren't sufficiently well qualified to make a
selection., Additional time was taken to tighten up the require-
ments, a re-advertisement was made, applications received and
evaluations made. This time a proposed selection has been made and
submitted by the Department for clearance by the Office of
Personnel Management. We hope to receive final approval soon,

QUESTION 7:
According to GAO, you acknowledge the need for a strategic

management plan, but you are not going to move forward with a
strategic management plan until the Director position is
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filled. Why is it important tec have the Director position filled
before developing the strategic management plan?

RESPONSE:

The BIA is develeoping a management improvement plan, in
consultation with Tribal representatives, to address the immediate
needs, It is felt that the implementation of these actions will go
a long way toward correcting major technical deficiencies. A
strategic plan, on the other hand, will be an expression of the
leadership expected from the permanent director who is being hired
to bring new vision to the overall trust management within BIA.
One of the major reascns for creating the position of the Director
of the Office of Trust Funds Management at the Senior Executive
level was to provide for a level of leadership, authority and
competence which had not been directed specifically to the trust
funds issues in the past. It is believed that this person should
be allowed the opportunity, along with the responsibility to
develop his/her own strategic plan under the general policy
direction of the Deputy Commissioner.

QUESTION 8:

As you know, this Subcommittee and the Appropriations
Committee have been supportive of there being a dialogue
between BIA and the tribes, For the record, please explain
what initiatives has the BIA taken to reach out to the tribes
to get their input.

Specifically, did BIA initiate, help organize, or only react
to the information of the Ad Hoc Tribal Committee?

RESPONSE:

It was generally agreed among the BIA, OMB, GAO and congressional
offices that consultation was absolutely necessary to the success
of the reconciliation effort. The BIA helped organize the Ad Hoc
Committee, and has now entered into a formal agreement with the
Inter-Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Funds on joint
activities,

In addition, the Office of Trust Funds Management initiated an
Investment Seminar to be presented in the Areas, in an attempt to
bring more information directly to tribes. Seminars have been
presented in six of the Areas, with the rest to follow this fiscal
year. It is anticipated that these will need to continue as tribal
leadexship changes. BIA has also responded to requests to meet
with tribes or organizations privately to discuss their
investments,
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QUESTION 9:

Are you willing to make tribes an egual partner in the
deciseion-making proceses by continuing to consult with the
tribes on matters impacting the Indian Trust Funds?

RESPONSE:

The BIA endorsed the formation of the Inter-Tribal Monitoring
Association on Indian Trust Funds. We migned a Memorandum of
Understanding with this group on June 18, which sets out the many
areas on which we plan to work with Tribal representatives (see
Exhibit A)}. This was in recognition of the need for on-~going
consultation with fund owners. We are committed to consulting with
the Tribes on the management of Indian Trust Funds.

QUESTION 10:

Looking at the years of mismanagement of the Indian Trust
Funds and the general "vote of no confidence* from the tribes,
how would the agency react if a tribe requested to close out
their trust fund accounts with BIA?

Has BIA ever been approached by any tribes asking to have all
of their trust accounts closed because the tribes believe that
they can do a better job of handling their accounts in the
private sector?

If so, what has been BIA's response?

What legislative authority is needed to provide this greater
degree of self-determination?

RESPONSE:

Several tribes have in fact withdrawn some or all of their
unrestricted funds for the purpose of handling their own
investments. A New Mexico tribe has taken part of their funds out
of trust to invest, but left the majority with BIA. An Arizona
tribe withdraws all funds as received for the purpose of local
management. In the case of unrestricted funds, tribes are fully
able to withdraw them for purposes of tribal management, if they
desire. It is believed that the main reason for the withdrawals
which have been made was the hope or expectation of being able to
receive higher earnings through investments not allowed in the BIA
program.

In the case of restricted accounts, mostly the remainder of
judgement awards after per capita payouts, many times withdrawal is
prohibited by the terms of the distribution plans developed by the
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tribes themselves, In the last several years, Only one tribe from
Montana has made an issue of wanting their funds withdrawn for
their own investing, Either a change in their own plan would need
to be approved by the Congress, or general authorizing legislation
would need to be enacted which would authorize such changes to
tribal distribution plans.

We would endorse such approaches if they reflected tribal self-
determination.

QUESTION 11:

How have you responded to the 1I.G.'s findings and
recommpendations concerning the problems with your general
ledger?

RESPONSE:

The BIA has received from the Department of Interior significant
manpower and funding resources to address the problems surfaced by
the Inspector General. A team of highly competent professionals
has been detailed to Albugquergue, New Mexico to work with BIA
permanent staff in making necessary changes, This team will remain
until they are assured that the system is fully operational,
Additional appropriations to make administrative improvements have
been requested in the 1992 budget.
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MEMORANUIM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE BUREMJ OF INDIAN AFFAIRS AND THE
INTER-TRIBAL MONITORING ASSOCIATICN ON INDIAN TRUST FUNDS

I. Background

The Bureau of Ddian Affairs and same 40 of the tribes with tribdal or
dividual Indian Money (IIM) trust fund accounts have workad sinoe the fall of
1390 on developing technical parametars for a major, multi-year reconciliation
rpeconstruction) and audit of tribal and ITIM trust fund accounts. 37 of these
tribes are included in "phase ane” of the EIA‘3 reconciliation {reconstruction)
and audit effort. The nmature of the project, as well as developing long-range
options or strategic plarning for the future of the trust funds program
roquires these amd other affacted tribes to play an integral role in the
development ard jmplementation of the recorciliation (reconstruction) and audit
process.

These phase one tribes, alang with BIA staff and Cogressional and General
Accounting Office representatives were mambers of an initial Trust Funds Ad Hoc
Grap. These 37 phase one tribes were initially selectad by the Bureau to
serve on the initial Ad Hoc Group an the basis of the holdings of those tribes
and their members in the trust funds accourts administered by the Bureau,
Based on the approval of their tribal goverrments, the tribal representatives
of this A Hoc Group have subsequertly corstituted themselves in a formal
manner as the Inter-Tribal Monitoring Association an Imdian Trust Fuds (the
Association).

The reconciliation (reconstruction) amd auxdit project; the correction of daily
operational weaknesses in the trust fund management process: and the design of
such new trust fundds managemant Systams as may be requited are ocomponents of a
major Departmertal multi-year effort to improve substantially the administra-
tion of the BIA's trust fuxis management program. A <Titical element in the
successful ooampletian of the effort is the cooperative activities of the tribal
ard IIM accoart holders aftectad by this reform.

The tribes oomprising the Association have irdicated their willingness to
mﬂextakeaﬂmdweffom,sﬂmmwm
effort, professional staff time, and mwney in this oollaborative process.
These tribes’ omntributions to developmart of the final RFFO and contract for
tha actual phass ane work are recognized by the Burwau. Building on this past
cooperative effort, the Bumau anxd the Association agres to an approach to
promcte  turther Tribal /BIA caxwultation, plamning, and coordination in order to
ensure a trust funds management progran that fully mests fedaral amd tribal
financial reguirensnts. This Mamcrandm of Understanding is imended to
provide the vehicle for expanded and contimuous cooperative plamning and review
activities between the BIA and the Asacciation.

The BIA, recognizing the substantial wms alveady expeded by tribes of the
Association in working with the BIA, and in fulfilling the pledge of the
Assigstant Sacretary - Irdian Affairs to work in a fedaral-tribal partnership on
the remaining aspects of this miti-year effort of the Department, undertakes
in this Mamorandm of Understanding with the Asscciation to set forth the
projectad soope of these ooopsrative activities in this and future years of
this affort.
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The Association, recexgnizing the political nature of the faderal-trihal
relatiorship, has designated ons of its member tribes to sarve as the
administrative agat for the Association for purposes of receiving funds fram
the BIA to defray the ocosts of tha Association’s activities ant efforts in
carrying ot its responsibilities in acoordance with the scope of understanding
set  forth below. The initial furding agresment for the Association’s
activities is set forth in a separate Mamranhm of Agreament between the
Assistant Secretary -~ Indian Affairs and the tribe designated as the
administrative agent for the Associatiaon.

II. Scope of Understanding

The Bureau of Indian Affairs and the Association hereby express their mtuai
urderstarding that they will work cocparatively as set out below.

A. The BIA ard the Asscciation will jointly:

1. Develap shared perspectives an a strategic planning approach and issues
resolution an trust fund managemert, includirg short- and long-term
requirements, priorities and time frames:

2. Designate working groups, subcomittees, or such other arrangements as
may be appropriate to fMifill the purposes of this Mamoranchm of
Undergranding;

3. Prepare and present a training program for the representatives of the
40 tribes that are participating in the Fhase I shudy; and

4. A¥ress any issuss that arise in reqard to the tasks set out in this
Mo

B. The Association will:

1. Cevalop a oconcept paper that sets oyt the acoount holders’ perspectives
an the future directias for the imestment ard management of Indian
trust frds, which paper will be cosidered in the development of tha

long-term strategic plan:

2. Caxmomicate Information provided by the BIA to all tribal goverrments
with trust fud acoounts, congult with all tribal govermments with
trust And acoounts and develop a machanianm for the participation of
IIM acoogtt holdars in the trust fund managesant reform procsss;

3. a. Recelve o or more copies of all reports, contract mxlifications,
ad other dsliverables, consistent with adharence to the Privacy
Act ard any appropriate requirements for confidentiality of tripal
and individual financial information, sumitted by the Fhase I
aontractor to the Burwau of Indian Affairs.

b. Upon the imvitation of a tribe, participate in all decisicns
whim it is o longar cost-effective for the Fhase I contractor
artinue to try to reooncile a particular tribes account and in
development of altermatives when reconciliation of an acomnt
fomd not to be coet-effective.

T EL
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¢. Participats in develozmit of guidelines for I'IM acoourtts
whan reconciliations are cosidarwd not o be cost-effective.

d. Provide ommerts regarding application of acomnting principles,
developmant of reporting standards, and report formats for the
Phase [ study.

e. Participate in the preparation of the approach and caommunication
materials used with the Tribes and [IM acoourt holders for
explaining the meaning of the findings of over~ or wder-payment.

4. Review and have input into all aspects of the Managament Plan for the
Phase I stxdy amd short- and long-term strategic plans to be developed
by the BIA:

5. Receive and provide input on significant pmp:aed charges or revisions
in the cperation of the BIA Trust Pud Program; ard

6. Participate in tribe-gpecific or IIM acomxmt-specific issues only in
cases where the tribe or IIM accoat holdar agrees o such

participation.
¢. The BIA shall:

1. Qbtain Association participation in all of tha matters provided for in
Section B above;

2. Cotain irput from the Asecciation on all of the matters specified in
Section B and provide written resporses to the Association that
indicate whethar or not the RIA acceptad tha Association’s input, amd
if not the reasons it did not do so; ard

3. Develop a short- and long-term strategic plan for the Trust Fud
Program.

mmmotmmummmlﬁ&y%gm.

istant < chairman, Inter-Tribal Monitoring /
Indian Affairs Asaociation on Indian Trust Funds
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 2040

SEP 251991

Honorable Mike Synar
Chairman, Subcommittes on
Environment, Energy, and Natural Resources
Committee on Government Operations
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This letter will update you on activities since the May 20, 1991, hearing 10
improve the Bureau of indian Affairs’ (BIA) management of indian Trust Funds. |
believe we have made solid progress towards addressing many of the concerns
raised in the Subcommittee’s serias of hearings on Indian trust funds
management.

- As a first step, | elevated oversight for the trust funds management improvement
project from the BIA to my immediate office. | did this w ensure that proper
attention and sufficient resources would be dedicated to the job. Second, the
Trust Funds Improvement Program has been made the highest priority of a top
level oversight structure established by Secretary Lujan and Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Director Darman--the BlA Management
improvement Oversight Committes. The Committes, meeting about manthly,
assesses the status and progress in the BIA management improvement arena,
and provides the comprahensive, coordinated guidance and resouwrces
necessary for this effort, This unprecedanted level of attention to the BIA trust
funds management issue signals a commitment 1 provide the experlise and the
resources necessary to solve these problems permanently.

We successfully filled the position of Director, Office of Trust Funds Managsment
with an individual highly knowledgeable of BIA trust funds operations, Jim Parris.
Wae are proceeding 1o fil the balance of the Office of Trust Funds Management
staff positions, and currently have 41 of the present 46 positions filled on either a
permanent or temporary basis. | sent my Deputy, Bil Bettenberg, to
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Albugquerque with a team of Departmental and OMB specialists, where they
assessed activities and examined additional opportunities for improvement o
trust fund operations.

We expanded and formalized the consultative process with the group of rribai
representatives affected under Phase | of the Recondiliation Project, and
arranged for the group to collaborate with us in seeking improvement
suggestions for trust funds management. On June 18, 1991, we signed with the
inter-Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Funds (the Assaciation) a
Memorandum of Understanding {Enciosure 1) setting out the nature of joint
participation by the Association in the trust funds improvement effort, and also
arranged grant funds to defray certain aliowable Association expenses. To date,
| or representatives of my immediate office have met personally with the
Assaciation on at least 5 separate occasions, and | can report that discussions
ware held in a very frank and open manner. We have also had numerous
telephone contacts. We successhully fashioned and documented agraements on
many issues critical to the tribes and individual Indian account owners with
regard to the reconciliation effort (Enclosures 2 and 3).

I expect that additional issues will arise between the Association and the BlA, but
| believe the consultative process we have established provides a sound vehicle
for addressing issues as they are raised.

The Request for Proposal {RFP) for Audit and Certification is being prepared.
We will consult with Association representatives, and work with the General
Accounting Office (GAO} and the OMB to ensure the adequacy of the RFP for
the audit and certification of trust funds accounts,

We can measure steady progress on the Reconciliation project. In June we
formed a reconciliation project managernent team composed of experienced
personnel from internal resources within the Office of Trust Funds Management.
Subsequently, we conducted prerequisite reconciliation orientation and training
sessions for contractor and BIA employees, Association representatives, and
other interested parties. In late July, the Association and BIA collaborated to
train representatives of the tribes involved in the Phase | reconciliation work.
Trust fund account records for the Phase | effort have been gathered and
centrally located, and work is commencing to capture all the records in a
computer-based laser imaging facility. Several field visits were made to the three
Agency Offices involved in Phase | reconciliations. Entrance conferences were
also conducted in July and August for individual Indian account holders at these
Agency Offices, a pre-condition 1o the actual start of reconciliation work by Arthur
Andersen & Ca. The final entrance conference for the inttial 6 tribes piloting the
reconciliation effort was completed an September 17, 1991. Assodiation
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representatives have panticipated in several entrance conference planning
meatings, and all 9 entrance conferences.

In the May 20 hearing, you asked for a compiete and accurate listing of all cfaims
currently pending against the Indian trust fund. Enclosure 4 contains complete
listings of all known claims lodged against the Indian trust fund as of August 27,
1991, i.e., claims filed with the Interior Solicitor’s office, and known and audited
losses involving financial institutions. The Solicitor’'s Office is reviewing the 6
cases involving $1.570 million filed with that Office. The BIA is axchanging
correspondence with federal insuror agenciss in attempts to obtain favorable
responseas for the repayment of some $6.023 million to trust fund account
owners for the institutional losses, In addition, the Solicitor is clarifying the legal
situation relating to each of the losses and determining i all administrative
remadies for recovery have been axhausted; this effort is stif in process. In
pressnting this information, the Interior Dspartment is not admitting fault or
assuming liability for payment of these amounts, pending completion of all the
required reviows.

in addition to the claims specifically filed, thers exists both trust fund
underpayments and overpaymenis to tribal and individual Indian account owners.
Thase represent potential claims or recoverias, but are unverified and unaudited
amounts which will be investigated during the on-going reconciliation and audit
and certification of frust fund accounts. In the past, you have corfectly noted
that you wers suppiied with incomplete or changing lists, Ciearly, it is important
to recognize that the claims list undoubtedly will change in the futurs, particularly
as rasults of the reconciliation effort become known,

We have prepared a draft comprehensive policy and procedures document for
trust fund losses, The BlA’s *Policies Regarding Notification and Asimbursemaent
to Indian Trust Fund Account Holders for Losses Attributable to Bureau Errors” is
presently with the Association, OMB, and GAOQ for review and comment before
we promulgate it in a BIA Manual. Association commaents are due back
September 30, and we expect to publish this policy in mid-October. We will ajso
be drafting a companion policy on notification and resolution of trust fund
overpayments consistent with procedures under the Debt Coflaction Act.

Our press 10 develop a comprehensive Strategic Plan for Trust Funds
Management improvement has been, frankly, moderated by the Association and
the GAQ's views concerning this effort. We prepared an initial draft
comprehensive Interim Management Plan in late June. Upon circulation of that
documertt in early July, we learned of the Association and GAQ'S reservations
about the scope of the document. The Association has repeatedly counseled,
and the GAD has expressed a similar view, that BIA should proceed with due
defiberation in developing trust fund improvement pians. The Association



185

4

proposed, and we have agreed, that the Trust Funds Managernant lmprovement
Program be divided into short term and long term efforts.

Based on input from the Assodiation and GAQ, we concluded that four distinct
planning documents were necessary to guide ouwr improvement efforts; a
Recanciliation Project Management Plan; a short term action plan--BIA’s Interirt
Management Plan; an outiine to guide our strategic planning effort--the Strategic
Pianning Framework; and finally, a Strategic Plan for Indian Trust Funds
improvement.

Wa first concentrated on the Reconciliation Project Management Plan; a copy of
that plan is included as Enclosure 5.

In the short term, say for the next 6 - 8 months, the BIA will take action to correct
the glaring immediate problems, but avoid committing BLA to a long term
direction for trust funds management. We expect to publish the short term
action plan--BIA's Interim Management Plan-for thesa improvements in October.
This document will set out fixes to iMmediate problems; i.e., those we perceive to
be short term comections that do not compromise implementation of future
recommendations by the Association or BIA management decisions on the long
term diraction for the trust funds management operation.

For the longer term improvement effort, the Association proposes that it take the
lead 1o identify alternative tribal management approaches to BIA's trust fund
management operations, and indeed in the June 18 Memorandum of
Understanding agreed to prepare and publish late this year of sarly next year a
concept paper on alternative Indian trust fund approaches. Having agresd with
the Association and GAQ that the Strategic Plan should be undertaken in a
deliberate fashion, we will be pleased to receive and consider their concapt

paper.

We are currently outlining our vision of what should be addressed in the
Strateglic Pian for Trust Funds Management improvement. Accordingly, a
Strategic Planning Framework is being developed drawing on input frorn
representatives of the GAQ, who shared material on similar efforts in other
agencies and Departments, and from our consultations with Association
representatives. That document is with the Association, QMB and GAOQ for
review and comment, and we hope to receive comments back from the
Association on September 30. Woe believe this approach will result in publication
of a comprehensive Strategic Plan for indian Trust Funds Management in
early 1992, depsnding on the date of receipt of the Association’s concept paper.
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We are anxious to continue to improve Bla's Trust Funds Management
operation. To that end, the BlA will continue short term improvement efforts,
using the vehicle of our short term action plan. | firmly believe a Strategic Plan
using the approach outlined in Bia's Strateglc Planning Framework will better
assure that the improvements we bring will truly and permanently correct
managemsnt of indian trust funds in 8 manner supportable by the tribes.

We will forward to the Subcormnmittee copies of the completed “Policies
Regarding Notification and Reimbursement to Indian Trust Fund Account Hotders
for Losses Attributable to Bureau Erors®, the companion policy on
overpaymenis, the Interim Management Plan, and a copy of Bla's Strategic
Planning Framework following receipt and consideration of the Association's
comments.

Sincersly,

)

- Indian Affairs

& Enclosures
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MEMORANDM OF UNCERSTANDING
HETVERN THE BUREMT OF IMDIAN AFFAIRS AND THE
INTER-TRIBA . MOINTTORING ASSOCIATION O INDIAN TRUET FUMCS

I, Backyround

The Bureau of Indian Affairs amd some 40 of the tribes with tribal or
irdividual! Indian Money (IIM) trust fund acoaunts have worked ginoe the fall of
1990 an developing technical parameters for a major, milti-ywar recmciliation
(reconstruction) and audit of tribal and IIM tnust fund accogmts. 37 of these
tribes are included in "phase ane of the BIA‘s reconciliation (reconstruction)
and audit effort. "Ehe nature of the project, as well as developing long-range

developgment and implenentation of the reconciliation (reconstruction) and aadit
Process .

These phase one tribes, along with BIA staff an) Congressional and General
Accounting Office representatives were members of an initial Trust Punds Ad Hoc
Group. These 37 phase one tribes were injtisily selected by the Buresu to
serve on themtmladﬂazcrwpmthehasmottheboldirmotthmctdb-

manner as the Inter-Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Funds (the
Association).

The reconciliatjon (reconstruction) and audit project; the correction of daily
Operational wealnesses in the trust fund mansgemstt process; and the design of
such mew trust furds management systams as say be required are components of a
major Departmerttal multi-year effort to improve substantially the administra-
tion of the BIA‘s trust funds management program. A critical elemsnt in the
successful  campletion of the effort is the cooperative activities of the tribal
and IIM account holders affectad by this reform,

The tribes ommprising the Asgociatian have indicated their willingnees to
undertake such cooperative efforts, axd have already ogended cubstantial
effort, professional astaff time, and money jin this collaborative process.
Thase tribes’ oontrilutions to development of the final RFFO and contxact far
the actual phase one work are recognized by the Bureau, Building on this paat
cooperative effort, the Bureau anxd the Association agres to an apyroach to
promote  Further Tribal/BIA consultation, plamning, and coordination in grder to

activities betwaen the BIA and the Asscciation.

The BIA, recognizing the substantial sums already experded by tribes of the

Association in working with the BIA, & in fulfiliing the pledge of the

Assistant Secretary - Indian Affajre to work in a fedaral-tribal partnarship an

the remeining aspacts of this milti-year effort of the Departmsnt, undertakos

in this Masorandm of Understanding with the Aascciation to set forth tha

ﬂmﬂms@e of these cooperative activities in this and future years of
3 .

Enclosure 1
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The Association, recognizing the politiosl nature of the fedarw)-tribal
relationship, has desigrated ow of its mmbar tribes to sarve as tha

v agant for the Ammcistion for poposss of receiving funde from
the BIA to dafrey the oosts of the Association’s activitiss and afforts in
carrying out its resporeibilities in acoordanne with the soops of undarstanding
set  forth below. The initial fuding agresssnt for the Association’s
activities im st forth in a separate Menorancam of Agressant betwesn the
Agaistant Secretary - Indian Affairs and the tribe designated as the
ainistrative agent for the Association.

II. Scope of Understanding

Tha BPureau of Imlian Affairs and the Association hersby exgpress thelr matual
uderstarding that they will work cocperatively as set out below.

A. The BIA and the Association will jointly:

1. Develop aharadperwwesmasmteqmplmrqapproacharﬂimm
regolution on tyust fud panagemestt,  including short- ard laepterm
requiramemts, priorities and time frames;

2. Designate working groups, subcammittees, or such other
may be appropriate to fulfill the purposes of th;skm—a:ﬂnof
Understanding;

3. Prepare ard present a training program for the representatives of the
40 tribes that are participating in the Phase I study; and

4. Address any issues that arise in regard to the tasks set out in this
MU

B, The Association will:

1. Devalop a conoept paper that sets out the account holders’ perspectives
an the fubuwre directions for the irvestment and management of Indian
trust funds, which paper will be conslidered in the develoment of the
long=-term strategic plan;

2., Commmnicate information provided by the BIA to all tribel govearTments
with trust #fimd acoomts, ocawult with all tribal goverrments with
trust fund acoouts and develop a mechanism for the participation of
I acoount holders in the trust fund manasgewent reform process;

3. a. Receive ane or more oopies of all reports, contract modifications,
and other deliverables, ocomsistent with adherence to tha Privacy
Act amd any appropriate reguirements for confidentiality of tribal
and individual financial information, submitted by the Phase I
contractor to the Bureau of Indian Affajrs.

b. Upon the imnvitation of a tribe, participate in all decisians on
when it is no langer ocost-effactive for the Phase I contoactar to
cntine to try to reconcile a particular tribes accomt and in the
development of altermatives when reconciliation of an acoort is
faurd not to be cost-effective,
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Aarcicipats 1 dealomant of quidelinas for IM sO0OUTe Merd. g
wan reconclliAtlong are Oorwidered not O be cost-wlfective.

4. ?cwfd. ooEmMTte  TegAMing  Agplicatian of scoauYting principles.
developmet of reporting stardards, and twport  focsats for the
Aase [ soudy.

e, Puticipate in tha prepanation of tha approsch and ooammnication
matarials  used with the Tribas amd IIM acmat holders for
eplaining tha maring of the fixlings of over- or under-paynent.

i, Peview amd have irqut into all aspects of the Management Plan for the
Mase I sty and short- and lag-tarn stratagic plans to be developed
by the BIA:

Recelve and provide input on significant proposad Charges or Tevisises
W othe operation of tha 8IA Trust fund Progpram; and

ik

4. Participate in tribe—specific or IIN accout-specific um- anly in
cAasas Whare wha trioe or [IM Aot holdar arees To soch
pAIlCipatian.

2. Tha BIA shall:

1. Ootain Associatian participstion in all of the mactars provided for in
Sectian B above;

2. dotain imput from the Association on all of the mettars spacified in
Section B ard provida writtan rewponaes to the Association that
idicate whathar or not tha ALA acosptad the Aasociation’s input, ard
1f not the reasors it did not do so: ard

3. Osvelap a short- amd long-tarm stiwtagic plan for the Truwt Fund
Progras.

_ i A 5{& 1991
This Mamorarchnm of Urderstarding ls entered into this day o .

RN

Indian Affairs
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, DC. 21w

JUL 19 1991

8Y FACSIMI

Elouise C. Cobell, Chairperson
Intertribal Monitoring Association
on Indian Trust Funds
- P.O. Box 850
Browning, Montana 59417

Dear Ms. Cobell:

We appreciate your Association’s letter of July 10, 1391, In that letter, the Association
provided a kst of those Phase | reconciliation issues that it believed were rescived
during earlier meetings, but that the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) was unable to
confirm as being resoived when we met on July T - 2, 1991, Qur responses are
keyed to the numbered issues in the Association’s letter.

1. ndennvestinent.

Your position is that BIA must identify "underirvestments” as well as "uninvestments” of
indian trust funds, resulting from BiA's negligence or failure 10 carry out trust
responsibilities.

We agree to the extent that we can reach mutual agreement on the specilic definitions
of ‘underinvestment”. The Association’s letter asked that the contractor apply the
same standard it would apply for private trust accounts, Rather than an industry or
generic standard for such terms as "underinvestment®, our understanding is that
accepted practice is to rely on the instructions within the specific trust agreaments.
Our mutual challenge, as [ see it, is to examine the range of invastment situations
where investment negligence of failure to carry out trust responsibilities may have
occurred, and then develop operational dafinitions for them. With such definitions, we
all would understand with substantial precision what will be considered to be potential
*underinvestments”, and BiA will be in a position to provida definitive guidance 1o its
reconciiation and audit contractors so that they ¢an identify such situstions on the
report for each account holder, It should be noted that this is not currently in the
scope of work for the contract.

Enciosure 2
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We wish 10 develop these specific operational definitions in a fair and open manner.
In order to accomplish this, we proposs that a small work group consisting of
representatives of the Association, the BIA, and Arthur Andersen & Company meet to
work cut the needed operationai definitions. The results of that work should then be
forwarded 1o the Association and the BlA management for final review and
acceptance. We would suggest that such meetings be scheduled during August of,
at the fatest, September.

We also appreciate your acknowledgemant that the underinvestment examination is
not intended to second guess BiA's exercise of discretion when making investment
decisions.

2. Netting of Over nder Paymen

Your position is that BIA reports must show separately the amounts overpaid and
amounts underpaid, without petting in any manner,

We have agreed to furnish the details of the actual account reconstruction,

amounts overpaid and amoumts underpaid, without netting, both in the reports to the
account holders and to the Congress. Following certification, we will need to avaluate
the data presented to determine whether any amounts are owed to Or due from
account holders. That may well require netting, but would not affect the reconciliation,
audit and certification reports prasented 10 account holders. These netted amouns
are what we would anticipate reimbursing or collecting to resolve the findings of
incorrect balances following audit and certification.

a ollection of Overpayment

Your position is that BIA willi make no effort to collect principal or interest that BtA
overpaid 1o a tribal or Individual Indian Money (M) account holder until Congress has
determined how it wants to deal with over and under payments,

The BlA does not plan to initiate action to coliect principle or interest that the BIA
overpaid to a tribal or IIM account holder at the conclusion of the account
reconciliation phase of this effort. The completion of the audit and certification of an
account and the subsequent evaluation identified in item 2 above is the point when an
obligation 10 commence either reimbursement or collaction action will ba properly
known and documented to BIA. At that peoint, BIA actions relative to overpayment
collection would be dictated by the Debt Collection Act and guided by statute of
limitations considerations.
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Every effort will be mads 10 reimburse account holders within a reasonable time frame,
consistent with available funds and the Budget Enforcement Act.

4.  Repon formats,

The Association wishes BIA to use an account reporting format that was prepared by
the ad hoc group for reporting results of the reconciliations. As previously agreed,
BIA will incorporate the Association-generated formats into the reconciliation report
layout. Based on a telephone conversation between Jim Parris, Director, Office of
Trust Funds Management and Sue Lara of the Association, it is our understanding that
these refate to footnote contents, Wa aiso understand that the footnote content
details are being reconciled by BlA and Association representatives this week.

5. UM Account Issues.
a.  Cut-off Date for Closed Accounts.

The Association desires further discussion concerning reconciliations of closed or pre-
merged accounts.

We agree that further discussion with the Association regarding reconciliations for
these type accounts would be beneficial,

b.  Lost Checks,

The Association desires a meeting, which would include Treasury representatives,
relative 10 the federal govemment's inability o provide a list of IM checks that were
sent but not cashed.

We agree that a meeting with Treasury on this issue would be helpful, and will
proceed to coordinate such a mesting among representatives of the Association, the
Departmeant of Treasury, the Office of Management and Budget, and the BIA.

Centralized Disbursement.

Your position is that a draft Request for Proposal {RFP} for Centralized Disburgement,
as proposed by BIA, is not an appropriate vehicle for soliciting ideas about a concept
that is still in the analysis stage, andg you request BIA to sat out the specific process
BIA intends to follow before issuing an AFP. You afso request that BIA respond in
writing to your written comments that BIA not proceed with the RFP.
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Rather than a draft RFP, BIA wil Jevelop and circuiate fov your consideration and
comment an analytic paper on tha subject of centralized disbursement. This, and
other accounting issues, will ba thoroughly addressed in the Interim Management
Plan. In addition, we will respond, in writing, to your previous written comments on

this topic.

Sincerely,

U D st es

Deputy Assistant Secretary -
Indian Affairs

CC:

Daniel S. Press

Van Ness, Feldman & Curtis

1050 Thormas Jefferson Street, N'W.
Washington, 0.C. 20007
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United States Department of the Interior

- OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

AUG 30 1991

BY FACSIMILE

Elouise C. Cobel, Chairperson

intertribal Monitoring Association
On Indian Trust Funds

P.0. Box 850

Browning, Montana 59417

Dear Ms. Cobeil:

t am writing {0 you to concerning the tentative resolutions reached at the July 25 - 26,
1991 session in Denwer. | appreciate your and the Association's willingness 10 address
the unresclved issues sarlier rather than later. | believe the sense of cooperation
displayed in the July 25 evening session is essential to our shared goal of an improved
Indian Trust Funds Management operation.

Concluding that session, the parties agreed to take the list of resolved issues Lack to
Interior managerment and Association officials to obtain final approval.

Upon retum to Washington, D.C.. we met with the representatives of the General

ng Office (GAC), and aiso discussed the rescived issues with a representative
of the Office of Management and Budget. | bekeve the GAQ rework of the resolved
issues accurately documents, and also helps clarify the resolutions reached on these
issues, and | am pleased to confirm that the GAC document represents the Department
and BIA's undeérstandings on these matters. A copy of the GAQ document is aftached
as Enclosure 1.

| believe the language in the GAO document will provide the Association appropriate
assurances regarding the resolved issues, and it will aiso provide adequate operational
definitions upon which BIA can instruct its reconciliation contractor, Arthur Andersen &
Co.

Enclosure 3
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Again, thank JBu for your assistance in the successhul resolution of theses matters.

Sincerely,

Enclogure
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GAO CLARIFICATION ON AGREEMEN|S
OW BIN _TRUST TUND RECONCILIATION
AT DENVER MEETING ON JULY 26, 199]

1. Calculetion of Ipcerest. Mcthucr Andecsen & Co. will
calculate the difference batween actual interest paid for money
in sash holdiny eccounta (or other unsllottsd, rtemporsry cash
accountcs} and the snnus]l interest cate 88 sef out on page 4 of
the reconc¢iliation contract for pecieods prior to 1970. Acthur
Andecson & Cu. will uss lnterssc rates on sttachment M for
periods afcer 1970, Applicable providions on pags 4 of the
regenciliation contra¢t will be tevised to reflect statutory
intacedt rates, compounded sa follows:

Trlual: Semiannually using 4% cacte chrough June 30, 19740.
From July 1, 1970 forward, intetest must be calcCulated uaing
the annudl rate provided by the Branch of Investments fOr
the Tribsl Trust Funds.

1IM: #onthly ueing the applicable semi-annual interast
factor from 1938 through May 31, 1989, From Juns I, 1989
forward, Lhe actual interest factor used for those IIM funds
that were invested would be used.

Az tha epnd of the contrAct's sssessment period, after Archurc
Andatsen i J0, Sas coellected sufficient datad >n tne six tribes
and [IM asccounts at one agency logatlon, cepregentatives of che
Interior Department, BIA, the Assocletion, Ar:hur Andersen & Co.,
and GAC will meet to decide how to interpret he data. For
example, dats presented will include: differs ces in average
annusl inlsrest races and acrual incecest crat s paild by BIA,
typical processing times and actual processin: times, cecelpt and
deposit timerframes, statutory guidelines, availability of trusc
investment instructions, etg. FOF puctpoees of develeping
procedures for calculating unacsrued interest.

Enciosure 1
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Ay agrded Lo at the Denver mestling, Archur Andecsen & Co. will
vae the revised worksheet {ettachment B} to capture daca
necessary {Qf calculating intereast.

2. Timing of Deposits. With regaid to payments cecelved by BIA
on pehalf of the tfibes and (ndividual Indians, when the date of
actual receipc im not shown 1n BIA recocds, Arthur Andetrsen 5 Co,
#11l #now ithe payment :seue date on the worksheer next to the
deposit daLe. (A payment Lasue Jdate might oe deteimined from a
5F-21% depssit ticket for a federal payee or from recorde of
accrunt olders.) lf no recerd of a payment 1ssue date of record
of an actual date of receipt by BIA can be fourd, only the date
2f depusit will De regorded on The wocksnpaetr.

3. Accounte to be Reconciled. BIA will direct Acthur Anderasn
& Co, tp teconcile, during ¥Phase I, all tribal and [IM accounts
whether opan or closed, rejardless of when they wete closed and
cegatdlase of the account balance. M accounts to be reaconcilaed
wlll ba identified by tracing every deposit transaction to the
approptiate l1IM statement, as well as the discribution of
dilocated payments. Arthur Andersen & Co. should take
apprtoptiate steps to ensure that any changes :n BIA's allocation
tables {0t payment distribution did not cesul: in inadvertant
deletion of sccouncs. 1o the extent that Art-ar Andarsen & Co.
Lses sampling techniques to determine proper istribution of
allocated payments, the samples and metnodolo:y used will ve
¢claarly documented. In the cage of tribal accounts,
reconciliation will be besed on & liet compli.d from GAQ audit
teports, Treasury Pinsncial Statsments, and B 3 financial
records, A list of aceounte to bDe reconstructed will be
presenced to each tribe pricr to cheir Entrence Confersnce for
confirmetion purposes, Tribel a¢counts will ba reconciled to the

2
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esrliest date pceacecicable, by tracing individual tran®a¢rions
for sach éccount to the APPLOpListe tribal Wratements.

4. Mlesing Peyments from Peyor. A® part of cthe reconciliat;on
effort, Arthur Andersen & Co, will not spec:fically look for
instances where peyors (lesesees, otc,] have falled toc make
peyments Jdue 3]A account Nolders. However, t0 the #xtent that
Arehur Andersen & Co. does note mi®sing payments during the
recongiliation [for axample, tnrough testing payment allocation
formulas or Ly wmwans of data provided by acceunt neldars), Arthur
Andersen & £o0. will record thowe missing payments on 1TE

workstiewts during the reconciliavion.

5. Disbursesenta. T the exten: recerds ars svailable, Arthuc
Anderzeen & Cu. will varify chat checks were drefted to the
account holder. However, Arthur Andersen & Co, will not identify
whether the reciplent (the party who cashed the check) was the
account holder of record.

The parties will meet with Tredeury Department officiale o ery
to zesolve Lhe outetsndlng check :esue and to get documentat:ion
on checks that werfe not cashed.

6. Cellaction of Overpayments. Except for collection actions
already io process, the BIA will not resolve .ny overpayments
until acceunts have bean reconciled end audie-d and cetcified and
reportéd to the cegnizant congressional commi-cess, and the
agcount Nolders heve been notified by BIA of he posaible over-
peyments and of forded opportunities, consiste t with the Debt
Collection Ace, to raview and provide lnput int¢ the reconcili=-
atlon and auvdit conclugions reported by Arthur Andetsen & Co.
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7. Scope Issuss. 11t is rdcognized by the parcies involved

that there A8 some trust fund Lasued thst go beyond the scope of
this recenclliacien sfforr, 2or example, updstes of realry
records are nacessary to andure a proper basis focr many income
payments. BIA needas to collect daces on the currency of ownership
records lo the various Ares Offices, and recommend & way to
sddress these updstes in the raconciliation process. Ancthaer
example would be BIA's nonrecsaipt of psyments on behalf of
accgunt holders (ses iten 4.), Representdtives of the Interior
Department, the BIA, the® Association, tribes and individual
fndian sccount holders Arthur Andecsen & Co., and GAQ will
1identify and bighlight other problem areas for appropriste

action,

a, Contract Modifications. Arthur Andecsen & Co, will report
1ts aseessment of the level of effort and cost aspocisted with
performing work in tha contract and sny additioanal taasks
clar1fied in the above peragraphs after about 4-6 weeks of
zeginning field work. Parties will Jdetsrmine the feasibility and
cost effectiveness of perfoerming wotk specified in the contrace,
nodi1fying the contrect té include additional tasks, or raducing
the scope of work by ideatifying threshnolds., Any changes in the
contract that might result from this determination will be
presented to the Qffice of Mapagement and Budgetr and the
cognizant congredsional committees £or consideration and advice,

9. Joinc Working Group. Ir is agreed thet vture issues and
<concerns, 1ncluding those iisted above, and m. zters ovtlined in
the Memcrandum of Underdtanding Petwesan the B A and the
Association, will be addressed in joint meeti-3s including
(epresaniatives of the Intericr Dapartmant, t : BIA, tha
Assoclation, Arthur Andersen & Co., and GAO, [t is further
agreed chat these parties comprise a joint working qroup on the
indian Trust Funds Recenciliatien Project.
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OFFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

Indian Trust Funds
Annual rate of return by fiscal years

FY Ending Tribal

Date Fund
-
6-30-70 6.50%
6-30-71 5.75%
6-30-72 $.93%
6-30-73 7.04%
6-30-74 8.48%
6-30-75 9.19%
6-30-76 6.64%
9-30-77 6.43%
9-30-78 7.67%
9-30-79 10.41%
9-30-80 12.04%
9-30-81 14.74%
9-30-82 14.48%
9-30-83 10.88%
9-30-84 10.54%
9-30-85 10.17%
9-30-86 8.33%
9-30-87 7.31%
9-30-88 7.53%
9-30-89 898%
9-30-90 8.72%

~Dats derived om invasimant annual feports.

=No gats tound price 1o above detow.

Attachment 1
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BUREAL OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
OFFICE OF TAUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT
INDIAN TRUST FUNDS
CLAIMS REPORT
AS OF AUGUST 27, 1991

M Y C CA ES
CATEGORY 1. Clairns Filed With the Solicior's Office 3 15702751
CATEGORY 2. Lossaes Involving Financial Institutions $ 6,022.0889.80
TOTAL BOTH CATEGORIES $ 7.5680.165.01
Sowrces of data: DI Office of the Solicitor

BlA Office of Trust Furkis Managemant

Endlosiure 4
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BUREAL UF INDIAN AFFALRS
GFFWCE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT
INDIAN TRUST FUNDS

CATEGORY £1. CLADMS FILED WITH THE SOLICITOR'S OFFICE

LR T E R YR E S LRI Y R Ty

Area Fund Aguount {wner Adreoun Dexnptim Cate Liws Age
Aoy uaredd [taye

| AJbugquerque Tribwl Teis Puehip $250, 3500 Fer Capis dimnibution overpayiment v 0F-02-80 418
1986 & JYBY Tribe has reguencd
overpryment be resored. Field
Solicior'y opinion requened 12590

2. Billingw ™ Ardis Robinscn $ 2450000 Claim fied with the DOT Board of 05 18-83 IR
Irulisn Appeals for furdy reitricted by
the Supenmende of Fort Peck
Agency, Popler, MT

1 Eastern Tribaj FPenotiscol $570,000 00 Claim filed with U § Claims Coun 10-24-90 612
Nation foe Ioas of princapnl and nicres from
the peamanend potion of the Maine
Indign Claima Settlement Azl

4 Minpeapolin Tribat Red Eake S6AT.N00.00  Claim #333-82L, Mivmanagement of 07-83 1200
Funde. Cuae in final stages of
Setlbement.
$ Muskopes m Iosephine Bosen $ 1,823 @S Royaly Payments disbursed sfter 07.21-87 1412
Estale Acet. Orornee’y doath. Checks cashed

by Micce. Solicitor aesisling BIA in
collecting from Nicce

6. Sacremento M Larry Olinger $ 3660206 Plaintill jn this sction: wlinges breach 03-09-09 689
of trust on Lthe pan of the BT A [nt
wlowing the IRS to collect esuen
imposed on imerest from leaschold-
i D y b in

progress,

TOTAL FOR CATEGORY #1: $1,570.275 21



205

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS
OFFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT
INDLAN TRUST FUNDS

CATEGORY #1 LOSSES INVOLVING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

R L L LE EE L N R T ey

Arca Furd Avcount (hwnet A I P Dale Low Age Daya
Occurrad
1. lnvesment Lisacs due b failed fisancial 36,022 R59 B)  Sce Amachmem A Varioun
wnd fraud

Total Tor Calegnry #1: $6,002 849 A}
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ATTACHMENT A
Page 2 of 2
FOOTNOTES
DMNIC. No imeres acoruals caleulated s ime of chomury due to many vanable interes rutes, Twemy-cighe (28) Cerificaen of
Deposit (TD™) invalved. No dividends declared by snatitatenn in the Hies quaner of 1984 Seven liquidstion peyrmens
received toalling $2,048,496. 70, bul no other immediste lquidation paymems likely.

EINANCIAL  Most recent liquadstion peymment made on 5-12.86. Maional Credit Unson Assoxcistion indicsiee this was lad payment.

CENTER PLACE Lovoluntary Jiquidetion on T-8-35  Moa pecont peymend of $459 319 59 received 6-6-39

LWL, Credit Union did not close.  Board of Directors chose oot 10 dec lars dividends. Only principal amount wis returned s
Ria.

OAK PARK, ~— Allr nics have been through coun ection.

SUN SAVINGS. Mow recent payment of $11,489 00 recived 3891 Doubiful of any further liquidsiion of sesels.

MAINLAND Mot ecent payment of $ 10,207 77 received 3-8.%1. Doubtful of any further liquidsion of sseety,

LIBERTY Most recend peyment of $104.66 received 2-25-91  Pending further Siquidstion.

All Credit Union sccounts listed are being reviewed by the Field Saliciors Office.
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RECONCILIATION PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN

BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIRS

TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

Septemnber 1991

U.S. Department of the Interior
Bureau of Indian Affairs

Enclosure 5
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BtA Reconclilation Project Management Plan

Management Organizaticn tor the Recenclilation Contract
Contracting Officer

Contracting Officer's Representative

Cortsactor Direction and Contract Changes

BIA Strbcture tor Reconciliation Project

8IA General QOrganization

BIA Responsibilities for Reconciliation Project

Recongciliation and Audit Project Managemaent Team

Table 3 - AreasAgency Comact Points

Table 4 - Reconciliation and Audit Project Management Tearn

Contractor

Asthur Andersen & Co Organization for Reconciliation Project
Table § - Anhur Andersen & Co Project Management Organization
Arthur Andersen & Co Work Program

Intereat Calcutatlon
Table 6 - Transaction and invested Balance History
Tabie 7 - Pro-Forma Interest Earninggs Analysis
Cooparating Partles
Tribal tnvolvement and Coordination
Inwer-Tribat Monitoring Asscciation on Indian Trust Funds
Coniractor Overalght
ASSURING THE INTEGRITY OF RECONCILED/AUDITED ACCOUNTS
Post Reconciliation
1M Reconciliation
Tribal Reconciliation
AUDIT AND CERTIFICATION OF THE RECONCILED ACCOUNTS
KEY PROJECT MILESTONES
ATTACHMENT 1 Memorandum of Understanding Between the Bureau of
Indian ANairs and the Inter-Tribal Monitoring Associstion
on indian Trust Funds
ATTACHMENT 2 Reconciliation Project Activity Calendar
ATTACHMENT 3 l.eners to the inter-Tribal Monioring

Association on Indian Trust Funds
Confirming Resolved Raeconcilistion issues

Page 18

Page 18

Page 24

Page 49

Page 52

Page 54

Page 57

Page 59
Page &0

Truat Funds Management tmprovemaent Program
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BiA Reconcliiation Project Management Plan

Management Organization for the Reconcliiation Coniract
Conmtracting Officer

Contracting Officer's Representative

Contractor Direction and Contract Changes

BIA Structure for Reconclliation Project

BiA General Qrganization

BtA Aesponsibilitias for Reconciliation Project

Reconciliation and Audit Project Management Team

Table 3 - A-safAgency Contact Points

Table 4 - Reconciliation and Audit Project Management Toam

Contractor

Arthur Andevsen & Co Organization for Reconciliation Project
Table 5 - Arthur Andersen & Co Project Management Organization
Arthuy Andersan & Co Work Program

tnterest Calculation
Tabile 6 - Transaction and Invested Balance History
Tabie 7 - Pro-Forma Interest Earnings Analysis
Cooperating Partiea
Tribal involvement and Coordination
tntes-Tribal Monttonng Association on Indian Trust Funds
Contractor Oversight
ASSURING THE INTEGRITY OF RECONCILED/AUDITED ACCOUNTS
Post Reconciliation
IIM Reconciliation
Tribal Reconciliation
AUDIT AND CERTIFICATION OF THE RECONCILED ACCOUNTS

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES

ATTACHMENT 1 Memorandum of Undersianding Betwaen the Bureau of
indian Affairs and the Intev-Tribxal Monitoring Assaciation
on Indian Trust Funds

ATTACHMENT 2 Reconciliation Project Activity Calendar
ATTACHMENT 3 Letters to the Inter-Tribal Monitoring

Agsociation on Indian Trust Funds
Confirming Resolved Reconciliation Issues

Page 18

Page 19

Page 24

Page 49

Page 52

Page 54

Page 57

Page 59

Page 60

Trust Funds Management improvemeni Program
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BIA Reconcillation Project Managament Plan

INTRODUCTION

Histoncal Perspective - Formation of Ingian Trust Funds.

CUne of the most basic trustee responsibiitios of the Bureau of indian Altairs (BIA), as agert for the
Secretary of the Intenor, 1s the management of and accounting for funds heid in trust for the benelit of
Indian tripas and indwidual tndians. This fiduciary responsibility dates back mare than 150 years when
the kst trust funds were established through treaties between the United States and individual Indizar
tries,

In 1783, as a forerunner of the trade and intercourse laws to come later, Congress provided that title to
indan tand outside of state jurisdiction could be obtained only under the authority of Congress and any
purchase or cessions made without such authority were declared nuil and void.  This legal restriction is
the basis of the current federal trust responsibility tor Indian land.

indian sovereignty has been recognized since the founding of 1he United States Governmert. Since
many Incian Tribes were regarded as independent groups, they were dealt with by the laderal
government thwough the machinery usad for foceign relations, the war department, and dipiomacy -
including treaty making. Agreements between the Federa! government and the various indian Tribes
therefore took the form of treaties. During the course of the nation's history and the U. S.
Government’s varying policy toward Indian Tribes, this refationship has retained its original sovereign
characteristics.

Treaties, Laws and Agreements

The responsibility, of trusteeship. for the hotding of lunds by the United States for the benefit of
indivicual Indians and Indian Tribes was first and most importantly establishad by treaties. Treaty
making with tribes ceased in 1871, However, Congress, acting within the scope of its constitutional
powers, controlled and managed Tribal and individual indian funds through lagistation. There are also
agreemertts involving fund managemant between Tribes and the Federal government by which a
particular Indian trust fund is established. The holding and managemert of trust funds has also been a
long standing policy of the Federal government.

Trustee

The Secretary of the interioc has been designated by Congress as the trustee of the funds hedd by the
federal government for Indian Tribes and individuals. The Secretary has delegated the authority for
management of the Indian Trust Funds--including accounting, investing and financial reporting—to the
Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs. This authority has been re-delegataed 10 the BIA and is exercised by
the Office of Trust Furids Management and personnel at the Area and Agency Office levels.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs has traditionally been the executive office thal performs the trustee
mariagement lunctions relating to Indian trust funds. It originated in 1824 as the Office of indian Affairs
within the War Department. The Office operated informally until 1832 when the first Commissioner of
Indian Affairs was Appointed by Congress. The Office was transferred to the Depanment of the Interior
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in 1849. tn 1947 the Office uificiglly became the Bureau of Indian Affairs. Indian agencies were the
focat point of all redations with Tribes and individual indians untif 1947 when area offices were
astablished 10 oxercisg supervisory conirol over agences. This 1s the basic organizational structure that

oxigls today.

History of the Bureau of Indian Aftaws Accounting Systems

Before 1951, accounting in the BIA was execuied ar each agency. The accounting was accompashed
in fedgers and journals that were handwritten with quill and fountain pens. The BiA accounting Systems
treated Tribal funds almost identical to appropnated funds  Starting in about 1932 the U S, Treasury
began keeping separate appropriations on their books for each Trbal principal and interest account

Up 10 1932 most of tha Tribal funds had been accounted for in the IIM accounts maintained on
handwritten ledgers at each agency.

In 1951 an accounting system designed by BIA and approved by the General Accounting Office was
instalied at Area Offices. Alf fund types were integraled in the system and the Area Offices did not have
a distinet M or Tribal accounting staff. Neiber did the Area Offices maintain IM accounts, only ganeral
ledger controls. The IM accounts continued to be kept at each Agency Office on 1en reqister NCR
accounting machines and caras.

In 1965 the BiA started centralizing its accounting tunctions in Albuguerque, NM on 2 mainiramsé
computey. The conversion 10 the computer system was complete by January 1967, However, a
duplicate sat of Tribal funds "controt accounts' werg maintained at Agency Offices on NCR 1en register
accounting machines, as a quality control check of the automated system.  The mainframe
centralization did not cover the Agency s IIM accounting operations The Agencies continued (0 keep
the indvidual accaums as in the past.

in 1968 a new automated accounting System was developed and implemented. and modified 1 1974,
The basic accounting for Tribai and IIM funds remained the same and was conducted at the same
locations as before tha new system in 1968 or the revised system introduced in 1974, In addition, in
1973 the U.S. Treasury discontinued maintaining Tribal accounts in a separate appropriation for each
Tribe and consolidared all such funds into a single Tribal accourt. Tha subsidiary detait for each Tribal
account was maintained at BIA on the automated sysiem and the control cards described above. The
control cards wera discontinued in 1987 due to the inconsistency and inaccuracy of the data in the
cards,

I the garly 1970's an automated IIM subsidiary accouning system was developed and begun to be
installed in BIA. The accounts ware not 2l convened o the automated system Bureau-wide unul 1985,

Trust Funds Management Improvement Program Page 2



213

BiA Reconclliation Project Managemaent Plan

Cyrrent Sauation

The composition of the frust funds hag not changed significantly over the years. Funds held in trust
include payments required by treaty or in satisfaction of judgments against the United States, and
wwome earned by tribes or individual indians from agriculture, timber, muneral, or ol and gas leases. As
of September 30, 1950, the portfolio of tribal and individuat Indian trust lund monies included
approximately 300,000 accounts valued at approximately $2 billion.

Concerns about the management and accountability of Indiarn trust funds has been a long-standing
ssuB as far back as the 18th century. Tribes and individual Indians have long been concernad about
the accuracy of BIA's accounting for trust fund receipts and disbursements and the effectiveness of
BlA's investment practices.

Reviews conducted over the past ten years by the General Accounting Office, the Depantment of the
interior's Inspectar General, and independent accounting firms have identified serious fnancial
management problems permeating avery aspect of BIA's managemant of the trust funds. Many of the
same problems have been identidfied each year.

Sirtca 1983, two differemt public accounting firms have repoed serious imernal controt problems in
Bla's trust fund operations. The most recen review conducted by comtract with Arthur Andersen &
Company expressed a qualified opinion on BIA'S trust fund statements due to an inabilty to confirm
cash balances, major inadequacies in accounting records and related systems, and accounting ermors.

The seriousnass of the problams identified over the past ten years and the fiduciary responsibility
vested in the Secretary of the Intesior to properly manage the trust funds, réquires a comprehensive
efort at reforming all aspects of the BIA trust lund System.

Account Reconstruction. Af initial, but critical step o correct trust funds management deficiencies is
the successiul reconstruction of trust tund accounts. This is baing accomplished through a major
recongilialion, audit and certification program to reconstruct the tribal and individual Indian monias (M)
accounts to the earliest date practicable. This work, being undertaken by coniract. is expected to take
approximately five years. More definitive time projections are anticipated in the spring of 1992 based on
the rasults of Phase | of the Reconciliation Project, where 87% of the tribal funds on deposit and the IIM
accounts at three agencies which represent abouwt 17% of the HM money on deposit, will be
reconstructed by means of an account reconciliation contract with Arthur Andersan & Co.,
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RECONCILIATION AND AUDIT AND CERTIFICATION PROJECT GOALS

The Office of Trust Funds Management (OTFM) began the reconciliation effort under the Reconcilation
and Audit and Centification Project on May 10, 1991, when & awarded a reconciliation comract 10 Arthur
Andersen & Company, an independent accounting firm. A separaie contracior will independently audit
and cenily the reconciliation process and results. The entire Reconciliation and Audit and Certification
project iz expectod 10 span 5 years — thvough FY 1996 — dud 10 the extensive work necessary 1o
accurately account for and report on individual indian and Tribal trust funds. During the five year
pediod, OTFM will work with the contractors (o gain a thorough technical and operational understanding
of the account reconciliation and audit process.

The project will encompass all trust fund accounts. As of September 30, 1990, the OTFM was
responsible for 280,000 individual ndian accounts valued &t $486 million and approximately $1.5 bilion
for 300 Tribas in 1,800 separate accouns.

The project consists of the following four activities:

o Raconcilation — invoives The collection of account records, determination of the
nocessary source documents, and account reconstruction.

(] Audit and Certification ~ consisis ol audting and cenifying the accounts
reconstructed in the reconciliation. The approach is for a different contractor to
conduct the independent audit and certification of the reconciliation effort in
order to verify account balances.

o Maintenance and Cominuing Reconciliation - requires the OTFM 10 establish
policies and procedures to account for and report on trust funds account
balances once the confractors have reconciled, audited and certified trust
SCCOUMts,

The goal of Raconciliation is to reconstruct the accounting records and the account balances in the
Tribal and ndividual Indian Monies {(IIM) accounts as accurately as possib Dack 10 the eariest
possible date practicable, using available accounting records and transaction data. The Reconciliation
and Audit and Centification Project has s its objectives the folowing:

o To establish & Quality Assurance stalt to provide, first, management of
the trust fund account reconciiation contract effort, ahd second,
management of the trust fund account audit contract;

1] To reconcite Tribal and UM accourt balances 1o the earliest date
practicable and maintain them in a reconcied state;
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<] To develop and implamemnt standard procedures for cormtinuing
reconciliations of Tribal and HM trust BCCOURS;

[¢] To ensure that standard procedwres and controls are in place to
maimain the itegnty of reconciled and audited accounts.

Trust Funds Management Improvement Program
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RECONCILIATION PROJECT SUMMARY

Background

Crver the years mamerous audit repons by the U.S. General Accowting Office (GAQ), Interior's Office of
Inspector General (QI1G), and independent public accountants have detailed problems involving
weaknesses in BIA's control and oversight of Indian trust funds. in 1988 and again in 1589 and 1990
jegislation was enacted that required the BiA to reconcile Tribal and individual Indian accourts as
accurately as possible back to the earliest date practicable. (n 1990, after OTFM was created, 3
Request for Proposal (RFP) to reconcide alf indian trust furkts was developed and advertised. The RFF
was developed in coordination with a trust funds ad hoc group comprised of tribes that owned over
87% of tha 1otal Tribal trust funds, the GAQ, Interior QIG, and the Office of Management and Budget
{OMB}. Tribal representatives have since constifuted themselves as the Inter-Tribal Monitoring
Association on Indian Trust Funds (1he Association). In May 1991, as the rasult of the RFP, the BIA
awarded a contract 10 @ major ingependent accounting firm, Arthur Andarsen & Co. to patorn the
required reconciliation. The reconciliation project will be conducted in two phases over an astimaled

five yoar period.
um of Statement of Work
In summary 1he comract requires the following:

o Al Tribal judgment award accounts wil be reconcited to the date of incaption of the
account, to the extert practicable, through the most current month-eand at the time 1the
reconciliations are being performed.

(<] Tribal income accounts will be reconciled to the date of inception, to the extent
practicable, 1hvough the most curment month-end at the time 1the reconciliation work is

being performed,

o] individual Indian money accounts will ba reconciled 10 inception of the account, 1o the
extent practicabie, 10 the most current month-end at the lime the reconciliations are
being pertormed.

0 All investment activity for each Tribe and the IIM fund will be reconciled with source
documertation 10 assure that the transactions are recorded properly in the BIA
accounting records:

- Identify uninvested funds to extent practicable;
- Identify period of time funds were unirvested;

- Caiculate estimated imerest lost.
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a Reacord and report alf underpayments and overpaymernts 10 Tribes and individual
indians.

o Furmish a reconciled account statement to each [IM and uibal account owner

As: ment P

The Reconciliation Contract required Arthur Andersen & Co 10 provide assessments within four weeks
atter initiation of field work at each IIM site and Tor each group of tnbal accounts as to the level of effort
and estimated costs involvad in the reconciliation. However, because of aiditional assessment activities

identified, the assessment period has been axtended through October 1991, The contractor will take
into consideration, as a minimum, the following factors in this assessment:

Aasessmaents Under the Contract

o Availability of records.
- Number of accounts.
- Number of distributions to be fuily traced.
- Number of distributions to be statistically sampled.
- Number of transactions of less than a dollar.
o Time assessmant.
- for raconciliation procedures
- for marwal database creation
- lor imaging documens
<] Time control methads contingent on
- starting point of audit

- statistical sampling plan
- stratification of accounts and transaction

Additional Assssament Activity

o Feasibility of collecting lost imterest data,
[+] Feasibility of collacting check dates on deposits.

] Feasibility of reconstructing all IIM accounts at an agency.
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0 Faasibiity of verifying that checks are drafted 10 the account owner.

[+] Timing of reconciliations of tribal accounts maintainad N Albuquerque,
Maw Mexico, and reconciiations Of related tribal accounts maintained i
Area/Agency Offices.

o Assassment of reliability of ownership records.
[°] Agsessment of the extert of previous control balances for selected accounts.

At the end of the assessment pariod, about 4 weeks after fieks work commences, representatives of the
Cepanment of the interior, BlA, the Association, GAC, and Asthur Andersen & Co will meet and evaluate
the meaningfulness of certain of the information and data collected by Arthur Andersen & Co, and how
it may be used. it must also be pointed out that the dates reflected within this Plan are based on
contract-established deliverables and timeframes. it is likely that cenain dates will be adjusted during
the late October Assessmart Meeting ameng BIA. the Association, GAQ, and Arthur Andersen & Co.

Trust Fund Accounts to be Recontied in Phase |
Phase |, which commenced June 1, 1891 and will conclude May 31, 1992, will include:

-] reconciling tribal trust fund accounts belonging to the tribes whose total
cash and investments ($1.3 biflion} rank by doflar value in the top 37
accounts owt of the trust fund accourts owned by approximately 300
Indian entities and maintained by the Bureau, including both judgment
and procaeds of labor accounts, and,

o reconciling individual Indian Monies (IM) accounts at the Uintah &
Curay Agency (Fort Duchesna, Utah), Olympic Peninsuta Agency
{Hoquiam, Washington}, and Fort Peck Agency (Poplar, Momana). The
17,572 accounts valued at $66.9 million at these threg Agencis are
summarized below:

Agency # of Accounts $ in Millions
Uintah & Quray 4,432 253
Fort Peck 9,182 9.4
Clympic Peninsula 3,958 322

Reconciliation will require the collection of account records from Area and Agency Offices across the
United States, determination of the necessary sowce documents for comparison to the subsidiary
general ledger balances, document imaging and storing (an electronic system of document filing,
storage and retrieval on optical disk), and actual reconstruction of each account.
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Trust Fund Accourts to be Reconciled in Phase )t

This Phase of the reconciliation effort will address the Tribal and IIM reconciliation 1or all accounts
maintained by the Bureau not addressed in Phase 1. Phase I} will require the Phase | contractor to
prepare a work plan that wilt indicate the hme, sequence and projected costs assocCiated with
reconciling the remaning M and Tribal accowms {approximately 270,000 and 1,300, respectively). The
work plan is 10 ba submitted to the Bureau no later than February 28, 1992, During Phase I, the
Aeconcitiation and Audit Project Management Team wilf lollow the same oversight. management,
rraining and haison eflorts for this activity as in Phase |, changes will be made as nacessary lo carry oul
the task. Oue 1o the enormous number of (M and Tribal accounts 10 be reconcrled, Phase I i3
expacted 10 span 4 years, through FY 1996.
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RECONCILIATION PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN

The tolowing is BIA's management plan to ensure the effective reconciiiation, audit and accounting for
trust lunds belonging 1o Indian Tribes andg individuals. The plan addressas pertinent background and
policy issues, information on tha type, number and value of Indian rust tunds. the role of the
Contracting Officer and the Coniracting Officer's Reprasentative, the rola of dasignated tribal
reprasentaiives, BIA pioject support tunctions and s1affing, contractar oversight, conractor reporting 1o
BIA, audit and certification plans and hmatables, and policies and procedures Lo ansure that balances
reman accurate once the accounts are reconciied. Al present, this Plan necessarily focuses on Phase |
work, as a siated purpose of the Phasa i effont 15 10 learn where the reconciliation of Indian trust funds
accounts wilt lead dunng Phase i. Accordingly. # s anticipated that this Plan will be updated in the
spring of 1992 10 incorporate the rasults of Phase | reconcihanons.

BIA Trust Funds Msnagement Overview

Figduciary Responsibility

in carrying Sut ts management and oversight of the ndian Trust Funds, the BIA has a fiduciary
respansibility to ensure that the trust accounts are properly maintaned and invested in accordance wih
applicable laws. and that accurate and complete reports are periodically provided to fund owners.
These reports must contain detailed informalion on all account activity which occurred dunng the
reporting period.

The Federal trust responsibility is @ very important imitation upon executive authority and discretion o
administer indian property. Decisions of the Supreme Court reviewing tha legality of administrative
conduct in managing indian property have held officials of the United States lo "'moral obligations of the
highest responsibility and trust® and “the most exacting fiduciary standards® and 10 ba "bound by every
moral and equitable consideration 1o discharge #s trust with good fath and fairness.”

Types of Indian Trust Funds

There are primary two categories of indian trust funds being addressed under the reconciliation and
audit and cendication project — funds belonging 1o fndian Tribes and funds belonging to individual
indians. Tribal funds are further categorized into: judgement awards from Indian Claims Comenission
cases (many 1or the cession of lands); proceeds for the sudace use of tribal lands (i.e. grazing, farming,
etc.); proceeds for the extraction of oil, gas and minerals; and, proceeds from timber harvest. The
major parhon {70%) of the current balance of Trbal funds consist of judgement awards.

The balances that have accumulated in the accounts belonging to individual Indians have come iom
per capita distributions of. judgement awards; land use agreements, oil, gas, and mineral extraction;
and, timber harvasts,
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Value of the Indian Trust Funds

The total of the Indian trust lunds on deposd in tha U.S. Treasury is approximately two billion dollars,
As of September 30, 1990 1he Bureau's accounting system recorded nearly 300 Tribes with 1,800
accourns with a balance of $1,495 891,506, and 288,033 Individual Indian Monies accourns with a ital
balance of $48F, 157,806. (Other Indian funds and irigation and powaer funds which BlA also manages
amounied 10 $87.618.472. These monies will be addressed in a separate special project )

SignHicant Accounting Policles

Cash Basis of Accounting. The Bureay uses 1he cash basis of accounting for the Indian Trust Funds.
When the accounting system was designed in 1he lale 1960's the investmant program was minuscule
with most ol 1he interest earnings derived from Semiannual interest payments by the U.5. Treasury,
Therelore, 2ccrual accounting capability for interest eamings, as required by ganerally accepted
accoudting principles (GAAP), was never provided. Likewise, income, other than interest earnings, is
also recorded when collected.

However, financial staterments being prepared in conjunction with this project will have 1o 1ake
cognizance of accruals, and iikewise repons will have 1o be annotated indicating any deviations from
the accounting standards established by GAQ in Title 2 of the Policy and Procedures Manual for
Guidance ol Federal Agencies.

Inyestment Authotity

25 USC 1623 (1938) authorizes the Secretary of the Interior 10 deposit Tribal and indwidual funds in
banks and te invest those funds in any public debt obligations of the United States, and in any bonds,
notes or other obligations which are unconditionally guaranteed as to both interest and principal by the
United States. AH deposits, including accrued interast, are raquired to be covered by appropriate
insurance or collaterakized.

investment interest Earnings Distribution

0 individual Indian Monies - Al IIM Junds are invested on a pool basis and inferest is
computed using the average daily balance method and is distributed on a monthly
basis. This method was initiated in June 1989. Prior 10 that date, the inlerast was
distributed using the month-end-batance method, which relied upon account batances
at the end of each month as a basis for distributing iterest. The month-end-balance
method was discontinued te eliminate inequities.

o Tribal Trust Funds - Tribal funds are invested on an individuat fund basis, Interest is
earned in two ways: (1) directly from investment securities in which the Tribal funds are
placed, such as cenificates of deposit at financial institutions or U. §. Government
Agency securties, o {2) when the lunds are not otherwise invested, the Bureau places
the fund in a Treasury overnight investment {“ovemighters”), which eamns a rate
comparabie to Treasury bill rates. The interest on the Treasury overnighter investments
is distributed using the average daily balance method.

Truet Funds Management Improvement Program Page 11
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o] Higtorical Note - Before 1963, the imerest samed on tribal funds was 4% per annum
simple interest paidt by the U.S. Treasury a$ authorized by 25 USC 161a. Until 1967,
Area Offices Jocally invasted and accounted for tribal trust fund investments. In about
1967 the cemralized investment program that exists today began o evolve.

Asconcilistion Methodology

$tatement Database

Tha account reconciliation process will commence with the craation of an electronic account statement
database. A database will be created for all triba? accowts and for each Agency’s group of Individual
indian Monay {IM) accounts. The databases will include transaction histories of all accounts, including
M special deposits. The transaction histories will ba downloaded to the statement databases lrom the
M and Finance System autamated accounting systems and manuaily encoded from manual account
records.

JiM ream Reconciliation Approach

The contractor will wtilize an upstream reconciliation approach for the M accoums by tracing all
transactions from the original sourca documents into the account statement database. The tracing
process will start with the most recent years and work chronologically backwards. Each transaction on
a source document will ba annotated, using a standardized Jegend, to indicate whether it was matched
10 the statement database. After the reconciliation the souce document will be scanned into BIA's
optical imaging media for a permanent record. The reconciled soufce document wil be annotated by a
stamped legand that it has been imaged. Lease distributions will be verified 1o the official land title
records.  Interest postings will afso be verified and interest will be caiculated on under and
overpayments. Reconciliation of the lIM system and the gutomated Finance System will include a
summary system lovel reconciliation of the general iedger account activity using a dBase IV program.

Tribal Downstearn Recongiliation Approach

The tribal source documents will be imaged prior to commencement of 1he reconciliation process and
annctated by a stamped legend that they have been imaged. The contractor wilh utilize a downstream
reconciliation approach for tribal accounts by tracing each kansaction ¥ the account statement
database to the imaged source documents using windows software. An annctation scheme for the
reconciled imaged documents will ba added 1o the image database, Reconciliation of the Finance
System investment general ledger data io the MoneyMax system will ba performed by the contractor in
tha same manner as in the 1989 and 1990 financial audits. Also, for information purposes, proforma
interast calculations will be performed on amounts in cash accounts that were pot invested by BIA in
bank certificates of deposit and Treasury securities.

idgbitity and T [
The responsibility for records availability rests with the BIA. Since May 1980, the Reconciliation and

Audit Project Management Team has been searching for and gathering all available accounting
records for both (1M and tribal accounts in order to provide the contractor with afl available records.
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Where records are not availabie, or other appropriate documerntation can not be found, the Contractor
will ingicate which accounts Could not be reconciled due t0 a lack of accounting records.

Entrance Confgrance

Emrance corderences will be heid with all Tribal representatives and individual Indians prior 10
beginning actual reconciliation of the accours. For Phase ), conferences were hald in July and August
1991 at the three Agencies scheduled to begin reconciliation work. Planning sessions for each
enrance conference were conducted with Tribal reprosentatives, allotlee groups, BIA Area/Agency
personnel, and the Association,

Entrance conlarences will be held with each of the tribgs in Phase | 1o discuss the purpose and scope
of the reconciliation project and to obtain tribal input. The BIA will work closely with each Tribe's
representative and, as appropriate, the Association to plan the entrance conference to meet the needs
of each tribe.

Tabie 1 on pages 15 and 16, details the schedule of Entrarce Conferences.

Table 2 on page t7 lists the tribes with trust tunds accounts included in Phase { of the Reconciliation
confract effort.

Exit Conterence

At the completion of each Agency’s reconciliation, there will be an exit conference conducted with each
Agency Superintendent and IM account holders. Copies of restated M accounts and explanations of
any recommended adjustments will be forwarded to the affected IIM account owner, and access to any
supporting documentation related to adjustments offered. Each account holder will be given the
apportunity to respond to the findings of the contractor. If requested, the contractor wilk mest wilh L1he
accourtt owner and the Agency Superintenciert or other appropriate BIA official, and, if requested, a
mamber of the Association, to discuss any adjustments.

Af the completion of the reconciliation of each tribe’s group of accounts, the contractor will conduct an
exit conference with the Tribe, coordinated through the Reconciliation and Audit Project Management
Teamn and, &t the Tribe's request, the Asscciation. Al the conterence, the contractor wili discuss and
explain account adiustments for the Tribe's group of accounts.

On the written approval of the alfected tribal or individual Indian account holders, representatives of the
Inter-Tribal Monitoring Assaociation on indian Trust Funds may attend the Exit Conference,

Reconciliation of Variances Betwegn MoneyMax ang Finance System

This project encompasses compietion of the reconciliation of the $17 million variance between BIA's
MongyMax program and the BIA Finance System as reported by the Office of the Inspector General in
fts September 1988 audit of Trust Funds,

Subsequently, Arthur Andersen & CO reconciled the $17 million variance down 1o $1,233. The
reconciliation revealed only account posting errors by the Office of Trust Funds Management (OTFM)
staff; no fraud or embezziement cccurred. In order to correct the $17 million variance and the incorrect

A
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account balances, the Burea: has posted all recommended adjusting entries 10 (he COmect accowis as
advised by Arthur Andarssn & Co. The account posting necessary lor comracting the majority of the $17
milion variance for this activity was compisted September 30, 1990. Duwring the reconciliation and audit
of the lIM and Tribal accouns, the contractor will pursue the remaining variance between the systems
which results from transactions posted prior 1o 1980,
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TABLE t

Entrance Conferance Schedule

OFFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT
ENTRANCE CONFERENCES, RECONCILIATION PROJECT

/[;; . INFTUAL SUX TRIBAL ACCOUNTS
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TABLE 1 {Continued)

Entrance Conference Schadule

OFFICE QF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT
ENTRANCE CONFERENCES. RECONCILIATION MROJECT
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Table 2

Tribes Whosa Accounis Are tnctuded In Phase | of tha Reconcllistion Project

1. Seminole (Florida and Cklahoma)
Seminoles of Florida
Seminoles of Oklahoma
Miccosukee of Florida
Independant Seminoles of Florida

2. Pembina Chippewa
White Earth, Minnesota
Chippewa Cree of Rocky Boy
Turtie Mountain Chippewa
Pembina Descendents
Littie Shell Tribe

3. Sioux
Cheyenne River Sioux
Flandreau Santoe Sioux
Pine Ridge Oglala Sioux
RAosebud Sioux
Standing Rock Sioux
Saree Sioux of Nebraska
Crow Croek Sioux
Lower Brule Sioux
Fort Peck Sioux

4. Pembina Descendants

5. Passamoquoddy

6. Panobscot

7. Confederated Tribes of Colville
8. Yakima Nation

Q

11. Turtle Mtn Chippewa {Award only)

16.

Sead

L]
-4

CERRER28IRNIRIBR

Flathead
3 Affiliated - Fort Berthold

. Sigseton and Wahpeton
., Ottawa-Chippewa

Grand Traverse Band-Chippewa
Sault Ste. Marie Chippewa
Bay Milils Chippewa

Hoopa

Hoopa Tribe
Ywok Tribe

. Pueblo of Acoma

Jicarilla Apache

Red Lake Pank of Chippewa
Hopi

Pima

Ta Moak Band-Western Shoshone
Uintah & Quray

Mascaloro Apache
Pueblo of Laguna
Southern Ute

Navajo

Creak Nation

Osage Nation

White Earth L.A.

Lac Courte Orniclies

Choctaw

Papago of Selis Agency

Salt River

Ute Mountain

Seneca Nation

Fort Pack
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Management Organization for the Reconclllation Contract

To ensure projact managemeant and oversight, BIA has established a Reconciliation and Audit Project
Management Team (Team) in Albuquerque, New Mexico 1o provide oversight and management of the
entire project. The Team will provide ¢contract oversight, management suppor, and training tor this
project, as well as liaison activities betweaen the contractors and BiA's Area and Agency offices, tribal
represenatives, and the Inter-Tribai Monitoring Association tor indian Trust Funds. The Project Team's
staff consists of experienced accountants, auditors, and financial analysts.

At Bla's Area and Agency offices, stalf will ba responsible tor providing experienced personnel (o assist
the contractors reconciliation. audit and certification teams and to ensure availability of adequate work
space and support services. Each BIA Area Director will designate one Arga Reconciliation Coordinator to
work with the contractors and OTFM staff on this project. The Area officas will assist it organizing
meetings between Tribes and individual Indians and the contractor and the Reconciliation Project Team.

Contracting Officer

The Contracting Otficer for the reconciliation contract with Arthur Andersen & Co is Mr. Pater S. Markey,
Branch of Contract anad Grant Operations, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Washington, D.C.. The Contracting
Officer is centified and appointed as a warraried official contracting agent for the BIA by the Deputy
Commissioner of Indian Aftairs. The Contracting Officer, solaly, has the authority to award, administer,
and terminate contracts and make related findings and determinations with regard to this contract.

Contracting Officer's Representative
The Contracting Officer's Representative (COR) lor the reconciiation contract is Mr. Donald M. Gray, Office
of Trust Funds Management, Bureau of Indian Alfairs, Albuquerque, NM. The COR, who is formally
designated by the Contracting Qificer, assists the Contracting Officer in administering the contract by
performing the foilowing duties:

o Assures that the BIA’s contract objectives are achieved;

° Notifies the Contracting Officer of any problems;

o Provides technical program interpretations of the contract siatement of wovk;

-] Maintains a record of all malters pertaining to the contract;

-] Conducts contract pertormance reviews by periodic she visits and/or other reviews:

o Reviaws invoices, progress reporls and final reports;

o Certifies satisfactory work performance and recommendations for payment.
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The Contracting Cfficer is the only individual that has the authority 10 comenit the Government in any
mannet that may affect the price, time, requirements of conditions of tha contract. The COR is the only
ndividaal. other 1han the Contracung Officer, authorized (o provide formal technical program
ntgrpretations 1o the contractor regarding the statement of work, including methods and approaches on

task performance.

BIA Structure for Reconclilation Project

El& General Qrganization

o

Central Office - The Bureau's Cffice of Trust Funds Management, reporting to the Deputy
Commissioner of Indian Affairs, was created in January 1990. The office establishes
policies, procedures and processes for managing the billing, collection, investment and
disbursement of the Indian Trust Fund assets and performs the related accountng and
financial reporing. v is located at 505 Marquette N.W. Suite 700, Albuquerque, New
Mexico.

Area Offices - The 12 Area Offices provide administrative and operational suppor for
Agency offices. The Area Offices are headed by a line officer that repons 10 the Deputy
Commissioner of Indian Atfairs. The Area Offices are a key communication link between
the BiA's Office of Trust Funds Managerment and ibe Agency Oftices. The Area Offices
through the Area trust fund accountant ensure compliance with trust funds policies,
procedures and processes.

Agency Offices - The Bureau's 93 Agency and other field Offices maintain direct contact
with the Tribes and individual Indians located throughout the United States. Generally,
Agency Offices are physically located near the Tribes they serve. The Agency Office plays
a significant role in trust funds management as the origination point of the billing,
catlection, investment and disbursement iransactions.

BIA Responsitilities for Reconciliation Project.

u]

The Office of Trust Funds Management is responsible for the overall project and contract
management.

Area Offices are responsible for providing the necessary experienced and professional
parsonred (0 assist the contractor's recondilialion teams and 10 ensure adequate work
space and support services are available as needed, The Area Offices also assist in the
organizing of meetings among Tribes and individual indians with contractor and BIA
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projact management personnel. BIA Araa Directors are required to
designate employees to act as Reconciliation Coordinators (RC) at their
Area Offices. Thase RCs coordinate with Agency Offices, arrange for work
space, ad 58rve as a clearing point for any requests lov data, records,
etc. for work in the lield.

Agency Offices are raquired to provide the necessaly access to supporting documentation
raquired in the reconciliation effort. A list of cortact points lor each Area and Agency

Office has been provided by the Area, and is included at page 22 as Table J.

Reconciliation and Audit Project Managemernt Team

A Reconciliation and Audit Projact Management Team has been established within the Office of Trust
Funds Management. An oiganization chart for the Team 1s depicied on page 23 in Table 4. The Team
provides the professionat expertise 10 pevform the day-to-day management of the reconciliation and aucdit
contracis. The Team also will provide oversight of the continued reconciliation of accounts once they

have baen reconsiructed by the contractor. Tha oversight for continued reconciliation will include
establishing policies and procedures. raining BiA personnet on the reconciliation process and

implementing monitoring processes Lo assura that the reconciliations are compteted within prescribed time

lines.

The Team wilt be staffed with the number and quality of personnel necessary to go on-ste
and perform the survey and reconciliation assistance to the contractor, ¥ nacessary, in
such cases as new personnel, absence of personnel, or any other circumstance that
imerrupts the reconciliation routine.

Professional and expérienced staff have been assigned Lo the reconciliation and audit project and
will be the core staff of the Reconciliation, Audit and Centification Project Management Team. The
core stalf are al prolessional accountants, auditors, and tinancial analysts with many year of
experience with the BIA and the various accounting systems and processes used to account lor

the Tribal and individual Indian money that will be audited. Tha Team is supporied by
exparienced clerical staff.

o

Project Management, A seniof accountant serves as Project Leader.
Another senior accountant will act as records manager and systems
analyst. A Financial Analyst within the project group assists with workioad
backiogs and special projects, Two secretaries will provide support and
administrative services to the Tearn.

Ligison. Two Team members will provide laison sevvices to the Tiibes, individual
Indians and their represantatives such as the Association, and legal
representatives. The liaison service will keap all wust lunds owners and/or their
represertatives informed of the pwpose and progress of the contract effor,
answer questions, resolve conflicts, interpret report results, and obtain guidance
and counsat from the fund owners. In the execution of Ihese duties the Liaison
Staft will perform the following representative tasks:

- Develop, establish and maintain a communication procass.

Trust Funds Managoment Improvement Program
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- Establish a mechanism for tracking and montoring the resolution of issues,
problems, complainis and requests for information.

o Recongiliation. Four professional accountants/auditors will overses, and
as necessary, perform the continued reconciliation effort at Areas/Agencies
after individual accourts have been reconciled by tha contractor. This
staft will also be responsibie lor intemal reviews at the income collection
and account maintanance locations 10 assure compliance with OMB
Circular A-123 (Intemal Controls) and other regulatory controls.
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TABLE 3

Area/Agency Contact Pointa for the Reconcilistion Effort
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TABLE 4

Reconcillation and Audit Project Mansgement Team
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Contracter
r it A iliation P

The organization structure for Arthur Andersen & Co refative 1o the reconciliation comract effort is depicted
on page 25 in Table 5.

Arthur Andersen & Co, a large, nationally recognized independent public accounting fim, was awarded
tha reconciliation contract on May 10, 1991. Tha Work Program prepared by Anthur Andersen & Co in its
proposal and response 1o BlA's Request lor Proposal provides a detaled project process description.
Rscognizing that certain procedures outlined in the original document are being amended as the
reconciliation effort gets underway, the Work Program still is an excelient basic outline for tha reconciliation
project and is valuable for contract monitoring and program assassment. it is therafore incorporated in
8ia’s Aeconciliation Projact Management Plan, and is included beginning on page 26.
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TABLE §

Arthur Andersen & Co Project Mansgement Organtzation Chart
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Arthur Andersen & Co  Work Program
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Work Program
T Swwaa s Idan wrfun

LI VO Genenai ued 1ot Adirurusanon  Cenl Offies Aol (i X000 19t

L1010 D20t Avee Coclt

Prograrn Rapel on Frisumad o APRCOARE G onalem | ] wecarows
i : . [ — oy . R
R et LI ey ’ any | C) e -
SR N SR | T e i e A, n
T i

: = Samphc of Sugeapiry sl Dovnl of Tras Fuids rpore for en sppropnascs

i waied y Tole s sccoume.

a Smple et 00 Sy e PRamacacia o W e sl i

+ Sampl gk g capde bt tows pencil ooy v e Faases $rees.
il

! Secoc ([ TM Kool
[ o Samgly fnel W S v iyt For svan.
.o  Samgw e b i
H ol ok b R

. +  BF 19 lnerband Tompbtets)
R 4 §F 1165 | Dulerenism seirTos |
o + SR Sommel vouien)

' - SEIMMI Mt — MM5) |
4 St AP 7 Jemcmair gt vt w i )
a  Lium Agresrnens .
+ Tithe phan et of owrsrsiup For wn alicienied vl e Wil :

a Calosion of dopsieseos periormand For & oo iaelt ek e Wbt -
agtencony. calouliasd vtng Leanr Dimninn Frogras w JRMS 5o ;

v Caulcukoos of dmmbaton of L re-ova prtfersiel sty |

Sacipte IV (LS v Fimy Systen Racosbantss !
+ Samphy i vk ol vl proar walin (B |
Wilings Arim SAampls wril) ot el 10 ¢ Y 10 I Ay o ol !
- 4 ks i ok of meh
SR Ty o b
vanaeem

ala” accowmty, f i ooy @ gt o e RMS Syam
v Darusmstsisc of wery sl for i dBasy [V rystem demgad ry Gur

Bt ek v P e # e o e o

i
[ i +  Propowd aiesmmes 5 du eppetyrs 1reey il e oS op sirv-
oo
: Pt 10 3t w8 s ooy e procis
| Seomem ¥ Levarmmett Recomcibitone

i

|

l- © Samphe MosryMen (lxvten Owsiyl} v1. Pt Syt taabtlaisg
i . Vor wpaecbc Trabvint, minl char (R4 ook, prforrosnd b comcwan wiil i
i

T uat 1990 Finsacl Suwmem Ay

+  Syegly Finagcy $yniwn Repxats (Gapartt Loatgper Demil) divutmmnng
WM TRARCOal Aad Aalurow

g tagt o et S chanpny
an Aol $UKH Db I PRI b Nt h .

BRI B I Fimata e WD e wuda

Trust Funds Management Improvement Program Page 28



8iA Reconciliation Project Mensgsment Plan

239

] Barcw A i an wfun

Work Program

Te AN enera and |y deruny urdon o eomy Offce.

S T+ M T

At Gate LR %1

Avea Code

Program Sassd on Pricsumed o At Condtions*

< nam a0k Al O o FUGUHNTANILE Aortuiu® & D SR of TN (4) R OF Ovt
MOOuNS LB U IROUNING. (VEOROWEE 30 ST COMTN e, S (C] Jul
S en PSS T v M b e

£

+ Saumpe MosryMas Symap Repors « Lo-asmwesg Owilisshay fourie of
Ti nd baknace

* Synpl capetmy oo for selic s on bt YR

* Acoies Dysnbubon Shest

+ Depots Tickas

+  DMPRS Depout Mouagy Ratrsertl Sytune: Aagom

+ Famepcs s0vor for Coverantot Secwnoe \Pracgs s learse
Pupdowtnr

+ Suomary of 1999 wod (990 mcosniaton resgc el remsiieg joucied

4 wrenge for cangrel office raeng w0 be hrid 1o Albuguarger dunag e fird fwa
wisticd ol Uhe ComTaET 10 e KD dayy SR i cOMOY renl

* Convduase with frld musagen. A0 scrsnge For ya mveres withis two io e
ol of comeencomen of fuld =-ork o onder @ s et bl of effon md
2o oF compiraoy Phase | of the comren.

4 Otrtagh wiivien approval frovs g COR @ procased based on et S
i wirngn lour waey of comnerment af fakd sk

" Propare seartdy ¥als repors o b proved to che SOR (wribed w wiek
Fallowiny uu S0k cOmphiug (e [WEvIcd il !t Untide of beass

+ coMA T dunag et (Ieond Wk by worg i

e

H
1

H

i H
H

1

i

H

prom

* cosu pcuTed o dam by work sar
ey of ertemm e wed Cop D ;ORI wrk g Provesl by work.

* deserapben of problom sress beung ehoowsiered

for mosshly siilus mumhog with field managen s et b onder 0
bt fully wafored of progress s s firm bend. o aidem 13 kacally
Mevaen i D (et feld
T Areags b gxoncly states meangs of G o'varall paree, macaper sos Moo
wth e COR o Albequirmee W chacms Do 1a dad prograst of te cvarll

H. Amaage ot quaneTly memmagy of tt overal] parer e mushiger & Wiashung-
o D it e coournag office. rpremetan oo of Congres wad b
el Acciurang (ffics 10 ducuis progrest wd propacions. i wall o
comcarny of By sppr g

11 Enmyre duw wam chapsgers wad smors havvt heid

WPPTOpTIN: WO
cigsing mamngy wih Burc parsoepe]. Trbal cornbert s indi v
MO IKSETL L8 SPPTOPTUNE.

“H BNOQRT 13 SR B & AU OF cONOvitRE ownd in the k] deacri IN Chifgm. A
I AT remrancy P CIRGSCEE RCREIN WA LI T QI MR for SUCT Cngm,

AT DI Emabd B DT gy Sk

Trust Funds Managsmant Improvemant Program

Page 29



240

BIA Reconcitlation Project Management Plan
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interest Calcutation

Aftachment 3 10 this Pian provides further details on the calculation of interest in cash holding sccounts
{or othge unalotted, temporary cash accauns) duning the reconcillation of tribal and individual Indian
accounts. In summary, for tribal accounts, Arthur Andersen & Co will use the following schodule of annual
rates of retumn for purposes of calculating tribal interest,

OFFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

! Laabna Trowt Frmie
Amaunt rotn of renre by Recal yaars

Y Endmg Trohud
Dum Fonat
4-30-7 .3
’ =01 3760
! ~30-72 LK
' &-3-73 .04
. [ LA
: -7 L1
i -30-70 (¥
. % AW
H $-30-71 TA™
| »-0- 1041
' -30-40 12 04%
: $20-01 19.00%
i 3002 14, A
i 3-8 10.50%
! - 10.54%
. 3045 10.97%
. #-30-04 4.30%
i -7 T adn
+3-. ¥ o™
3048 .90
-30-50 AT

= Dt dhovivndl Froms airvastuined detemsl o,

=M deim Touml proos w slove dnipy.

=Thosnr: fgmies: do wot inc hult crrirmght whiseramt yorki.

~Trmsoon yirwr FY 1976 (uly-Sapt 19763 res an
bt Thet caloaiates will e provided o0 4 iaer deis.

The above annualized rates inchude Treasury Overnighter interest rates, which must be adjusted out for
the proforma interest analysis.

For individual Indian monies accounts, Arthur Andersen & Co will use the applicable semi-annual interest
facior from 1938 through May 31, 1989, From June 1, 1989 forward, the actual intevest factor used for
these M funds that were invested will be used.

Dara collectad during tribal and individual Indian accourt reconciiations wil be captured on the
worksheets displayed in Tables 6 and 7. on pages S0 and 51.
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Tabls 8

Transaction snd lnvested Balance Hlstory
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Coopaersting Parties

Cooperating parties to the reconciliation project managemant team, such as the Jnter-Tribal Monitoring
Association on indian Trust Funds; the US Ganeral Accounting Office; the Office of Management and
Budget: Congressional committees; the Department of the Interior staff offices; and the Dapanment of the
interior Office of Inspector Genaeral, may communicate contract scope and performance

changes only through the Contracting Officer of the Contracting Officec’s Representative (COR}. The BIA
axtends o the coopersting parties the opporunity 1o meet with the Comtractor 10 discuss scope and
methodology matters. However, since only the Contracting Officer and the COR may formally effect
changes to the contract, all such meetings must be aranged through and be conducted in the presence
of the Contracting Officer or the COA. The COR will arrange with the Contractor and insure that alf
pertinent parties are notified of the time, place and purpose of requested rmeetings.

Tribal i ement and rdination

The nature of the reconciliation project, like the development of long-range oplions, or performance of
strategic planning for the futire of the Indian trust funds management program, requires tribes 1o play an
integral role in the development and implememation of the reconcikation (reconstruction} and audit
process. In recognition of this Tribal role. the Assistant Secretary - Indian Altairs has established the
policy of working in a government-to-government reiationship with affected Tribes. Towards this end, BIA
and the Association's predecessor organization. an ad hoc group from the tribes with Phase [ tribal
accounts, began work in the fal of 1990 on the development of the technical parameaters for the
reconciliation and audit of Indian trust funds. This effort culminated into the reconciliation contract with
Arthur Andersen & CO that was awarded in May 1991. The lollowing dascribes the various tribal groups
and individuals that BiA and the contractor will cooperate with during the recongiliation projects Ide.

0 Tribal Reconciliation and Audit Coordinators. Each of the Phase | Tribes (including those

with aliottees in Phase 1} have bean invited to designate a representative and aiternate {0
work with BlA and the contractor during the reconciiiation and audit of their Tribai
accounts and the IIM accounts of their Tribal members. These representatives will perform
the following functions:

Ensura that proper Tribal ieaders and individual Indian represeniatives are invited
to all scheduled meetings.

Work with BIA and the contractor to locate records from Tribal and individual
Indian sources.

Work on overfunder payment strategies with BIA.

Communicate Tribalindividual Indian concerns and questions concaming the
reconciliation project to the Contracting Officers Representative.

Work with BIA and the contractor to interpret reconciliation results 10 Tribe and
individual Indians.

Communicate project purpose and scope to Tribal goveming body members and
individual Tribal membaers,

Trust Funds Mansgement improvemant Program Page 52



Bla Asconclilstion Project Management Plan

Work with BIA on communication techniques with individual account owners 1o
ansura they are informed of the project purpose and scope and maans by which
the accourt owners can communicate questions, concarns and information 10 BIA
and the Reconcikalion, Audit and Centification Team.

Paricipate in dacisions relating 10 the cost effectiveness of continued reconciliation
effons on Tribal and individual accounts.

1o |nmauonol'reconctltauonwotkatthe lhraeAgencaesrlPhassl Planngsessmsfoc
aach entrance conference will be conducted with Tribal representatives, allottee groups,
BIA AreafAgancy personnel, and the Association.

Entrance Conferences Wil Be retd With Each of the Tribes in Phase | to discuss the
purpose and scope of the reconciliation project and to obtain Tribal input. As staled
above the BIA will work closely wilh each Tribe's Coordinator and the Association to plan
the emrance conlerence by Tribe.

A Training Course tor Represematives of the Ph 1 Ti as

Gonductad by the Association and BIA on July 25 - 26, 1991. This meeting gave the

Contractor and the Tribes a chance 1o discuss together 1he procedures 10 be used during
the coursa of the Project, and to allow for a clear understanding of the level of contact

expacted between the Tribes, the IIM account owners, the BlA and the Contracior prior o
inkiation of the Hekd work,

Inter-Tribal Monitorin: iation on_in T Fun

Representatives from tribes gwning 1he majority of tribal funds managed by BIA were initially invited by BIA
10 sefve on an ad hoc group. Based on the approval of their tribal governments, many of the tribal
representatives of this ad hoc group have subsequéntly constituted themseives in a formal manner as the
Inter-Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Funds {Association). A Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) between the BIA and the Association was signed Juna 18, 1981, The scope of the understanding
is detailed in the MOU, a copy of which is found at Atachrment 1. The following are the specific tems that
relate to this projoct:

+]

Prepare and present a training program for the representatives of the Tribes that
are participating in the Phasa | study {¢conducted July 25 - 26, 1991),

Communicate information provided by the BIA to all Tribal governments with trust fund
accounts, consult with all Tribal govemmants with trust fund accounts ang develop a
mechanism for the paricipation of HM account halders in the trust fund management
reform process.

Receiva one of more copies of ail repons, contract modification proposals, and other
deliverables submitted by the Phase | contractor 1o the BIA, subject to Tribal or individual
indian Privacy Act and proprietary financial information rules.
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o Participate, as invited by Tribes, in all dacisions on when i is no longer cost-effective tor
the Phass | contractor to continue to reconcile a particular Tribes accounts.

o Participate in development of guidelines for M accounts regarding when reconcilistions
are considered not to be coat-effective.

o Participate in the preparation of the approach and communication materials used with the
Tribes and IIM accounts holders for axplaining the meaning of the findings of over or
UNGer ParyYIMaNts.

In addition Association representatives may, upon written permission of the affected tribal or individual
Incan account holkders, participate in Exit Conferances or other sessions whare the account holders
recaive specific explanations of the findings of the reconciliation from the contractor or BIA

representatives.
Contrector Oversight

BIA's contractor oversight method will include weekly, monthly and quartary meetings and repors 10
ensure that reconciiation work is progressing, important issues are effectively resolved, and that account
holders” representatives are assured that the best practicable results are being achisved. The Contracting
Officer's Representative {COR) will also conduct on-site workpaper raviews and conférences with
contracior site stalt 1o ensure comract compliance. The COR will also consuh with BlA agency siaff and
tribal representatives on the audit progress from their perspective.

In adrition to the above, the project tasks will ba detaited and monitored using project management
software. The following is a description of Phase I's scheduled meetings and repons under the contract,

o One Time Projection. The contracior is required to mest with the Contracting Officer’s
Rapresentative within two to four woeks of the initiation of field work at each site for IIM, or
the intiation of work on any one Triba's group of accounts to provide an assessment of
(1) the fevel of effort mvolved with the reconciliation of the relevant accounts, and {2) a
projection of the expected costs for that site for IIM or group of accourts for the Tribe(s).
This maeeting is meant 10 be a check point in the work plan to evaluate whether the
resources, approach, limeliness, and costs appear to be adequate to cover the Phase |
workplan,

o Woekly Progress Heports. The contractor is required to submit to the COR
a wookly progress repont. The COR will further submit a copy of the

nairative portion of these reports, with additional written comments, to the
Cortracting Cfficer, the Office of the Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs,
GAQ, OIG and, as appropriate tha Association, by the end of the week the
reports ard recoived by the COTR, This report is intended to documen
the Contractor's progress in meeting the target dates projected in the
GAANT and PERT chans for the Project, and to assist in identifying any
problems encountered. They will be due the end of the week following the
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repaovt week, and must sumimarize the progress at sach work site and fund
group (i.e., Tribal or IM).

a Monthly Corderence. The COR and the Contractors Partner, Manager and senior staff on
he project will rmeat morthy. This is meant 1o assure &t east a monthly face-to-face
meeung with the contractor to monitor the progress and discuss any problem argas
identifiect by either the Contractor or the BLA.

o Quanterty Meatings. Project Oversight Committee meetings between Office of Trust Fund
Management Reconciliation and Audit Project Manager, Contracting Officer, Contractor,
and Reprasematives from the Association will occur quanedy. This group will receive a
briefing from the Contractor on the progress to date with a written report summarnzing
accounts reconciled by year to date for each Agency {IIM) and for each Tribe addressad.
The group will review and resolve any problems idemified duning the course of the project.

o On:site Review of Contractor's Workpapers by the COR and BIA project management staff
can oceur at any time, bit will be accomplished at least quarterly. This is intended t0 give
the COR the ability to see if the procedwas used by the Coniractor are being applied

adequatsly.

0 A Review of a Preliminary Drafts of Reconciled Accourt Reports will be conducted by the
Contractor, Tribes, Indian Accourt Owners, and by the COR and stafl. This will allow the

COR to asswe that the Contractor is preparing the reponts as intended by the Contract,
and (o give the account owners an opporiunity 1o comment on any proposed adjustments
and/or problems with the reconciled stalements prior to issuance.

o xit Conference between Account ers and Cortractor. The Exit Conference will
be scheduled upon Completion of the Final Draft of Reconciled Statements. This formal
meeting is intended to allow a final opportunity with the account owners 1o review the final
product, any adjustments recornmended, interest receivable/payable projected, etc.
related 10 the accounts and should include the tentative final report, the managemert
letter, access o workpapers, source docurnents, any adjustments recommended,
projected interest recoverable/payable, sic., related 10 the accounts.

o Other Coatacts. In addition to the meetings and reports covered above, there will be
" other types of contacts, such as telephone calls and unscheduled meetings on an *as-
required” basis during the course of this Project.

o On-Site Staff. Experienced Audit and Reconciliation Management Team or other
BlA accourting staff will be on site at @ach of the three IIM reconciliation sites for a
minirmum of the first 30 days of reconciliation work, and longer as necessary.

Q Core Group. A Core Group of BlA staff irom the Office of Trust Funds
Management and designated Area/Agency Trust Accountants and Project
Coordinators with experience in iIM systems and BIA's trust fund accounting
system is designated to serve as troubla-shooters to Quickly provide guidance,
interpretations, and training to the audit personnel ether by phone or by traveting
1o the audit site within the next work day to provide face-to-face consultation.
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o Overgight, Oversight wilt be provided by the Office of the Assistant
Secretary - Indian Affairs and the Management Improvement Oversight
Commitiee (MIOC), satablished by Secrotary Lujan and OME Director
Darman in April 1991, The MIOC is co-chaired by the Assistart Secretary -
Indian Aftaire and the Director, Division of Financial Managemen, OMB. it
also includas interior's Assistant Secretary - Policy, Managemert and
Budget, OMB’s Associate Deputy Director for Management, and BIA'S
Deputy Commissioner of Indian AlNairs. A Deputy Assistant Secretary -
Indian Affairs serves as Executive Cirector of the MIOC and provides
management planning, rouble-shooting assistancs, and day-to-day

oversight to the Trust Funds Management Improvernent Program.,

Trust Funds Managemant Improvement Program
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ASSURING THE INTEGRITY OF RECONCILED/AUDITED ACCOUNTS

Reconciled/audited accouns will be maintained current Dy the following processes:

o Daily reconciliaion ol transactions irom the source documents to the
automated sysi@ms 10 assure they were accepied and balanced;

4] Monthly reconciliation of automated system balances, Le., M subsidiary
systemn general ledgers to the Finance System genoral ldgers, MoneyMax
to the Finance System, and Finance System 10 the Treasury repons:

o Ancual audits of all Indian trust lund groups of accounts by an
independent public accourting firm.

The Office ol Trust Fund Management will provide oversight to ensure that the responsible BLA personnel
pearform the required reconcilistions.

The maintenance of the Indian trust fund accounts in a reconciled sate is essential to BIA's basic trust
funds management responsibifities. As a general overalt approach, reconciiation procedures wil be
written and implemented through formal training programs.  Also, staffing and computer
hardware/scitware requirements 10 execute the reconciliation procedures will be determined and made
available, Special attention will be given to ensuring reconciiation of cash accounting and any other type
transactions potertially subject to itemal control failures or raudulent acts, More specifically, for each
type of trust fund, the BIA will use the following procedures 10 sffect ihe maintenance ol aCCOUNS on a
current basis:

M ciliath

o The IIM system data input points will perform a batch total verification on a
daily basis thar the transactions entered were accepted Dy the system.

o The IRMS IIM subsidiary account subsystem control account totals will be reconciled with
the BIA Finance System general ledger controls on a monthly basis using the dBase v
reconciliation program developed and implemented bureau wide by the Office of Trust
Funds Management {OTFM). .

o The Area Offices will be required to submit to OTFM a standard BLA form showing the

results of the IRMS/Finance System reconciliation, including adjustment action taken,
within 15 days after the month end close of tha two systems.
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Aeconcillation statements not received by the 20th day afler month end close of the tw
systoms will be followed up on by the OTFM. The OTFM will arrange to have the
reconciliation completed by the 25th day after month end close.

Monthly reconciliation batween the Treasury financial statements and the BIA Finance
System.

individual accourn accuracy will be enswed by the following:

Annual financial and compliance audit by a Independent Public
Accounting Firm.
Periodic statistical sampling of accounts in each Asea by the OTFM.

- Complate reconstruction of minor award fund accounts prior to payment ta
account owners based on the award fund distribution plan.

Complete audit under the direction and monitoring of OTFM of all estate
accounts prior 1o their distibution and closing. This would inchuce an
audit of the distribution documentation and the posgting of the ransaction

4]

Daily verification by the OTFM of the disbursement iransactions entered (o
the Finance System, to the source documents.

Daily monitoring by the OTFM of tribal trust fund receipts 10 ensure the amounts depos
in the US Treasury equal the amoums entared into the BIA Finance System.

Monthly reconciliation between the total amount of tribal trust funds in the Treasury anc
the BIA Finance System. :

Annual review of individual accounts by the OTFM using statistical sampling procedure:
Annual financial and compiiance awdit by an Independent Public Accounting firm,
Compiiance raview by a quality assurance entity within the OTFM of all award fund
distributions.
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AUDIT AND CERTIFICATION OF THE RECONCILED ACCOUNTS

A contract will be issued with an independent public accounting fim 1o audit and certify balances and
rander an opinion on tha results of the reconciliation work by Authur Andersen & CO. Each tribal account
and each Agency group of IM accounis will ba audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards published by the American institute of Cenified Public Accountants and the U.S. General
Accounting Office, and an opinion issued by the Independert Public Accourtart as 10 compliance. The
contract will be awardaed early in the spring of 1992, during the Phase | Reconciliations, in order that audit
work can e performed within 60 to 90 days after the reconciliation work on each account is completed.
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The loliowing is a list of Key Project Milestones in process or 1o be taken in managemant of the Bureau of
indian Affairs’ Trust Funds Reconciliation Project. These Key Milestones are being used for perodic

KEY PROJECT MILESTONES AND ACTIVITY CALENDAR

folow-up and tracking.

COOO00 0000000000000 00POOOCD0D000O

Dates reflected above will be adjusted based on discussions and decisions during the Octobar 1991

KEY MILESTOMES

Contract Award to Anthur Andersan & Co
Contractor, BlA, and Association Orientation and Training
Inventory of BIA Account Records at AreafAgency Oifices
Agency Office On-Site Planning Meetings

Instaliation of Document Imaging Systems

Tribal Coordinators Briefing

Commence IIM Entrance Conferences

intizte IIM Reconciliations

Contractor's Monthly Status Report

Gompleate ItM Entrance Conlerences

Comymnence Entrance Conferances 1or & Initial Tribes
Contractor's Monthly Status Repon

Complete Entrance Conferences lor 6 Initial Tribes
Commence Entrance Conferences for Balance of Phase | Tribes
Contractor's Monthly Status Report

Quarterly Maeting & Joint Data Assassment Meeting

IIM Materiality Review

Cortractor's Monthly Status Report

Issue Audit Contract RFP

Comtractor's Morthly Status Repont

Contractor's Monthly Status Report

Quarterly k

Contractor's Momthly Status Report

Phasa Il Assessment

Complete Entrance Conferences lor Balance of Phase | Tribes
Contractor's Monthly Status Report

Conttractor's Monthly Siatus Repon

Quarterly Moseting

Corstract Award for Audit RFP

Contractor's Monthly Status Repont

Phase | Reconcifiation Complote

SCHEDULED
COMPLETION

May 10, 1991

June 28, 1991

July 3, 1991

July 1, 1991

July 19, 1991

July 26, 1931

July 30, 1691
August 1, 1991
August 7, 1991
August 9, 1991
August 22, 1991
September 9, 1991
September 17, 1991
October 2, 1591
October 7, 1991

Januay 7, 1992
January 10, 1992
Fetwuary 7, 1992
February 28, 1992
March 2, 1992
March 8, 1992
April 7, 1992
April 10, 1982
April 17, 1982
May 7, 1992

May 31, 1992

Assessment Meeting involving BIA, the Association, GAQ, and Arthur Andersen & Co.

Details of reconciliation project activities, as of September 1991, are portrayed in Attachment 2,
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ATTACHMENT 1 - Memorandum of Understanding Between the Bureau of
Indian Aftairs and the Intar-Tribal Monitoning Association or
indian Trust Funds

Teust Funds Management Improvement Program
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MEMORANDIM OF UNCERSTANDING
mmmwmmmmm
INTER-TRIBAL MONTTORING ASSOCTATION QN INDIAN TRUST FUNIS

I.  Backgoound

The Bureau of Indian Affairs axd same 40 of the tribes with tribal or
irdividual DIrdian Money (IIM) trust fund acoounts have worked since the fall of
1990 on developing technical parameters for a major, milti-year reconciliation
{reconstruction) and audit of tribal and TIM trust fund acoounts. 37 of these
tribes are included in "phase cne® of the BIA‘s reconciliation (reconstruction)
amd audit effort. The nature of the projeact, as well as developing long-range
options or atrategic planning for the future of the trust funds program
requires these and other affected tribes to play an integral role in the
develommernt and implementation of the reconciliation (reconstiuction) amd audit

process.

These phaseé one tribes, along with BIA staff and Cngressional and General
Acoounting Offios representatives wele mambers of an initial Trust Funds Ad Hoc
Group. These 17 phase ome tribes were initially selected by the Bureau to
serve on the initial Ad Hoc Group on the basis of the holdings of those tribes
and their members in the trust funds accounts adainistared by the Bureau.
Bagal on the approval of their tribal govarrmants, the tribal represertatives

of this A Hoc Group have subsequently constituted themselves in a formal
marmer as the Inter-Tribal Monitoring Assaciation an Indian Trust Punds (the
Association).

The reconciliation {reconstruction) and audit project; the corrwction of daily
cperational weaknesses in the trust fund managenet proosss: and the dssign of
sach new  trust funds mAragement systems as nay be rwquired are components of a
major Departmental multi-year effort to improve substantially the administra-
tion of the EIA's trust funds panageert program. A critical element in the
suocessful copletion of the effort is the cooperative activities of the tribal
ard IIM account holders affected by this reform.

The tribes omprising the Association have jndicated their willingress to
uiertaks such cooperative efforts, and have already expended subetantial
affort, ofessional staff time, and mowy in  this collaborative proowss,
Thesa tribes’ contributions to development of the final RFFO and contract for
the actual phase ane work are recognized by the Bureau. Building an this past
cocparative effort, the Bureau and the Association agree to an approach to
promote  further Tribal/BIA consultation, plamning, and cocrdination in order to
angure a tnwt funds raragenet program that fully msets fecdearal and tribal
tinancial requiresents, This Mascranchm of Understanding is intended to
provide the vehicle for exparded and continuous cocperative planning and review
activities betwmen the BIA ard the Agscciation,

The BEIA, recognizing the substantial mues already epended by tribes of the
Association in working with the EBIA, amd in rulfuu.ngt:hspledqaotth-
Agaigtant Secretary - Indian Afrairs o work in a federal-tribal

the remaining aspacts of this multi-year effort of the Departmenit, wum:m-
in this Mamorandm of Understarding with the Association to set forth the
m%m of these ococperative activities in this and future years of
this e .



The BIA and the Asaociation will jointly:

1.

Dwvelop shared perspectives on a strategic plarning approach and issues
resolution on trust fund management, including short- and lang-ters
requirements, pricrities and time fromes;

Designate working groups, subommittess, or such othar arrangenents as
my be appropriate to fulfill the purposes of this Mescrandas of
Understanting;

Prepare and present & training progran for the reprwsentatives of the
40 tribes that are participating in the Fhase I study: and

Address any issuss that arise in regard to the tasks set out in this
M.

The Association will:

1.

3.

Dwmlop a conoept paper that sets out the acoount holders’ perspectives
an the future directions for the investoent and swnagement of Indian
trust fnds, uhich paper will be corsiderwd in tha development of the

long-tarm strategic plan;

Cammnicata information provided by the BTA to all tribal gowrrmants
with trust fund acoounts, coonult with all tribal govermments with
trust And accounts and  develcp a mechanism for the participation of
I accoamtt holders in the trust fund managamant refGrm pProohss;

a. Rmmive om urmcpi-otnltm omtract mxdifications,
and other delivarables, orsistant th adiwrence to the Pri\m:y
Act and wmw&mﬂmmyﬂm
an? individual financial information, suaitted by the Phase I
comtractor to the Duresu of Indian Affairs.

b, Unn the inwvitation of a tribe, participata in all decisions an
when it is o longer cost-effective for the Phass I contractor to
cantinue to try to reconcile a particular tribes acoant and in the
developmestt of alternatives whan reconciliation of an account is
fourd not to be cost-effective.
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Arcicipate LA Welxmart of quidel e for IIM 4C0OTte ~eghrl g
o rRONCilIAC LN ATe NS M nOt LD be Pt wlfect v,

4. ?tw::b omerts Tegariirg applicatian of acoaunting pruxc.ples,
asvelopmert of repocting standards, and  repoct  formats for <he
Passe T suxdy.

4. Participata in the preparation of the approach ard commarication
matarials used wirth the Tribes and IIM sccowt holders for
o@laning the maring of the findings of over- or urder-pd Tert.

4. Paview and have Pt into all aspects of the Maragerert Plan for the
Mase [ sOdy ard shoct- wd lag-tare strategic plane to b devel pwed
by the BAIA;

5. Receive ard provide rput on significant proposed charges or revis:srs
N e oparstion of the ATA Trust Aod Progras: ard

§. Paticipats n tribe—spacific or IlM scoougt-spacific issusm aly in
Casas Jhare the trbe or IIN aooount Moldar agress to  gah
paArtTicipatian.

I, Tham OLA shall:

L. Tbtain Asscclatian participstion in all of the sattary provided for in
Sectian B above:

2. Cheain Mgt fram the Aasociation an all of the DATTArS spacified |0
Sectiaon 8 and provide writtan remxrwes o the Association that
irdicata whethwr or not the ATA sooepted the Asscciation’s Lrput, and
1f not the reascrs it did not do so! amd

3. Develap & short- and long-tarm stratagic plan for the Trust Puad
Program.

_ A fk 1991
This Meoranctm of Understarding is entarwed Umwo this dmy o .

\\

/

Irdian Atfaire
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ATTACHMENT 2 - Reconcliation Project Activity Scheduie
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BIA Reconclliation Project Management Plan

ATTACHMENT 1 - Letters to inter Trabal Mootonng Assowaton on Indian
Trust Furds. Tonfuming Resolved Reconcikaton fssues

Trust Funda Management Improvement Program
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United States Department of the Interior E‘

- OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, DC 20240

AUG 3¢ 1991

By FACSIMILE

Elowse C. Cobell, Chairperson

Intertnbal Monitonng Association
On Iindian Trust Funds

P Q. Box 850

Browiung, Montana 59417

Dear Ms. Cobell:

| am wrting 10 yOu t0 concermng the tentative resolutions reached at the July 25 - 26,
1991 session n Denver. | appreciate your and the Association’s willingness 1o address
the unresclved issues earlier rather than later. | believe the sense of cooperation
dispiayed in the July 25 evening session is essental to our shared goal of an improved
Indian Trust Funds Management operation.

Concluding that session, the parties agreed 10 take the list ol resolved issues back to
Interior management and Associaton officzais 10 obtain finat approval.

Upon return to Washington, D.C.. we met with the representatives of the General
Accounting Office (GAQ), and also discussed the resolved issues with a representative
of the Office of Management and Budgst. | believe the GAQ rework of the resclved
iIs5U8s accurately documents, and aiso helps clanfy the resolutions reached on these
IsSUesS, and | am plaased to confirm that the GAQ document represents the Department
and BIA's understandings on these matters. A copy of the GAQ document is artached
as Enclosure 1.

i Deleve tha language in the GAQ document will provide the Association approprate
assurances regarding the resolved issues, and it will also provide adequate operational
defintions upon which BIA can instruct s reconciliation contractor, Arthur Andarsen &
Co.
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Again thark yBu for your assistance n the successhul resolution of these matters

Sincerely,

William D. Bettenberg
Deputy Assistant Secretary -
Indian Affairs

Enciosure
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CAQ CLARIFICATION ON AGREEMENS
ON BIA TRUST FURD RECONCILIATION
AT DENVER MEETING OM_JULY 26, 199}

1. Calculation of interest. Arthdr Andeérses & Co. will
¢alculate the difference betwean actual interest pa1d for money
tn cean holdling accounts (eor othef wnallotted, temporary caah
accouncs) and the anpus! interadt cata as #et out On page 4 of
the reconciliation contract for petfiods prior te 1970, Arthyr
Anderson & Cu. will use interest rates on arcachment A for
peciods afcer 197C. Applicabla provisions on pags 4 of the
teconciliation gonttact will be revised to reflect scatutory
taterest tates, compoundad ee folliows:

Trivdi: Semiannually using 4% rate through June 30, 1770.
From July 1., 1970 forwerd, intecest must be calculated using
the annuel rate pfovided by the Hranch ¢f lnvestments for
the Tribel Truet Funds.

IlM: wMonthly using the applicebls semi-snnual intermst
facetor from 1338 through May 31, 1989. From June i, 1989
Eozrward, the actual interest factor wsed f£¢r thosa 1IN funds

that wale invested would be used.

At the end of the CONTLACC'S as$sead¥snent period, after arthug
Andersen 3 o, htas cvullected sufficlent Jata >n tne six tribes
and IIM accounts at one agency location, cepresentacives of the
‘ncerior Jepartmenc, BIA, the Assocletion, Ar-huzr andersen & Co.,
and GAO will mest to docide how k¢ interpret ne dete. For
axample, daza presented will i1nclude: differe Zes 10 average
annusl iniLerwst ratee And Actual tntecest et 9 pald by BIA,
typical proc¢essing times and sctual proceesin: tlmea, recelpt and
deposil tireframes, statutory guidelines, availabilicy of truet
iovestment inssiuctions, #tc. Lof purposss of developing
pracedures for calculeting uyneccrued L1nterest,

13

Enclesura *
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As agreed ko #t the Denver meeting, AITthul Andersen & Co, will
uee Che rev188d worksheet {(#ttachment B) to ceptute dacy
necessary for celculating interest.

2. Timing of Deposite. With regard to psyments recelivaed by BlA
on Gbehalf of the tribes and (ndividuel Indisns, when the dgte of
actu#l receipt 1% not shown in BIA recoids, Archuz Andersen & Co.
will show Lhe psyment 188us date oSN the woIksheet next Lo the
deposit daitw. (A payment 1ssue date might be deteimined from a
SF-215 deposit ticket for & fedeIal payes or from cecords of
#ccount holders.) If no record of & peyment issu® dets or record
of an actual dete of receipt by BlA can be foyund, only the date
of deposit will ne recarded con the workshest.

3. Accounts to be Reconciled. BIA will direct Arzchur Andezsen
& Co. to reconctile, during Phamse 1, ell tr;bal end IIM esccounte
whether open or closed, regerdless of when they werse closed and
cegsidlens of the sccount balence. 1IM sccounts to be reconciled
will be identified by trecing evecry deposit Czenssction to the
sppropriate IIM etecement, ee wall a» cthe discribution of
silocated payments, Arthur Andersen & Co. should teks
SpPropridte SZaps to enduze thet eny chenges 1n BIA's allocetlion
tebles f5r paymenc distcibution did not resul: 10 inedverzaent
deletion of sccounts. 30 the extent thac Arc:-ur Andersen & Co.
<ses sampling techniques to deteImine proper ietribucion of
alloceted psymsante, the sdmples end metnedolocy used wWill be
clearly documented., In the cese of tzibal accounte,
teconciliecion will be bewed on & liet compli.»d frow GAO sudic
reports, Tceasury Finenciel $Sctateamance, snd B 4 finencial
cecords. A lisc of eccounts wo be reconstructed will be
presented to eech cribe prior to their EZncrence Conference for
confirmetion pucpuses. Tribsl sccounte will be feconciled to the

3
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earliest Jate praceicable, by tracing indlvidyal trinesce;ons

for each dCcCoymt ©o the appropriate Liibsl statemencs,

'R Missing Paysents from Payor. As part of che reconciliat,on
affort, arthur Andersen & Co. will not specifically look for
instcances wheryg peyors {(lessees, etc.) have (siled -0 mMake
payments due BIA account noldars. However, to the extent chat
arthur Andersen & CO. does note missing payments durlng che
reconsiliation (for exsmple, cprough testing psynent #llocation
fzemulas 2y Ly ueans of dats provided by account aolders), Archur
Ande-sen & Co. will record tnese missing payments o¢n its
worksileets during he reconciliation,

5. Disbureemants, To the extent r4cords sre evailable, Arthar
Anderaen & Co, will verity that checks were drafced co the
account holder. However, Arthur Andersan & Co. will noc ident)fy
whether the recipient {(the parcy who cashed the check) was cthe
account nolder of record.

.

The parties will meet with Tressury Depacfment officials to cry
t0 resolve Lhe oucstanding check rseue snd to get documentation

ofi ¢chackes that wer® not cashed,

6. Collection Of Qwarpayments., Except for -ollection sctions
siteady > process, the BIA will not resolve .0y overpaymantcs
nt1l accuunrs have been reconciled end audit-d end cert:fied and
reported to the cognizant congressionsl comnmi-tess, and the
agcount holders heve been notified by BIA of he possible over-
payments and efforded opportunities, coneists ¢ with rhe Deabt
Collectioh act, to review end provide {nput 1nto the reconcili-
ation and audit gonclusions reporcted by Arthur andersan ¢ Co,
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1. Beope Issues. 1t i recognized oy the parties i{nvolvgs
that thece Bre some trust fund lssses chat go beycnd the scope of
this teconcliliation effort, For exampls, updates of realy
recordd are necessary to 4nsure 4 proper begis for meny lncome
peyments. BIA aseds to collect deta on the currency of ownersh:p
recurds in the verious Ares Offices, snd rscommend § way to
sddress these updetes in the reconciliation process. Another
example would be BIA'S nonreceipt of psyments on bkehalf of
account holders {(ses item 4.), Hepresentetivsas of the Interaor
CepagtTent, the BIA, the hasociation, =ribes and individual
Ird.an acfo.nt noldera AIthyr Andecsen & Co,, end GAD wil!
cdenziUy and nighl,ght 2inexr proRien areas £0r appropriste

- Eodad N o B B

a. Contract Modifications, Artnuc Andersen & Co. will cepors
1ta aasensmsn: of the Level of effort and cost essoCisted with
perfoiming work 1n the <contraect and any additicnal teska
ci.sri1fied in the above paragraphs sfter about 4-6 weaks of
seginning field work, Psctias will determine +he feasibility and
st effectiveness of performing work specified i1n the coNtrace,
modi1fying the coutregt to ipcliude additional tasks, or reducing
the scope of work by identifying threshholds, Any changes in che
contrgact that might result from this Jdetearmination will be
cresgnced to <he Office of Msnagemsnt and Budget and the
Tognirant congressionsl commiceees for consideration and advice.

9, Joint Working Group. It is agreed thet :utute isfues end
canceraé, :ngluding those listed above, and m zters outlined :n
the Memoctandum of Understanding betwsen the B3 and the
Associacion, will be eddredsed in joint meeti-3s including
reprssontotives &f the Interior Depsctaent, ¢ 2 BIA, the
Associetion, Aarthur Andersen & Co., end GAD. [t is further
agreed that these perties comprise a joint working group on the
Indran Trust Funds Reconciliarion Project,
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QOFFICE OF TRUST FUNDS MANAGEMENT

{ndian Trust Punds

Annual rate of return by fiscal years

FY Ending
Dete

" i

S ' —

-30-70
-30-7t
-30-72
-30-13

-Data deftved lrom Invepiment annul fapone.

=Moo dite Tound prigs (o above ditey

Tribal
Fund

6.50%
5.75%
5.93%
T4%
8.48%
9.19%
6.64%
5.431%
7.61%
10.4]1 %
12.04%
14.74%
14.48%
10.88%
10.54%
10.17%
£.33%
7.31%
7.53%
8.98%
8.12%

Attachment 1
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, DC 2240

JuL 19 1391

BY FACSIMILE

Eiouse C. Cobell, Charrperson

Intertribal Monitoring Association
on Indian Trust Funds

P.C Box 850

Browning, Montana 59417

Dear Ms. Cobell:

We appreciate your Association's letter of July 10, 1991, In that letter, the Association
provided a list of those Phase | reconciliation issues that it believed were resolved
during earlier mestings, but that the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) was unable to
confirm as beaing resolved when we met on July 1 - 2, 1891, Ouwr responses are
keyed to the numbered issues in the Association’s letter.

1. Underinvestment,

Your position is that BlIA must identify “underinvestments® as well as "uninvestments” of
Indian trust funds, resulting from BIA'S negligence or failure to camy cut trust
responsibilities.

We agres to Lhe extent that we can reach mutual agreement on the specific defintions
of "underinvestment”. The Association’s letter asked that the contractor apply the
same standard it would apply for private trust accounts. Rather than an industry or
generic standard for such terms as "underinvestment”, our understanding is that
accepted practice is tc rely on the instructions within the specific trust agreements.
Our mutual challsnge, as | see it, is t0 axamine the range of investment situations
where investment negligence or faifure to camy out trust responsibilities may have
occurred, and then develop operational definitions for them. With such definitions, we
all would understand with substantial precision what will be considered to be potential
“underinvestments®, and BIA will ba in a position to provide definitive guidancs o its
reconciliation and audit contractors so that they can identify such situations on the
report for each account holder, It should be noted that this is not currently in the
scope of work for the contract.
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We wish to develop these specific operationat definitions in a fair and open manner
In order to accomplish this, we propose that a small work group consisting of
representatives of the Association, the BIA, and Arthur Andersen & Company meet 10
work cut the needed operatianal definitions  The results of that work should then be
forwarded to the Association and the BIA management for final review and
acceptance We would suggest that such meetings be scheduled during August or,
at the latest, September.

We also appreciate your acknowledgement that the underinvestment exarnination is
not intended to second guess BIA'S exercise of discretion when making investment
decisions.

2, Netting of Qver and Under Payments,

Your position is that BIA reports must show separately the amounts overpaid and
amounts underpaid, without netting in any manner.

We have agreed to furnish the details of the actual account reconstruction, reflecting
amounts overpaid and amounts underpaid, without netting, both in the reports 10 the
account hoiders and 10 the Congrass. Following certification, we will need to svaluate
the data presented {0 determine whether any amounts are cwed to or due from
account holders. That may well require netting, but would not affect the reconciliation,
audit and certification reports presantad to account holders. These netted amounts
are what we would anticipate reimbursing o collecting {o resoive the findings of
incorrect balances following audit and centification.

3. llecti { m

Youwr position is that BIA will maie no effort to collect principal of interest that BIA
overpaicd to a tribal or Individual Indian Monsy (M) account holder until Congress has
determined how it wants to deal with over and under payments.

Tha BIA does not plan to initiate action to collect principle or interest that the BiA
overpaid (o a tribal or IIM account holder at the conclusion of the account
raconciliation phase of this effort  The completion of the audit and certification of an
account and the subsequent evaluation identified in iten 2 above i3 the point when an
obligation 1o commence either reimbursement or collection action will be properly
known and documented to BIA. At that point, BIA actions relative 10 overpayment
coflection would be dictated by the Debt Collection Act and guided by statute of
limitations considerations,
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Every eflort will be made to reimburse account hglders within a reasonable time frame,
consistent with available funds and the Budget Enforcement Act.

4. Repon Formats,

The Association wishes BIA 10 use an account reporting format that was prepared by
the ad hoc group lor reporting results of the reconciliations. As previously agreed,
BIA will incorporate the Association-generated formats into the reconciliation report
layout Based on a telephone conversation between Jim Parris, Ditector, Office of
frust Funds Management and Sue Lara of the Association, if is our understanding that
these relate 1o footnote contents. We also understand that the footnote content
details are being reconciled by BIA and Association representatives this wesk,

5. iIM Account issues.

a for 1}

The Association dasires further discussion concerning reconcliations of closed or pre-
merged accounts.

We agree that further discussion with the Association regarding reconciliations for
these type accounts would be beneficial.

b Lost Checks.

The Association desires a meeting, which would include Treasury representatives,
refative 1o the federal government’s inability 10 provide a fist of IIM checks that were
sent but not cashed.

We agree that a meeting with Treasury on this issue would be heiphul, and wil
procesd to coordinate such a meeting among representatives of the Association, the
Department of Treasury, the Office of Managsment and Budget, and the BIA,

Centralized Disburgement,

Your position is that a draft Reguest for Proposal (RFP) for Centralized Disbursement,
as proposed by BIA, is not an appropriate vehicle for soliciing ideas about a concept
that is still in the analysis stage, and you request BlA to set out the specific process
BIA intends 10 follow before issuing an RFP. You also request that BIA respond in
writing to your written comments that BIA not proceed with the RFP.



300

Aather than a draft AFP, BIA wil Jevelop and circulate fo your consideration anc
comment an analytic paper on the subject of centralized disbursement This, and
ather accounting issues, will be thoroughly addressed in the Interim Management
Plan. In addibon, we will respond, in writing, 10 your previous written comments on

this topic.

Sincerely,

i D st

Deputy Assistant Secretary -
Indian Affairs

cc.

Daniel S. Press

Van Ness, Feldman & Curtis

1050 Thomas Jefferson Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20007
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

oeT 311991

Honorable Mike Synar
Chairman, Subcommitiee on
Environment, Energy, and Naturat Resources
Committee on Gaovernment Operations
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairmar:

In my September 25, 1991, lefter to you [ indicated that we would forward to the
Subcommittee a copy of the Bureau of Indian Affairs’ {(BIA) completed “Policies
Regarding Notification and Reimbursement to Indian Trust Fund Account Holders
for Losses Atiributable to Bureau Errors”, following an opportunity for review of a
draft by several parties. We have received and considered comments on the
draft from the Inter-Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Funds, the
Office of Management and Budget, and the General Accounting Office.
Enclosure 1 constitutes BIA's policy on trust fund losses and account helder
notification, approved and being promulgated in a BIA Manual.

Sincerely,

indian AKairs

L
Enciosure
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United States Department of the Interior m

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, DC. ¢

0CT 16 199

Memorandum

To: Assistant Secrelary - Indian Affairs
From: Deputy Commissioner - indian Mm

Subject: Policies Regarding Notification and Reimbursement Lo Indian Trust Fund
Accourt Holders for Losses Atiributable to Bureau Errors

{ request your approval of a new palicy relating to notification and reimbursement to
indian trust fund account holders for losses attributable to errors on the part of Bureau
of Indian Affairs (BIA) or cther Departmertt of the Interior (DOI) surface management

agencies.

As you know, a loss policy has been under review for some time. A breakthrough on
release of this policy occurred late in July, when at a meeting on the Reconciliation
Project representatives of the BIA, Arthur Andersen & Co, the Department, the inter-
Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Furkis, and the General Accounting
Office fashioned agreements to a number of unresoived issues impacting notification
and loss reimbursement for trust fund account holders,

Comiments on this policy have been received, considered, and as appropriate
incorporated into the document from a number of interested external groups. This
includes the Inter-Tribal Monitoring Association on Indian Trust Funds, the Office of
Management and Budget, and the General Accounting Office. It is my conclusion that
we are now ready 10 release BIA's new policy on notification and losses.

Attachment 1 has been prepared to highight the major features of the new policy.

Upmyourapprwdﬂmpaldes(plshoappropﬂateBlApromlgaﬂonlmmage)
be published in the BIA Manual and distributed BlA.wide. | am told that this

Enclosure 1
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process will entail about three weeks from the date of your approval. Upon your
signature, | will direct the appropriate staff to incorporate the loss and notification
policy into the BIA Manual,

I recommend that you indicate your concurrence by signing at the designated point
on this memorandum.

Attachment

ED (T DATE
Assistant Sacretary - Indian Aftairs



304

POLICIES REGARDING NOTIFICATION AND REIMBURSEMENT TO INDIAN
TRUST FUND ACCOUNT HOLDERS FOR
LOSSES ATTRIBUTABLE TO BUREAU ERRORS

Policy Staten.ents.

Notification. It is the policy ot the Bureau ot Indian Affairs {BIA) to notily Tribal, Alaska
Native and individual Indian trust fund account holders of losses to their respective
accounts attributable to BIA or other federal government agency errors.

Relmbursement. }t is the policy of the BIA to reimburse Tribal, Alaska Native and
individual Indian trust fund accourt holders for losses to their respective accounts
attributable to BIA or other federal government agency errors as provided in the
implementing framework descibed below.

Definition of Trust Funds Loss.

A trust funds loss is defined as, in the case of Tribal and Alaska Native Corporation
accounts, an amount {principal and/or interest) that has b#en lost as a result of an
error by the Bureau of Indian Affairs or another federal government agency. In the
case of Individual Indian Monies (IM} account holders, a trust funds loss is defined as
an amount {principal but not interest) that has been lost as a result of an error by the
BiA or another government agency. Because the law regarding the investment of HIM
does not require the payment of interest on |IM accounts, the BIA is not liable to 1IM
account owners for loss of interest. See Attachment 1, Comptroller General Decision
Number B-243029, dated March 25, 1991,

The loss may result from any one of the following:
1. Mathematical mistakes;
2, Mistakes in the application of accourting principles;

3. Oversight of facts that existed at the time the transactions were recorded
by the relevant Bureau accounting office;

4. Misuse of facts that existed at the fime the transactions were recorded
by the retevant Bureau accounting office;

8, A change from an accounting principle that is not generally accepted to
one that is generally accepted.
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Notlfication and Loss Documentation Procedures.

When it is determined that a tribal or IM account holder has or may have incurred a
loss of funds held in trust by the BIA, the BiA's Office of Trust Funds Management in
Albuquerque, New Mexico must be notified within 24 hours by telephone or telefax of
the identification of the loss by the relevant Agency or Area Office. Simifarly, in the
case of a loss determined to have occured within the immediate operations of the
Office of Trust Funds Management, the relevant Area or Agency Office will be notified
within 24 hours by telephone or telefax of the loss, by the Office of Trust Funds
Management. The Office of Trust Funds Management wilf follow the relevant
procedures detailed below in notifying the cognizant Agency or Area Cffice.

Notification and loss documentation procedures are equally applicable in the event a
possible loss is identified or orignated by a tribal or IIM account holder. However, in
the event of a telephonic or written contact regarding a possible loss originated by an
account hoider, the servicing Area or Agency Office will arrange a meeting or personal
contact with the affected account holder to develop the Specifics and necessary
documentation of the possible loss.

The relevant Area Accounting Office shall, for tribal losses as defined above that
cannot be corrected within the month the loss occurred, be required to compute the
interest (earned or unearned) related to the loss and submit both the principal and
interest amounts 1o the Office of Trust Funds Management as described below. The
Office of Trust Funds Management is available to provide specific guidance to the
relevant Area or Agency accounting staff regarding the calculation of lost interest,
including the definition of pertinent rates and tirne periods to be used.

For {IM account holder losses, the relevant Area Accounting Office shall submit the
principal amount to the Office of Trust Funds Managment as described below.

The cognrizant Agency or Area QOffice, must, as soon as possible but not later than 10
working days of the discovery (1) forward a written notice of the basic facts
surrounding the matter with a status of the action being taken to gather the relevant
documentation and projected time frames for accumulation of that data, or
alternatively, (2) forward copies of all relevant documentation supporting the
computation of the loss, and related background information, to:

Chief, Policy, Analysis & Evaluation
Office of Trust Funds Management
505 Marquette, N.W., Suite 700
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87103
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The Office of Trust Funds Management will review the documentation, and, as soon as
possible but not later than 10 working days of receipt of the documentation, forward
to the originating Area Office a written notice of concurrence with the classification of
the computed amourt as a loss, or alternatively, what action is being taken and the
estimated time frarmes that the actiont will require. #, howsaver, the Office of Trust
Funds Management determines the amounts to not be properly identified as a loss,
that Office will forward, in writing, the réasons for non-acceptance of the loss
classification. This communication will also include instructions as to the proper
accounting treatment and disposition of the transaction.

The cognizant Area Office is then responsible for written notification to the relevant
Agency Office of the deterrination by the Office of Trust Funds Management, with
copies to the Office of Trust Funds Management.

As soon as possible, but not later than 10 working days of receipt of written
notification by the Office of Trust Funds Management of concurrence with the loss
classification and amount, the originating Area or Agency Office must notify the
account holder in writing, an furnish a copy to the Office of Trust Funds Management.
The notification should inctude: (1) the amount (if known), (2) any relevant
background information explaining the circumstances and facts concerning how the
loss occurred, (3) any action being taken to reimburse the ioss; and (4) the narnse,
telehone number and office location where an account owner may make inquiries,

Reimbursement of Losses,

Comptroller General of the United States procedures authorizing the use of
appropriated funds, where available, shall be utiized where applicable to reimburse
tribal and IIM account owner(s) for Iosses.

Every effort will be made to reimburse account holders within a reasonable period of
time, consistent with available funds.

The Office of Trust Funds Management will prepare an annual estimate of loss
reimbursement requirements for the ensuing budget year and forward that estimate by
May 1 (with an update of the estimate furnished on August 1) each year to the BlA's
Division of Program Development and Implementation for consideration in formulation
of BIA's annual budgets.

Trust fund losses will be reported in writing by the Office of Trust Funds Management
to the Deputy Commissioner of Indian Affairs and the Division of Program
Development and kmplementation monthly, and also summarized and submitted to the
Deputy Commigsioner of Indian Affairs and the Division of Program Development and
Implementation in a Fiscal Year Report of Verified Trust Fund Losses for each fiscal
year, by Decemnber 31 each year,
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Responsibliities.

It is the responsibility of all BIA line and staff officials to execute this policy in carrying
out the BIA's Indian trust responsibilities to Tribes, Alaska Natives and individual Indian
members.

Variation from these procedures and time frames will be permitted only in extenuating
circumstances or unique situations involving, for example, a requirement for additional
policy research and review at the Department of the Interior level, receipt of
documents, or legal review by the Department’s Office of the Solicitor. Those
instances must be documented by the Office of Trust Funds Management, which will
keep an annotated log of all reported losses and their ultimate disposition. Such
variations shall be documented and submitted to the Director, Office of Trust Funds
Management,

Noncompliance with the procedures set forth in this policy shall be identified and
reported to this Office for appropriate action.
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Decision

Matrcee of: Liskllity 3 Buress of Indien Affeirs for
Interest on Inaividusl Indien Monies

File: B-243019
Pate: Mareb 25, 1951
DIexs?T

Beceuss The law regerding the Lovestment of Individool Indian
Hornies (IIM) dcas not require the payment of Interest on 1M
sceounta, Che Burcau of Indien Affelrs (Aureau) is rot lisble
te IIM account <awners for lods of Interest, even that
resulcing from the Muresu’s follurs €O marsge II¥ Inveavments
properly. The Puresav end tribal representatlives should aseek
leglaletive settlament of any such clainms,

DECISIOH

Tha Acting Depary Corudssioner of Indlan Affeles has requested
sn advance decis!sn on the prepristy of peying Individyal
Indian Monles (I1IM; a€count ovnals [Nterest iNcoma That would
have sccrued %o their sceguntes ovt did Dot because of the
Bur#au’s manajement of those¢ accounts. In 1538, the Bureay,
acting under zuthority of 26 U.5.¢. § 16248 ifsection Jé2at,]/
initiatec its practice of Snvesting IIM funds. Bureau
managedent ONd ACCIURLing prectices, howsver, may have
resulted on occasian in IIM account OwTere [osing interest
income, Hevertheleas, Jucdiclal preesdent is vheguivecal that
because section 262k does NOT require the payment of intarest
on IIM acCounts, the governmear ia not Lieble To account
owners for any 1oss ol Incerest.

i/ Seerieon 1623 Zuthorires the Secretdry of the Inlerier teo
deposit furds reld 15 trust fer the benefit of lndividual
Inciens, as wall as rribel fupnds, ih bPanks thar will pay a
reasoneble rate »f incerest oh the deposiz, and, if he deems
it & be in tha Best ifterest of The INdiars, Lo invest such
funds in any publie-debt obligations ©f the United Ststes ond
in bongs, netes or ithar obligetiens that are unconditionally
guaranteed by The United Staces.

Attachwnent 1
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In 1%0%, rha BuLaau, iTveiee of Ind{an frnd: held by *he
United 9Tates, 2/ deternized that iz could manage the funde
mote efricientTy and 3t lesn cokt To The gIvernment by
procuting certein financia) sezvicen frem the pErivate aectoc.
See B-236146, Mar, 13, 1990. The Congress Nas instricced tha
Bureau ¢ recaticile all Indian accounta before translefring
any Iunda To s privere berk. Fub. L. Ho, 101-512, 104 Srar.
1915, 1923-30 {1930y Puo, L. ¥e. 101=-121, 103 Srar. 701, 714
{1989 . ee slao B-22614%, Mar, 30, 1890, Rapresentativer of
4 punber ©f Indian rridaa hove Juggeated that the Buregu, 46
part of the recentiliarion effort, sheuld caleulare and
identify on financlal aintements for eaeh TIM acceynt Lne
intezest that IIM BCCCUNT cenelé may have JoMT oVa: the yesIy
s & reawls of the Buresu’s managemeni and aecourting

practices.

According to che Dureau’s Office of Trust Furde Kanagsment,
zhe Bureau, st the and cf fis;al year 1990, malnrgined
approviately 288,000 IIM accpunts. ©Office of Trust Funds
vynagement, "Invastment of Indian Trusr Funds, Flacsl Year
1990% 3, IIK acecunts were originally intaended for legelly
iscopperent edultd snd minors wirheur guardiuny. Depariment
er Intecior, 0ffice ©f Inspector GeneTal Keport No, #3-117,
“Salected Aapects of Indisn Trust Fund Activities, Buresu of
Indian Affairs™ 21 {Sept. 9. 198%}. Today, the Buredu alse
saintalns IIM accounts fof adults recelving income Irom 8
LIVl Tadouice, uch a3 ¢il and 983 toyaltiea. (For erample,
the Kinerals Hanbdgement Service, after ceolleccing old ard gas
rayelilsh, paye the Burteau, who depoaizs rhe amcunt in the
appropriace IIN secount.) Orrice of Trus: Funds Mansgement
repert 4r 4. Tha Inapasicr Cenaral hay described the Dureau’s
IIM cparation e & "lerge quasi-banking system." Inspecier
General rapozr er 7,

Accordlng e Guresu €fficlale, che Byreay, in 1938, decided
that all IIM rundas would Ba fnvested and directed ity Agency
Gfflced o d> 39 in & wanner conalotent with secrion 162s.
Since 1966, the Burcau’s Brench of Inverrment in Albuquerque
bas poslec all IIM accouncs for investmant purpodes. The
Bureau allocares Lnterest earned on the Lnvestment pecl to
individual accountd, 3te gemelally, OfZlea of Trust Fands

2/ 1The Secretsry or the rnterior; rezpeonsible for ths
managenent of Indian afralrze (s4e @) U.3.¢. § 1457y 5 U.s,.C.
£5 1a, £}, has delagated avthoTlTy for manegement of Indisn
trust funde £o the Assistant Secratary for fndlen Affsire, whs
earried gur this reaponelbility through the Buresu.

2 S-242302%



310

B BIN1, SUPP. &
Il luseration 1
I'age 3 ol 7

Hansgenment reforc, Avpraj Inapector General repars, 1upta.
Trikal representacives avuggest chex thers 8 e nany i-atances
where the Bureau hey falled, sither becsuse of reglece or by
dactelon, te inyest scas IIH funds, and has Seprived sccount
evwnars of the posaidiliey of cumpulstive esrnlhys o5 Incercac
tncona bY feiling to recurd Ihversast iptime CTODAT1Y or co
tredlr an sccount owner with lntérest esrned., FOr erimgie,
cthe Busssu hax noI cslevleced interest on 0il and gas
soysltiss singe Novaaber 1955, slehough such furds are
irvested sa psrr of the IIM pool of funde,) the Buresu gwvairts
the developmant sna izplemencarion of & systenm that will allew
sscurece esleulstion and discributlon ¢f 2ush {fteres:.
meanvhile, sccount ewnars Iose the opportunity to lnvest thia
{interest.

Tne inspetter Genaral recantly eoncluded thet becuuse of
1naccirarte finanzial records, poor atcounting processes, and
lnadequite massgenent &nd controln, ths Bursau’s investmen:
dec13ions ATe not ezedible, and sriticised che Buresu fer
fajlure o refognize lavestmentr losses, among othar things.
The *nepsctor Genersl diactusaed one lnetsnce wvhere the Burcew
lost st least 53. 9 million in IIM prinelpal as & Creevulc of
invesring In finsneisl inetlrusions ther failed. Incpaerer
Gehersl repert at 12, The Inhapestor General compuced interest
of $3.8 fillicn that would have been atrned on the unrecewersd
funds sx of April 3¢, 1989. 18. The Inspacecer Generwsl
rentloned other instsnces of Tonaes of funds and Unes-ned
Interese inCCRe a4 well, He pointed dur chat “scaetlney the
Bufesy Mas respensible for the 108se5 . . ., and other cimes
the 10588 were beyord the Bureiit's contrdl.™ 1d. ac 14. The
frapacrtr Gerersl noced thar ir. sirverions such a5 t4la, che
Department’s SollciteT has derermined chac the Bufeaw {s noc
1lakle for lose interesc; che Inspecedr Gepelal, ¢iring che
Suraav’s fiduciary responaiPility, centluded char “zeclsions
#uet be made regarding che Bureau's jilabilicy.™ Id.

Arthur Andersen and Company, in its May 1950 report of 1ta
sudlt of Indisn tEust funds, noted Insrances of misposIlng of
Tecelpts snd uncinely Interest disiribucfons, and Zound, slso,
ther the Pureaw haa aot identified the gltimste sCSOUNT OWRers
of scre 11M belences. Arther Andersen & Co., “Iribel and
Ingividual Indish Monies Trust Funds; Financisl Scavszents as
0f fejtesber 30, 1987 end 1900" &, 15 (vay 11, 1930),

Kelther thr Pureau, Tribel represantailves mor ITM acoount
cwnesa aTe 10 8 prdarzien at this tlos Lo caleculate with any
desice €2 Cestalinty eatimated lCaa ¢f incerses, Qr even tc
idenvily, fox exanple, thoae atcounts cr Parie of atesunza
that were NE: Invested, over what pezi:d of tlma the Buraaw
rey have failed to {nvesc particular IIM funds, Or whep
Intezest income hay Not hava been posied properly,
Kevarthelesy, iR responde Lo the tribes’ querics, Ethe Buresu

ki B-24304%
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had agreed Lo LNnaicuc: the secouncinie undertaking ths
raconciliation.te celeulate posgible ldat interest, the
Puresu’d Requast for Propossld, psit I, para. 8, Dee, 20,
19507 the sueesass of this affozt will depand, of courzs, on
ths exjstencs gnd svailabillzy of aceowan: recocrds and othsr
historical evidence.

The Buresu's Actirg Depury Commlasbiorsr, in ths peantime, a3%a
whether the Durssy, a3 ¢ Yaneral satrer, is llsbls ro IIM
decQuUNt ovners for lo3t interest, and, if 3¢, how rths Burssu
ahould properly record auch 1lagility. Hs notss that ln s
1986 decizion, we sOnCludsed that L Unjited Statae la net
liﬂ;éle for intecast ¢n IIXW seZount3. €% Somp. Gen. 533, 54¢
19 .

DISCUSSION
Lisbjlity for Loss of Iptersast

Federal covrtr have 13ng held thet the Dnited States i3 not
lisble for interest unlezs I: Nea consented te the paybent cI
intereat. In & 1566 deeision, the Suprame Court explsined rhe
derivation of thas ruls, %;'Qggsx of Congress vw. thaw,

428 7.8, 310, 314-17 «2938). Enelish conpon~Taw courts viswved
interssr si1 & poralty dspa=ite frofl damages on the
sunstantive clajm, snd thus ervated & Separdits cayss of sction
ros the rcéovery of intarart. 3ecavse undsr United States
law, the federsl government, 42 ecversign, is immune from suit
in the absence of its conssnt, Rzarican courts, adopting thae
English comnoc law view ¢onearning the resovery of intereat,
conCluded that & clainant sgainat the govarnment cannot
recover inteérest Unless the govarnsent hsa wsived 1ty jamunicy
from suit in this fegard. Jd. “[A}bsent s srdtuts exprassly
providing for the piymert 3% interter, csparsts from a general
wijiver of lemunjry to suit, the United States ia jesuns fren
an swerd of inrezest 35 daméges.” White Hountals Apache Tribe
of Afirona v. United stares, 20 £1.7Ct. 37%, 33§ (L9907,
Courts constive warvers of feverelgn imsundty strictly in
2avor 02 the United Statas:

®{Tlhele ean be no conscht by Iapllcacion or by use
of ambicaons language. HNOT ceén an inte&nt oOn the

part of the f{ramars of & stalute . . . Lo permit the
racovery of intsarest 3uffjce whers the inrent is not
transisted inco sffirmative statutery . . . rtarms,”

Unitad Starsr v. MNew York Mavon Importing Cg., 325 U.%, 634,

ity
sudicjal precedant 13 unrelenting in ics application of this
rule to IIM funde, Courtd hate congistently held thaet
s8ction 167a doeo not conrtituis & wajver of soveseign

4 B-2423029
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iomunity becesse, gquita sinply, LT O0eS NOU reguirce the
peyneht of intarest. Sea, e.g., R3gefs ¥v. URITLIG Stasves,
577 F.2d 1550, 1354 (Fed. ¢Tr. 1988} (Thars i5 no contract,
Lrssty of Act of Congrese . . | thar axplessly, Or even by
ioplicatlon, provides fer the payment of Ihterast, . | ™),
Oniced Stetes v, Gild River Pima - Mazicopa InCian_Cxmmunity,
T.ad . 216 .Cc. €. T8) ("a¢ atatute exlsis requiring
intersét to be paid on ‘Individual Tondian Npnay' (11w
sccounta. . . ,"); White Mouncgip Apache Tribe of Arirona,
20 Ci. Cr, st 308 (“Tha geatave d0aé ncl axpressly Tandate
. - » payment Of Intarasc . ., 7).

With regard to IZH secounte, Seccion 1628 statas:

“the secrerary 18 . . . svghorited . . ., to depoait
1o Senkz ., ., ., tha funds neld in truse for the
Lenefic of individusl Indiene: Provided, that ne
indivicdual Ipdian meney shall Do depositad ip any
bank untll the bank sahall hsve agreed to pay
intarest thareon 4n & reasonable rete . . .:
Provided furthar, that the Saererary . . ., if he
deems it advisable atd For the bsst interest of The
sndians, may ip7eal the eruat funds of any . . .
individuaf_%ncicn in any publice-debt obligatisas of
the Upitad Stateas and in any bonds, notesa, o other
ebBligations whizh gre ufcondictionslly guaranteed
.« . by the Unized S5tates.” (Emphasias sdded.]

Copare with 25 ¥.5.C. § 16la, 23 originally snacied, which
conatituted 4 weiver of immunity with Fegard Lo tribal funds
“Mi funds . . . held in trust ty the Unlred Scatea . . | i3
the cradie of Irdian trites . . . ahill Lear inTeTest at cthe
zate of 4 par centum per snnun.” (Enphasis sddea.) )/ see,
».g.. Cheyenrs-krapaliy Tribes of Indians of Qklahodd ¥, Jrited
Tates, SLJ ¢.4d 1390 (Cs, ©). .97%); Hanchester Pand ©! Pomo
ndians v. Urited States, I63 F. Supp. 1238, Fz43-48 (N.D. Ce.
9730 .

In White Mountein Apache Tribe of Rrizona, the Clalms Court
exaSined jud:icial prececent sna found ho way around the rule
agelney payT£r: of intacest. Ten yeara earlier, the gour:
noTes, the Court of Claime hag suggesled That the Buresu's
ohiication under section 162a, iFf #ny, to lavest IIH funds in
.Cotive panner hed not teen eddrecssd fully, and thus

a T
casesved Torther geonsicderetien, Mavale Trike of Incdianmg o

37 Sectlon 1fla was revised inp 1984 Lo reguire the Secrerary
Gf the Treasury. at the request cf the Secretary of the
Interior, to invest tribal Tukdy in publle debt securitiss
beazing interest at fales degermined by the Treasury

Secretary.

5 L-2gicIv
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Ualted States, 624 F.2¢ 981, 994-95 Qe Cl. 18Q4)., After
Teviewing dacinidne fellowing Havado Tr&ba. the court in
Whice 4ountain Apsche Tribe coneluded that while sactjon 163a
does not clrect the paymert of Intercar, It deew "waliva tha
governmant’s imwunity o suit.” WHhite Heuntein Apache Tribe
of Aritcoe et J82-B), citing Mitchell w, Uniicd Scates,

TEX T.2d Z6%, 274 {Cct. ¢1. 13F11. 1The coutt seid Chat #cetion
1628 “establishes and circumacribes cthe Seciecery of zhe
Interier’s auzhority to anvest funds,™ and thet “lefxeceiee of
thee suchority within The parineters escablilsned by [sccllcn
162e] calls for the producrion of money; " nevertheless, the
court found, the case law ipterpreting seciion 162« “fails te
come to grips with the irpedinent L3 recovery,” i.e., that
*{t)he stgrule deas nef expreddly macdece (the) paynant of
interesc.” ¥NRite Mourtein Apeene Tribe of Arisona et JB4.

The court Conciuged, “(g!iven Lhe substantiel Jurisprudence
fron the Supreme Court snd the Court of Clains insisting that
the Rreponenst of interes: 45 dimages dezonstrate Lhe
tovercign’s ewpress wajver of Ilmwonivy . . ., . . ., [seciion
152a] cannet ba consirued as AN express waiver. 1d.
Regnldiens of whatevar duty mright be isposed DY seelion 162e
or ghe Baoresu, intarsst, as lost jnvestnens yYield, 1% che
Neeyurs of any breach of chat duty, and The cese law js
uneguivecal that & “waiver of izmunity Lo pay interest must be
separate from the weiver of fmamunity anabling e euit fer
danages.”  Id.

we adCressed this 13sve In our decinion sr €5 Comp. Can. 533,
In tpdt case, ehe Buresy hed lopreperly withdrawn fundes frem
the IIH aceovne of M. lLinde 8leckish. Ha. Sleckied sckad
that rhe Bureau, ip sddition o refunding tha amount
withdrawn, pay her intersst that woéuld heve ac<rved from the
date of withdrawal to the date ¢f refund had the monies
remained in her acgOuURt ang peen invesred., Alihough we
concluded chet che Buresau, in withdrawing the money frop the
account, had breached its trudl respontibillties to

ts. Slockish, we held, nonechelass, that ehe Bureau 4id rot
owe her interest. JId. ar 539. We siated:

*In view of the lopgstending practice of both the
courts and ekis Cffice not To avard interest anless
17 1% ¢lravly authcrized by ctreaty, statutes ¢r
coriracts, we Will follow the rulings of the United
g atae Claims Court. In this regard, we deem it
cr:eial that the United Stetes is not specilically
reqguirsd to pay laterest on IIM acCouncs.”®

1¢. ot S45. We npotad chat 1t mates no Odifferetce whather
Treeress 1a chaeaCrerised aa "datagens, loss, esrned Iincrement,
just cesgeseatacn, discoune, effeat, penalty ar any others

Term. ™ 1. s £39-40,

B-24302¢%
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Afeer & thorough and coptidered snalyslx of stectign 162a ana
case law ipTerpreting it, ve Iind no ba23is wpen which ro
modlfy our 1986 cenclusion., Federal courts Nave made clear
that the failure of Indiana® clsimy fOr i10tereat on IIM funds
1ies in tha uording of ewction l6le, i.e.. sectior 162a does
not raquife tha payrment of intarast. “Ri the Court of Clainms
sxplained ip a 975 decieion, an award of inteTast againet =he
govatnmsnt Cannot bs Aada, “!ple mattar how high the purpore
o6c how bPenavolant the wotive, , . , unlses ths reaquirsmahts of
the no-incefeoat culs have bewn pat." United Sthtew v.
Hestslero Acaehe Tribe, $18 F,2< )309, 1323 Ct. €I, 1987%).
Thua, 150 the absance of 1 judicisl renedy, the Bureswu and
tribal reprc?entetives ahould secek leglalative settlement of
eny claimy eriainy from the reconeiliation affort. The
statutery impeaimsnt cih be redredsed only by the Congrod?
threugh the legislatlve pyocess.

Reccrding interesy Llablllity

Tre Bureav shouvlg not record ap an obligacien of the United
Stater any intsreat llability witi] thé Cengress Nas sgreed to
atcept such llablllty. We have oo obJjechion howewel, to tae
Buresy reguiring the agcountanta undertaking the
recenciliation to calculste pogsible lest inlerest and to
idengify it, for informational purposes, In the financial
staiements Lhey prepars to reporc their findings to the Bureau
arg the acgcunt gwners.

Yiullin - houctin.
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